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When one has an unblemished history of over 53 years of successful 
enterprise, providing premium insurance products and services to 

people across the Nation; when one can claim leadership in  
the field through aspects such as market share and the largest asset 
base and life fund amongst all insurers in the country; when one’s 

diversification and reach is unparalleled...one can justifiably ‘look in 
the mirror’ and see a reflection of ‘STABILITY’ staring back.

This is Sri Lanka Insurance Corporation today....the current  
definition of stability. 





OUR VISION

To be the trusted insurer to the nation. 

OUR MISSION

To be a customer-focused company that is trusted, which constantly innovates in 
providing insurance services of best value to our customers, whilst rewarding our 

employees and adding value to our shareholders.



VI

SRI LANKA INSURANCE CoRpoRAtIoN Ltd. – ANNUAL REpoRt 2014

Contents

1.0 Highlights 1 – 2
1.1.0 Financial Highlights 1
1.2.0 Operational Highlights 2

2.0 Messages 3  – 18
2.1.0 Chairman’s Message 4
2.2.0 Managing Director’s Review 12

3.0 Management Discussion and Analysis 19 – 54
3.1.0 Operating Environment 20
3.2.0 Financial Review 25
3.3.0 Operations Review 44

4.0 Corporate Governance 55 – 69
4.1.0 Board at the Helm of Stewardship 56
4.2.0 Board of Directors 59
4.3.0 Senior Management Team 64
4.4.0 Organisational Structure 68

5.0 Enterprise Risk Management  70 – 90

6.0 Audit and Compliance Committee Report  91



VII

AnnuAl RepoRt 2014 – SRI lAnKA InSuRAnCe CoRpoRAtIon ltd.

7.0 Financial Reports 97 – 254
7.1.0 Annual Report of the Board of Directors of the Company 99
7.2.0 Statement of Directors’ Responsibility 107
7.3.0 Chief Executive Officer’s and Chief Financial Officer’s Responsibility Statement 108
7.4.0 Certificate of Actuary of the Insurer 110
7.5.0 Liability Adequacy Test 111
7.6.0 Certification of Incurred But Not (Enough) Reported Claims 112
7.7.0 Independent Auditors’ Report 113
7.8.0 Statement of Financial Position 116
7.9.0 Statements of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income 118
7.10.0 Statement of Changes in Equity 120
7.11.0 Statements of Cash Flows 124
7.12.0 Segmental Review: Statement of Income  126
7.13.0 Segmental Review: Statement of Financial Position 130
7.14.0 Notes to the Financial Statements 134

8.0 Supplementary Information 255 – 281
8.1.0 Statement of Financial Position of the Life Insurance 256
8.2.0 Notes to the Financial Statements – Life Insurance Fund 257
8.3.0 Ten Year Summary 266
8.4.0 Glossary 274
8.5.0 Branch Offices 275
8.6.0 Corporate Information 278
8.7.0 Notice of Annual General Meeting 280
 Form of Proxy Enclosed





1

AnnuAl RepoRt 2014 – SRI lAnKA InSuRAnCe CoRpoRAtIon ltd.

2014
Rs. million 

2013
Rs. million

Change
%

Total Revenue  29,302  27,981 4.7

Gross Written Premium  20,666  21,351 -3.2

Net Earned Premium  17,805  17,805 0.0

Profit Before Taxation (PBT) 4,373  6,355 31.18

Profit After Taxation (PAT) 3,257  4,655 30.00

Total Assets  162,192  143,556 13.0

Return on Assets (%) 2.0 3.2 34.375

General Insurance
General Insurance Fund  13,196  13,289 -0.7

Net Claims Ratio (%) 63 52 21.7

Expense Ratio (%) 40.43 27.08 13.35

Life Insurance
Life Insurance Fund  74,706  66,511 12.3

Expense Ratio (%) 46 40 12.5

Face Value Bonus 4,764  4,462 6.8

Ratings
Fitch Ratings
National Insurer Financial Strength AA (lka) AA (lka)

National Long-Term Rating AA (lka) AA (lka)

Outlook Stable Stable 

Lanka Rating
Long-Term Claims Paying Ability AAA AAA

Short-Term Claims Paying Ability P1 P1

Outlook Stable Stable

1.1.0 FInAncIAL HIGHLIGHtS

Profit for the year
over

Rs. 3 billion 

Total Assets
over

Rs. 162 billion 
(Company)

Size of  the
Life Fund

Rs. 75 billion 

Total Bonus 
issued for the year

Rs. 4.8 billion 
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1.2.0 oPeRAtIonAL HIGHLIGHtS

customers

employees

Society, Government and economy

Life Insurance
18.19%  

(No. 2 in the Industry)

A staff strength of  
2,349 personnel

Life Insurance
553,271 

122  
training and development 

programmes held  
during the year

Contribution to the Government as taxes  
over Rs. 2.4 billion

Life Insurance
57,426 

Investments in training  
and development for the 

year exceeds  
Rs. 9 million

General Insurance
1,179,937

General Insurance
364,021

Number of customers  
(Policies in force)

New customers acquired 
in 2014

Market share

General Insurance 
21.47%  

(No. 1 in the Industry)

A network of 117 Branches and 5 
Customer Service Centres

Rated by Fitch, Lanka Ratings 
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2.0 
Messages

A VIEW FROM THE  
TOP – THE YEAR GONE BY;  

THE COMPANY’S 
PERFORMANCE HIGHLIGHTS 

IN CONTExT AGAINST ITS 
STRATEGIES; AND THE FuTuRE
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2.1.0 cHAIRmAn’S meSSAGe

Looking back over a year that has undoubtedly been a turning point for the country, where 
history books have been rewritten and new chapters inked, for Sri Lanka Insurance Corporation 
Ltd., the macro milieu has been quite advantageous, enabling the Company to move steadily 
ahead to achieve its vision. Taking over the reins to helm this august institution which has 
played a dominant role in the national economy since 1962, I have the enviable task of being 
given the mantle from some of the country’s exemplary leaders who have spearheaded the 
course of this entity in the past. 

This state-owned institution truly underlines the concept of ‘Stability Defined’, having 
continued to reiterate its prowess within an intensely competitive industry. SLIC has carved 
historic milestones along its legendary journey including possessing the largest asset base 
and the largest life fund within the insurance industry. Constantly pioneering, this year’s 
performance has continued to showcase consistent growth, a facet well evident in this review 
of the Company’s performance over the last year and one which I’m pleased to present to you, 
our stakeholder. 

OBSERVATIONS ON THE GLOBAL ECONOMY

There was little redress seen in the global economy's performance over 2014, despite great 
expectations. The expected momentum did not materialise from developed countries and 
emerging economies were less dynamic than in the past. There was just marginal growth from 
2.5% to 2.6%, while growth in 2015 is believed to stand at 3% and average about 3.3% through 
2017. Soft commodity prices, persistently low interest rates and a decline in oil prices since 
mid 2014 will support global activity and hopefully offset some of the headwinds. However, 
while the latter will grant some relief to oil-importing developing countries, it will undoubtedly 
dampen growth prospects for oil-exporting countries. 

While the uS and uK did see some activity due to labour markets becoming more active 
and monetary policy being accommodative, on the converse, the legacies of the financial crisis 
intertwined with structural bottlenecks dogged Japan. China too began undergoing a carefully 
managed slowdown. Developing countries were disappointing reflecting weak external demand, 
domestic policy tightening, political uncertainties and supply-side constraints. 
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According to The World Bank, South Asia continues as the fastest growing region in the 
world given that the region posted 5.5% growth in 2014, rising from a ten year low of 4.9% in 
2013. The upturn was driven by India in strong expansion mode, coupled with favourable oil 
prices. The South Asia Economic Focus Report posits that regional growth will continue to 
increase from 7% in 2015 to 7.6% by 2017. India’s reforms easing supply constraints, political 
tensions subsiding in Pakistan, Bangladesh and Nepal posting robust remittances and demand 
for the region's exports will surely be the panacea in driving this much expected growth, as is 
maintaining strong consumption and increasing investment. 

SRI LANkA CONTINUES CONSISTENT GROWTH PARADIGMS

Showcasing its characteristic resilience and ability to constantly perform under pressure,  
Sri Lanka’s growth continues to outpace its regional counterparts, sitting comfortably at a 
GDP growth of 7.4%, better than last year's 7.2%. The Central Bank of Sri Lanka’s Department 
of Census and Statistics declares that the lower growth rate, compared to the forecast 7.8% 
however, was primarily due to the comparatively slow growth of 6.4% recorded in the last 
quarter of the year. The World Bank said growth in Sri Lanka is expected to decline to 6.9% in 
2015 due to slowing construction activity, partially set off by consumption growth observed due 
to increased public sector wages and higher disposable income.

Sri Lanka has also performed significantly well in global indices including the Global 
Prosperity Index, Ease of Doing Business Index and the Global Competitiveness Index, been 
the highest ranked in South Asia in most of these. From a financial perspective, Fitch Ratings 
affirmed Sri Lanka’s long-term foreign and local currency issuer default rating at BB-, reflecting 
the international investor community’s confidence in the economy. 

According to analysts, the economy has progressed close to upper middle income category 
and the main issues facing the country have also transformed. The challenges observed are 
curtailing corruption and establishing better law and order. Political uncertainties will create 
short-term volatilities in the economy, but the improved fundamentals will assist to drive the 
economy at a similar or faster pace than the last five years. While the Colombo Stock Exchange 
has seen lacklustre price movement, there could be a sentiment of stronger investment 
opportunities in the market, with better valuations. 
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Sri Lanka is focusing on long-term strategic and structural development challenges as it 
strives to transition to an upper middle-income country. This therefore brings forth a slew of 
diverse challenges including boosting investment and development of human capital, realigning 
public spending and policy with the needs of a middle-income country and enhancing the role 
of the private sector. Sri Lanka’s growth and competitiveness is constrained by a skills gap that 
has emerged due to transformations observed in labour market conditions and an educational 
structure not responding to the needs of the job market.

It is also an economy that’s no longer dominated by the agriculture sector but rather by 
services, followed by industry and manufacturing. Employment patterns have therefore 
followed these trends, shifting significantly from agriculture to industry and services. Labour 
productivity levels must be pushed up with the mismatch between graduates and private sector 
needing particular attention. Fostering a workforce that's employable is a priority to improve 
the quality of human capital through effective education and skills development. 

THE INSURANCE INDUSTRY IN BRIEF

As detailed by the Central Bank of Sri Lanka, the insurance industry posted assets growth 
of approximately 13%, continuing to remain resilient albeit slowing down compared to the 
previous year’s performance. By end of 2014, Fitch Ratings gave the industry a stable outlook, 
despite the impending split of composite insurers into life and non-life companies. This is, 
based on the view that most insurers will maintain stable financial fundamentals in 2015, 
supported by moderate sector growth. Fitch Ratings also expects economic growth and under-
penetration in the market to support the growth of total gross written premiums (GWP), while 
significant improvement in life penetration in the short term, due to low disposable income 
will not see more than moderate growth in life premiums. Viewing the split of composites 
positively, adding that this will add greater transparency and policyholder protection, it also 
posits that some insurers may face operational uncertainties. Such that, post-split ownership 
structures and capital requirements may have a bearing on the credit profiles of individual life 
and non-life companies.

Minimum regulatory capital has been increased to Rs. 500 million from Rs. 100 million, 
risk-based capital (RBC) will replace the current rule-based solvency regime by 2016 and 
insurance companies are required to list by 2016 apart from some exemptions. Along with the 
stringent regulations, there will undoubtedly be market consolidation in the medium to long-
term, which will augur well to consolidate and protect the high number of insurers in Sri Lanka. 
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Weaker capitalisation, sustained losses and a strong macro-economy will be the sensitivities 
that will impact the insurance industry post 2014. A significant decrease in capitalisation 
and solvency ratios due to the split of the composites, could lead to a negative outlook as any 
weakening in risk capital due to profit volatility or higher equity exposure in investments will be 
negatives for issuer ratings. The industry will also have to contend with growing price competition 
in motor, leading to weak technical results and significant reduction in investment income due 
to falling interest rates. Fragmentation of markets due to recent surge of competition is seen to 
exert downward pricing pressure on market leaders as newer entrants vie for market share at 
the expense of operating profitability. This will result in sustained losses which would naturally 
cascade as a negative for the non-life industry. However, the brighter side of the outlook is in 
the macro-economy, which is expected to showcase significant growth in real GDP product, 
permeating to higher disposable income and thus, a deeper insurance penetration. 

It is this lacklustre penetration that needs to be addressed, given that it remains yet in single 
digits, despite an industry that has potential to be a significant contributor to the economy and 
should have matured given its history of well over seven decades. I do believe that the industry 
has considerable potential for expansion, primarily in the Life sector, especially among the 
lower and middle income earning communities. The sector contributes a dismal 1.5% of GDP, 
although the envisaged contribution should ideally be between 2% and 3% at current level of 
market development. I'm of the view this is the collective responsibility of the entire industry as 
it is our obligation and duty to ensure that we communicate the quintessence of the advantages 
of obtaining insurance in a clear, concise and comprehensive manner. 

We must ensure that our message is one which is understood by the target market which 
underlines the fact that insurance is an imperative, rather than an option. It should be featured 
as an investment proposition aimed at safeguarding the future of not only the policyholder 
but also his/her family, adding financial security and stability throughout life, rather than 
being a monetary benefit gained after death. It is absolutely crucial that we communicate this 
message unequivocally; stating the 'real' positives that accrue to a policyholder, so that they feel 
compelled to invest and gain the advantages of having a secure and stable future. 
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CAPITALISING ON OUR FINANCIAL STRENGTHS 

The industry did not experience any drastic transformations during the year given the slow 
growth rate, which reflected on SLIC’s performance as well. A complete financial review is 
available in the Managing Director's Review as well as the Financial Review and Financial 
Statements found elsewhere in this Report. In synopsis, SLIC experienced a decline of about 
3% on pricing and we also lost about 2% of our market share in Life. However, SLIC has 
always prided itself on its visionary thinking, pragmatism and an insatiable need to overcome 
challenges. This has driven us to infuse progressive strategies that will enable us to re-capture 
our market share and definitely work on a strategy that will enable us to grow this share even 
further. I see immense potential in the plans we are now implementing and coupled with the 
competencies and skill of our dynamic team, these goals are surely attainable sooner rather 
than later. 

Our asset base of over Rs. 162.19 billion is the largest in the country, as is our Life fund of  
Rs. 74.7 billion. We also have a policyholder base of 550,000 plus for our life insurance business 
and 1,179,937 for our general insurance business, which surely places us among those at the 
zenith of the industry. We have clearly defined targets and mileposts to make these numbers 
move on an upward spiral in the years ahead. With our financial fundamentals being strong, 
consistent and well-founded, we have been lauded with numerous rankings that reiterate our 
financial strength and prowess. We remain the only insurer in Sri Lanka to be ranked AAA by 
Lanka Ratings and AA (lka) by Fitch Ratings London. 

The profit before tax of Rs. 3.3 billion due to life and general premiums recording key 
performance, have enabled SLIC to continue its sustained growth trajectory, despite emerging 
volatility both in the macro milieu and market from time to time. 

A factor that did impact our business was the pressure on margins, due to the prevalent low 
interest regime prompting stakeholders to transfer products to gain advantage of product costs. 
However, the strategic investments made has resulted in an impressive profit on investments, 
posting an encouraging increase of Rs. 11,217 million, from Rs. 9,275 million posted last year, 
reiterating our focused strategy on ensuring the right mix within our investment portfolio and 
a strategic plan that would ensure sustainable returns from these investments. 

We have always maintained a prudent risk management milieu, maintaining minimal risk 
via reinsurance agreements placed with our overseas partners. Reinsurance covers most of the 
risk undertaken for general insurance, which although impacting our profits, enables us to 
maintain risk at manageable levels. 
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SUBSIDIARIES GAIN MOMENTUM

There has always been an overarching rudiment of performance excellence that governs the 
Group. The need to outperform each year by building and nurturing on the inherent strengths 
we posses has pushed us to pursue new opportunities pragmatically and with vision. 

Sinolanka Hotels & Spa (Pvt) Ltd., a sub-subsidiary of SLIC, is currently engaged in the 
construction of the Hyatt Regency, Colombo, which is billed for completion by December 2016. 
This landmark skyrise has already gained much repute not only as an international hotel chain 
establishing a strong presence in Sri Lanka and naturally push benchmarks prevalent within 
the tourism industry to higher realms, but also in construction capabilities, given the hallmark 
architecture, concept and design it will feature. 

Canowin Hotels and Spas (Pvt) Ltd., the subsidiary managing the rest stop on the Southern 
Expressway has seen significant increase in footfall, auguring well for a higher performance this 
year. We await further expansion of expressways in Sri Lanka in which we aim to capitalise on 
the advantages we foresee by expanding our presence and adding value to the infrastructure 
development being implemented by the State.

The largest importer and supplier of LP Gas in Sri Lanka, Litro Gas operates the country’s only 
import terminal and filling facility. Able to cater to the entire country’s LPG requirements given 
its comprehensive distribution network, Litro Gas also holds the distinction of being the oldest 
gas supplier in the country. The Company has continued to grow steadily and showcase consistent 
performance throughout the year, which has impacted the Group’s bottomline positively.

The Lanka Hospitals Corporation PLC posted a landmark year, having gained the prestigious 
Joint Commission International Accreditation, making it a member of the elite collective of 
just 450 hospitals around the world. It remains one of the most accredited hospitals in the 
country, etching pioneering pathways including becoming the only healthcare provider in Sri 
Lanka to ever win the Global Performance Excellence Award conferred by the Asia Pacific 
Quality Organisation. This means that The Lanka Hospitals also surpassed its vision of being 
the foremost and preferred healthcare facility in the country in 2014. It also inked a pioneering 
initiative this year with the establishment of Lanka Hospitals Diagnostic (LHD), the first-ever 
reference laboratory in the country, equipped with cuttingedge technology designed for faster 
response times in the diagnostics process. 
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MOVING AHEAD

I observe considerable opportunity for expansion of our distribution channels, via branches and 
agents, aimed at making insurance a more inclusive product and an advantage we must afford 
to the nation's citizenry as an imperative. While technology will be used to optimise our reach, 
we also remain cognisant to the fact that the Sri Lankan psyche requires the presence of brick 
and mortar structures to assert presence, where communicating directly with a team member 
and prompting a dialogue process is important. We will continue having a physical presence 
in the industry therefore, given that our aim is to grow our business via penetration and by 
presenting a customer service genre constructed on a one to one communication process. With 
these, we will surely gain considerable advantage among our competition. Our ultimate goal 
therefore should be to reach out to more places than any other in the insurance industry.

Having analysed the product portfolio available within the industry, there is considerable 
potential in product development, where innovative products customised to suit various and 
diverse customer segments must be presented as options to our clientele. Innovation is the 
key to gaining market share and studying market trends and paradigms both local and global, 
coupled with constant feedback from customers and potential customer demographics, will 
enable us to continually innovate our product portfolio. Reinvigorating products and service 
levels by revolutionising thought processes and augmenting skills and capabilities will motivate 
branches and agents to optimise their marketing abilities, given that our products will not only 
be innovative, but be responsive, have differentiation and be unique in the marketplace. 

While the industry is getting more competitive, there is also a danger of it becoming more 
fragmented if more new players enter the market. It is imperative therefore that the bigger 
players act and operate responsibly, ethically, accountably and transparently, acknowledging 
their leadership roles to lead and guide the industry into a milieu of high performance. This also 
pushes the industry to take collective decisions on its future and be united for higher innovation, 
better product differentiation and inclusive penetration. The market must be competitive and be 
a level playing field, eschewing any unethical practices to gain unfair advantage. The collective 
vision should be in growing the insurance industry for the benefit of the nation and its people; 
matching growth trends that prevail in China and India. 
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IN APPRECIATION 

Spearheading this legendary insurance entity is certainly a prestigious appointment, but with it 
also comes a permeating responsibility to ensure that as an industry leader, we must champion 
the cause to reach new heights, while taking the Company to higher realms. While thanking 
my Board of Directors, senior management and the team for their support and guidance in 
ensuring that we make pragmatic decisions that will impact positively for a sustainable business, 
I look forward to working with you in reiterating SLIC’s position at the helm of this industry. 

I also extend appreciation to the Insurance Board of Sri Lanka and other germane regulatory 
authorities for the advice and continuous consultation we have been gaining from you and look 
forward to a continuance of the dialogue we have now begun. The advice and guidance given 
by the Ministry of Finance on a timely basis is much valued.

The former Chairmen and Board of Directors have completed a very successful year for 
SLIC for which I thank them most sincerely, looking forward to building on the positives they 
have constructed to create a sustainable business entity. 

As we embark on a new year, our qualitative and quantitative performance underscores the 
fact that we have worked within a milieu of ‘Stability Defined’. While we have had our share 
of challenges, these have been used as learning curves to enable us to redefine our plans and 
create a blueprint that will take us forward. ‘Stability Defined’ also means that we have to work 
that much harder to transform our weaknesses into strengths and threats to opportunities, 
which will enable us to push towards capturing the market share we lost, innovate much more 
to define our product portfolio and train, develop and motivate our team to always be ahead to 
optimise on emerging opportunities. It is this that will push us into leadership position in life 
insurance once again, a goal we have now established to achieve in three years and one that will 
grow on the base of being a stable progressive visionary organisation built on solid teamwork.

Hemaka D.S. Amarasuriya
Chairman

1st June 2015
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2.2.0 mAnAGInG DIRectoR’S RevIew



13

AnnuAl RepoRt 2014 – SRI lAnKA InSuRAnCe CoRpoRAtIon ltd.

THE CONCEPT OF STABILITY IS  
CHALLENGING ONE GIVEN THAT IN AN 

INTENSELY COMPETITIVE ENVIRONMENT, 
MAINTAINING STABILITY IS A 

FuNDAMENTAL TO THE SuSTAINABILITY 
FOR ANY ORGANISATION
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For Sri Lanka Insurance Corporation Ltd., stability has always remained an overarching tenet, 
which has been constructed on a strong foundation of financial strength, knowledge prowess 
and a governance framework that truly defines our stability. It is this that has been the formula 
for our consistent success and has enabled SLIC to weather the storms of challenges and emerge 
triumphant, seeking opportunities to grow in multi-faceted ways. This then is how stability is 
defined and how we have made it our unique competitive advantage.

With the country’s development path now looking towards even more aggressive growth 
plans, an underlying factor in these plans is the crucial role that has and must be played by 
the financial services industry. Pushing a path of inclusive sustainable growth, the insurance 
industry will unequivocally be called upon to be a catalyst in this growth paradigm given 
its stronghold in Government funds which can be one of the imperative tools that will etch 
this growth pathway. It is in this backdrop that I present my review for the year ending 2014, 
proudly holding aloft the fact that Sri Lanka Insurance Corporation continues to be the largest 
insurer in Sri Lanka. 

OUR OPERATING ENVIRONMENT 

The insurance industry consists of 29 insurance companies. A pervasive factor observed is 
that most of the interaction by the industry, remains concentrated in urban areas and non-life 
penetration, albeit yet limited, is better than life penetration. Hence, the potential for business 
growth is immense, especially in reaching out to the rural and semi-urban areas. One such 
segment we see growth potential is in agricultural areas, where customised insurance solutions 
will surely be the value addition to the challenges faced by the farming community and enable 
a much better economic contribution from this segment of the economy. 

The life sector is considered a non-necessity and will be availed upon only as a last resort 
or when excess disposable income is available, which is a massive shortfall in the perception of 
life insurance among stakeholders. The industry has been unsuccessful in communicating the 
importance of life insurance and the value additions it imbues, which has in turn led to a lack 
of interest in purchasing life insurance and thereby, the insurance companies neglecting the 
sale of such policies. The cycle must be reversed and to reverse it, the industry must take action 
to be more persuasive and have clarity in the dialogue process they engage in. Products must 
be customised to suit each economic segment, being more attuned to the requirements of the 
stakeholder, rather than a ‘one size fits all’ policy. The policy must be one that remains tied to 
the policyholder throughout their life span. 
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Growth of non-life business remains at a higher level than life due to the compulsory 
insurance policies required for motor, business and other germane requirements. It is almost 
rare for customers to seek non-life policies that are not mandatory, content with only the basic 
cover. Given this mindset, insurers also tend to focus more on non-life business as growth is 
assured at this level. However, once again, the insurance industry has not focused greatly on 
penetration and widening the scope of business, being placid in the retention of the business at 
hand, rather than aggressively seeking opportunities for varied solutions that are currently seen 
elsewhere in the world. 

Increasing penetration is the panacea to growing the industry and this can only be done if 
the industry itself is well aligned to customer requirements, expectations and aspirations. The 
industry must customise policies that would meet these needs and thus become an imperative, 
rather than a choice which can be availed of later. With the per capita income billed to increase 
to uS$ 4,000 by 2016, the industry must capitalise on the opportunities that arise with this 
higher level of income and standard of living. 

SYNOPSIS OF PERFORMANCE

Having concentrated on increasing penetration, life business, of which we hold 40% of the entire 
fund in the country, posted growth aligned to industry average, although general insurance, 
while notching some growth, was less than the industry average. However, the year itself has 
been a challenging one for SLIC where even though we did post impressive results continuing 
to remain at the helm in profitability, financial performance and consistent growth, we were 
challenged in realising the forecast growth. 

As we look at your Company's quantitative performance, SLIC recorded a profit before tax 
of Rs. 3.26 billion for the year, compared to Rs. 4.65 billion recorded last year. Life insurance 
premium was Rs. 8,121 million, while general insurance premium was Rs. 12,544 million for 
the period. The life fund is detailed at an impressive Rs. 74.70 billion, which although having 
paid large maturity and advance payouts to longstanding customers, also showcases that SLIC’s 
entire persona is constructed around stability, especially in financial consistency and financial 
strength. The combined Gross Written Premium (GWP) recorded Rs. 20.67 billion, with life 
and non-life business in GWP growing 35.14% and 35.38% respectively over the five years 
post-re-nationalisation. 

One of our biggest strengths and certainly a factor that defines our stability, remains the 
unprecedented bonuses we declare. Another is the conscious, informed and timely decisions 
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made on opportunities that evolved in the capital market, enabling us to boost investment 
income to achieve exceptionally high-levels. This has resulted in the SLIC life fund, largest in 
the industry, recording consistent growth in investment income. 

We have always believed in nurturing the relationships we have with our customers, 
strengthening their trust in us by delivering on our promises, which also includes astute 
management of our well-matured life insurance fund and prudent investments. Having honed 
our customer service to levels that have created strong stakeholder relationships where the 
commitment of our team to ensure that our policyholders get the best, has seen customer 
loyalty at a record high. An enviable half a million policyholders is impressive by any standards, 
undoubtedly reiterating, ‘Stability Defined’. I feel very proud to pronounce that SLIC declared an 
unmatched bonus of Rs. 4.8 billion for the year, the highest ever in the history of the insurance 
industry of Sri Lanka.

While insurance remains our core business, SLIC has been strategically diversifying, 
identifying key growth industries and astutely imbuing investments into these business areas. 
Our investment portfolio’s diversified nature is well seen in the fact that we are key investors in 
tourism, hospitality, energy and health, all earmarked growth industries positing well for good 
Return on Investments (ROI) on our investments. Already, some of these investments have 
infused considerable ROIs to our bottomline, while also enabling us to seek other value adding 
avenues of growth and emerging areas of opportunity. As can be observed, our investments 
our strategic, pose minimum risk and are certainly well-endowed to augment our investment 
portfolio quantitatively and qualitatively. 

Our business ethos is one of sustainable development, an inherent mindset that permeates 
the way we do business, product development, customer interaction and stakeholder 
engagement. For instance, the launch of an innovative health policy this year is geared to ensure 
the well-being of people, where a healthy nation can undoubtedly contribute towards ambitious 
economic development being chartered by the country. Similarly, education remains high on 
our agenda of social responsibility initiative, as by creating pathway to hone knowledge among 
the younger generation, we will assist in building a competent and skilled force who will add 
value to national development. The cash rewards presented at the Life Suba Pathum scholarship 
scheme for high achievers in the Grade 5, O/Level and A/Level examinations examples our 
commitment to sustainable knowledge gain. 
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GOVERNANCE AND REGULATION 

One of the strong fundamentals in the way we operate our business is having a strong governance 
and compliance culture. This is an imperative in our business practice and is something we remain 
very cognisant of. Prudent business strategies, operational excellence, astute risk and investment 
management and far thinking reinsurance practices all form the axis upon which our business 
revolves on. Adequate liquidity and a portfolio of highly marketable Bonds and Treasury Bills 
pave the way for SLIC to be ready at any time to meet stakeholder obligations, while product 
development and innovation leads the way in ensuring insurance solutions that are unique and 
timely. As the largest Government insurer, we are aware of the responsibility we are tasked with in 
ensuring that an unshakeable foundation of trust is well- entrenched into both the quantitative and 
qualitative best practices we permeate. The fact that we are the first and only insurance company 
in Sri Lanka to be certified with ISO 9001:2008, reiterates our commitment to governance and 
accurate and timely operational, processes, systems and standards. 

Regulated as we are by the Insurance Board of Sri Lanka, the Risk-Based Capital (RBC) 
framework which was introduced to the industry, aims to protect the interests of stakeholders 
and minimise the risk of possible financial crises. In the directive under the Insurance Industry 
(Amendment) Act No. 03 of 2011, capital adequacy requirements and the solvency positions 
have also been introduced to create a more sound and well governed industry.

PLANS AHEAD

We have now embarked on a three-year Strategic Plan which sets out the blueprint for SLIC 
to regain its market share thereafter grow incessantly, identifying our strengths and fortifying 
those even further. Bridging the gaps that exist including transforming inherent weaknesses 
into advantages and seeking to exploit opportunities that continue to emerge are also within the 
plan. Our immediate focus is on channel development with emphasis placed on agency growth, 
which we believe is the way forward for the plans we have mapped out. The current branch 
network of 117 along with 15 customer service centres will be further expanded, strategically 
placed to maximise on the geographic location. 

Similarly, innovation will be the catalyst in product development. Having always had a pulse 
on customer expectations and requirements, we intend to hone the feedback and dialogue 
we have with our customers even further, gaining firsthand knowledge of the solutions they 
require and customising these insurance solutions innovatively. In tandem, our team, together 
with our agency force will continue to be motivated. The excellent results they have consistently 
showcased displays the absolute commitment and dynamism this force, pushing boundaries 
with a will to win, even in the most intensely competitive eras. 
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ACkNOWLEDGMENTS 

It has undoubtedly been an excellent year for us, while it has also been a learning curve. But 
through it all, we have been able to uphold the high levels of trust and the responsibility 
given to us by our customers, a feat that has been daunting but rewarding. Thank you to 
our policyholders, both individual and corporate, who have continued to drive our success. 
Our valued business partners including banks, brokers and other financial institutions, your 
partnerships mean much to the sustainability of our business and we appreciate your input.

I thank the Chairman and Board of Directors for the responsibility given to me to manage 
this august institution and am appreciative of the direction, guidance and consultation you 
extend to me so generously. The excellent results posted this year is primarily due to the 
unwavering commitment of our amazing team, whose professionalism shines above all else 
and certainly one to be emulated. 

Also, we sincerely acknowledge the corporation extended to us by the Board of the 
Insurance Board of Sri Lanka. We are also grateful to the Ministry of Finance for the directions 
and guidance given. 

As we step into a new chapter in our history, I have steadfast belief that SLIC is now ready to 
etch new paths in the industry in Sri Lanka. We have always been a leader and this leadership 
mantle is one which we take seriously, creating benchmarks and industry standards that set the 
path for others to follow. We will always retain the focus of our mission of being a customer 
focused company that is trusted, constantly innovating to provide best value to customers, 
while rewarding employees and adding value to shareholders. Being a lifelong partner to our 
stakeholders is the crux of our existence, while building a business that makes us the trusted 
insurer to the nation, as our vision states.

t.m.R. Bangsa Jayah
Managing Director

1st June 2015
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3.1.0  OPERATING ENVIRONMENT
3.1.1  GLOBAL ECONOMY

The global economy grew by a modest 3.4% in 2014, reflecting an increased growth momentum 
in advanced economies and a slowdown in emerging markets and developing economies 
relative to year 2013. 

Growth was divergent among major economies. This was due to improved disposable 
incomes as a result of lower commodity prices, continued support from accommodative 
monetary policy stance and moderate fiscal adjustments. The recovery of the uS was stronger 
than expected, with consumption being the main engine of growth. Weak consumption and 
plummeting residential investment caused Japan to record a weak growth in 2014. The activity 
in the Euro area was weaker than expected with a favourable outlook for 2015 supported by 
lower oil prices and higher net exports.

After a decade of very rapid growth, economic activity softened in emerging and developing 
Europe. This reflects the weak growth in advanced economy trading partners since the global 
financial crisis, growth moderation in China and also a variety of country-specific factors. 
However, Asia and Pacific region remained the leader in world economic growth in 2014.

Complex forces which affected global activity in 2014, continued to shape the outlook. 
These include population aging, declining potential growth, lower oil prices and many country 
or region specific factors. Accordingly, global growth is projected to rise to 3.5% and 3.8% in 
2015 and 2106 respectively. These are in-line with the projections of the January 2015 World 
Economic Outlook (WEO) update.

3.1.2  LOCAL ECONOMY

Amid diverse developments in the global economy, Sri Lanka recorded a real GDP growth 
of 7.4% in 2014, compared to the 7.2% in 2013. The main engine of growth was domestic 
consumption expenditure that constitutes the largest share of aggregate demand. Investments; 
construction in particular, provided an impetus to economic expansion during the year as well. 
On the production side, economic growth was led by the industry and service sectors, whilst 
adverse weather conditions dampened the performance of the agriculture sector.
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3.1.2.1  ECONOMIC GROWTH

The services sector, which accounts for 57.6% of GDP, grew by 6.5% in 2014, compared to the 
growth of 6.4% in 2013. This was due to significant contribution from wholesale and retail 
trade, transport, communication, banking, insurance and real estate sub-sectors. 

The contribution of the industry sector increased to 32.3% of GDP, recording a growth of 
11.4% in 2014, compared to 9.9% in the previous year. The construction sub-sector was the 
highest contributor to the industry sector with substantial contribution from food, beverages, 
tobacco, textile, wearing apparel and leather sub-sectors. 

The agriculture sector was impacted by adverse weather conditions, growing marginally  
by 0.3% in 2014, thereby reducing its share in GDP to 10.1% from 10.8% in 2013. Several key 
sub-sectors including paddy, rubber and minor export crops contracted, largely contributing to 
the deceleration of growth in the agriculture sector.

3.1.2.2  INFLATION

Inflation remained at single digit levels for the sixth consecutive year, with both  
year-on-year and annual average inflation declining to 2.1% and 3.3% respectively, by end 2014.  
The corresponding values were 4.7% and 6.9% respectively at end 2013. This is due to the 
impact of demand management policies, improved supply conditions, downward revision of 
administered prices and effectively contained inflation expectations.

3.1.2.3  UNEMPLOYMENT RATE

With increased employment opportunities as well as a reduction in the Labour Force 
Participation Rate (LFPR), there was a decline in the unemployment rate from 4.4% to 4.3% 
during the year. 

3.1.2.4  ExTERNAL TRADE AND THE BALANCE OF PAYMENT

Sri Lanka’s external sector displayed resilience in 2014 with a narrowing of external sector 
imbalance and a surplus in the overall BOP. Export earnings grew at a healthy rate of 7.1%, 
supported by improved external demand along with a stable domestic macroeconomic 
environment. Import expenditure recorded an increase of 7.9% in 2014 year-on-year, led  
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by imports of intermediate goods and consumer goods, particularly during the second half of 
the year.

The current account deficit was reduced by the increased inflows from trade in services as 
well as higher workers’ remittances during 2014. 

The external debt position of the country increased on account of foreign borrowings, 
issuances of international sovereign bonds and the international debt securities issued by 
deposit-taking corporations.

Due to the improvements in the current account and net inflows to the financial account 
during 2014, the BOP recorded a surplus of uS$ 1,369 million from uS$ 985 million in 2013. 
Accordingly, the gross official reserves by end 2014 improved to equivalent of 5.1 months of 
goods imports.

3.1.2.5  ECONOMIC OUTLOOk

Going forward, the Sri Lankan economy is projected to reach upper middle income levels and 
sustain the favourable high growth and low inflation regime in the medium term, supported 
by appropriate economic policies. upholding policies of good governance and transparency, 
the new Government is expected to support a high growth path through an improved investor 
friendly environment.

In the medium-term, Sri Lanka is projected to record a real GDP growth of 7.0% in 2015 
mainly due to the slowdown in public sector construction activity and conservative sentiment 
of private investors, though with the resumptions of capital investments in public sector, GDP 
growth would reach 7.5%. Growth supporting domestic policy framework, improved investor 
sentiment and improvements anticipated in the global economic activity, is expected to 
accelerate economic activity which is projected to average 7.8% over 2016 to 2018.

Through improved productivity supported by the adoption of advanced technology, 
enhanced human resources and new investment initiatives of the private sector, the agriculture, 
industry and services are expected to bolster economic growth.

Due to capacity expansion through new investment initiatives and prudent monetary 
policy measures the annual consumer price inflation is anticipated to be 3.0% in 2015 and 
approximately 4.0% thereafter.
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3.1.3  INSURANCE INDUSTRY

The insurance sector, which accounted for 3.4% of the financial sector assets in Sri Lanka, 
maintained its stability in 2014. At present there are 29 insurance companies operating in  
Sri Lanka, which are registered with the Insurance Board of Sri Lanka (IBSL). In addition, 
there were 59 insurance brokering companies concentrating mainly on general insurance 
businesses. There were approximately 36,518 insurance agents in 2014, through whom most of 
the insurance business was distributed throughout the country.

The level of expansion of the insurance sector in Sri Lanka is relatively slow as reflected 
by low penetration and density. Insurance density being the ratio of total premium to total 
population was Rs. 4,962 million in 2014, compared to Rs. 4,613 million in 2013. This was due 
to several factors such as attitudes of the general public towards insurance, lack of adequate 
awareness, inefficiencies in policy management and lack of appreciation for the concept and 
benefits of insurance.

3.1.3.1  BUSINESS GROWTH

The total assets of insurance companies recorded a healthy growth of 13.2% to Rs. 411.7 billion 
as at end 2014, compared to 13.0% in 2013. Total assets in respect of long-term insurance 
business which accounts for 61% of total assets, increased to Rs. 249.9 billion as at the end  
of 2014.

The Gross Written Premium (GWP) of insurance companies grew by 8.6% in 2014, compared 
to 8.4% in 2013, thus reversing the continuous moderation since mid 2011. This was due to the 
relatively high growth in premium income of the general insurance sector, particularly, motor 
insurance and fire segments.

The GWP for general insurance, accounting for 57.5% of the total GWP, grew by 10.9% to 
Rs. 59 billion. In comparison, the GWP for long-term insurance, which accounts for 42.5% 
of the total GWP, grew by 5.6% to Rs. 44 billion. However, with the introduction of different 
product strategies, such as life insurance, single premium insurance (annuities) etc., there is a 
huge potential for the long-term insurance business in the future.
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3.1.3.2  PROFITABILIT Y

With the moderation of total investment income and low underwriting profits, the profitability 
of the insurance sector declined in 2014. Accordingly, the aggregate profit before tax declined 
by 27.9% to Rs. 9.7 billion compared to Rs. 13.5 billion in the previous year. The total investment 
income of insurance companies increased by 14.9% to Rs. 33.3 billion during 2014, due  
to the significant performances of equity market and higher investments in corporate  
debt securities.

3.1.3.3  CAPITAL AND INVESTMENTS

The soundness of the insurance companies was maintained during the year. All insurance 
companies, except one, met the statutory solvency margin requirement for general and  
long-term insurance in 2014. The solvency margin ratio for general insurance decreased 
marginally to 2.4 times at end 2014 from 2.6 times at end 2013. The solvency margin ratio for 
long-term insurance increased to 9.8 times from 8.9 times at end 2013. Reflecting the improved 
capital levels in the insurance sector, the ratio of capital to total assets increased to 63% in 2014 
from 57% as at end 2013.

3.1.3.4  STRENGTHENING SOUNDNESS

The minimum regulatory capital of insurance companies has been increased to Rs. 500 million 
from Rs. 100 million. The current rule based solvency requirement would be replaced by the 
proposed risk-based capital (RBC) adequacy framework by 2016. This has already encouraged 
better discipline in the investment function in the sector which would result in greater precision 
in measurement of capital on a risk-adjusted basis and promote better risk management. In 
addition, the mandatory public listing by 2016 will improve policyholder protection through 
greater transparency and better governance. 
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3.2.0  FINANCIAL REVIEW
3.2.1  FINANCIAL RESULTS 

As at 31st December 2014, the Company’s asset base reached Rs. 162.19 billion compared to  
Rs. 143.56 billion in 2013. SLIC also recorded the highest ever Shareholders’ Fund of  
Rs. 64.25 billion in 2014, compared to Rs. 53.18 billion in 2013. In addition, the Life Fund 
swelled to Rs. 74.70 billion from Rs. 66.51 billion the previous year.

The combined Gross written Premium (GWP) increased to Rs. 20.67 billion from  
Rs. 21.35 billion in 2013. The net profit for the year is Rs. 3,257 million and Rs. 4,654 million 
recorded for the year 2013.

3.2.2  SOLVENCY RATIO

SLIC maintained the required solvency margins during the financial years 2014 and 2013. 
Accordingly, the solvency ratio of the life insurance business was 13.22 whilst the general 
insurance business was 3.80 for the year 2014. The solvency ratios for the corresponding year 
for life insurance and general insurance were 11.48 and 4.93 respectively. The admissible assets 
of the life insurance business amounted to Rs. 82,660 million as against Rs. 73,346 million in 
2013. The liabilities for 2014 stood at Rs. 52,065 million compared to Rs. 48,539 million in 
2013. Total admissible assets of the general insurance business were Rs. 26,702 million whilst 
the liabilities amounted to Rs. 16,281 million in 2014. The corresponding values for 2013 for 
admissible assets and liabilities were Rs. 30,327 million and Rs. 16,498 million respectively. 
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3.2.3  COMBINED BUSINESS PERFORMANCE 

SLFRS SLAS

2014

Rs. ’000

2013

Rs. ’000

2012

Rs. ’000

2011
Restated
Rs. ’000

2010

Rs. ’000

Revenue 29,301,980  27,980,865  25,644,316  17,207,928  35,011,286

Gross Written Premium 20,665,987  21,350,869  20,172,623  18,220,673  15,276,496

Net Earned Premiums 17,804,907  17,805,056  16,768,442  14,422,101  11,979,746

Benefits, Losses and Expenses (18,928,978)  (16,467,823)  (15,625,259)  (7,718,624)  (16,768,863)

Investment and Other Income 11,497,075  10,175,809  8,875,874  2,785,827  23,031,540

Interest Expense (35)  (138)  (223)  (37) (210)

Operating and  
   Administrative Expenses (5,999,828)  (5,158,022)  (4,155,575)  (4,054,181)  (3,208,095)

Profit Before Taxation 4,373,139  6,354,868  5,863,255  5,433,086  15,034,118

Taxation (1,116,126)  (1,700,039)  (1,627,413)  (1,220,547)  (1,994,915)

Profit After Taxation 3,257,013  4,654,843  4,235,842  4,214,539  13,039,203

As illustrated above, the combined GWP of the Company has increased by 35.27% over the  
last five years from Rs. 15,276 million in 2010 to Rs. 20,665 million in 2014. Investment  
income and other income have also expanded by 12.99% from Rs. 10,175 million in 2013 to  
Rs. 11,497 million in 2014. The PAT amounted to Rs. 3,257 million in 2014.
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3.2.4  GENERAL INSURANCE BUSINESS PERFORMANCE   

SLFRS SLAS

2014

Rs. ’000

2013

Rs. ’000

2012

Rs. ’000

2011
Restated
Rs. ’000

2010

Rs. ’000

Gross Written Premium 12,544,828 12,953,151 12,803,491 11,477,600 9,266,637

Net Earned Premiums 9,820,149 9,504,974 9,487,217 7,828,645 6,034,185

Net Claims Incurred (6,205,796) (4,934,075) (6,194,011) (4,970,962) (2,885,793)

Operating and  
   Administration Expenses (3,977,357) (3,351,580) (2,528,520) (2,453,660) (1,917,779)

Investment and Other Income 2,224,732 2,516,798 2,064,835 (245,498) 10,112,693

Interest Expense (14) (51) (110) (12) (98)

Profit Before Taxation 1,861,713 3,736,068 2,829,411 158,513 11,343,207

Taxation (217,101) (803,033) (900,971) (407,432) (843,740)

Profit After Taxation 1,644,613 2,933,034 1,928,440 (248,919) 10,499,467

The GWP of the general insurance business reflected an increasing trend over the last five 
years from Rs. 9,266 million in 2010 to Rs. 12,545 million in 2014, indicating a 35.38% growth.  
The general insurance business for the years 2014 and 2013 amounted to Rs. 2,224 million and  
Rs. 2,516 million respectively. The PAT for the year was Rs. 1,645 million.
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3.2.4.1  STABILIT Y OF GENERAL INSURANCE BUSINESS 

Insurers are required to maintain sound solvency margins for both life and general insurance 
businesses, as per Section 26 (1) of the Regulation of Insurance Industry Act. The solvency 
margins maintained by the Company for both life and general businesses are given below: 

SLFRS SLAS

2014

Rs. ’000

2013

Rs. ’000

2012

Rs. ’000

2011
Restated
Rs. ’000

2010

Rs. ’000

Net Assets Value 45,697,972   38,909,641     30,748,097   25,298,629    27,323,020 

Solvency Ratio 3.80 4.30 3.27 1.94 2.11 
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3.2.4.2  APPROVED ASSETS OF GENERAL INSURANCE BUSINESS 

2014
Rs. million

2013
Rs. million

2012
Rs. million

2011
Rs. million

2010
Rs. million

Approved Assets for  
   Technical Reserves 16,808 22,760 20,720 17,983 15,030 

Technical Reserve Values 11,929 11,881 12,570 11,740 11,001 

Approved Assets in 
   Excess Technical Reserves 4,879 10,879 8,150 6,243 4,029 

3.2.5  LIFE INSURANCE BUSINESS PERFORMANCE   

SLFRS SLAS

2014

Rs. ’000

2013

Rs. ’000

2012

Rs. ’000

2011
Restated
Rs. ’000

2010

Rs. ’000

Gross Written Premium 8,121,159 8,397,718 7,369,029 6,743,073 6,009,859 

Net Written Premium 7,984,758 8,300,082 7,281,225 6,593,457 5,945,561 

Investment and Other Income 9,272,541 7,659,011 6,811,040 3,031,325 13,026,350 

Claims Incurred (5,733,524) (4,870,410) (4,089,231) (3,592,818) (4,957,675)

Commission Expenses (1,127,919) (1,053,299) (1,088,644) (933,627) (648,033)

Management Expenses (2,507,813) (2,307,020) (2,147,076) (1,924,534) (1,483,218)

Increase in Life Fund  
   Before Taxation 7,887,844 7,728,364 6,767,314 3,173,803 11,882,985 

Taxation (899,025) (897,006) (726,442) (813,114) (1,151,175)

Increase in Life Fund 6,988,818 6,831,358 6,040,872 2,360,689 10,731,810 
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As illustrated above, the GWP of life insurance business has increased over the last five years 
from Rs. 6,009 million in 2010 to Rs. 8,121 million in 2014, recording a growth of 35.14% 
over the 5 years. The investment income and other income of the life insurance business also 
recorded a 21.02% growth year-on-year, from Rs. 7,659 million in 2013 to Rs. 9,272 million for 
the year 2014. The life fund increased by 12.32% compared to 2013.

3.2.5.1  STABILIT Y OF LIFE INSURANCE BUSINESS 

SLFRS SLAS

2014

Rs. ’000

2013

Rs. ’000

2012
Restated
Rs. ’000

2011

Rs. ’000

2010

Rs. ’000

Life Fund 74,706,065 66,511,606 60,084,899 55,860,476 49,569,355

Net Assets Value 18,625,842 14,373,046 17,547,244 16,627,365 31,295,966

Solvency Ratio 13.22 11.48 10.14 9.95 6.11
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The solvency ratio for the life insurance business remained at a two digit level indicating the 
highest level of stability. Accordingly, the solvency ratio stood at 13.22 in 2014, whilst it was 
11.48 times in the corresponding year.

SLIC recorded the highest life fund in the industry amounting to Rs. 74,706 million in 2014 
and Rs. 66,512 million for 2013.

3.2.5.2  APPROVED ASSETS OF LIFE INSURANCE BUSINESS 

2014
Rs. million

2013
Rs. million

2012
Rs. million

2011
Rs. million

2010
Rs. million

2009
Rs. million

Approved Assets for Life Fund 77,715 69,740 61,428 57,911 52,247 44,918

Life Fund Values 74,706 66,511 60,085 55,860 49,569 41,484

Approved Assets in 
   Excess Life Fund 3,012 3,229 1,343 2,051 2,678 3,434
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FACE VALUE OF BONUS

SLIC has consistently declared an increasing bonus to its policyholders. Accordingly, the bonus 
declared for the financial year 2014 amounted to Rs. 4.7 billion, reflecting a growth of 6.77%.

Year Face Value 
of Bonus

 Rs. million

2010 3,438

2011 4,014

2012 4,183

2013 4,462

2014 4,764
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3.2.6  VALUE ADDED STATEMENT OF THE COMPANY   

2014
Rs. ’000

2013
Rs. ’000

Net Earned Premium 17,805 17,805

Investment and Other Income 11,497 10,176

29,302 27,981

Less
Net Claims and Benefit 11,939 9,804

Cost to External Services 3,527 2,735

value Addition 13,836 15,442

Distribution of value Added
to employees 
Salaries and Other Benefits 2,335 2,007

to Intermediaries
Acquisition Cost 1,613 1,554

to Government
Income Tax 1,116 1,700

to Life Policyholders 
Increase in Life Insurance Fund 5,376 5,109

to Shareholders
Dividend Paid 1,002 1,200

to expansion and Growth 
Retained as Depreciation 138 418

Retained as Reserves 2,255 3,454

13,836 15,442
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The value added statement reflects the manner in which the value addition is distributed among 
the employees, intermediaries, government, life policyholders and for expansion and growth.
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3.2.7  INVESTMENTS
3.2.7.1  INVESTMENT STRATEGY 

The investment strategy of SLIC is geared to achieve the optimal balance in safety, income 
and asset growth. Through prudent investment management principles within applicable 
regulations of the IBSL, the strategy is aimed at meeting the obligations of the Fund.

3.2.7.2  INVESTMENT COMMIT TEE

The Investment Committee has a range of responsibilities including, the management of SLIC’s 
investment portfolio, reviewing & monitoring the strategic asset allocation, effective matching 
of assets & liabilities and capitalising the tactical investment opportunities. The Committee 
adheres to the Asset Manager’s Code of the CFA Institute and with the reconstitution of the 
Board of Directors on 20th January 2015, the Committee was also reconstituted as given below: 

Board Members:
 z Mr. Imal Fonseka – Chairman of the Investment Committee
 z Mr. Hemaka D.S. Amarasuriya – Chairman of the Board
 z Mr. T.M.R. Bangsa Jayah – Managing Director
 z Mr. P.P.J. Perera – Executive Director

Investment Managers:
 z Mr. Dhanuka Liyanagamage – Asst. General Manager/Investments

Other Staff Members:
 z Mr. Ranjith Perera – Senior Deputy General Manager/Finance
 z Mr. Chaminda Gunasinghe – Asst. General Manager/Finance

Invitees:
 z Mr. Nalin Subasinghe – Asst. General Manager/Actuarial Services 

The quorum of the Investment Committee is 03 members including at least one Board Member.
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3.2.7.3  ASSET ALLOCATION
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3.2.7.4  ASSET – LIABILIT Y MATCHING
LIFE FUND

In the context of a relatively less-developed fixed income securities market, matching the 
maturity structure of the Life Fund is a challenging task. However, the significant number of 
listed debentures issued during the year, helped to mitigate this risk to a considerable extent. 
Most of these issues were heavily oversubscribed as the investors rushed to reap the benefits of 
income tax waivers granted. SLIC invested Rs. 4.3 billion in listed debentures during the year 
with maturities ranging upto 5 years.

With many firms opting to raise funds through debentures, there is a high probability of 
more listed debentures being issued in the ensuing year. 

Further, the investments in Government Securities reached Rs. 7 billion with maturities 
extending upto 30 years. The Company intends to invest in longer term bonds as well in 2015 
in order to reduce the asset-liability mismatch in the Life Fund further.

GENERAL FUND

unlike Life Fund assets, obligations of the General Fund are short-term in nature and hence a 
major part of the fund was invested in short-term assets.

3.2.7.5  INVESTMENT PERFORMANCE

The Company achieved healthy returns during 2014 for both Life and General funds under 
prudent and dynamic investment management mechanisms, avoiding undue risks. This is a 
commendable performance in an environment where the interest rates remained at historical 
lowest levels.

SLIC recorded a total investment income of Rs. 11.2 billion during the year.
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The Life Fund recorded a healthy investment income of Rs. 9.1 billion in 2014, which is a 
substantial 26.5% increase compared to the previous year.

The General Fund recorded an investment income of Rs. 2.1 billion in 2014, recording a growth 
of 2.2% year on year.
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INVESTMENTS

(Rs. ’000) 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010

At cost
Listed Subsidiaries 2,925,567 2,925,567 2,925,567 2,925,567 2,925,567

unlisted Subsidiaries 18,160,337 14,660,337 13,790,250 8,790,250 7,040,250

Available-For-Sale
Listed Stocks 35,711,339 24,798,653 22,423,654 22,748,462 33,286,320

unlisted Stocks 143,257 124,480 90,581 81,554 113,137

unit Trusts 1,146,236 1,426,408 1,437,209 2,270,657 2,250,138

Listed Debentures 11,880,406 7,190,339 3,424,049 2,972,856 2,075,449

Treasury Bills – 483,700 – – –

Treasury Bonds 4,387,187 5,418,642 11,144,843 11,964,725 5,848,601

Fair-value-Through-Profit-or-Loss
Listed Shares 5,538,348 5,956,726 10,953,886 20,795,497 28,030,158

Held-to-maturity
Treasury Bills 487,576 – 969,775 192,899 190,787

Treasury Bonds 25,589,291 19,324,293 14,402,918 18,240,876 21,742,403

Loans & Receivables
unlisted Debentures 1,367,205 1,890,781 2,274,245 2,015,204 1,562,458

Term Deposits 27,945,442 22,864,910 16,290,231 7,080,518 9,396,500

Development Bonds 2,428,326 5,254,857 5,106,038 4,586,578 4,498,515

Commercial Papers – – 206,807 332,352 –

Trust Certificates – 37,481 60,767 53,260 57,609

Reverse Repos 5,130,628 12,530,569 7,852,673 3,065,689 279,251

total 142,841,145 124,887,745 113,353,493 108,116,944 119,297,144
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SUBSIDIARIES

Sri Lanka Insurance Corporation Ltd., has invested in a diversified portfolio including the 
following subsidiaries, as detailed in the Annual Report of the Board of Directors of the 
Company. The ensuing paragraphs provide financial and operational highlights of the same. 

LITRO GAS LANkA LTD. 

Litro Gas Lanka Ltd. (LGLL) recorded revenue of Rs. 3,834 million during the year 2014. 
The revenue has grown up from Rs. 28,106 million to Rs. 29,080 million during the year 
demarcating a 3.47% growth. Despite two times price reductions which had a major impact 
on the business, the Company was still able to increase its revenue. Total assets were  
Rs. 21,167 million as at 31st December 2014, compared to Rs. 18,477 million the last year. 
The total asset base increased by 14.55% for the year 2014. The Company has paid taxes to the  
Government, amounting to Rs. 1,529 million in 2014. In addition, the Company has paid  
dividends of  Rs. 275 million to its shareholders during the year.

LGLL remains deeply committed to sustainability in its operations to ensure the safety and 
well-being of the communities in which it operates. About 40% of the world still cooks with solid 
fuels, such as wood and coal, in simple stoves that release substantial amounts of the same types 
of hazardous chemicals found in tobacco smoke, directly into the household environment. LPG 
represents a phase in the transition to more advanced modern fuels, replacing traditional fuels. 
Studies indicate that most countries with per capita household incomes of uSD 4,000 have 
already completed this transition. Therefore, the major focus of LGLL is to engage in strategic 
expansion in non-urban areas, where LPG is still to take hold. 

LITRO GAS TERMINAL LANkA (PVT) LTD.

At Litro Gas Terminal Lanka (Pvt) Ltd., the turnover for the year was Rs. 998 million compared 
to Rs. 933 million for the previous year, mainly due to increase in volume. Operating expenditure 
increased from Rs. 349 million to Rs. 370 million, mainly due to variations in the elements of 
lease rental. Net finance income reduced from Rs. 284 million to Rs. 236 million, mainly due to 
a 17% reduction in investment income. The effective interest rate on short-term investment in 
Treasury Bills was reduced from 12.97% in 2013 to 7.78% in 2014 and the said variation in net 
finance income was affected from this considerable change in the effective interest rate.
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THE LANkA HOSPITALS CORPORATION PLC 

The Lanka Hospitals Corporation PLC (LHCL) is a 240-bed tertiary care hospital focusing 
on providing affordable healthcare. Cardiology, fertility and kidney transplants are the fast 
becoming specialty areas of the hospital. As a benchmarked leader in the healthcare sector, 
LHCL has championed to newer heights with the conferring of the Joint Commission 
International Accreditation (JCIA) during the year. LHCL is now among an elite collective of 
just 450 hospitals around the world to have this prestigious accreditation.

The financial performance during the year was also remarkable. The Group net revenue 
increased by 17% to Rs. 4.8 billion, the highest in the history of LHCL. The Group net profit of 
Rs. 510 million was the second highest profit recorded since inception of the hospital. Further, 
from year 2010 to 2014, net assets have grown by 67% due to infrastructure developments and 
technology improvements.

CANWILL HOLDINGS (PVT) LTD.

Canwill Holdings (Pvt) Ltd. (CHL), was established in the year 2011. Grand Hyatt Colombo 
(GHC) is a fully-fledged multifaceted iconic 5-star luxury class hotel, under construction at 
present and to be completed by end 2016. The hotel will be managed by Sinolanka Hotels & 
Spa (Pvt) Ltd. (SHS), which is owned by Canwill Holdings (Pvt) Ltd. upon completion, the 
property will be the tallest building in Sri Lanka and will be named ‘Grand Hyatt Colombo’.

The project configuration of GHC is 458 rooms, 90 operational serviced apartments, a large 
banquet hall with a capacity to accommodate over 1,500 guests, 8 restaurants offering a wide 
range of cuisine, an infinity swimming pool and meeting rooms among the other high-end 
luxury amenities. The hotel rooms and serviced apartments will have an unparalleled, scenic 
view of the Indian Ocean. 

SHS has obtained the services of numerous international contractors and consultants and 
is committed to undertake the project in adherence to the industry and Hyatt International 
standards. GHC will be managed under the ‘Grand Hyatt’ brand, an upscale brand of  
full-service hotels located in gateway cities around the globe. ‘Grand Hyatt’ is operational in  
46 countries, with 508 properties managed under 8 different brands targeting various customer 
segments. The highly acclaimed ‘Hyatt Gold Passport’ loyalty programme would enable GHC 
to benefit from the vast network of ‘Hyatt’ chain tourists.
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CANOWIN HOTELS AND SPAS (PVT) LTD. 

As commuters drive along the Southern Expressway that take them to lush greenery and artistic 
rock faces, the rest areas known as ‘Canowin Arcades’ , owned and managed by Canowin Hotels 
and Spas (Pvt) Ltd., which is a fully-owned subsidiary of Sri Lanka Insurance Corporation Ltd., 
serve as a modern day concept of ‘Ambalama’. The rest areas consist of rest rooms, restaurants, 
super markets, souvenir shops and vehicle parks etc.

The loss after tax during the financial year is Rs. 19.7 million as against Rs. 51.4 million 
profit after tax during the previous year. The main reason for the loss for the year is due to the 
impairment of the property by Rs. 70 million.

The rest areas have been developed on a fully-fledged approach that will be linked in future 
to the other highways as well.
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3.3.0  OPERATIONS REVIEW
3.3.1 CUSTOMERS

Customers play an imperative role in our journey towards sustainable performance. As the 
largest and strongest composite insurance provider in Sri Lanka, we remain customer centric in 
our approach. Through continuous process improvement, elevated service standards, enhanced 
convenience and the offer of products that meet the current and emerging insurance needs of 
customers, we create increased value for our loyal customers.

3.3.1.1  OVERVIEW OF THE PERFORMANCE OF BUSINESS UNITS

Over the last 5 years, we have gathered momentum in the industry as reflected in the significant 
business growth. The GWP increased by a commendable 54% with Life Business expanding 
by 70% and General Insurance recording a 45% growth during this period. Effective strategies 
have been implemented for each line of business to achieve optimal results. These efforts have 
enabled General Insurance to become Number One in the industry for 5 consecutive years with 
approximately a 22% market share and an 18% market share in Life Insurance.

Increasing active manpower in the sales force has been a key focus area which will bear 
dividends in the future. We are exploring avenues of growth in General Life Business, which has 
a high potential for growth. Accordingly, we have entered into agreements with People’s Bank, 
National Savings Bank, Bank of Ceylon and Regional Development Bank. Our new channel 
development strategies will bear fruit going forward. A comprehensive Health Assurance was 
launched during the year, which is the best in the market at present. We are in the process of 
reinvigorating the Retirement and Child Categories as well.

Although, the Motor Business was challenged during the year, we focused on entering into 
agreements with larger players in the financial services sector, which would reap benefits in the 
years ahead. 

The retail market kept the business intact with agreements being entered to across the branch 
network. The retail segment of Non-Motor was another focus area with effective business 
mapping and penetration initiatives being launched. This would facilitate a better business mix 
in the portfolio.

The sales force recognition schemes through promotion-based competitions launched for 
both Life and General Insurance, encouraged hundreds of members to qualify for rewards 
inclusive of foreign tours. 

Customised sales training and development was carried out throughout the year facilitating 
the expansion of the knowledge base.
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3.3.1.2  SRI LANkA INSURANCE HEALTH 

We launched our newest addition to our product line up; the Sri Lanka Insurance Health, that 
looks after numerous medical needs of the citizens of our nation.

This covers an extensive range of medical needs, customised to the specific needs of 
customers. It includes 4 unique health insurance packages which can be added on to the 
Life Insurance policy of an existing policy holder. They are, SLIC Comprehensive Plan, SLIC 
Overseas Comprehensive Plan and SLIC Surgical Plan.

SLIC Annual Medical Plan is a short-term health solution which can be renewed annually. 
This consists of five different packages, based on the insured value. The policy covers a range of 
medical expenses, including hospitalisation, surgery, maternity expenses and professional fees 
to name a few. The SLIC Annual Medical Plan also consists of a unique ‘No Claim Bonus’, which 
increases the basic sum insured by 5%, up to a maximum of 50%, for every claim free year.

3.3.1.3  SRI LANkA INSURANCE MOTOR PLUS LOYALT Y REWARDS 

As in the previous years, the Motor Plus Loyalty Rewards scheme was launched to provide a 
range of benefits to our loyal customers. 

This year, we tied up with z-Messenger to offer Motor Plus Loyalty Rewards via the Bigbon 
mobile phone application. This facilitates Motor Plus customers to view the available offers of 
Motor Plus Loyalty Rewards by downloading the app.

Comprehensive Motor Plus Loyalty customers can avail themselves to a range of rewards 
including customer discounts from many prestigious merchants from motor spares, vehicles 
and lubricants to retail clothing and leisure sector. In addition, Sri Lanka Insurance Motor 
Plus has tied up with premier vehicle agents such as Senok, BMW, united Motors, Associated 
Motors, Toyota Lanka, Prestige Automobile (Pvt) Ltd., KIA Motors, DIMO, Carmart Ltd. for 
repair services after accidents for all Sri Lanka Insurance Motor Plus clients. Customers are 
entitled to these rewards at the time of renewal or purchasing a new policy.

3.3.1.4  SRI LANkA INSURANCE MOTOR PLUS INTRODUCES GLOBAL 
EMERGENCY ASSISTANCE SERVICES 

The Sri Lanka Insurance Motor Plus created history by tying-up with a global emergency 
services company ‘Assist America’ to launch its newest value addition – ‘Sri Lanka Insurance 
Motor Plus Global Emergency Assistance’ Services.

This is a unique Emergency Assistance Service offered to all our comprehensive Motor 
Plus customers, travelling a distance of over 100 kms from their permanent residence for a 
maximum of 90 days, inclusive of overseas travel at a nominal annual fee. It provides emergency 
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medical consultations with doctors, emergency medical evacuations inland or abroad, hospital 
admission assistance and maintaining regular communication with the hospital on the progress 
of the customer and disseminates information to the family, as apt.

This also includes, arranging medical consultations, evaluation and referrals, medical 
monitoring and prescription assistance, compassionate visits, care of minor children, interpreter 
and legal assistance, lost luggage and document assistance, pre trip information service and 
return of mortal remains in case of unfortunate incidents as well.

3.3.1.5  SRI LANkA INSURANCE ADjUDGED BEST INSURANCE COMPANY  
IN SRI LANkA 

For the 4th consecutive year, we bagged the most prestigious coveted award as the Best 
Insurance Company in the General Insurance Sector at the World Finance Insurance Awards 
2014 organised by the World Finance Magazine, London. 

The World Finance Awards identify industry leaders, individuals, teams and organisations that 
benchmarks achievement and best practices in the financial and business world across regions. 

This award reflects our constant drive for innovation, originality and quality of product, 
as well as proof of market development and excellence in client representation. It is also a 
confirmation of the strong financial stability, high level of service standards together with the 
comprehensive product range offered to our customers in every strata of society.

3.3.1.6  INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY

Information Technology is vital to achieve our corporate objectives. IT facilitates improvement 
in our processes, expansion of the reach and offering enhanced convenience and an effective 
service to customers.

During the year in review, our key focus was enhancing system availability, customer reach 
and access by providing value added services through the latest technology. Our ICT network 
was further enhanced by upgrading the existing infrastructure and deploying IP based voice 
and video technology to reduce voice communication and security based operational expenses. 

In addition, several IT initiatives were taken during the year to achieve business objectives. 
Accordingly, renewal of premium collections, customer notifications and customer service 
standards were improved. The automation of field force operatives was another IT enhancement 
that was effected which positively impacted the contact centre service standards to continue as 
the market leader of the industry in Sri Lanka.
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3.3.2  EMPLOYEES

Employees are the most important resource for the growth and sustainability of an organisation. 
Therefore, developing and retaining the best talent within the organisation is crucial to maintain 
a competitive edge.
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3.3.2.1  POLICIES AND PROCEDURES ON HR PRACTICES

In order to offer an enriched service to our staff members, we have in place a HR policy manual. 

RECRUITMENT

When recruiting new staff, we adopt techniques such as aptitude tests, language tests, assessment 
centres and scenario analysis, in addition to panel interviews. This ensures systematic evaluation 
of the candidate’s knowledge, skills and attitudes.

COLLECTIVE AGREEMENTS

Identifying the importance of maintaining a good rapport, the management has entered into 
a collective agreement with two main trade unions which has facilitated a closer relationship 
between the management and employees. Signing of the collective agreement for 2013 – 2016 
facilitated the revision of salaries to be in par with the industry standards. In addition, salary 
ranges were introduced to main staff categories to maintain internal and external equity as well 
as to attract and retain talent.
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STAFF PROMOTIONS

Clear promotion paths were mapped out to ensure employees are given an opportunity to 
develop their careers within the Company, based on their skills and competencies. Further, 
competitive reward strategies were implemented to recognise best performers. In addition, 
every employee in our organisation is given an opportunity to apply for promotions annually, 
based on the criteria stipulated in the annual promotion policy. Moving away from traditional 
promotion methodologies we ensure that employees’ knowledge, skills & attitudes are 
systematically evaluated during the promotion process.

SUCCESSION PLANNING AND TRAINING

Succession planning is established to develop the second tier of leaders to ensure business 
continuity. The identified successors are given training and other development opportunities to 
groom them for next promotions. The training opportunities include both local as well as foreign.

Training and development play an important role in developing and retaining the best talent 
within the organisation. The training programmes focus on developing knowledge, skills and 
attitudes of staff to best fit the organisations culture and setup. Training comprises of in-house, 
local and foreign, based on the identified need gaps of the staff members.

In-house training is customised based on the needs of the employee and company 
requirement. It is focused on developing both technical knowledge and competencies of 
employees. Local and foreign training are extended to bridge the knowledge, skills and 
competencies gaps of employees further. Foreign training is mainly aimed at developing the 
insurance and technical knowledge to achieve a competitive edge. Training is carried out 
based on the annual training calendar of our company. In addition, management development 
programmes are carried out to develop the next level of managers within the organisation.

INVESTMENT IN TRAINING AND DEVELOPMENT

Type 2014
Rs. 

2013
Rs.

In-house Training 354,726 2,293,147 

External Training 966,539 2,082,263

Conferences 398,945 962,922

Overseas Training 5,029,121 6,213,164

Insurance and Professional Education 647,391 331,728

Professional Memberships 1,679,730 1,689,516
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TRAINING PROGRAMMES

2014 2013

Number of Programmes 122 76

Number of Hours 656 569

INDUCTION PROGRAMMES

2014 2013

Number of Programmes 7 20

Number of Hours 28 80

OVERSEAS ExPOSURE

2014
no. of Persons

2013
No. of Persons

Technical 8 10

Sales and Marketing 1 2

ICT 2 1

Finance 1 2

Other 1 0

GRIEVANCE HANDLING 

An open door policy is implemented within our Company enabling employees to interact with 
the management regarding their grievances. Further, we have in place a grievance procedure to 
identify staff grievances and solve them. 

EMPLOYEE WELFARE

A separate welfare unit exists within our Company to look after the well-being of our staff 
members. Activities are carried out for the well-being of staff members as well as their family 
members. Facilities such as circuit bungalows, company transport facilities, death benefit 
schemes and programmes for children of staff members are available for welfare members.
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3.3.2.2  SRI LANkA INSURANCE BAGS A SILVER AT THE HRM AWARDS 2014

We were awarded the silver award for the best HR System and processes at the ‘HRM Awards 
2014’ organised by The Association of Human Resource Professionals (HRP) in collaboration 
with The Society of Human Resource Management (SHRM). The process involved an onsite 
audit to ensure precise and up-to-date HR systems and processes. The process of selection also 
included a comprehensive study of the organisation HR systems to ensure compliance with the 
organisations, business objectives and value addition to the organisation. We have always been 
focused on internal processes that are aligned with global standards to bring added dynamism 
to our organisation. In this process, high priority was given to our HR systems and initiatives 
on people development.

3.3.2.3  THE QUIzz CHAMPS

Our team comprising HR and Legal, became champions of the Banking, Finance and Insurance 
sector at The Great HR Quiz -2014.

This is the biggest HR Quiz organised by, the Institute of Personnel Management (IPM)  
Sri Lanka. Sri Lanka’s top 50 corporates comprising of multinationals, conglomerates, public 
and private sector organisations battled on one common platform for the award.

3.3.2.4  ‘Harasara’  AWARDS 2014

The ‘Harasara’ awards ceremony was organised to recognise and felicitate 139 staff members for 
their loyal service to the Company for over 25 and 35 years respectively. The event was graced 
by the Corporate Management of SLIC.

The recipients were presented with personalised plaques, certificates and gold coins as a 
tribute for their loyalty to Sri Lanka Insurance Corporation.



52

SRI LANKA INSURANCE CoRpoRAtIoN Ltd. – ANNUAL REpoRt 2014

3.3.3  BUSINESS PARTNERS

Our business partners play a vital role in our business operations as we continually strive 
to offer a service level of the highest quality to our customers. Our business partners are 
reinsurers, brokers, advisors and suppliers. We have adopted sound policies, procedures and 
ensure compliance with relevant rules and regulations to drive sustainable and ethical business 
practices in our Company and also in our business partners. We also strive to generate greater 
value to our business partners and optimise their outcomes.

3.3.3.1  SRI LANkA INSURANCE ANNUAL SALES AWARDS NIGHT 

Star Awards 2014 was held to facilitate the best performing sales personnel of our Company 
at the BMICH. The event was graced by the then Deputy Minister of Finance and Planning,  
Dr. Sarath Amunugama whilst the Board of Directors, Senior Management and over 1,300 
attendees patronised the ceremony.

364 top insurance sales performers and team leaders were awarded for their excellent 
sales performance, sheer dedication and hard work. It was a glamorous evening with unique 
entertainment that kept the audience spellbound.
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3.3.4  THE SOCIET Y AND THE ECONOMY

 As a responsible corporate citizen, SLIC always strives to create a significant impact on the 
community within which it operates. In our long years of serving the nation, we are fortunate 
to have served and supported our people in numerous ways. In return, we have earned the trust 
and appreciation of the communities around us.

3.3.4.1  NURTURING THE FUTURE OF OUR NATION

The Sri Lanka Insurance Life Suba Pathum scholarship scheme which provides financial 
assistance to students who have excelled at the Grade 5 Scholarship exams, G.C.E (O/L) and 
G.C.E (A/L) examinations. Over three hundred top ranking students in total, received Sri 
Lanka Insurance Life Suba Pathum Scholarships.

Top 4 students from each district who excelled in the grade five scholarship scheme 
received Rs. 20,000 lump sum while the top four district level ranking students of the G.C.E 
(O/L) received a lump sum of Rs. 40,000 each and top 100 students who excelled at national 
level at the G.C.E (A/L) examination comprising of 25 top ranking students each from the 
streams Bio, Mathematics, Commerce and Arts received a lump sum of Rs. 50,000 each. If the 
student’s parents or guardian is a Sri Lanka Insurance Life Policy Holder, the benefit will be 
offered for a continuous period as an annual payment until the child faces the next national 
level examination. Eligible students had to apply for the Sri Lanka Insurance Suba Pathum 
scholarship scheme to receive the scholarship.
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3.3.4.2  TAxATION 

The Company has contributed Rs. 2,451 million (Rs. 3,171 million – 2013) as taxes to the 
Government in the year 2014 as part of contributing to the society. These taxes include Income 
Tax, Value Added Taxes, Stamp Duty and Nation Building Taxes etc.

2014
Rs. ’000 

2013
Rs. ’000

2012
Rs. ’000

2011
Rs. ’000

2010
Rs. ’000

2009
Rs. ’000

VAT 1,061,272 1,186,288 1,121,183 1,074,671 816,031 766,018

NBT 252,955 267,011 258,914 299,707 261,317 173,490

WHT – – 17,089 44,637 20,613

RSF 9,425 9,751 10,095 8,879 6,374 5,868

ESC – – 120,000 120,000 120,000

ST 11,487 8,186 8,175 7,987 5,562 5,417

IT 1,116,126 1,700,039 1,627,413 1,220,547 1,860,560 1,322,893

SRL – – 4,803 18,187 25,309

total 2,451,265 3,171,275 3,025,780 2,753,682 3,132,667 2,439,608

VAT - Value Added Tax          NBT - Nation Building Tax          WHT - Withholding Tax          RSF - Road Safety Fund
ESC - Economic Service Charge          ST - Stamp Duty          IT - Income Tax          SRL - Social Responsibility Levy
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4.1.0  BOARD AT THE HELM OF STEWARDSHIP

As the topmost decision-making body, SLIC has a Board of Directors comprising 06 Directors. 
They strive to maintain the highest standards of corporate governance as prescribed in the 
applicable codes for ensuring long-term success of the Company in creating value in the interest 
of all the stakeholders. Risk management, actuarial valuations, internal audit and system of 
internal controls strengthen corporate governance standards in SLIC.

Information relating to the Directors including what is required to be disclosed as per the 
Code of Best Practice on Corporate Governance issued jointly by The Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of Sri Lanka and the Securities and Exchange Commission of Sri Lanka, June 2008 
(available at www.sec.gov.lk) is given below. There were no instances of non-compliance with 
any of the applicable rules, other than disclosed in Notes to the Financial Statements.

In discharging its duties, the Board has approved an effective business strategy and is 
driving and monitoring its implementation. A CEO and a management team (as detailed on 
pages 64 to 67) with the required experience and knowledge to implement the strategy have 
been appointed. A formal succession plan too is in place. Risk management function was 
further streamlined during the year (Refer pages 71 to 90). As detailed in the report of the 
Audit and Compliance Committee on pages 92 to 96, SLIC has an effective system of internal 
controls. Compliance function ensures compliance with all applicable laws, rules, regulations 
and ethical standards. Periodic actuarial valuations are undertaken of the life fund and also to 
determine the policyholders’ and shareholders’ portion of the surplus. Board ensures adoption 
of appropriate accounting policies and comprehensive disclosure of financial information.
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The number of Board Meetings and Board Subcommittee Meetings held during 2014 and 
the details of attendance of each Director at these meetings are given below:

BOARD MEETINGS – 2014

Name of the Director *Total Number of Meetings 
Attended out of the Total 

Meetings Held During the 
Year 2014

Hewa Komanage upali Dharmadasa 8

Kudabalage Piyadasa 9

Nayana Darshana Prasad Dehigama 8

Sanjay Vishnu Ravindra Samarasinhe 4

Himashe Isuru Balapatabendi 9

Illangamudalige Thamara Kumari Illangamudali (Resigned w.e.f. 07th July 2014) 5

Kalubowilage Mary Anne Nelumani Daulagala (Appointed w.e.f. 07th July 2014) 1

*There were 9 board meetings during the year 2014

AUDIT AND COMPLIANCE COMMIT TEE (ACC) MEETINGS – 2014

Name of the Director *Total Number of Meetings 
Attended out of the Total 

Meetings Held During the 
Year 2014

Himashe Isuru Balapatabendi 4

Illangamudalige Thamara Kumari Illangamudali (Resigned w.e.f. 07th July 2014) 3

Kalubowilage Mary Anne Nelumani Daulagala (Appointed w.e.f. 07th July 2014) 1

*There were 4 meetings of the ACC during the year 2014
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HR COMMIT TEE MEETINGS – 2014

Name of the Director *Total Number of Meetings 
Attended out of the Total 

Meetings Held During the 
Year 2014

Hewa Komanage upali Dharmadasa 0

Nayana Darshana Prasad Dehigama (Appointed w.e.f. 07th July 2014) 7

*There were 7 meetings of the HR Committee during the year 2014

In addition, during the year under review, a Risk Management Committee, which is a 
formerly constituted committee of the Board of Directors of the Company, was appointed with 
a broader membership representing different spectrum of risk managers including finance, 
investments, actuarial, reinsurance, compliance, internal audit, human resources management 
and ICT etc., details of which are given in the Enterprise Risk Management Report. 

Other than the above mentioned three Board subcommittees, Operations Review and 
Advisory Committee (ORAC) - The Management Committee, Investment Committee, 
Marketing Committee, TIRRIFICS Meeting and Legal Committee consisting of the senior 
management meet at regular intervals and as and when required to ensure good governance 
within the Company.

All members of the Board possess extensive knowledge and experience in various facets of 
financial management and provide financial acumen and balance of the Board.

Board members receive Board papers, agendas and minutes of previous Board meetings 
well in advance of the Board meetings to be held.

Directors are provided with adequate training opportunities for continuous development 
and are frequently updated on the latest developments and issues facing the Company 
and the industry. A summary of Directors’ duties has been made available to Directors. 
Company Secretaries, Varners International (Pvt) Ltd., attend all Board meetings and advise  
Board members on regulatory and compliance matters and ensure that Board procedures are 
adhered to.

The Board also carries out an annual appraisal of its members’ performance.
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4.2.0  BoARD oF DIRectoRS

mR. HemAkA D.S. AmARASuRIyA
Chairman

Respected professional Mr. Amarasuriya is a proud product of Royal College, Colombo and 
started his career as a dynamic administrator. He was the Chairman and former Managing 
Director of the Singer Group of Companies in Sri Lanka and the former Chairman of National 
Development Bank PLC. Mr. Amarasuriya holds Directorships in Bata Shoe Company of 
Ceylon Ltd., Bata Exports (Pvt) Ltd., ACL Cables PLC, C.W. Mackie PLC, Lanka Aluminium 
PLC & ACME Printing & Packaging PLC and other non-listed companies as well. He is a former  
Vice-President of Retail Holdings Limited, uSA and of Singer Asia Ltd. and also a former 
Chairman of the Singer Business Council worldwide.

He is also the founder President of the Industrial Association of Sri Lanka. Currently he 
serves as the Chairman of Regional Industrial Service Committee (RISC), Southern Province of 
the Ministry of Industrial Development & Commerce. In addition, he was the former Chairman 
of The Employers’ Federation of Ceylon and has served on the Presidential Task Force on 
Science & Technology, on the Securities & Exchange Commission and Advisory Committee on 
Company Law at different times.

He is also the Chairman of Canowin Hotels and Spas (Pvt) Ltd., Canwill Holdings (Pvt) 
Ltd. Sinolanka Hotels & Spa (Pvt) Ltd. and Helanco Hotels & Spa (Pvt) Ltd. He also serves the 
boards of Management Services Rakshana (Pvt) Ltd. and Sri Lanka Investments Holdings Ltd.

He is a Fellow of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Sri Lanka, Fellow of the Chartered 
Institute of Management Accountants – u.K., Global Chartered Management Accountant 
and Fellow of the Chartered Institute of Marketing u.K. He holds a Diploma in Marketing 
Management & Strategy from New York university, u.S.A. His role in the marketing field has 
been recognised by his appointment as the founder President of the Chartered Institute of 
Marketing (Sri Lanka Region) and by the ‘Asia Retail Congress’ with the Retail Leadership 
Award for his contribution to retailing in Asia and by the Chartered Institute of Marketing uK 
as a visionary business leader for his invaluable contribution to the marketing profession in 
initiating revolutionary changes in consumer markets.

He is also an exceptional and unique sporting personality. 
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mR. t.m.R. BAnGSA JAyAH – Managing Director  

Mr. T.M.R. Bangsa Jayah is a retired commissioned Police 
Officer, who has experience in the Police service for 29 years.  
During his career with the Police Department, he has worked  
as the Chief Security Officer for the Deputy Speaker and 
North-East Governor. 

He is a product of St. Anne’s College, Kurunegala and has 
studied further at Aquinas College, Colombo. During his  
school period, he has excelled in sports including cricket and 

soccer. He was a member of the school cadetting team as well. After his schooling, he completed 
his First-in-Laws at the Law Faculty, Colombo. 

Mr. Bangsa has experience in the construction industry for more than 15 years and he 
has been a principal partner in a well-known piling company. Mr. Jayah serves the Boards of 
Colombo Dockyard PLC, Ceylon Assets Management Company Ltd., Management Services 
Rakshana (Pvt) Ltd. and Sri Lanka Investments Holdings Ltd.

mR. P.P.J.  PeReRA – Executive Director

Mr. P.P.J. Perera is a Fellow Member of the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of Sri Lanka and holds a Master of 
Business Administration from the university of Southern 
Queensland, Australia.

He has well over 30 years experience in Senior Managerial 
capacity in Sri Lanka Insurance Corporation Ltd. and 
Sanasa Insurance Company Ltd. In his carrier at Sri Lanka 
Insurance Corporation Ltd., he has served in the positions 

of Deputy General Manager/Finance, Deputy General Manager/Support Services and Senior 
Deputy General Manager (Investments). Whilst in service, he has held Directorships in both  
Sri Lanka Export Credit Insurance Corporation and Agricultural Insurance Board.
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Mr. Perera has also functioned as the Head of Finance, Human Resources and Administration 
at Sanasa Insurance Company Ltd. and the Chief Executive Officer of Sanasa General Insurance 
Co. Ltd. He has a wide and diversified experience in the field of finance, investment and  
the insurance industry in Sri Lanka. Mr. Perera serves the Boards of Ceybank Asset Management 
Ltd., Ceylon Assets Management Company Ltd., and Management Services Rakshana (Pvt) Ltd. 

PRoFeSSoR L AL GotABHAyA cHAnDRASenA – 
Director

Professor Chandrasena is a Clinical Biochemist by profession 
and counts over 24 years of university academic service 
and over 22 years experience in hospital and healthcare 
administration and laboratory sciences. He retired as 
the foundation Professor of Biochemistry and Clinical 
Chemistry and Senior Professor of Faculty of Medicine, 

university of Kelaniya in June 2011 and presently holds the title of Emeritus Professor.

Professor Chandrasena has a Doctorate in Philosophy from the university of Liverpool 
(u.K.), a Bachelor of Science (Hons) from the university of Liverpool (u.K.); a Fellow of the 
Institute of Chemistry, Ceylon and is a Chartered Chemist. In addition, he is a Fellow of the 
Royal Society of Chemistry (u.K.), a Fellow of the National Academy of Sciences of Sri Lanka 
and Post – Doctoral Fellow, Colorado State university, u.S.A. He is also a Fellow member of the 
Institute of Certified Professional Managers and holds a certificate in Hospital Administration 
from the Indian Institute of Management, Ahamadabad. He is the current President of the 
Association of Private Hospitals, Sri Lanka. He is also a member of the Private Health Services 
Regulatory Council of the Ministry of Health. He is a Director of Nawaloka Metropolis Clinical 
Laboratories (Pvt) Ltd. He also serves the Board of Management Services Rakshana (Pvt) Ltd.
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mR. ImAL FonSekA  – Director

Mr. Fonseka is the CEO of Ceylon Biscuits Ltd. and was 
the former Managing Director of Hemas Manufacturing, 
Sri Lanka and the Managing Director of Hemas Consumer 
Brands, Bangladesh. Previously, he has served in the Boards 
of Chevron Global Lubricants (Lanka) PLC and Eureka 
Technology Partners.

He is a graduate of the Chartered Institute of Marketing 
(uK) and a Certified Management Accountant of Australia 

whilst completing his postgraduate education at the Indian School of Business. He had his 
executive education at Kellogg School of Management (Northwestern university), university 
of Pennsylvania’s Wharton School and Fundação Dom Cabral (Brazil). He has extensive 
experience in advertising, brand management, sales management and general management 
working with multinationals such as JWT, unilever, Glaxo-Smithkline and Coca-Cola. He also 
worked in diverse cultures being posted overseas to manage brands and sales teams in 6 Middle 
Eastern markets, 3 South East Asian markets and in the subcontinent.

He plays an active role within the marketing fraternity as the past President of the 
International Advertising Association (Sri Lanka Chapter), founder Chairman of the Sri Lanka 
Advertising Awards (2006), Chairman of the Sri Lanka Brand Excellence Jury (2007) and as 
Chairman of the ‘EFFIES’ Sri Lanka Jury (2009 and 2012) and Chairman of the Trustees of the 
Sri Lanka Advertising Awards (2010). He also serves the Boards of Sri Lanka Exports Credit 
Insurance Corporation and Sri Lanka Investments Holdings Ltd.
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mR. PRIyAnGA ALGAmA  – Director

Mr. Algama currently serves as the Director General – 
Department of Public Finance, General Treasury, Ministry of 
Finance. He holds a Master of Business Administration from 
the Nanyang Technology (Sing.) university – MIT (uSA) 
and a Bachelor of Commerce (Special) Degree from the 
university of Kelaniya. He is an Associate Member of CPA 
Australia (Certified Practising Accountants). He possesses 
wider experience in systems and procedures of the financial 

regulation, Government procurement policy framework, Government assets management, 
project proposals of Government agencies and Corporate Plans etc. He also serves the Board 
of Management Services Rakshana (Pvt) Ltd., Lanka Electricity Company, Geological Survey 
and Mines Bureau, Postgraduate Institute of Science, Tourism Development Authority and 
Construction Guarantee Fund. 
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Deepthi P. Lokuarachchi
Chief Executive Officer
LLB, Attorney at Law, ACII (uK),  
Chartered Insurer
(Appointed w.e.f. 21st April 2014)

Suresh Paranavithana
Chief Officer - Life
FCII, MBA, Dip. M, FCIM, M.I. Mgt, 
CMA(Aus)

Ranjith Perera
Senior DGM - Finance
BSc. (Hons) (Pub.Admn.Sp.), MBA, MA,  
PG. Dip. in Corp. Finance, FCMA, FCA

niroshini Pethiyagoda
DGM - Marketing
MBA (MGSM, Syd), FCIM (uK),  
Dip. M (uK) Chartered Marketer

Ajith wijayasundara
DGM - ICT
BSc. (Eng), MBA

Thanuja Hingulage
DGM - General Insurance
BSc. (Hons), FCII (uK),  
Chartered Insurer, ANZIIF (Fellow)  
(Appointed w.e.f. 3rd November 2014)

nilanga wickramasinghe
AGM - National Sales (Life)
PG.Dip. in MGT., CIAM, Dip. LIM,  
LuTCF (uSA), MCPM, Chartered 
Insurance Agency Manager

Rasika Ranatunga
AGM - Facilities Management
Member (ASHRAE) (uSA), Member 
(ASHRAE) (SL), Dip. HVAC (uSA)

Hasantha Perera
AGM - ICT - Governance and Administration
MSc. (IT), MSC (Const. P. Mgmt.), MBA, BSc. 
(Eng.), AIPMSL, AIESL, Dip. in Credit Mgmt. 
(IBSL)

4.3.0  SenIoR mAnAGement teAm



65

AnnuAl RepoRt 2014 – SRI lAnKA InSuRAnCe CoRpoRAtIon ltd.

nalin Subasinghe
AGM - Actuarial & Risk Management
MSc. in Actuarial Management. (uK), 
BSc. (Hons. Mathematics Special), Dip. in 
Computer Studies

Dr. Sherica Fernando
AGM - Medical
MBBS (SL), MSc., Community  
Medicine (SL), ACII (uK), MRCGP (INT)
(uK) Ad. Dip. in Insurance-CII, Dip. in  
Life & Disability Claims

chaminda Athauda
AGM - Life (Technical)
BSc. (Hons), ACII (uK), AIII, Chartered 
Insurer, Senior Associate CIP - ANZIIF 
(Senior Associate)

Dayaratne Perera
AGM - Life (Technical)
BSc. (Hons), FCII, Dip. in BA,  
Chartered Insurer, MBA (uSJ), AuKAP (uK)

champa kannangara
AGM - ICT Systems Development
BSc., MSc. (Comp.Sc.), MBCS

mahen Peiris
AGM - Legal
LLB (Colombo), Attorney-at-Law of  
the Supreme Court of Sri Lanka

Rodney wanigasekara
AGM - Internal Audit
BSc. Bus. Admin., FCA(SL), Certified  
Public Accountant (uSA), MIPA (Aus), 
ASA (Aus)

Jerome vincent 
AGM - Sales Support
Bcom. (Special - Hons), MBA, Dip. in 
Journalism, Dip. in Marketing (uK) MCIM

Jeewani Gunawardena
AGM - Internal Audit
FCA, MBA
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namalee Silva
AGM - Marketing & Corporate 
Communications 
MCIM(uK), Chartered Marketer,  
Prof. Dip. in Marketing - CIM, ACIB (uK)

chaminda Gunasinghe
AGM - Finance
B.B. Mgt. (Accountancy) Spl. Hons,  
FCA, ACMA, MBA - Finance

Dhanuka Liyanagamage
AGM - Investments
BSc. (Eng) (Hons), MBA (Finance), CFA, 
Member of the CFA Institute (uSA) and 
CFA Sri Lanka Society

malaka m. Bandara
AGM - Management Accounting & 
Budgetary Control
BSc. - Accountancy (Sp.), ACA, 
MBA (Colombo)

Lalith De Silva
AGM - Motor/Branch Administration 
(Cover up)
Postgraduate Dip. In Finance and  
Business Administration, MBA
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Ruwani Dharmawardena
AGM - Compliance and  
Assistant Company Secretary
L.L.B. (Hons), Attorney-at-Law, ACISI,  
Dip. in Bus. Mgt. (ICFAI), Dip. in Mgt.  
(CMA), Dip. in HRM (uK)

Bimal weerasinghe
AGM - HR
RWP (Retd) BA(Social Sciences),  
PG Dip. in International Relations,  
Dip in HRM, MIM (SL)  
(Appointed w.e.f. 1st August 2014)
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chairman  
managing Director  

executive Director & Board

                 oPeRAtIonS RevIew AnD      ADvISoRy commIt teeS (oRAcS)

Executive  
Committee (Exco) 

Management  
Meeting

Marketing, & Sales 
Review Committee

TIRRIFICS
Committee

Legal Advisory
Committee

Chief Executive Officer

AGM 
Compliance  
& Assistant  
Company 
Secretary

AGM  
Actuarial 
Services

AGM Audit  
(Life)

AGM 
Investments

Senior DGM 
Finance

AGM  
Finance

AGM 
Management 
Accounting &  

Budgetary 
Control

CO Life 
(Technical)

CO 
Non-Life

(Technical)
(Vacant)

AGM Audit  
(Non-Life)

AGM Life  
(Technical)

DGM  
Non-Motor

AGM Life 
(Technical)

4.4.0  ORGANISATIONAL STRUCTURE

Hierarchical Functional Note: Tiers in the above structure tapers down from CO, Senior DGM, DGM and AGM
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                 oPeRAtIonS RevIew AnD      ADvISoRy commIt teeS (oRAcS)

Executive  
Committee (Exco) 

Management  
Meeting

Marketing, & Sales 
Review Committee

TIRRIFICS
Committee

Legal Advisory
Committee

Board Committee on Audit & Compliance

Board Committee on Risk Management

Board Committee on HR & Remuneration

Board Committee on Investments

CO 
Administration 

(Vacant)

CO
Sales & Marketing 

(Vacant)

DGM 
Marketing

AGM 
Marketing

AGM Motor

AGM 
Reinsurance

(Vacant)

AGM Human 
Resources

AGM  
Medical

AGM 
Administration

(Vacant)

AGM 
Facilities

AGM Legal

AGM National 
Sales (Life)

AGM National 
Sales (Non-Life,  

TSD, FBD)
(Vacant)

AGM Corporate 
Business  
(Vacant)

DGM 
ICT

AGM ICT 
Governance &  
Administration

AGM Sales  
Administration

AGM ICT 
Systems 

Development
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5.0
Enterprise Risk Management 

OuR WELL STRuCTuRED, 
BROAD-BASED AND 

TRANSPARENT ENTERPRISE 
RISK MANAGEMENT 

FRAMEWORK HAS FACILITATED 
uS TO IDENTIFY, MANAGE AND 

PREPARE FOR RISKS IN  
AN INFORMED MANNER
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5.0
Enterprise Risk Management 

INTRODUCTION

Sri Lanka Insurance Corporation Ltd. (SLIC) being the largest composite insurer in Sri Lanka has 
always given its paramount importance to the risk management function and this is endorsed 
by stable earnings, improved credit ratings and enhanced shareholder values achieved by the 
Company over the years: Life insurance business has maintained a solvency ratio of 13.22 and 
General insurance business, a solvency ratio of 3.80 for the year 2014; SLIC is the only insurer in 
the country who got the highest financial rating of AAA from Lanka Ratings for its claims paying 
ability and also SLIC has got the highest financial rating among insurers from Fitch Ratings for 
its financial strength; and the Net Asset Value of the Company stands at Rs. 64,216 million as at  
31st December 2014. 

In order to fulfil the requirements of Risk Based Capital (RBC), SLIC is also formulating and 
centralising its risk management function so as to ensure optimum utilisation of capital within 
the Company structure. In so far, as the test run is concerned, the results produced up to the 
end of 2014 are reflective of a position which exceeds the minimum threshold stipulated by the 
RBC framework. 

The following mind map illustrates the main areas of risk management as per the RBC 
framework:

RBc Framework

Credit 
Risk

Operational 
Risk

Concentration 
Risk

Liability 
Risk

Market 
Risk

Reinsurance 
Risk

During the year under review, several initiatives were taken to view different types of 
risks holistically as opposed to independently/silo view and in the right direction. A Risk 
Management Committee, which is a formally constituted committee of the Board of Directors of 
the Company has been appointed with a broader membership representing different spectrum 
of risk managers including finance, investments, actuarial, reinsurance, compliance, internal 
audit, human resources management and ICT etc. All these departments have embedded ERM 
into their daily operations.
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With a rising focus on risk management throughout highly regulatory sectors, many 
organisations have concluded that there should be an increasing focus on risk management 
at Board level. This is consistent with the view that these organisations should have a separate 
Board level committee overseeing the risk management function, rather than merely relying on 
internal control systems comprising internal audit, legal or compliance departments. 

Due to diverse reasons, to mention a few, growing complexity of risk management function, 
the increasing number of external guidance sources specifically dealing with risk management 
and the emergence of risk management as a discipline in its own rights compel for highly 
regulated large entities such as SLIC for considering a proper segregation of the roles between 
the Audit and Risk Committees. Accordingly, independently from the Audit and Compliance 
Committee, the Risk Management Committee oversees the risk management function of the 
Company. The Risk Management Committee met 05 times during the year under review.

As explained earlier, there is a regulatory driver and a business desire for risk management 
and the chart below outlines our approach to risk management.

Board of Directors

Focusing on strategic risk issues, strategy setting, formulating high level objectives
and approving broad-based resource allocation

Risk management committee

Recommends to the Board of Directors and then formally announce, implement and
maintain a sound system of risk oversight, management and internal controls

Risk owners and managers

Support the development, execution and maintenance
of risk management standards

The ensuing paragraphs deal with the risk management function of SLIC. The ERM function 
is structured based on four broader categories of enterprise risk management covering areas 
pertaining to Insurance Risks, Investment Risks, Operations Risks and Regulatory Risks.
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5.1.0  INSURANCE RISk MANAGEMENT
5.1.1  LIFE INSURANCE RISk 

SLIC is a company which has kept to its commitments to its stakeholders for over 53 years in 
the insurance industry and is a home grown respected and trusted insurance company.

A life insurance company faces risk in relation to its product design, underwriting and 
claims processes, investment, expenses and human resources. In order to face these risks, the 
Company has adopted, tried and tested the best risk management practices to identify risk, 
quantify the impact of risk, develop measures to mitigate risks and to periodically review 
the risks in the light of changing market and operational conditions. The risk management 
practices are applied across the Board to product development, underwriting, claims settlement, 
holistically to underwriting and claims settlement, investment strategy and human resources. 

PRODUCT DEVELOPMENT

SLIC provides a basket of insurance products, to cater to the needs of any policyholder and 
any given stage of their life. The process of life insurance product development goes through 
a comprehensive risk management process at each stage of product development where risks  
are identified, the impact of the risks are assessed, the measures to mitigate the risk and 
minimise the impact of the risk are put in place and the risks are reviewed on a periodic basis. 
Extensive profit testing in the Model Office environment is the way that SLIC optimises all 
stakeholders’ benefits. The RBC framework is one of the elements in the Profit Testing and 
Model Office framework.

Life insurance products are developed by a Product Development Committee, comprising 
representatives of Sales, Marketing, Actuarial and Life Operations. The detailed product 
development work which includes pricing, sales volume, expenses built in are discussed in 
detail from a risk management perspective by a multidisciplinary team. All products developed 
by the Committee are reviewed and approved by the Consultant Actuary and a separate  
team reviews on a quarterly basis the progress of the selling and distribution of these products 
to customers.
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UNDERWRITING

With regard to risk management in the underwriting process, a team headed by the Assistant 
General Manager - Life (Technical), who is a Chartered Insurer identifies and analyses the 
impact of risks associated with the operational risks in the underwriting process which are 
reviewed periodically in consultation with the team of medical and non-medical underwriters, 
to identify process improvements and risk mitigation measures on a quarterly basis. 

The team visits the branches in order to ensure that the practices adopted by the head 
office are implemented and controlled accordingly to minimise the operational risks in the 
underwriting process across the entire head office and island wide branch office network.

CLAIMS 

With regard to the risk management in the life claims settlement process, a separate team 
headed by a different Assistant General Manager - Life (Technical), who is also a Chartered 
Insurer identifies and analyses the impact of risks associated with the operational risks in 
the claims process which are reviewed periodically in consultation with the team of claims 
managers to ensure efficient settlement processes are followed in settling claims. The claims are 
processed and settled centrally and regular reviews are conducted with the claims managers to  
discuss the operational risks and issues thereby to ensure departmental efficiency is maintained. 
Effective mechanisms are in place to track and avoid illegitimate claims. 

RISk MANAGEMENT IN BOTH UNDERWRITING AND CLAIMS SET TLEMENT

Every half yearly, the teams comprising of the underwriting managers and claims managers 
have discussions with the Chief Officer - Life Insurance, where detail operational issues which 
include operational risks are discussed and solutions and measures to mitigate such risks are 
developed and adopted to eliminate or minimise the risks that are taken.

INSURANCE LIABILIT Y RISk MANAGEMENT

under the SLFRS 4, disclosures pertaining to risk management objectives/policies/methods, 
sensitivity to insurance risk, concentration of insurance risk and claims development information 
covering all periods for which material claims are outstanding (5 years approximately) have 
been required to be made. 
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LIFE INSURANCE RISk 

The risks associated with life insurance include inter alia:

 z ‘Mortality Risk’ is the risk that actual policyholder death experience on life insurance policies 
is higher than expected.

 z ‘Longevity Risk’ is the risk that annuitants live longer than expected.
 z ‘Morbidity Risk’ is the risk that policyholder health related claims are higher than expected.
 z ‘Policyholder behaviour Risk’ is the risk that policyholders’ behaviour in discontinuing and 
reducing contributions or withdrawing benefits prior to the maturity of the contract is worse 
than expected. Poor persistency rates may lead to fewer policies remaining on the books 
to defray future fixed expenses and reduce the future positive cash flows from the business 
written, potentially impacting its ability to recover deferred acquisition expenses.

 z ‘Expense Risk’ is the risk that expenses incurred in acquiring and administering policies are 
higher than expected.

 The Company has established procedures and processes to evaluate the above risks which if 
not properly controlled and managed can impact its operations. The procedures are in place to 
cover all critical stages from product development to benefit administration. 

In addition to that, all life financial streams are modelled and profit testing is produced 
by the Actuary thus mitigating product design and pricing risk. Also SLIC uses matching 
instruments to back liabilities (ALM), if available. 

SENSITIVITIES ANALYSIS FOR LIFE INSURANCE RISk

Assumptions used in determining life insurance contract liability are tabulated below: 

Assumption Description

Mortality Guidelines provided by RII Act No. 43 of 2000, which are -
- A67/70 for non-annuity business
- a(90)m for male annuitants and (90)f for female annuitants

Investment return Guidelines provided by RII Act No. 43 of 2000, minimum interest used for  
31st December 2014 valuation is 3.5% which is consistent with the last  
5 years valuation. 

The total liability set up under above guidelines is Rs. 60,107 million, excluding cost of bonus.
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SLIC participated to ABC parallel run during 2014 and results as at 31st December 2014 
are as follows. The total net liability under RBC guidelines for best estimated assumption is  
Rs. 20,905 million.

Assumption Change in Assumption Impact on liability 
(Rs. million)

Mortality +10% 785

-10% (792)

Investment return up shock scenario under RBC (6,009)

Down shock scenario under RBC 8,837

CONCENTRATION OF INSURANCE RISk 

‘Concentration Risk’ is defined as the risk of exposure to increased losses associated with 
inadequately diversified portfolios of assets or obligations. Concentration risk for a life insurer 
may arise with respect to investments in a geographical area, economic sector, individual issuers 
or due to a concentration of business written within a geographical area, of a policy type or of 
underlying risks covered.

 z From a market risk perspective, although we have invested significantly in the financial 
sector, our portfolio is diversified and contains huge margins. 

 z From an insurance risk perspective, the main factors that would affect concentration risk 
include mortality risk, morbidity risk, longevity risk, policyholder behaviour risk (lapse, 
anti selection) and expense risk. There is diversification across geographical regions, lines of 
business and even across the different insurance risk factors such that SLIC is not exposed to 
significant concentrations of insurance risk.

5.1.2  GENERAL INSURANCE RISk MANAGEMENT

INSURANCE LIABILIT Y RISk MANAGEMENT

under the SLFRS 4, disclosures pertaining to risk management objectives/policies/methods, 
sensitivity to insurance risk, concentration of insurance risk and claims development information 
covering all periods for which material claims are outstanding (5 years approximately) are 
required to be made. 
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GENERAL INSURANCE RISk

‘General Insurance Risk’ includes the reasonable possibility of significant loss due to uncertainty 
in the frequency of the occurrence of the insured events as well as in the severity of the resulting 
claims. Therefore, appropriate mechanisms are in place to manage the premium and claims 
liability risks which are two aspects of the general insurance risks. 

The following provides an overview of the Company’s main lines of business:

 z Motor includes automobile physical damage, loss of the insured vehicle and automobile 
third party liability insurance.

 z Property includes fire risks (for example fire, explosion and business interruption), natural 
perils (for example earthquake, windstorm and flood), engineering lines (for example 
boiler explosion, machinery breakdown and construction) and marine (cargo and hull).

 z Liability includes general/public and product liability, excess and umbrella liability, 
professional liability including medical malpractice and errors and omissions liability.

 z Special lines include Directors & officers, credit & surety, crime & fidelity, accident & 
health and crop.

 z Worker injury includes workers’ compensation and employers’ liability.

The Company’s underwriting strategy is to take advantage of the diversification of general 
insurance risks across industries and geographic regions in which the Company operates. The 
Company seeks to optimise shareholder value by achieving its mid term return on equity goals. 
Doing so necessitates a prudent, stable underwriting philosophy that aims to take advantage 
of its competitive strengths while avoiding risks with disruptive volatility. At the core of the 
Company’s underwriting is a robust governance process. 

SENSITIVITIES ANALYSIS FOR GENERAL INSURANCE RISk

The following table shows the sensitivity of net income before tax and the sensitivity of net 
assets, as a result of adverse development in the reported claims outstanding by one percentage 
point. Such an increase could arise from either higher frequency of the occurrence of the 
insured events or from an increase in the severity of resulting claims or from a combination 
of frequency and severity. The sensitivities do not indicate a probability of such an event and 
do not consider any non-linear effects of reinsurance. Based on the assumptions applied in 
the presentation of the sensitivity analysis in the table below, each additional percentage point 



78

SRI LANKA INSURANCE CoRpoRAtIoN Ltd. – ANNUAL REpoRt 2014

increases in the reported claims outstanding would lead to a linear impact on net income before 
tax and net assets. In addition, the Company monitors insurance risk by evaluating extreme 
scenarios, taking into account non-linear effects of reinsurance contracts.

Change in
Assumptions

Reported
Gross Claim
Outstanding

Rs.

Reported
Net Claim

Outstanding
Rs.

Impact
on Gross

Liabilities
Rs.

Impact on 
Net

Liabilities
Rs.

Impact on
Profit 

Before Tax
Rs.

Impact 
on Equity

Rs.

31.12.2014 +1% 5,526,494,072 4,626,783,671 55,264,941 46,267,837 (46,267,837) (33,312,842)

CONCENTRATION OF INSURANCE RISk

In addition to the specific risks insured, each line of business could expose the Company to 
losses that could arise from natural and man-made catastrophes. The main concentrations of 
risks arising from such potential catastrophes are regularly reported to the senior management. 

The table below shows the Company’s concentration of risk within the General Insurance 
business by line of business based on direct written premiums before reinsurance and after 
reinsurance. 

Class GWP
Rs. ’000

Reinsurance
Rs. ’000

NWP
Rs. ’000

% of NWP

Motor 7,205,255 164,882 7,040,373 71.58

Fire 1,553,151 1,394,799 158,352 1.61

Marine 402,134 280,134 121,704 1.24

Other 3,384,285 868,905 2,515,380 25.57

12,544,825 2,709,016 9,835,809 100.00

CLAIMS DEVELOPMENT INFORMATION

Table below presents changes in the historical non-life reserves, net of reinsurance. The top 
line of the table shows the estimated gross reserves for unpaid losses and loss adjustment 
expenses as of each reporting date, which represents the estimated amount of future payments 
for losses incurred in that year and in prior years. The cumulative paid portion of the table 
presents the cumulative amounts paid through each subsequent year in respect of the reserves 
established at each year end. Similarly, the cumulative reported losses section details the sum 
of the cumulative paid amounts shown in the triangle below and the net outstanding position 
at the end of the financial year. 
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As at 31st December 2010
Rs.

2011
Rs.

2012
Rs.

2013
Rs.

2014
Rs.

Gross reserves for losses and  
   loss adjustment expenses  6,759,172,132  7,898,096,692  8,720,582,620  7,817,800,636  7,709,470,517 

Reinsurance recoverable  (1,361,271,745)  (1,168,930,136)  (1,509,187,974)  (1,160,448,524)  (1,004,432,194)

Net reserves for losses and  
   loss adjustment expenses  5,397,900,387  6,729,166,557  7,211,394,645  6,657,352,112  6,705,038,323 

cumulative paid as of 31st December:

One year later  2,874,874,128  3,632,757,028  4,545,085,355  4,481,213,520  4,572,092,748 

Two years later  3,714,910,249  4,903,405,392  5,908,837,239  5,873,385,629 

Three years later  3,788,276,570  4,980,092,970  6,016,063,272 

Four years later  3,806,053,537  5,014,506,148 

Five years later  3,832,694,904 

cumulative Reported as of 31st December: 

One year later  3,877,357,626  4,740,384,794  5,765,263,148  5,564,838,084  5,631,797,127 

Two years later  4,091,340,643  5,147,257,128  6,199,143,542  6,107,020,752 

Three years later  4,020,496,575  5,195,146,471  6,287,566,401 

Four years later  3,995,269,295  5,289,158,538 

Five years later  4,110,863,857 

5.2.0  InveStment RISk mAnAGement

Investment risk management is of paramount importance in the current turbulent markets 
characterised by high volatility of asset returns, reduced diversification benefits due to high 
correlations and wider dispersion in market sentiments and views.

The aim of the risk management at SLIC is to promptly identify, measure, manage, report 
and monitor risks that affect the achievement of investment objectives. This includes taking, 
avoiding, mitigating and adjusting the risk profile to maintain the appropriate balance among 
asset growth as well as income to meet the obligations of the Fund, based on prudent risk 
management principles within the context of applicable IBSL insurance regulations. 
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5.2.1  InteReSt RAte RISk 

Interest rate risk is the risk of loss resulting from changes in interest rates, including changes in 
the shape of yield curves while credit spread risk describes the sensitivity of the values of assets 
and liabilities due to changes in the level or the volatility of credit spreads over the risk-free 
interest rate yield curve.

Interest rate risk is managed over each major maturity bucket and adherence to the 
aggregated positions with risk limits.

Key policy rates, i.e. Standing Lending Rate and Standing Deposit Rate remained unchanged 
during the year and maintained at 8.00% and 6.50% respectively, showing the intention of the 
Central Bank of Sri Lanka to keep it low. Further, Treasury Bill Rate saw a steep decline during 
the year with the benchmark 364 day rate falling from 8.29% to 6.00% during the year. With 
inflation under control and Government curtailing its local borrowings, the interest rates are 
expected to remain low in the short to medium-term.

The lack of long-term Fixed Income instruments, yielding acceptable level of returns has 
brought in an Asset-Liability Duration mismatch for the Life Fund. However, having analysed 
the situation, the Investment Committee proactively lengthened the duration of the Fixed 
Income portfolio by investing in some long-term instruments, which yielded attractive returns 
as well, mitigating the pressure on interest income, while closely monitoring the duration 
mismatches.
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5.2.2  MARkET RISk

Market Risk is the risk incurred by the Equity portfolio due to the volatility of the stock prices.

SLIC mitigates market risk by diversifying the equity portfolio into different sectors and 
companies.

The equity market, rebound in 2014 with a significant 23.44% gain. As valuations of some 
key counters seem attractive, expectations remain bullish in 2015 as well. This will be further 
supported by the low interest rates and inflation which will divert the investors to extend their 
positions more towards equities.
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The Colombo Stock Exchange continued to attract foreign investors with a net foreign inflow 
of Rs. 8 billion during the year, albeit significantly lower than the previous year’s figure of  
Rs. 33 billion. Interest in fundamentally strong counters, particularly blue-chips, has remained 
buoyant as foreign investments have flowed steadily into these counters.

* Including The Lanka Hospitals Corporation PLC which is a Subsidiary of SLIC.
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* Including The Lanka Hospitals Corporation PLC which is a Subsidiary of SLIC.

5.2.3  CREDIT RISk & CONCENTRATION RISk

Credit risk is the risk associated with a loss or potential loss from counterparties failing to fulfill 
their financial obligations.

Credit risk is monitored and managed at each borrower’s level, as well as at the portfolio 
level in order to ensure a well balanced portfolio, with a view to limiting concentrations in 
terms of risk quality, industry, maturity and large exposure.

SLIC has established its own limits on concentration in investments by single issuers and 
certain asset classes and also limits investments in illiquid instruments.

 z No investment has been made in Term Deposits other than in Licensed Commercial Banks 
and Licensed Specialised Banks.

 z Investment grade credit rating for both entity and instrument by a recognised credit rating 
agency is expected for all investments in Corporate Debentures and Commercial Papers.

 z No debt investment has been made in any of the Related Companies.
 z A comprehensive credit analysis is carried out internally prior to making any investment in 
a debt security.
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5.2.4  LIQUIDIT Y RISk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the SLIC does not have sufficient liquidity to meet its obligations 
when they fall due or would have to incur excessive costs to do so.

5.2.4.1  LIFE FUND

Traditionally, it is the fund needing minimal liquidity. Annual cash inflows from premium 
income and others have exceeded cash outflows. This reflects the growing volume of business, 
the longer term nature of liabilities and the rollover in portfolio assets from maturing securities 
and other forms of principal payments. 

However, in upcoming years, greater than historical volumes of maturities and cash outflows 
are expected representative of a new phase in the fund’s policy maturity cycle. Treasury bonds 
may be used to match these anticipated exceptional cash outflows by coinciding maturities.

Short-term allocation included a funding cushion of over Rs. 2.7 billion in liquid securities 
to meet policy obligations, tax obligations and investment opportunities.

5.2.4.2 GENERAL FUND

Because of the uncertainty of cash outflows, liquidity remained an essential consideration for 
the General Fund. It was important for the fund to maintain a portfolio of short-term securities, 
as an immediate liquidity reserve.

The fund also maintains a portfolio of readily marketable Treasury Bonds, together 
with a laddered maturity schedule and matching asset maturities against seasonal cash flow 
requirements (if appropriate).  

5.3.0  OPERATIONAL RISk

Operational risk is the risk associated with people, processes and systems of SLIC.

With the implementation of SAP Treasury Module, the Operational Risk was all but 
eliminated. With this pilot project being successful, the implementation of the fully pledged 
SAP Financial Module is to be completed in 2015.
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5.3.1  ICT RISk

Information Communication Technology related risk profile was built and in the process of 
addressing all identified ICT risks. Special attention is given to the IT Security, Management 
Information and ICT Operational related risk areas. 

Building a comprehensive Business Continuity Plan (BCP) and Information Technology 
Disaster Recovery Plan (IT/DRP) are the identified major activities during the year 2014/15. 
SLIC established a comprehensive online IT Disaster Recovery (DR) site to facilitate proper 
business continuity and recovery planning. In addition to the above, major focus is given to 
mitigate continuous network and perimeter level related risks. 

5.3.2  REPUTATIONAL RISk 

‘Reputational Risk’ is defined as the risk arising from negative perception on the part of 
customers, shareholders, investors or regulators that can unfavourably affect the Company’s 
capacity to uphold existing or establish new, business relationships is monitored. Mainly the 
responsibility for the identification, escalation and resolution of reputational risk issues resides 
with the businesses. The responsibility of control groups such as compliance, legal and internal 
controls is to ascertain that such issues have been suitably identified, escalated and resolved 
by the business. The Company has a sound system of internal controls to ensure that the 
reputation risk is mitigated. The Company is committed to comply with all applicable laws, 
rules & regulations and company policies.

5.3.3  RISk IN FRAUD AND MISCONDUCT

Corporate Fraud and Misconduct remain a constant threat to public trust and confidence and 
the Company is aware of importance of anti-fraud measures to address the risk. Presently, the 
Company has effective fraud management systems in place across its operations which provide 
SLIC with tools to manage risks in a manner consistent with the regulatory requirements as 
well as the entity’s business needs and customer expectations.

The Company’s Internal Audit function acts as one of the key functions in anti-fraud 
activities, supporting management’s approach to preventing, detecting and responding to 
fraud and misconduct. Further, Compliance Department gives immense contribution towards 
implementing anti-fraud laws and regulations into internal control systems and conducts 
regular awareness training programs. Both internal audit and compliance functions do report 
independent views of Company’s risk management of fraud and misconduct with their  
recommendations and preventive measures to the Audit and Compliance Committee. 
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Effective mechanisms are in place to track and avoid illegitimate claims in Life and General 
Insurance business. The claim and underwriting processes are backed by an internal independent 
Investigation Department with specialised team of senior officials and the Company seeks 
external professional expertise’s services as and when appropriate.

SLIC has laid down procedures formally to respond and take corrective actions for detected 
frauds through well qualified internal and external inquiry and prosecution officials monitored 
by the HR Department. 

5.3.4  HUMAN RESOURCES (HR) RISk

Though traditionally risk specialists have paid little attention to human resources and human 
resources calamities in the recent past human resources management has gained its recognition 
on ERM. HR plays a dual role in risk management: first people are a source of risk due to 
diverse reasons like shortage of skilled people and key employees leaving the organisations etc., 
and secondly people are important in managing risks. 

HR risk management is important from the perspective of strategic risk (e.g. overreaching 
human capital strategy), operational risk (e.g. gaps in talent supply and demand), financial risk 
(e.g. delayed services and compensation etc.) and other risks including compliance (e.g. unions 
and health and safety etc.) and reputational risk, as depicted below:

Topic

Strategic Risk Operational Risk

Financial Risk Other risks including Compliance 
Risk and Reputational Risk

Below it is discussed the challenges encountered by the HR Department in managing HR 
risk and its impact on business results. 

A.  RETAINING TALENT 

Retaining the best talent is of paramount importance to be in cutting edge in the industry. When 
recruiting new staff, techniques such as aptitude tests, language tests, and assessment centres 
and scenario analysis would be in place in addition to panel interview. This would ensure that 
candidate’s knowledge, skills and attitudes are systematically evaluated.
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Turnover will be reduced if employees are able to continue their professional growth within 
the organisation. HR has identified the need of introducing an effective performance evaluation 
system and an employee recognition plan to motivate and retain key performers by providing 
training opportunities to further enhance their knowledge and skills.

B.  MAINTAINING INDUSTRIAL PEACE

Identifying the importance of industrial peace, the management has entered into collective 
agreements with the two main trade unions in order to maintain a cordial relationship with  
the employees. 

C.   STAFF GRIEVANCES 

By appointing committees for staff promotions, transfers and grievances the Company was able 
to handle staff burdens which were a massive challenge to the HR Department. 

Every employee at SLIC was given an opportunity to apply for promotions annually based 
on the criteria stipulated in the annual promotion policy. Moving away from the traditional 
promotion methodologies we ensure that employee’s knowledge, skills and attitudes are 
systematically evaluated during the promotion process. 

D.  DEPARTMENT STRUCTURING AND RESTRUCTURING PROjECTS 

Departmental restructuring processes are carried out to identify areas for improvement and 
further the work processes are being streamlined to be in par with industry changes.

 
5.3.5  HEALTH AND SAFET Y RISk

With regard to the ‘health and safety risk’, as a minimum, we comply with all local health and 
safety legislation but will go beyond those requirements should it be necessary to do so in order 
to deliver the corporate objectives of the Company. 

5.3.6  OPERATIONAL RISk PERTAINING TO INVESTMENTS

With the implementation of SAP Treasury Module, the operational risk was all but eliminated. 
With this pilot project being successful, the fully-fledged SAP Financial Module is planned to 
be implemented in 2014.
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5.4.0  REGULATORY RISk MANAGEMENT

The latest view is that for highly regulated businesses like insurance, compliance programmes 
can no longer just be ‘adequate’ rather the expectation is that the Company commits the 
appropriate talent and resources to compliance management solutions and to establish and 
maintain a ‘strong’ culture of compliance and ethics. Consequently, the insurance industry is 
now looking at an integrated Governance, Risk and Compliance (GRC) process and architecture 
for addressing the changing business environment. At SLIC the Compliance Department having 
valuable resources consisting of a lawyer and two chartered accountants ensures compliance 
with applicable laws, rules, regulations and principles of good governance in line with the said 
premise of GRC. 

Regulatory risk brings in certain costs and risks including the risk of non-compliance and 
the risk of introduction of new laws, rules and regulations or changes to the existing laws, rules 
and regulations. The latest and prominent examples of regulatory changes which had major 
implications for insurers include the introduction of the new amendment to the Insurance 
Industry Act No. 43 of 2000. 

The risk-based capital framework has been introduced to the insurance industry to protect 
the interest of the stakeholders and minimise the risk of failure of the industry. All insurers 
are proposed to transition by 2017 for Risk Based Capital Regime. The Company has been 
reporting under both Solvency Rules and RBC Rules during the parallel run period from 
March 2014 onwards. 

In the insurance industry, it has been made mandatory by the Regulation of Insurance 
Industry (Amendment) Act No. 3 of 2011 (RII 2011) for the existing insurers to segregate their 
long-term (LTIB) and general insurance (GIB) into two separate companies within 4 years 
from 2011 and accordingly to be listed within 5 years from 2011. The Company is working 
on the said segregation process to achieve its purpose efficiently. A committee representing 
different spectrum of senior managers has been appointed to address the matters pertaining to 
the said segregation. 

SLIC is equipped with a comprehensive compliance framework. ‘Compliance programme’ 
designed for the use of the staff and management is available in the ‘compliance web page’ on the 
Company intranet for which internal staff has access from their individual computers. The main 
objectives of the ‘compliance web page’ are ‘identification, documentation and communication 
(basically through Company intranet and Lotus Notes) of up-to-date information about the 
relevant statutory, regulatory compliance obligations to the staff and management. 
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Plethora of laws, rules and regulations, to mention a few, the Companies Act No. 07 of 2007, 
Inland Revenue Act No. 10 of 2006 as amended, Electronic Transactions Act No. 19 of 2006, 
Intellectual Property Act No. 36 of 2003 and Arbitration Act No. 11 of 1995 are applicable for 
the insurance industry and the said laws have been captured and available in the compliance 
web page. Effective compliance risk management is a collaborative process that pulls together 
and leverages all the diverse control function within the organisation such as risk management, 
internal control, legal and human resources etc. 

At SLIC, the Compliance Department has identified the divisional responsibilities pertaining 
to the applicable laws, rules and regulations and implements a collaborative process in meeting 
compliance requirements. 

As a proactive measure, the Compliance Department guides the management on anticipated 
regulations of the future, since a proactive business process management solution will provide 
the Company with the necessary tools to address new regulations cost-effectively. 

Further, we have identified the risk of anti-money laundering (AML) and the Compliance 
Department has educated the staff on the importance of combating money laundering when 
selling insurance products. In addition, the AML function was audited by the Internal Audit 
Department during the year under review in line with the AML laws, rules and regulations. 

In addition, various compliance regulations in the insurance industry require the 
senior management and other stakeholders to be trained on compliance requirements. The 
Compliance Department conducts trainings on department-wise and also educates the senior 
management by way of ‘Compliance Tips’ through the internal communication platforms. The 
Company is working on enhancing its information technology infrastructure and in future that  
would facilitate the utilisation of skilled compliance capital to focus on compliance management 
more efficiently.



91

6.0
Audit and Compliance Committee Report 

OuR AuDIT AND COMPLIANCE 
COMMITTEE (ACC)  

ENSuRES THAT STRICT 
COMPLIANCE MECHANISMS 

ARE IN PLACE, WHICH ARE IN 
ADHERENCE TO THE RELEVANT 

LAWS & REGuLATIONS  
AND ACCEPTED BEST 

PRACTICES



92

SRI LANKA INSURANCE CoRpoRAtIoN Ltd. – ANNUAL REpoRt 2014

During 2014, the Audit and Compliance Committee (ACC) comprised of two Non-Executive 
Directors; namely, Ms. I.T.K. Illangamudali (Treasury Representative on Board) and  
Mr. H.I. Balapatabendi. However, Ms. I.T.K. Illangamudali resigned w.e.f. 07th July 2014 and  
Ms. Kalubowilage Mary Anne Nelumani Daulagala (subsequent Treasury Representative on 
Board) was appointed w.e.f. 07th July 2014. With the change of Directors on 20th January 
2015, the ACC was reconstituted on 19th February 2015 to be Chaired by the Treasury 
Representative on Board - Mr. P. Algama along with the Non-Executive Director, Professor 
Lal Gothabaya Chandrasena as a member. In addition the Managing Director of the Company,  
Mr. T.M.R. Bangsa Jayah attends ACCM along with the following senior managers: Chief 
Executive Officer, Chief Officer-Life, Senior Deputy General Manager – Finance, Deputy General 
Manager - ICT, two Assistant General Managers - Internal Audit and Assistant General Manager - 
Compliance. In addition, as and when required, other members of the senior management also 
attend ACCMs. 

The Engagement Partner and the Audit Team Manager of the Company’s External Auditors, 
Messrs KPMG, too attend meetings on the invitation of the Committee. Messrs Varners 
International (Pvt) Ltd. acts as the Secretary of the meetings.

The Committee, with the valuable services provided by the senior support staff, has 
an adequate blend of financial and insurance expertise in order to carry out the ACC’s  
duties effectively. 

6.1.0  teRmS oF ReFeRence 

The terms of reference of the Audit and Compliance Committee of SLIC are clearly defined in 
the Charter of the Board’s Audit and Compliance Committee, which is based on the guiding 
principles and best practices on Audit Committees including the ‘Code of Best Practice 
on Corporate Governance’ jointly issued by the Securities and Exchange Commission of  
Sri Lanka (‘SEC’) and The Institute of Chartered Accountants of Sri Lanka, 2008. The Committee 
is responsible to the Board of Directors and reports its activities regularly to the Board. 
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6.2.0  meetInGS oF tHe commIt tee 

During the financial year ended 31st December 2014, 4 meetings of the committee were held. 
The proceedings of the Committee meetings are recorded with adequate details and are reported 
regularly to the Board of Directors. The attendance of the committee members at the meeting 
is stated below. On the invitation of the Committee, the Engagement Partner of the Company’s 
external Auditors Messrs KPMG, attended one committee meeting during the year.

6.3.0  comPoSItIon oF tHe Accm AS At 31St DecemBeR 2014

Total number of meetings attended 
out of the total meetings held 

during the year 2014

Himashe Isuru Balapatabendi 4

Illangamudalige Thamara Kumari Illangamudali 
   (resigned w.e.f. 07th July 2014)

3 

Kalubowilage Mary Anne Nelumani Daulagala 
   (appointed w.e.f. 07th July 2014)

1  

 

Mr. H.I. Balapatabendi and Ms. K.M.A.N. Daulagala ceased to be Directors w.e.f. 20th January 
2015. The Treasury Representative on Board, Mr. Priyanga Algama was appointed as the 
Chairman of the ACC, w.e.f . 19th February 2015. 

6.4.0  RoLe oF tHe AuDIt AnD comPLIAnce commIt tee 

The ACC continues to assist the Board of Directors in fulfilling effectively its responsibilities 
relating to financial and other connected affairs of the Company. The Committee has been 
empowered to:

1. Ensuring that a good financial reporting system is in place in order to give accurate, 
appropriate and timely information to the management, regulatory authorities and the 
shareholders in compliance with the Companies Act No. 07 of 2007, Sri Lanka Accounting 
Standards (SLAS), Regulation of Insurance Industry Act No. 43 of 2000 as amended and 
Statement of Recommended Accounting Practice – ICASL etc. 
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2. Ensuring that appropriate plans, internal controls and procedures are in place and monitoring 
the Internal and External Audit Programme, reviewing the Internal and External Audit/
Inspection Reports, following up their findings and recommendations. 

3. Ensuring that the strategies, plans, manning and organisation for internal auditing and the 
methodologies promulgated as best practice are carried out. 

4. Reviewing the suitability and the quality of accounting policies and any changes in accounting 
policies and practices and their adherence to statutory and regulatory compliance and 
applicable accounting standards.

5. Carrying out appropriate investigations to mitigate the fraud risk.

6. Ensuring compliance with applicable laws, rules and regulations etc. and principles of  
good governance. 

6.5.0 InteRnAL AuDIt

The Company has its own Internal Audit Department. Internal Audit Department is headed 
by two qualified Chartered Accountants. The internal audit programme was presented and 
approved by the ACC and Committee regularly reviews and monitors the internal audit and 
the inspection function.

6.6.0 exteRnAL AuDIt

The ACC reviews the audit and non-audit services provided by the External Auditors to ensure 
that such services do not impair the independence of the External Auditors. 

The ACC has noted the declaration dated 28th January 2015 from Messrs. KPMG, as required 
by the Companies Act No. 07 of 2007, confirming that they do not have any relationship or 
interest in the Company, which may have a bearing on their independence within the meaning 
of the Code of Conduct and Ethics of The Institute of Chartered Accountants of Sri Lanka. 
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The ACC has recommended to the Board of Directors that Messrs KPMG be reappointed as 
Auditors for the financial year ended 31st December 2015 at the next Annual General Meeting, 
subject to the change of the audit partner in line with the principles of good governance. The 
ACC recommends the fees payable to the statutory auditors for approval. 

The Management Letter together with the Management’s responses thereto and Annual 
Accounts were reviewed with the Auditors.

6.7.0  comPLIAnce FunctIon 

The compliance programme of the Company is implemented by the Senior Deputy General 
Manager – Finance, Assistant General Manager – Compliance and Senior Manager – Finance, 
with the assistance of the compliance coordinators in each department. The compliance 
responsibilities relating to operational areas are carried out by the heads of the operational 
departments designated as the responsible officers for ensuring compliance with specific 
obligations assigned to them. 

6.8.0  non-AuDIt SeRvIceS 

Non-audit services amounting to Rs. 12,642,594/- were provided by the External Auditors 
during the year under review. 

6.9.0  GooD GoveRnAnce 

The Committee monitored on a continuous basis, the maintenance of the highest standards in 
Corporate Good Governance. All staff have been encouraged to resort to whistle-blowing in 
the strictest confidence, when they suspect wrong doings or other improprieties. Appropriate 
procedures are in place to conduct independent investigations into all such reported 
incidents. Staff have been assured of maintenance of strict confidentiality of the identity of  
whistle-blowers.
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6.10.0  concLuSIon 

The ACC is satisfied that the Company’s internal controls are effectively implemented and 
the Company’s assets are sufficiently safeguarded. The Committee is satisfied that the internal 
audit department and External Auditors have been effective and independent throughout the 
year. In addition, the Committee is also satisfied with the appropriateness of application of the 
accounting policies and thus gives a reasonable assurance that the Financial Statements of the 
Company are reliable. Further, the Committee is satisfied that the Compliance Framework of 
the Company ensures that the Company complies with all applicable laws, rules and regulations 
and corrective and preventive actions were taken with regard to the reported non-compliances, 
during the year under review. 

The ACC approved this report on 21st May 2015.

mr. P. Algama 
Chairman 
Audit and Compliance Committee
 
1st June 2015
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7.1.0 AnnuAl RepoRt of the BoARd of diRectoRs  
of the compAny

1.  GeneRAl

The board of directors of the company has pleasure in presenting their annual report to the 
members together with the audited financial statements for the year ended 31st december 
2014 of the company and the group and the auditor’s report on those financial statements 
confirming the requirements of the companies act no. 07 of 2007, regulation of insurance 
industry act no. 43 of 2000 and sri lanka accounting and auditing standards act no. 15 of 
1995 and amendments made thereon.

as at 31st december 2014, 99.97% shares are vested with the secretary to the treasury  
on behalf of the government of sri lanka.

litro gas terminal lanka (pvt) ltd., canowin hotels and spas (pvt) ltd. and management 
services rakshana (pvt) ltd. are fully-owned subsidiaries of the company. The slic has 
99.94% shareholding of litro gas lanka ltd. and 54.61% shareholding of The lanka hospitals 
corporation plc. slic has 45.95% shareholding of canwill holdings (pvt) ltd. The group 
structure is as given below:

sri lanka insurance corporation ltd.

 
54.61%

The lanka 
hospitals 

corporation plc

 
100%

lanka hospitals 
diagnostics  
(pvt) ltd.

 
100%

sinolanka hotels & 
spa (pvt) ltd.

 
100%

helanco hotels &  
spa (pvt) ltd.

 
99.94%

litro gas  
lanka ltd.

 
100%

litro gas  
terminal lanka 

(pvt) ltd.

 
100%

canowin hotels 
and spas (pvt) ltd.

 
45.95%
canwill  

holdings  
(pvt) ltd.

 
100%

management 
services rakshana  

(pvt) ltd.

27.03%

The registered office of the company is at ‘rakshana mandiraya’, no. 21, vauxhall street, 
colombo 02.

This report was approved by the board of directors on 28th may 2015.
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PRinCiPal aCtivities oF the ComPany and the GRouP 

The principal activities of the company are to transact life and non-life insurance in sri lanka. There 
were no major changes to the principal activities of the company during the year under review.

litro gas terminal lanka (pvt) ltd. is involved in storage/terminalling of liquid 
petroleum gas (lpg) and litro gas lanka ltd. provides the importation and distribution of 
lpg in domestic, commercial and bulk form.

The lanka hospitals corporation plc provides health care services and management 
services rakshana (pvt) ltd. provides the payroll management. 

primary business of canwill holdings (pvt) ltd. is to manage/invest in hotel projects. 
canowin hotels and spas (pvt) ltd. [formerly known as sri lanka insurance resorts & spas 
(pvt) ltd.] primarily owns and manages the outlets of the southern express way.

diReCtoRs’ ResPonsibilit y FoR FinanCial RePoRtinG 

The directors are responsible for preparation and presentation of financial statements of the 
company and the group to reflect true and fair view of its affairs. The directors’ responsibilities 
include designing, implementing, maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation and 
fair presentation of the financial statements that are free from material misstatements whether 
due to fraud or error, selecting and adopting accounting policies and making accounting 
estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

The directors are of the view that the statement of financial position, statement of 
income, statement of Other comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity, cash 
flow statement, significant accounting policies and notes thereto in the annual report have 
been prepared in conformity with the sri lanka financial reporting standards, sri lanka 
accounting standards, regulation of insurance industry act no. 43 of 2000 and companies 
act no. 07 of 2007. 

FinanCial statements and auditoRs’ RePoRt 

The financial statements for the year ended 31st december 2014 are prepared based on the 
sri lanka financial reporting standards and sri lanka accounting standards issued by The 
institute of chartered accountants of sri lanka.

 The financial statements of the group and the company signed by the chief financial 
Officer and the directors are given on pages 116 to 254 in the annual report.
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The company’s financial statements are audited by messrs Kpmg and the auditors’ 
report issued for the financial year 2014 is given on pages 113 to 115  in this annual report. in 
accordance with the companies act no. 07 of 2007, a resolution relating to their reappointment 
and authorising the directors to determine their remuneration will be proposed at the 
forthcoming annual general meeting.

auditoRs’ RePoRt 

The financial statements for the year ended 31st december 2014 have been audited by messrs 
Kpmg, a firm of chartered accountants and their report on financial statements which form 
an integral part of the report of the board of directors is given on pages 113 to 115 in the 
annual report. 

Fees on audit and otheR Related seRviCes 

The amount paid as audit fees during the year under review and the amount paid as other 
related services are given below. The directors are aware that the auditors do not have any 
relationship interest in the company other than those disclosed in this paragraph.

2014
Rs. ’000

2013
rs. ’000

statutory audit fees 3,900 3,600

audit related services 1,000 1,244

non-audit related services 12,642 3,864

aCCountinG PoliCies 

The significant accounting policies adopted in preparation of these financial statements are 
given in the annual report on pages 134 to 166. 

Risk and inteRnal ContRol 

The board of directors of the company has implemented and oversees the risk management 
function of the company. The policies and procedures on risk management are discussed under 
the risk management chapter in this report.

The company has implemented sound internal control policies and procedures are  
monitored by the internal audit department of the company. The audit and compliance 
committee oversees the internal control function of the company. 

The board is satisfied with the effectiveness of the internal control and risk management 
function of the company for the year under review.
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GoinG ConCeRn

The board expects that the company and the group have adequate resources to continue its 
operations in foreseeable future by considering the financial positions and performance, cash 
flows and regulatory and statutory factors and adopts the going concern basis in preparing 
financial statements. 

tuRn oveR/GRoss WRit ten PRemium (GWP) 

The total turnover of the company recorded rs. 29,302 million for the year under review and 
rs. 27,980 million for the comparative figure (2013).

The total gwp of rs. 20,665 million comprised of life insurance gross written premium 
of rs. 8,121 million and non-life insurance gross written premium of rs. 12,545 million for 
the year 2014. The reported value for total gross written premium in 2013 was rs. 21,350 
million out of which life insurance gross written premium was rs. 8,398 million and non-life 
insurance gross written premium, rs. 12,953 million for the last year. a detailed analysis of the 
total gwp achieved by the company is given in the financial statements. 

FinanCial Results and aPPRoPRiations 

company 2014
Rs. million

2013
rs. million

profit before taxation (pbt) 4,373 6,354

income tax expenses 1,116 1,700

profit after taxation 3,257 4,655

Other comprehensive income (88) 5

transfer from life insurance surplus 1,690 5,461

realisation of revaluation surplus 29 30

transfer of fair value gain on investment property – 189

unappropriate profit brought forward 21,737 14,317

profits available for appropriation 26,625 24,652

Appropriations 
dividends paid 1,002 1,200

share buyback 57 –

transferred to surplus from life insurance business 1,612 1,721

unappropriate profit carried forward 23,954 21,737
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dividends 

The company has declared a final dividend of rs. 3.34 per share, amounting to  
rs. 2,003,142,288/-, during the year under review. The dividend of rs. 1.67 per share amounting 
to rs. 1,002,000,000/- has been declared for the year 2013. The dividends are subject to 10% 
withholding tax.

The directors have confirmed that the company satisfies the solvency test requirement 
under section 56 of the companies act no. 07 of 2007 and has obtained a certificate from the 
auditors prior to declaring all dividends. 

PRovision FoR taxation

The tax position in the company is disclosed in the financial statements on page 217. 

ReseRves

The movement in reserves during the year is set out in the statement of changes in equity on 
pages 120 to 123.

insuRanCe liabilities and PRovisions 

The directors have taken all reasonable steps to ensure adequate provisioning for unearned 
premiums and claims outstanding including provisions for claims incurred but not reported 
(ibnr) and claims incurred but not enough reported (ibner) in non-life insurance. The 
directors have also consulted an independent actuary in the process of valuing ibnr and 
ibner reserves and his report is given in the annual report.

gratuity liability was also valued by an independent actuary as required by the lKas 19 –  
‘employee benefits’. 

as at the date of this report, the directors are not aware of any circumstances, which would 
render inadequate provisions made in the financial statements.

investments 

The amount of investments held by the company as at 31st december 2014 amounted to  
rs. 116,612 million (2013 – rs. 94,772 million). a detailed breakup of the investments held is 
disclosed in the financial statements on pages 167 to 179.
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PRoPeRt y, Plant & equiPment 

The details of property, plant and equipment are shown in the annual report on pages 179 to 187.

maRket value oF FReehold PRoPeRties 

The company uses the cost method as the accounting policy for recording property, plant & 
equipment other than land and building. The company’s policy for revaluing the assets is once 
in every two years. accordingly, the land and buildings were revalued in the financial year 2014 
by messrs sunil fernando associates (pvt) ltd. such assets were valued on an open market 
value for existing use basis. The results of such revaluation were incorporated in the financial 
statements from its effective date which is 31st december 2014. 

events oCCuRRinG aFteR the RePoRtinG date 

There have not been any material events that occurred subsequent to the reporting date which 
require adjustments to or disclosure in the financial statements, other than disclosed in notes 
to the financial statements. 

Related PaRt y tRansaCtions 

The related party transactions as per the sri lanka accounting standards (lKas) 24 - ‘related 
party disclosures’, which is adopted in the preparation of the financial statements are given in 
this annual report on pages 224 to 231. 

diReCtoRs’ inteRest in ContRaCts 

The directors’ interests in contracts are disclosed in the financial statements. directors do not 
hold any shareholding of the company.

diReCtoRs RemuneRations 

The directors’ fees and emoluments paid during the year is rs. 21.08 million and the figure 
reported in the last year is rs. 27.8 million. 

stated CaPital 

The stated capital stood at the financial statements is rs. 6,000 million of the company in 
compliance with the companies act no. 07 of 2007. as at 31st december 2014, 99.97% shares 
are vested with the secretary to the treasury on behalf of the government of sri lanka.
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statutoRy Payments 

The directors, to the best of their knowledge and belief are satisfied that all statutory payments  
in relation to the government, the insurance board of sri lanka (ibsl) and related to the 
employees have been made on time.

intanGible assets 

intangible assets as at 31st december 2014 have been recorded in the financial statements of 
the company.

enviRonment 

The company is concerned and operates with the relevant environmental laws and regulations 
and has not engaged in any harmful activities.

ComPlianCe With laWs and ReGulations 

The company has complied with all applicable laws and regulations during the financial year. 
The compliance department monitors the compliance functions of the company and reports 
to the audit and compliance committee. 

the aPPRoval oF the FinanCial statements 

The audited financial statements were approved by the board of directors on 28th may 2015.

boaRd oF diReCtoRs 

The following board members ceased to be effective w.e.f. 20th January 2015:

mr. h.K. upali dharmadasa
mr. p. Kudabalage
mr. h. isuru balapatabendi
mr. s.v.r. samarasinghe
mr. nayana d.p. dehigama
ms. K.m.a. nelumani daulagala

The following members were appointed w.e.f. 20th January 2015:

prof. l.g. chandrasena
mr. h. imal s. fonseka
mr. p. algama
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The following members were appointed w.e.f. 09th february 2015:

mr. hemaka d.s. amarasuriya 
mr. t.m.r. bangsa Jayah
mr. p.p.J. perera

annual GeneRal meetinG 

The annual general meeting will be held on 30th June 2015 at the auditorium of the company 
at its registered office at no. 21, vauxhall street, colombo 02 at 10.00 a.m.

by Order of the board,

Varners international (pvt) ltd.
Company Secretaries

t.m.R. Bangsa Jayah
Managing Director

p.p.J. perera
Executive Director 

1st June 2015
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7.2.0 stAtement of diRectoRs’ ResponsiBilit y

The responsibility of the directors, in relation to the financial statements, is set out in the 
following statement. The responsibility of the auditors, in relation to the financial statements,  
is set out in the report of the auditors on pages 113 to 115 of the annual report. 

directors are of the view that the financial statements have been prepared under the 
generally accepted accounting principles and in conformity with the requirements of slfrss/
lKass, the companies act no. 07 of 2007 and the regulation of insurance industry act  
no. 43 of 2000. 

The directors confirm that appropriate accounting policies have been consistently applied 
and supported by prudent judgments and estimates in the preparation of financial statements. 
further, the directors ensure that the company has adequate resources to continue in operation 
to justify applying the going concern basis in preparing these financial statements. in addition, 
the directors have confirmed that the company maintains sufficient accounting records to 
disclose, with reasonable accuracy of the financial position of the company.

further, the directors have taken all reasonable steps to ensure adequate provisioning for 
unearned premium, unexpired risks, Outstanding claims including claims incurred but not 
reported, incurred but not enough reported and receivables. 

directors confirm that to the best of their knowledge all taxes, duties and levies payable by 
the company and all contributions and taxes payable on behalf of employees of the company 
and all other known statutory dues, as at the reporting date have been paid or provided for. 

The directors adopted a report from the actuary on which bonus payable to policyholders 
and the surplus available to shareholders in life insurance business were determined. 

by Order of the board,

Varners international (pvt) ltd.
Company Secretaries

1st June 2015
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7.3.0 chief executiVe officeR’s And chief finAnciAl officeR’s  
ResponsiBilit y stAtement

The financial statements of sri lanka insurance corporation ltd. (the company) and the 
consolidated financial statements of the company and its subsidiaries (the group) as at  
31st december 2014 are prepared and presented in conformity with the requirements stipulated 
in sri lanka accounting standards issued by The institute of chartered accountants of  
sri lanka, companies act no. 07 of 2007 and the regulation of insurance industry act no. 43 
of 2000. The formats used in the preparation of the financial statements and disclosures made 
therein comply with the formats prescribed by the relevant regulators. 

we confirm that to the best of our knowledge the financial statements, significant 
accounting policies and other financial information included in this annual report fairly 
represent in all material respects the financial condition, results of the operations and the cash 
flow of the company during the year under review. in addition, we confirm that the company 
has adequate resources to continue its operations and has applied the going concern basis in 
preparing these financial statements. 

The board of directors is responsible for ensuring that management fulfills its financial 
reporting responsibilities. as the company’s chief executive Officer and chief financial 
Officer we are responsible for having established and maintaining disclosure controls and 
procedures and internal controls over financial reporting. management has a system of internal 
controls designed to provide reasonable assurance that the financial statements are accurate 
and complete in all material respects. management believes that the internal controls provide 
reasonable assurance that the financial records are reliable and form a proper basis for preparing 
the financial statements, and that the assets are properly accounted for and safeguarded.

The board of directors has appointed an audit and compliance committee, which is 
headed by an independent director. The audit and compliance committee’s responsibilities 
include reviewing the financial statements and recommending those to the board of directors 
for approval. 

The financial statements have been audited, on behalf of the shareholders, by messrs Kpmg, 
the independent auditor, in accordance with the applicable laws, rules and regulations and 
applicable accounting standards. The independent auditor has full and free access to the audit 
and compliance committee and may meet with or without the presence of the management. 
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we confirm to the best of our knowledge that –

i. the company has complied with all applicable laws, rules and regulations and guidelines as 
otherwise expressed in the notes to the financial statements;

ii. there are no material non-compliances as otherwise expressed in the notes to the financial 
statements;

iii. all taxes, duties and all statutory payments by the company and all contributions and taxes 
payable on behalf of and in respect of the employees of the company as at the reporting date 
have been paid, or where relevant provided for;

iv. reserving and solvency guidelines have been complied with and total reserves are backed by 
matching admissible assets; and

v. the equity capital meets the set minimum capital requirements in accordance with the 
applicable regulations.

Ranjith perera
Senior Deputy General Manager – Finance/Chief Financial Officer

deepthi lokuarachchi
Chief Executive Officer 

1st June 2015 
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7.4.0 ceRtificAte of ActuARy of the insuReR

i. mark alan birch, being the actuary for the life insurance business, to the best of my knowledge 
certify the following:

a. that i have included each and every policy for which there is a policy liability in conducting the 
valuation of liabilities for the purpose of section 48 of the regulation of insurance industry act 
no. 43 of 2000, and the solvency margin rules;

b. that i have taken all reasonable steps to ensure the accuracy and completeness of the policies 
mentioned in item (a) above;

c. that i have complied with the provisions of the said act in item (a) above;

d. that i have complied with provisions of the solvency margin (long term insurance) rules, 
2002 and guidance notes/guidelines prescribed by the board thereunder in the determination 
of the net amount of liabilities;

e. that in my opinion the net liability so determined by me, in the form h-lt - the valuation 
balance sheet, is adequate to meet the insurer’s future commitments under the insurance 
contracts, and the policyholders’ reasonable expectations.

name and address of actuary with phone number and e-mail: 
mark Alan Birch, fiA
director, risk consulting and software, south east asia
towers watson singapore pte ltd.  
63, chulia street # 09-01
Ocbc centre east  
singapore 049514

telephone: (65) 6880-5688 
fax: (65) 6880-5699
e-mail: mark.birch@towerswatson.com

signature: 

place: singapore
date: 10th april 2015

63 Chulia Street
#09-01 OCBC Centre East
Singapore 049514

T +65 6880 5688
F +65 6880 5699

towerswatson.com

Towers Watson Singapore Pte Ltd
Company Registration No: 198600361K
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7.5.0 liABilit y AdequAcy test

1.1 The sri lanka accounting standard ‘slfrs 4, insurance contracts’ prescribes that an insurer 
shall assess at the end of each reporting period whether its recognised insurance liabilities are 
adequate, using current estimates of future cash flows under its insurance contracts. towers 
watson has undertaken a liability adequacy test for long-term insurance provisions maintained 
within the life fund of sri lanka insurance corporation ltd. as contemplated by slfrs 4.

1.2  in carrying out the liability adequacy test, we have compared the provisions held as per the 
audited accounts with the actuarial liability. for this purpose, the value of the actuarial liability is 
computed following the principles laid out within the risk-based capital framework as prescribed 
by the ibsl, whereby liabilities are valued using a discounted cash flow approach covering the 
full lifetime of all the cash in and out flows required to settle the obligations related to existing in 
force insurance contracts.

1.3 The projections are based on in force policies and riders as at 31st december 2014.

1.4 based on the checks undertaken, i certify–
 z that the valuation of actuarial liability is based on internationally accepted actuarial methods 

and adheres to the requirements under slfrs 4;
 z that the assumptions used for such valuation are reasonable estimates based on available 

experience studies and after allowing for suitable margins for adverse deviation; and
 z that the long term insurance provisions maintained within the life fund of sri lanka 

insurance corporation ltd., as per the audited accounts of the company for the year ended 
31st december 2014 is in excess of the liabilities computed in the above-mentioned manner.

mark Alan Birch, fiA
director, risk consulting and software, south east asia  
towers watson singapore pte ltd.

signature: 

place: singapore
date: 10th april 2015

63 Chulia Street
#09-01 OCBC Centre East
Singapore 049514

T +65 6880 5688
F +65 6880 5699

towerswatson.com

Towers Watson Singapore Pte Ltd
Company Registration No: 198600361K
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7.6.0 ceRtificAtion of incuRRed But not (enouGh)  
RepoRted cl Aims

i hereby certify that the 75% confidence level ibnr provision, including an allowance of che, of  
rs. 2,182,472,000/- is adequate in relation to the claim liability of sri lanka insurance corporation 
ltd. as at 31st december 2014, net of reinsurance (undiscounted). This ibnr provision, together with 
the case reserves held by the company, is expected to be adequate to meet the future liabilities in 
respect of the company’s incurred claims obligations as at 31st december 2014, in many but not all 
scenarios of future experience.

at the end of each reporting period, companies are required to carry out a liability adequacy 
test (lat) as laid out in slfrs 4. The lat is performed to assess the adequacy of the carrying 
amount of the unearned premium reserve (upr). i hereby certify that the upr provision of  
rs. 5,235,223,000/- set by the company, net of reinsurance, is adequate in relation to the unexpired 
risks of sri lanka insurance corporation ltd. as at 31st december 2014, in many but not all scenarios 
of future experience. as such, there is no premium deficiency to be recognised by the company.

The results have been determined in accordance with internationally accepted actuarial principles.

i have relied upon information and data provided by the management of the above company and 
i have not independently verified the data supplied, beyond applying checks to satisfy myself as to the 
reasonableness of the data.

matthew maguire

fellow of the institute of actuaries of australia (fiaa)
for and on behalf of nmg financial services consulting 
dated 7th april 2015

T: +65 6325 9855  F: +65 6325 4700  E: contact@NMG-Group.com
www.NMG-Group.com
65 Chulia Street, #37-07/08 OCBC Centre, 049513 Singapore
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7.7.0 independent AuditoRs’ RepoRt

to the shaReholdeRs oF sRi lanka insuRanCe CoRPoRation limited
RePoRt on the FinanCial statements

we have audited the accompanying financial statements of sri lanka insurance corporation 
ltd., (‘the company’), and the consolidated financial statements of the company and its 
subsidiaries (‘group’), which comprise the statement of financial position as at 31st december 
2014, and the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, statement of changes 
in equity and, cash flow statement for the year then ended, and a summary of significant 
accounting policies and other explanatory information as set out in pages 134 to 254.

boaRd’s ResPonsibilit y FoR the FinanCial statements 

The board of directors (‘board’) is responsible for the preparation of these financial statements 
that give a true and fair view in accordance with sri lanka accounting standards, and for 
such internal control as board determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial 
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

auditoRs’ ResPonsibilit y 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. we 
conducted our audit in accordance with sri lanka auditing standards. Those standards require 
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable 
assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

an audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts 
and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s 
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial 
statements, whether due to fraud or error. in making those risk assessments, the auditor considers 
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internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of the financial statements that give a true 
and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, 
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal 
control. an audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and 
the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by board, as well as evaluating the overall 
presentation of the financial statements. 

we believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide 
a basis for our audit opinion.

oPinion

1.  according to the judgment delivered by supreme court of sri lanka on 4th June 2009, the 
legal ownership of the majority of the shares of the company was vested with the secretary to 
the treasury to be held on behalf of the government of sri lanka. further, according to the 
said judgment, the secretary to the treasury was directed to cause profits of the company 
during the period distilleries company of sri lanka plc was the parent of the company,  
be computed and the profits attributable to the previous parent be settled. no adjustments 
have been made in the financial statements pending determination of the aforesaid 
attributable profits.

2. in the absence of confirmation of balances, we were unable to satisfy ourselves as to the 
completeness, existence and accuracy of amount due from the distilleries company of  
sri lanka plc group of companies as disclosed in note 15 to the financial statements.

in our opinion, except for the effect of such adjustments, if any, as might have been determined 
to be necessary had we been able to satisfy ourselves as to the matters disclosed in the aforesaid 
paragraphs 1 and 2, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the 
financial position of the group as at 31st december 2014, and of its financial performance and 
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with sri lanka accounting standards.

RePoRt on otheR leGal and ReGulatoRy RequiRements

as required by section 163 (2) of the companies act no. 07 of 2007, we state the following:
(a) The basis of opinion and scope and limitations of the audit are as stated above.

(b) in our opinion; we have obtained all the information and explanations that were required 
for the audit. 
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1. according to the judgment delivered by supreme court of sri lanka on 04th June 2009, 
the legal ownership of the majority of the shares of the company was vested with the 
secretary to the treasury to be held on behalf of the government of sri lanka. further, 
according to the said judgment, the secretary to the treasury was directed to cause profits 
of the company during the period distilleries company of sri lanka plc was the parent 
of the company, be computed and the profits attributable to the previous parent be settled.  
no adjustments have been made in the financial statements pending determination of the 
aforesaid attributable profits.

2. in the absence of confirmation of balances, we were unable to satisfy ourselves as the 
completeness, existence and accuracy of amount due from the distilleries company of  
sri lanka plc group of companies disclosed in note 15 to the financial statements.

in our opinion; except for the effect of such adjustments, as might have been determined to 
be necessary had we been able to satisfy ourselves as to the matters disclosed in the aforesaid 
paragraphs 1 and 2 above. 

- as far as appears from our examination, proper accounting records have been kept by the 
company.

- The financial statements of the company, give a true and fair view of its financial position 
as at 31st december 2014, and of its financial performance and cash flows for the year then 
ended in accordance with sri lanka accounting standards.

in our opinion; the financial statements of the company, and the group comply with the 
requirements of sections 151 and 153 of the companies act no. 07 of 2007. 

as required by section 47 (2) of the regulation of insurance industry act no. 43 of 2000, 
the accounting records of the company have been maintained in the manner required by the 
rules issued by the ibsl and give a true and fair view of the financial position.

chartered Accountants
colombo

01st June 2015
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consolidated company

as at 31st december
note 

2014            
Rs. ’000

2013           
rs. ’000

2014            
Rs. ’000

2013           
rs. ’000

Assets 
financial investments 5  116,624,612  94,771,272  116,624,612  94,771,272 

investment in subsidiaries 6 – –  21,085,905  17,585,904 

property, plant & equipment 7  35,583,199  30,812,895  8,585,240  8,265,863 

investment properties 8  1,203,431  1,333,645  465,231  549,600 

leasehold property 9  357,003  190,473  20,806  21,075 

intangible assets 10  3,166,771  3,119,603  141,336  120,041 

loans to policyholders 11  1,510,067  1,578,196  1,510,067  1,578,196 

reinsurance receivable 12  1,206,845  1,446,243  1,206,845  1,446,243 

premium receivable 13  2,858,302  3,030,141  2,858,302  3,030,141 

deferred tax assets 14  87,013  56,876  86,629  56,469 

Other assets 15  6,684,373  6,378,029  3,577,108  2,860,377 

deferred expenses 16  261,860  246,895  261,860  246,895 

cash and cash equivalents 17  25,539,438  29,257,992  5,768,427  13,024,534 

total Assets  195,082,914  172,222,260  162,192,368  143,556,610 

liabilities and shareholders’ equity 
equity 
stated capital 18  6,000,000  6,000,000  6,000,000  6,000,000 

revaluation reserve 19  9,325,393  8,752,045  5,971,570  5,411,866 

available-for-sale reserve 20  26,525,252  15,364,711  26,525,252  15,364,711 

revenue reserve 21  37,499,812  33,278,963  25,719,488  26,398,587 

total equity Attributable to equity  
   holders of the company  79,350,457  63,395,719  64,216,310  53,175,164 

non-controlling interest  7,246,077  7,054,574  –    –   

total equity  86,596,534  70,450,293  64,216,310  53,175,164 

7.8.0 stAtement of finAnciAl position
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consolidated company

as at 31st december
note 

2014            
Rs. ’000

2013           
rs. ’000

2014            
Rs. ’000

2013           
rs. ’000

liabilities 
insurance provision – life 22  77,254,496  69,079,061  77,254,496  69,079,061 

insurance provision – non-life 23  13,195,783  13,288,956  13,195,783  13,288,956 

reinsurance payable  1,013,511  897,082  1,013,511  897,082 

current tax liabilities 24  1,472,546  2,778,544  963,165  1,739,675 

deferred tax liabilities 25  2,834,628  2,808,369  743,056  935,656 

retirement benefit Obligations 26  872,575  635,244  668,381  463,117 

Other liabilities 27  11,243,513  11,787,935  3,748,759  3,616,178

bank Overdraft 28  599,328  496,776  388,907  361,721 

total liabilities  108,486,380  101,771,967  97,976,058  90,381,446 

total liabilities and equity  195,082,914  172,222,260  162,192,368  143,556,610 

notes to the financial statements as set out on pages 134 to 254 form an integral part of these financial statements.

i certify that the above financial statements comply with the requirements of the companies act  
no. 07 of 2007.

Ranjith perera
Chief Financial Officer/Senior DGM Finance

The board of directors are responsible for the preparation and the presentation of these financial statements.
approved and signed for and on behalf of the board,

 
hemaka Amarasuriya t.m.R. Bangsa Jayah
Chairman Managing Director

colombo
1st June 2015
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consolidated company

for the year ended 31st december
note 

2014            
Rs. ’000

2013           
rs. ’000

2014            
Rs. ’000

2013           
rs. ’000

Revenue 29  64,223,649  60,074,704  29,301,980  27,980,852 

Gross Written premium 30  20,584,486  21,262,140  20,665,985  21,350,869 

net change in reserve for  
   unearned premium  (125,047)  (581,750)  (125,047)  (581,750)

Gross earned premium  20,459,439  20,680,390  20,540,938  20,769,119 

premium ceded to reinsurers  (2,845,418)  (3,227,303)  (2,845,418)  (3,227,303)

net change in reserve for unearned  
   reinsurance premium  109,385  263,241  109,385  263,241 

net earned premium  17,723,406  17,716,327  17,804,905  17,805,056 

revenue from subsidiaries  33,716,092  32,139,598  –    –   

 51,439,498  49,855,925  17,804,905  17,805,056 

other Revenue 
investment income 31  11,708,619  8,895,213  11,216,572  9,275,563 

fees and commission income 32  49,296  27,881  49,296  27,881 

net realised gains/(losses) 33  (152,291)  39,906  (157,737)  39,906 

net fair value gains and losses –  (12,671)  –    (12,671)

Other income 34  1,178,527  1,268,450  388,944  845,117 

 12,784,151  10,218,779  11,497,075  10,175,797 

total net Revenue  64,223,649  60,074,704  29,301,980  27,980,853 

Benefits, losses and expenses 
net benefits and claims 35  (11,939,320)  (9,804,484)  (11,939,320)  (9,804,484)

underwriting and net acquisition  
   costs (including reinsurance) 36  (1,613,242)  (1,553,928)  (1,613,242)  (1,553,928)

change in contract liabilities –  
   life fund  (5,376,416)  (5,109,549)  (5,376,416)  (5,109,549)

Other Operating and  
   administrative expenses 37  (9,596,478)  (6,542,048)  (5,999,863)  (5,158,022)

cost of sales of subsidiaries  (24,545,071)  (23,267,517)  –   –

net Benefits, losses and expenses  (53,070,527)  (46,277,526)  (24,928,841)  (21,625,983)

profit Before taxation  11,153,122  13,797,179  4,373,139  6,354,870 

income tax expense 38  (2,813,454)  (3,658,388)  (1,116,126)  (1,700,039)

net profit for the year  8,339,668  10,138,790  3,257,013  4,654,830 

7.9.0 stAtements of pRofit oR loss And otheR 
compRehensiVe income
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consolidated company

for the year ended 31st december
note 

2014            
Rs. ’000

2013           
rs. ’000

2014            
Rs. ’000

2013           
rs. ’000

other comprehensive income 
gain on revaluation of property,  
   plant & equipment  669,662  212,925  592,783  –   

deferred tax effect on revaluation  
   of property, plant & equipment  (3,683)  (25,551)  (3,778)  –   

net change in fair value of  
   available-for-sale financial assets  11,160,541  2,843,670  11,160,541  2,843,670 

actuarial gains/(losses)  
   on retirement benefit Obligations  (127,024) 8,554  (122,160)  5,992 

tax on actuarial gains/(losses)  35,313  (1,259)  34,205  –   

other comprehensive income  
   for the year, net of tax  11,734,809  3,038,339  11,661,591  2,849,662 

total comprehensive  
   income for the year  20,074,477  13,177,129  14,918,604  7,504,492 

profit for the year Attributable to:
equity holders of the company  8,037,407  9,681,178  3,257,013  4,654,830 

non-controlling interest  302,261  457,613  –    –   

profit for the year  8,339,668  10,138,790  3,257,013  4,654,830 

total comprehensive income  
   Attributable to:
equity holders of the company  19,754,844  12,635,592  14,918,604  7,504,492 

non-controlling interest  319,633  541,537  –    –   

total comprehensive income  
   for the year  20,074,477  13,177,129  14,918,604  7,504,492 

basic earnings per share (rs.) 39  13.40  16.14  5.43  7.76 

The above statement of profit or loss and Other comprehensive income is to be read in conjunction  
with the notes to the financial statements, from pages 134 to 254 which form an integral part of these 
financial statements.
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consolidated 

 Attributable to owners of the company 

stated
capital

rs. ’000

revaluation 
reserve 
rs. ’000 

general
reserve
rs. ’000

available-for-
sale reserve

rs. ’000

surplus from 
life insurance

rs. ’000

retained     
earnings

rs. ’000 

total

rs. ’000

non-controlling 
interest 
rs. ’000

total
equity

rs. ’000

Balance as at 1st January 2013  6,000,000  9,161,368  643,442  12,521,041  8,268,740  16,753,420  53,348,011  1,647,283  54,995,294 

total comprehensive income for the year 
profit for the year  –    –    –    –    –   9,681,178 9,681,178  457,613 10,138,791
Other comprehensive income  –    102,325  –    2,843,670  –   8,420 2,954,415  83,924 3,038,339
total comprehensive income for the year  –    102,325  –    2,843,670  –   9,689,598 12,635,593  541,538 13,177,130

transaction with owners of the company Recorded directly in equity
effect of change in percentage holding in subsidiaries  –    –    –    –    –    (68,857)  (68,857)  5,068,857  5,000,000 
deferred tax on revaluation surplus  –    (291,353)  –    –    –    289,484  (1,869)  –    (1,869)
realisation of revaluation surplus  –    (30,320)  –    –    –    30,320  –    –    –   
transfer of fair value gain on investment property  –    (189,975)  –    –    –    189,975  –    –    –   
change in fair value measurements applicable to life contract liability  –    –    –    –    –    (1,317,160)  (1,317,160)  –    (1,317,160)
transferred from life insurance surplus  –    –    –    –    (5,461,681)  5,461,681  –    –    –   
surplus attributable to shareholders of life insurance  –    –    –    –    1,721,809  (1,721,809)  –    –    –   
dividend paid by subsidiary companies to minority interest  –    –    –    –    –    –    –    (203,104)  (203,104)
dividend paid  –    –    –    –    –    (1,200,000)  (1,200,000)  –    (1,200,000)

 –    (511,648)  –    –    (3,739,872)  1,663,635  (2,587,886)  4,865,753  2,277,867 

Balance as at 31st december 2013  6,000,000  8,752,045  643,442  15,364,711  4,528,867  28,106,652  63,395,718  7,054,574  70,450,293 
total comprehensive income for the year 
profit for the year  –    –    –    –    –    8,037,407  8,037,407  302,261  8,339,668 
Other comprehensive income  –    644,950  –    11,160,541  –    (88,055)  11,717,436  17,373  11,734,809 
total comprehensive income for the year  –    644,950  –    11,160,541  –   7,949,352  19,754,843  319,634  20,074,477 

transaction with owners of the company Recorded directly in equity
effect of change in percentage holding in subsidiaries  –    –    –    –    –    77,355  77,355  (77,355)  –   
realisation of revaluation surplus  –    (71,602)  –    –    –    71,602  –    –    –   
share buyback  –    –    –    –    –    (57,245)  (57,245)  –    (57,245)
transfer to shareholders  –    –    –    –    (1,690,604)  1,690,604  –    –    –   
change in fair value measurements applicable to life contract liability  –    –    –    –    –    (2,818,040)  (2,818,040)  –    (2,818,040)
surplus attributable to shareholders of life insurance  –    –    –    –    1,612,402  (1,612,402)  –    –    –   
dividend paid  –    –    –    –    –    (1,002,000)  (1,002,000)  –    (1,002,000)
dividends of subsidiaries to non-controlling interest  –    –    –    –    –    –    –    (50,776)  (50,776)

 –    (71,602)  –    –    (78,202)  (3,650,299)  (3,800,103)  (128,131)  (3,928,234)
Balance as at 31st december 2014  6,000,000  9,325,393  643,442  26,525,252  4,450,665  32,405,705  79,350,458  7,246,077  86,596,534 

The above statement of changes in equity is to be read in conjunction with the notes to the financial  
statements, from pages 134 to 254 which form an integral part of these financial statements.

7.10.0  stAtement of chAnGes in equit y
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consolidated 

 Attributable to owners of the company 

stated
capital

rs. ’000

revaluation 
reserve 
rs. ’000 

general
reserve
rs. ’000

available-for-
sale reserve

rs. ’000

surplus from 
life insurance

rs. ’000

retained     
earnings

rs. ’000 

total

rs. ’000

non-controlling 
interest 
rs. ’000

total
equity

rs. ’000

Balance as at 1st January 2013  6,000,000  9,161,368  643,442  12,521,041  8,268,740  16,753,420  53,348,011  1,647,283  54,995,294 

total comprehensive income for the year 
profit for the year  –    –    –    –    –   9,681,178 9,681,178  457,613 10,138,791
Other comprehensive income  –    102,325  –    2,843,670  –   8,420 2,954,415  83,924 3,038,339
total comprehensive income for the year  –    102,325  –    2,843,670  –   9,689,598 12,635,593  541,538 13,177,130

transaction with owners of the company Recorded directly in equity
effect of change in percentage holding in subsidiaries  –    –    –    –    –    (68,857)  (68,857)  5,068,857  5,000,000 
deferred tax on revaluation surplus  –    (291,353)  –    –    –    289,484  (1,869)  –    (1,869)
realisation of revaluation surplus  –    (30,320)  –    –    –    30,320  –    –    –   
transfer of fair value gain on investment property  –    (189,975)  –    –    –    189,975  –    –    –   
change in fair value measurements applicable to life contract liability  –    –    –    –    –    (1,317,160)  (1,317,160)  –    (1,317,160)
transferred from life insurance surplus  –    –    –    –    (5,461,681)  5,461,681  –    –    –   
surplus attributable to shareholders of life insurance  –    –    –    –    1,721,809  (1,721,809)  –    –    –   
dividend paid by subsidiary companies to minority interest  –    –    –    –    –    –    –    (203,104)  (203,104)
dividend paid  –    –    –    –    –    (1,200,000)  (1,200,000)  –    (1,200,000)

 –    (511,648)  –    –    (3,739,872)  1,663,635  (2,587,886)  4,865,753  2,277,867 

Balance as at 31st december 2013  6,000,000  8,752,045  643,442  15,364,711  4,528,867  28,106,652  63,395,718  7,054,574  70,450,293 
total comprehensive income for the year 
profit for the year  –    –    –    –    –    8,037,407  8,037,407  302,261  8,339,668 
Other comprehensive income  –    644,950  –    11,160,541  –    (88,055)  11,717,436  17,373  11,734,809 
total comprehensive income for the year  –    644,950  –    11,160,541  –   7,949,352  19,754,843  319,634  20,074,477 

transaction with owners of the company Recorded directly in equity
effect of change in percentage holding in subsidiaries  –    –    –    –    –    77,355  77,355  (77,355)  –   
realisation of revaluation surplus  –    (71,602)  –    –    –    71,602  –    –    –   
share buyback  –    –    –    –    –    (57,245)  (57,245)  –    (57,245)
transfer to shareholders  –    –    –    –    (1,690,604)  1,690,604  –    –    –   
change in fair value measurements applicable to life contract liability  –    –    –    –    –    (2,818,040)  (2,818,040)  –    (2,818,040)
surplus attributable to shareholders of life insurance  –    –    –    –    1,612,402  (1,612,402)  –    –    –   
dividend paid  –    –    –    –    –    (1,002,000)  (1,002,000)  –    (1,002,000)
dividends of subsidiaries to non-controlling interest  –    –    –    –    –    –    –    (50,776)  (50,776)

 –    (71,602)  –    –    (78,202)  (3,650,299)  (3,800,103)  (128,131)  (3,928,234)
Balance as at 31st december 2014  6,000,000  9,325,393  643,442  26,525,252  4,450,665  32,405,705  79,350,458  7,246,077  86,596,534 

The above statement of changes in equity is to be read in conjunction with the notes to the financial  
statements, from pages 134 to 254 which form an integral part of these financial statements.
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company

stated
capital

rs. ’000

revaluation 
reserve 
rs. ’000 

available-for-
sale reserve

rs. ’000

general
reserve
rs. ’000

surplus from
life insurance

rs. ’000 

retained
 earnings

rs. ’000

total
equity

rs. ’000

Balance as at 1st January 2013  6,000,000  5,632,161  12,521,041  643,442  8,268,739  15,122,448  48,187,831 

total comprehensive income for the year 
profit for the year  –    –    –    –    –    4,654,830  4,654,830 
Other comprehensive income  –    –    2,843,670  –    –    5,992  2,849,662 
total comprehensive income for the year  –    –    2,843,670  –    –    4,660,824  7,504,492 

transaction with owners of the company Recorded directly in equity
transfer from life insurance surplus  –    –    –    –    (5,461,681)  5,461,681  –   
change in fair value measurements applicable to life contract liability  –    –    –    –    –    (1,317,160)  (1,317,160)
realisation of revaluation surplus  –    (30,320)  –    –    –    30,320  –   
amount transfer on investment property  –    (189,975)  –    –    –    189,975  –   
surplus attributable to shareholders of life insurance  –    –    –    –    1,721,809  (1,721,809)  –   
dividend declared and paid  –    –    –    –   –  (1,200,000)  (1,200,000)
Balance as at 31st december 2013  6,000,000  5,411,866  15,364,711  643,442 4,528,867  21,226,278  53,175,163 

Balance as at 1st January 2014  6,000,000  5,411,866  15,364,711  643,442  4,528,867  21,226,278  53,175,163 
total comprehensive income for the year 
profit for the year  –    –    –    –    –    3,257,013  3,257,013 
Other comprehensive income  –    589,005  11,160,541  –    –    (87,955)  11,661,591 
total comprehensive income for the year  6,000,000  6,000,871  26,525,252  643,442  4,528,867  24,395,336  68,093,768 

transaction With owners of the company Recorded directly in equity
transferred from life insurance surplus  –    –    –    –    (1,690,604)  1,690,604  –   
change in fair value measurements applicable to life contract liability  –    –    –    –    –    (2,818,040)  (2,818,040)
realisation of revaluation surplus  –    (29,301)  –    –    –    29,301  –   
share buyback  –    –    –    –    –    (57,245)  (57,245)
surplus attributable to shareholders from life insurance  –    –    –    –    1,612,402  (1,612,402)  –   
dividend declared and paid  –    –    –    –    –    (1,002,000)  (1,002,000)
balance as at 31st december 2014  6,000,000  5,971,570  26,525,252  643,442  4,450,665  20,625,381  64,216,310 

note 2014            2013           

dividend per share (rs.) 40 3.34 1.67

The above statement of changes in equity is to be read in conjunction with the notes to the financial  
statements, from pages 134 to 254 which form an integral part of these financial statements.
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company

stated
capital

rs. ’000

revaluation 
reserve 
rs. ’000 

available-for-
sale reserve

rs. ’000

general
reserve
rs. ’000

surplus from
life insurance

rs. ’000 

retained
 earnings

rs. ’000

total
equity

rs. ’000

Balance as at 1st January 2013  6,000,000  5,632,161  12,521,041  643,442  8,268,739  15,122,448  48,187,831 

total comprehensive income for the year 
profit for the year  –    –    –    –    –    4,654,830  4,654,830 
Other comprehensive income  –    –    2,843,670  –    –    5,992  2,849,662 
total comprehensive income for the year  –    –    2,843,670  –    –    4,660,824  7,504,492 

transaction with owners of the company Recorded directly in equity
transfer from life insurance surplus  –    –    –    –    (5,461,681)  5,461,681  –   
change in fair value measurements applicable to life contract liability  –    –    –    –    –    (1,317,160)  (1,317,160)
realisation of revaluation surplus  –    (30,320)  –    –    –    30,320  –   
amount transfer on investment property  –    (189,975)  –    –    –    189,975  –   
surplus attributable to shareholders of life insurance  –    –    –    –    1,721,809  (1,721,809)  –   
dividend declared and paid  –    –    –    –   –  (1,200,000)  (1,200,000)
Balance as at 31st december 2013  6,000,000  5,411,866  15,364,711  643,442 4,528,867  21,226,278  53,175,163 

Balance as at 1st January 2014  6,000,000  5,411,866  15,364,711  643,442  4,528,867  21,226,278  53,175,163 
total comprehensive income for the year 
profit for the year  –    –    –    –    –    3,257,013  3,257,013 
Other comprehensive income  –    589,005  11,160,541  –    –    (87,955)  11,661,591 
total comprehensive income for the year  6,000,000  6,000,871  26,525,252  643,442  4,528,867  24,395,336  68,093,768 

transaction With owners of the company Recorded directly in equity
transferred from life insurance surplus  –    –    –    –    (1,690,604)  1,690,604  –   
change in fair value measurements applicable to life contract liability  –    –    –    –    –    (2,818,040)  (2,818,040)
realisation of revaluation surplus  –    (29,301)  –    –    –    29,301  –   
share buyback  –    –    –    –    –    (57,245)  (57,245)
surplus attributable to shareholders from life insurance  –    –    –    –    1,612,402  (1,612,402)  –   
dividend declared and paid  –    –    –    –    –    (1,002,000)  (1,002,000)
balance as at 31st december 2014  6,000,000  5,971,570  26,525,252  643,442  4,450,665  20,625,381  64,216,310 

note 2014            2013           

dividend per share (rs.) 40 3.34 1.67

The above statement of changes in equity is to be read in conjunction with the notes to the financial  
statements, from pages 134 to 254 which form an integral part of these financial statements.
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7.11.0  stAtements of cAsh floWs

 consolidated  company  

for the year ended 31st december
note

2014
Rs. ’000

2013
rs. ’000

2014
Rs. ’000

2013
rs. ’000

cash flows from operating Activities
premium received from customers  20,955,020  20,648,417  20,955,020  20,648,417 

reinsurance premium paid  (2,365,481)  (3,091,309)  (2,365,481)  (3,091,309)

insurance claims and benefits paid  (12,347,406)  (11,121,142)  (12,347,406)  (11,121,142)

reinsurance receipts in respect of  
   claims and benefits  519,628  494,544  519,628  494,544 

cash receipts from debtors  32,219,245  31,163,171  –    –   

cash paid to and on behalf of employees  (3,988,233)  (1,761,484)  (2,280,087)  (1,761,484)

interest received  8,750,100  8,527,290  7,716,553  6,879,751 

dividend received  1,337,454  1,435,954  1,646,243  1,816,390 

Other Operating cash payments  (26,031,418)  (26,271,054)  (5,964,686)  (4,990,794)

cash flow from operating Activities  19,048,909  20,024,387  7,879,785  8,874,373 

retiring gratuity paid  (26,914)  (12,873)  –    –   

income tax paid  (4,208,954)  (2,275,409)  (2,084,970)  (1,093,030)

net cash flow from operating Activities  14,813,041  17,736,105  5,794,816  7,781,343 

cash flow from investing Activities 
acquisition of financial investments  (62,612,872)  (62,297,361)  (59,112,871)  (61,427,775)

investments in subsidiaries – – (3,500,001) (869,586)

proceeds from financial investments  50,685,905  60,422,919  50,685,905  60,422,919 

proceeds from disposal of property,  
   plant & equipment  109,234  34,893  68,758  30,320 

acquisition of property, plant & equipment  (5,662,124)  (7,513,898)  (217,458)  (196,144)

net cash flows used in investing Activities (17,479,857)  (9,353,447)  (12,075,667)  (2,040,267)
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 consolidated  company  

for the year ended 31st december
note

2014
Rs. ’000

2013
rs. ’000

2014
Rs. ’000

2013
rs. ’000

cash flow from financing Activities 
dividend paid  (1,002,000)  (1,200,000)  (1,002,000)  (1,200,000)

net flows used in financing Activities  (1,002,000)  (1,200,000)  (1,002,000)  (1,200,000)

effect of exchange rate changes on  
   cash and cash equivalents  (152,291)  37,996 442  55,379 

net increase/(decrease) in  
   cash and cash equivalents  (3,821,106)  7,220,654  (7,283,293)  4,596,455 

cash and cash equivalents  
   at the Beginning of the year  28,761,216  21,540,562  12,662,813  8,066,358 

cash and cash equivalents at the  
   end of the year  24,940,110  28,761,216  5,379,520  12,662,813 

cash and cash equivalents at the  
   end of the year
cash at bank and in hand 17 901,895  767,825  637,799  493,965 

short-term investments 17  24,637,543  28,490,167  5,130,628  12,530,569 

bank Overdraft 28  (599,328)  (496,776)  (388,907)  (361,721)

 24,940,110  28,761,216  5,379,520  12,662,813 

The above statement of cash flows is to be read in conjunction with the notes to the financial statements, from 
pages 134 to 254 which form an integral part of these financial statements.
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7.12.0  seGmentAl ReVieW: stAtement of income 

2014 2013

 non-life 
insurance 

 Rs. ’000

 life 
insurance 

 Rs. ’000 

 healthcare 

 Rs. ’000

 energy  

 Rs. ’000 

 other 

 Rs. ’000 

 eliminations 

 Rs. ’000 

 total 

 Rs. ’000 

 non-life 
insurance 

 rs. ’000 

 life
insurance 

 rs. ’000 

 healthcare 
 

rs. ’000

 energy  

 rs. ’000 

 Other 
 

rs. ’000

 eliminations 
 

rs. ’000 

 total 
 

rs. ’000 

Gross Written premium 12,544,828 8,121,159 – – – (81,499) 20,584,488 12,953,151 8,397,718 – – – (88,729) 21,262,140

net change in reserves  
   for unearned premium (2,709,017) (136,401) – – – – (2,845,418) (581,750) – – – – – (581,750)

Gross earned premium 9,835,811 7,984,758 – – – (81,499) 17,739,070 12,371,400 8,397,718 – – – (88,729) 20,680,390

premium ceded to reinsurers – – – – – – – (3,129,667) (97,636) – – – – (3,227,303)

net change in reserve for  
   unearned reinsurance  
   premium (15,661) – – – – (15,661) 263,241 – – – – – 263,241

net earned premium 9,820,149 7,984,758 – – – (81,499) 17,723,408 9,504,974 8,300,082 – – – (88,729) 17,716,327

revenue from Other Operations – – 4,753,589 30,078,576 24,960 – 34,857,125 – – 4,071,915 29,038,945 79,155 (1,050,418) 32,139,598

total Revenue 9,820,149 7,984,758 4,753,589 30,078,576 24,960 (81,499) 52,580,533 9,504,974 8,300,082 4,071,915 29,038,945 79,155 (1,139,146) 49,855,925

Benefits and losses

insurance claims and  
   benefits (net) (6,205,796) (5,733,524) – – – – (11,939,321) (4,934,074) (4,870,410) – – – – (9,804,484)

underwriting and  
   net acquisition costs (485,323) (1,127,919) – – – – (1,613,242) (500,629) (1,053,299) – – – – (1,553,928)

Other insurance-related costs – – – – – – – – – – – – – –

increase in life insurance fund – (5,376,416) – – – – (5,376,416) – (5,109,549) – – – – (5,109,549)

cost of services of subsidiaries – – (2,058,866) (23,627,238) – – (25,686,104) – – (1,691,624) (22,481,096) (27,410) 932,613 (23,267,518)

total Benefits and losses (6,691,119) (12,237,860) (2,058,866) (23,627,238) – – (44,615,083) (5,434,703) (11,033,258) (1,691,624) (22,481,096) (27,410) 932,613 (39,735,479)
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2014 2013

 non-life 
insurance 

 Rs. ’000

 life 
insurance 

 Rs. ’000 

 healthcare 

 Rs. ’000

 energy  

 Rs. ’000 

 other 

 Rs. ’000 

 eliminations 

 Rs. ’000 

 total 

 Rs. ’000 

 non-life 
insurance 

 rs. ’000 

 life
insurance 

 rs. ’000 

 healthcare 
 

rs. ’000

 energy  

 rs. ’000 

 Other 
 

rs. ’000

 eliminations 
 

rs. ’000 

 total 
 

rs. ’000 

Gross Written premium 12,544,828 8,121,159 – – – (81,499) 20,584,488 12,953,151 8,397,718 – – – (88,729) 21,262,140

net change in reserves  
   for unearned premium (2,709,017) (136,401) – – – – (2,845,418) (581,750) – – – – – (581,750)

Gross earned premium 9,835,811 7,984,758 – – – (81,499) 17,739,070 12,371,400 8,397,718 – – – (88,729) 20,680,390

premium ceded to reinsurers – – – – – – – (3,129,667) (97,636) – – – – (3,227,303)

net change in reserve for  
   unearned reinsurance  
   premium (15,661) – – – – (15,661) 263,241 – – – – – 263,241

net earned premium 9,820,149 7,984,758 – – – (81,499) 17,723,408 9,504,974 8,300,082 – – – (88,729) 17,716,327

revenue from Other Operations – – 4,753,589 30,078,576 24,960 – 34,857,125 – – 4,071,915 29,038,945 79,155 (1,050,418) 32,139,598

total Revenue 9,820,149 7,984,758 4,753,589 30,078,576 24,960 (81,499) 52,580,533 9,504,974 8,300,082 4,071,915 29,038,945 79,155 (1,139,146) 49,855,925

Benefits and losses

insurance claims and  
   benefits (net) (6,205,796) (5,733,524) – – – – (11,939,321) (4,934,074) (4,870,410) – – – – (9,804,484)

underwriting and  
   net acquisition costs (485,323) (1,127,919) – – – – (1,613,242) (500,629) (1,053,299) – – – – (1,553,928)

Other insurance-related costs – – – – – – – – – – – – – –

increase in life insurance fund – (5,376,416) – – – – (5,376,416) – (5,109,549) – – – – (5,109,549)

cost of services of subsidiaries – – (2,058,866) (23,627,238) – – (25,686,104) – – (1,691,624) (22,481,096) (27,410) 932,613 (23,267,518)

total Benefits and losses (6,691,119) (12,237,860) (2,058,866) (23,627,238) – – (44,615,083) (5,434,703) (11,033,258) (1,691,624) (22,481,096) (27,410) 932,613 (39,735,479)
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2014 2013

 non-life 
insurance 

 Rs. ’000

 life 
insurance 

 Rs. ’000 

 healthcare 

 Rs. ’000

 energy  

 Rs. ’000 

 other 

 Rs. ’000 

 eliminations 

 Rs. ’000 

 total 

 Rs. ’000 

 non-life 
insurance 

 rs. ’000 

 life
insurance 

 rs. ’000 

 healthcare 
 

rs. ’000

 energy  

 rs. ’000 

 Other 
 

rs. ’000

 eliminations 
 

rs. ’000 

 total 
 

rs. ’000 

other Revenue 

investment income 2,096,374 9,120,198 64,571 235,639 500,627 (308,790) 11,708,618 2,064,663 7,210,899 – – – (380,436) 8,895,126

fees and commission income – 49,294 – – – – 49,294 16,348 11,533 – – – – 27,881

net realised gains (8,270) (149,467) 5,480 (34) – – (152,291) 135,303 (95,397) – – – – 39,906

impairment loss on  
   available-for-sale financial  
   investments – – – – – – – (12,671) – – – – – (12,671)

Other income 136,629 252,315 44,423 455,264 289,896 1,178,527 313,156 531,962 29,674 407,574 253,613 (267,441) 1,268,538

2,224,733 9,272,341 114,474 690,869 790,523 (308,790) 12,784,149 2,516,799 7,658,997 29,674 407,574 253,613 (647,877) 10,218,780

expenses

Other Operating, investment  
   related and administrative  
   expenses (3,492,049) (2,507,813) (2,287,230) (913,018) (477,866) 81,499 (9,596,477) (2,851,002) (2,307,020) (1,666,456) (438,185) 246,641 473,975 (6,542,047)

profit before taxation 1,861,713 2,511,426 521,967 6,229,189 337,617 (308,790) 11,153,122 3,736,068 2,618,801 743,509 6,527,238 551,998 (380,436) 13,797,179

income tax expense (217,101) (899,025) (8,409) (1,598,665) (90,254) (2,813,454) (803,033) (897,006) (66,738) (1,727,077) (149,415) (15,120) (3,658,388)

net profit after taxation/ 
   transfer to shareholders’ fund 1,644,613 1,612,400 513,558 4,630,524 247,363 (308,790) 8,339,668 2,933,035 1,721,795 676,771 4,800,162 402,584 (395,556) 10,138,791
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2014 2013

 non-life 
insurance 

 Rs. ’000

 life 
insurance 

 Rs. ’000 

 healthcare 

 Rs. ’000

 energy  

 Rs. ’000 

 other 

 Rs. ’000 

 eliminations 

 Rs. ’000 

 total 

 Rs. ’000 

 non-life 
insurance 

 rs. ’000 

 life
insurance 

 rs. ’000 

 healthcare 
 

rs. ’000

 energy  

 rs. ’000 

 Other 
 

rs. ’000

 eliminations 
 

rs. ’000 

 total 
 

rs. ’000 

other Revenue 

investment income 2,096,374 9,120,198 64,571 235,639 500,627 (308,790) 11,708,618 2,064,663 7,210,899 – – – (380,436) 8,895,126

fees and commission income – 49,294 – – – – 49,294 16,348 11,533 – – – – 27,881

net realised gains (8,270) (149,467) 5,480 (34) – – (152,291) 135,303 (95,397) – – – – 39,906

impairment loss on  
   available-for-sale financial  
   investments – – – – – – – (12,671) – – – – – (12,671)

Other income 136,629 252,315 44,423 455,264 289,896 1,178,527 313,156 531,962 29,674 407,574 253,613 (267,441) 1,268,538

2,224,733 9,272,341 114,474 690,869 790,523 (308,790) 12,784,149 2,516,799 7,658,997 29,674 407,574 253,613 (647,877) 10,218,780

expenses

Other Operating, investment  
   related and administrative  
   expenses (3,492,049) (2,507,813) (2,287,230) (913,018) (477,866) 81,499 (9,596,477) (2,851,002) (2,307,020) (1,666,456) (438,185) 246,641 473,975 (6,542,047)

profit before taxation 1,861,713 2,511,426 521,967 6,229,189 337,617 (308,790) 11,153,122 3,736,068 2,618,801 743,509 6,527,238 551,998 (380,436) 13,797,179

income tax expense (217,101) (899,025) (8,409) (1,598,665) (90,254) (2,813,454) (803,033) (897,006) (66,738) (1,727,077) (149,415) (15,120) (3,658,388)

net profit after taxation/ 
   transfer to shareholders’ fund 1,644,613 1,612,400 513,558 4,630,524 247,363 (308,790) 8,339,668 2,933,035 1,721,795 676,771 4,800,162 402,584 (395,556) 10,138,791
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as at 31st december 2014 2013

 non-life 
insurance 

 Rs. ’000

 life 
insurance 

 Rs. ’000 

 healthcare 

 Rs. ’000

 energy  

 Rs. ’000 

 other 

 Rs. ’000 

 eliminations 

 Rs. ’000 

 total 

 Rs. ’000 

 non-life 
insurance 

 rs. ’000 

 life
insurance 

 rs. ’000 

 healthcare 
 

rs. ’000

 energy  

 rs. ’000 

 Other 
 

rs. ’000

 eliminations 
 

rs. ’000 

 total 
 

rs. ’000 

Assets 

financial investments 25,168,062 91,456,550 – – – – 116,624,612 21,128,252 73,643,020 – – – – 94,771,272

investment in subsidiaries 19,735,494 1,457,914 – 5,000,000 18,500,000 (44,693,408) – 16,235,493 1,457,914 – 2,000,000 12,000,000 (31,693,407) –

property, plant & equipment 8,543,067 42,172 3,659,633 10,625,896 12,712,430 – 35,583,199 8,209,893 55,969 3,226,050 10,121,304 9,199,678 – 30,812,895

investment properties 465,231 – – – 738,200 – 1,203,431 549,600 – – – 784,045 – 1,333,645

leasehold property 20,806 – 161,581 – 174,616 – 357,003 21,075 – 147,717 – 21,680 – 190,473

intangible assets 141,336 – 32,455 – 175 2,992,805 3,166,771 120,041 – 6,480 – 277 2,992,805 3,119,603

loans to policyholders – 1,510,067 – – – – 1,510,067 – 1,578,196 – – – – 1,578,196

reinsurance receivable 1,177,765 29,080 – – – – 1,206,845 1,406,265 39,978 – – – – 1,446,243

premium receivable  
   from policyholders 2,588,094 270,208 – – – – 2,858,302 2,702,387 327,754 – – – – 3,030,141

premium receivable from  
   agents, brokers and  
   intermediaries – – – – – – – – 56,469 – – 407 – 56,876

deferred tax assets – 86,630 – – 384 – 87,013 762,217 2,373,771 652,032 2,618,284 445,403 (473,677) 6,378,029

Other assets 2,062,943 1,606,799 790,208 2,271,501 342,394 (389,468) 6,684,328 246,896 – – – – – 246,897

deferred expenses 261,860 – – – – – 261,860 6,360,906 6,663,628 1,063,877 11,469,132 3,700,449 – 29,257,992

cash and cash equivalents 3,130,325 2,638,102 994,939 11,806,979 6,969,093 – 25,539,438 – – – – – – –

total Assets 63,294,983 99,097,521 5,638,816 29,704,376 39,437,292 (42,090,071) 195,082,914 57,743,026 86,196,698 5,096,155 26,208,720 26,151,940 (29,174,279) 172,222,260

7.13.0   seGmentAl ReVieW: stAtement of finAnciAl position
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as at 31st december 2014 2013

 non-life 
insurance 

 Rs. ’000

 life 
insurance 

 Rs. ’000 

 healthcare 

 Rs. ’000

 energy  

 Rs. ’000 

 other 

 Rs. ’000 

 eliminations 

 Rs. ’000 

 total 

 Rs. ’000 

 non-life 
insurance 

 rs. ’000 

 life
insurance 

 rs. ’000 

 healthcare 
 

rs. ’000

 energy  

 rs. ’000 

 Other 
 

rs. ’000

 eliminations 
 

rs. ’000 

 total 
 

rs. ’000 

Assets 

financial investments 25,168,062 91,456,550 – – – – 116,624,612 21,128,252 73,643,020 – – – – 94,771,272

investment in subsidiaries 19,735,494 1,457,914 – 5,000,000 18,500,000 (44,693,408) – 16,235,493 1,457,914 – 2,000,000 12,000,000 (31,693,407) –

property, plant & equipment 8,543,067 42,172 3,659,633 10,625,896 12,712,430 – 35,583,199 8,209,893 55,969 3,226,050 10,121,304 9,199,678 – 30,812,895

investment properties 465,231 – – – 738,200 – 1,203,431 549,600 – – – 784,045 – 1,333,645

leasehold property 20,806 – 161,581 – 174,616 – 357,003 21,075 – 147,717 – 21,680 – 190,473

intangible assets 141,336 – 32,455 – 175 2,992,805 3,166,771 120,041 – 6,480 – 277 2,992,805 3,119,603

loans to policyholders – 1,510,067 – – – – 1,510,067 – 1,578,196 – – – – 1,578,196

reinsurance receivable 1,177,765 29,080 – – – – 1,206,845 1,406,265 39,978 – – – – 1,446,243

premium receivable  
   from policyholders 2,588,094 270,208 – – – – 2,858,302 2,702,387 327,754 – – – – 3,030,141

premium receivable from  
   agents, brokers and  
   intermediaries – – – – – – – – 56,469 – – 407 – 56,876

deferred tax assets – 86,630 – – 384 – 87,013 762,217 2,373,771 652,032 2,618,284 445,403 (473,677) 6,378,029

Other assets 2,062,943 1,606,799 790,208 2,271,501 342,394 (389,468) 6,684,328 246,896 – – – – – 246,897

deferred expenses 261,860 – – – – – 261,860 6,360,906 6,663,628 1,063,877 11,469,132 3,700,449 – 29,257,992

cash and cash equivalents 3,130,325 2,638,102 994,939 11,806,979 6,969,093 – 25,539,438 – – – – – – –

total Assets 63,294,983 99,097,521 5,638,816 29,704,376 39,437,292 (42,090,071) 195,082,914 57,743,026 86,196,698 5,096,155 26,208,720 26,151,940 (29,174,279) 172,222,260
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as at 31st december 2014 2013

 non-life 
insurance 

 Rs. ’000

 life 
insurance 

 Rs. ’000 

 healthcare 

 Rs. ’000

 energy  

 Rs. ’000 

 other 

 Rs. ’000 

 eliminations 

 Rs. ’000 

 total 

 Rs. ’000 

 non-life 
insurance 

 rs. ’000 

 life
insurance 

 rs. ’000 

 healthcare 
 

rs. ’000

 energy  

 rs. ’000 

 Other 
 

rs. ’000

 eliminations 
 

rs. ’000 

 total 
 

rs. ’000 

liabilities and equity
liabilities
insurance provision – life –  77,254,496  –  –  –  –  77,254,468 –  69,079,061  –  –  –  –  69,079,061 

insurance provision – non-life  13,195,783  –  –  –  –  13,195,783  13,288,956 –  –  –  –  –  13,288,956 

reinsurance payable  1,013,511  –  –  –  –  –  1,013,511  878,615  18,467  –  –  –  –  897,082 

current tax liabilities  162,501  800,664  –  461,057  48,324  –  1,472,546  887,282  852,393 –  1,038,869  –  –  2,778,544 

deferred tax liabilities  743,056 –  314,106  1,774,719  2,747  –  2,834,628  935,656 –  278,099  1,582,042  9,125  – 2,808,369

retirement benefit Obligations  348,721  319,660  105,320  64,801  34,073  –  872,575  241,626  221,490  66,880  81,255  23,993  –  635,244 

Other liabilities  1,915,574  1,925,815  538,381  6,603,158  677,753  (417,168)  11,243,513  2,368,654  1,523,134  569,291  7,102,121  698,409  (473,675)  11,787,935 

financial liabilities  218,588  170,319  197,730 –  12,691  –  599,328  232,612  129,109  135,055  –  –  –  496,776 

total liabilities  17,597,734  80,470,956  1,155,537  8,903,735  775,588  (417,168)  108,486,380  18,833,401  71,823,654  1,049,325  9,804,287  731,527  (473,675) 101,771,969

equity
stated capital  6,000,000 –  2,671,543  1,947,109  37,870,087  (42,488,739)  6,000,000  6,000,000 –  2,671,543  1,947,109  24,870,087  (29,488,739) 6,000,000

capital reserve  5,805,655  27,877  1,032,575  3,916,066 –  (1,456,780) 9,325,393  5,370,974  40,892  1,020,435  3,893,533 –  (1,599,072) 8,752,043

available-for-sale reserve  9,031,976  17,493,276 – – – –  26,525,252  5,092,637  10,272,074  –  –  –  –  15,364,711 

revenue reserves 24,859,618 1,105,411  779,161  14,937,466  791,617  (4,973,461) 37,499,812  22,446,014  4,060,080  354,852  10,563,791  550,326  (4,667,367) 33,278,963

non-controlling interest – – – – –  7,246,077  7,246,077  –  –  –  –  –  7,054,574  7,054,574 

total equity 45,697,249  18,626,565  4,483,279  20,800,641  38,661,704  (41,672,903) 86,596,534  38,909,625  14,373,045  4,046,830  16,404,432  25,420,413  (28,700,604) 70,450,291

total liabilities and equity 63,294,983  99,097,521  5,638,816  29,704,376  39,437,292  (42,090,071) 195,082,914  57,743,026  86,196,699  5,096,155  26,208,720  26,151,939  (29,174,279)  172,222,260 
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as at 31st december 2014 2013

 non-life 
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 life 
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 Rs. ’000 
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 Rs. ’000 

 non-life 
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 life
insurance 

 rs. ’000 

 healthcare 
 

rs. ’000

 energy  

 rs. ’000 
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rs. ’000
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rs. ’000 

 total 
 

rs. ’000 

liabilities and equity
liabilities
insurance provision – life –  77,254,496  –  –  –  –  77,254,468 –  69,079,061  –  –  –  –  69,079,061 

insurance provision – non-life  13,195,783  –  –  –  –  13,195,783  13,288,956 –  –  –  –  –  13,288,956 

reinsurance payable  1,013,511  –  –  –  –  –  1,013,511  878,615  18,467  –  –  –  –  897,082 

current tax liabilities  162,501  800,664  –  461,057  48,324  –  1,472,546  887,282  852,393 –  1,038,869  –  –  2,778,544 

deferred tax liabilities  743,056 –  314,106  1,774,719  2,747  –  2,834,628  935,656 –  278,099  1,582,042  9,125  – 2,808,369

retirement benefit Obligations  348,721  319,660  105,320  64,801  34,073  –  872,575  241,626  221,490  66,880  81,255  23,993  –  635,244 

Other liabilities  1,915,574  1,925,815  538,381  6,603,158  677,753  (417,168)  11,243,513  2,368,654  1,523,134  569,291  7,102,121  698,409  (473,675)  11,787,935 

financial liabilities  218,588  170,319  197,730 –  12,691  –  599,328  232,612  129,109  135,055  –  –  –  496,776 

total liabilities  17,597,734  80,470,956  1,155,537  8,903,735  775,588  (417,168)  108,486,380  18,833,401  71,823,654  1,049,325  9,804,287  731,527  (473,675) 101,771,969

equity
stated capital  6,000,000 –  2,671,543  1,947,109  37,870,087  (42,488,739)  6,000,000  6,000,000 –  2,671,543  1,947,109  24,870,087  (29,488,739) 6,000,000

capital reserve  5,805,655  27,877  1,032,575  3,916,066 –  (1,456,780) 9,325,393  5,370,974  40,892  1,020,435  3,893,533 –  (1,599,072) 8,752,043

available-for-sale reserve  9,031,976  17,493,276 – – – –  26,525,252  5,092,637  10,272,074  –  –  –  –  15,364,711 

revenue reserves 24,859,618 1,105,411  779,161  14,937,466  791,617  (4,973,461) 37,499,812  22,446,014  4,060,080  354,852  10,563,791  550,326  (4,667,367) 33,278,963

non-controlling interest – – – – –  7,246,077  7,246,077  –  –  –  –  –  7,054,574  7,054,574 

total equity 45,697,249  18,626,565  4,483,279  20,800,641  38,661,704  (41,672,903) 86,596,534  38,909,625  14,373,045  4,046,830  16,404,432  25,420,413  (28,700,604) 70,450,291

total liabilities and equity 63,294,983  99,097,521  5,638,816  29,704,376  39,437,292  (42,090,071) 195,082,914  57,743,026  86,196,699  5,096,155  26,208,720  26,151,939  (29,174,279)  172,222,260 
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1.  RePoRtinG entit y

1.1  CoRPoRate inFoRmation

sri lanka insurance corporation ltd. (‘the company’) is a public limited liability company 
incorporated and domiciled in sri lanka. The registered office of the company is located in 
the district of colombo and the principal place of business is located at ‘rakshana mandiraya’,  
no. 21, vauxhall street, colombo 02. all companies in the group are limited liability 
companies incorporated and domiciled in sri lanka. The consolidated financial statements  
of the company as at and for the year ended 31st december 2014 comprise the company and  
its subsidiaries management services rakshana (private) ltd., The lanka hospitals  
corporation plc, litro gas lanka ltd., litro gas terminal lanka (pvt) ltd., canwill holdings 
(pvt) ltd. and canowin hotels and spas (pvt) ltd. (together referred to as the ‘group’ and 
individually as ‘group entities’). 599,598,516 number of ordinary shares (99.97%) of the parent 
company is owned by secretary to the treasury and rest owned by employees and ex-employees 
of the company.

1.2   PRinCiPal aCtivities and natuRe oF oPeRations

The principal activities of the group are to undertake and carry on all classes of insurance 
businesses, health care services, provide bulk storage facilities for liquid petroleum gas (lpg) 
and to import, process, store, distribute and sell liquid petroleum gas (lpg), provide other 
incidental services, investment promotion in relation to leisure sector and controlling and 
monitoring subsidiaries as a holding company and engage in business of hospitality trade.

1.3  ResPonsibilit y FoR FinanCial statements

The board of directors is responsible for the preparation and presentation of these  
financial statements.

7.14.0  notes to the finAnciAl stAtements
For the Year ended 31st december 2014
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2.  basis oF PRePaRation

2.1  statement oF ComPlianCe

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with sri lanka accounting 
standards slfrs/lKas as issued by The institute of chartered accountants of sri lanka 
and comply with the requirements of the companies act no. 07 of 2007, the regulation of 
insurance industry act no. 43 of 2000.    

2.2  basis oF measuRement

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for the following 
material items in the statement of financial position: 

 z assets held-for-trading are measured at fair value
 z financial instruments designated at ‘fair-value-Through-profit-or-loss’ are measured at  
fair value

 z available-for-sale financial assets are measured at fair value
 z land and buildings are measured at revalued amounts
 z policyholders’ liability have been measured at actuarial-determined values
 z The liability for defined benefit obligations are actuarially valued and recognised as the 
present value of the defined benefit obligation.

2.  basis oF PRePaRation 

2.1  basis oF measuRement

The group presents its statement of financial position broadly in the order of liquidity.

financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the 
statement of financial position only when there is a legal enforceable right to offset the 
recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and 
settle the liabilities simultaneously.
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2.2  suPPlementaRy statements – statement oF FinanCial Position oF  
   liFe insuRanCe

supplementary statement of financial position of the life insurance fund together with 
the notes are disclosed continuing the past practice which is a requirement of the statement 
of recommended practice (sOrp) for insurance contracts then applicable, adopted by The 
institute of chartered accountants of sri lanka.

2.3  FunCtional and PResentation CuRRenCy

The financial statements are presented in sri lankan rupees (rs.), which is the group’s 
functional currency. except as indicated, financial information presented in sri lankan rupees 
has been rounded to the nearest thousand.

2.4  use oF estimates and JudGments

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with slfrs requires management to 
make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies 
and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. actual results may differ 
from estimates.

estimates and underlying assumptions are based on historical experience and various other 
factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the 
circumstances.

estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. revisions to 
accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimates are revised and in any 
future periods which are affected.

information about assumptions and estimation uncertainties in applying accounting policies 
that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements are 
included in the notes to the financial statements.

2.5  mateRialit y and aGGReGation

each material class of similar items is presented separately in the financial statements. items of 
dissimilar nature or function are presented separately unless they are immaterial.
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2.6  ComPaRative inFoRmation

The presentation and classification of the financial statements of the previous years have  
been amended, where relevant for better presentation and to be comparable with those of the 
current year. 

2.7  GoinG ConCeRn

The directors have made an assessment of the group’s ability to continue as a going concern, 
and being satisfied that it has the resources to continue in business for the foreseeable future. 
furthermore, directors are not aware of any material uncertainties that may cast significant 
doubt upon the group’s ability to continue as a going concern. Therefore, the financial 
statements continue to be prepared on the going concern basis.

2.8  date oF authoRisation oF issue

The financial statements were authorised for issue by the board of directors on 1st June 2015.

3.  siGniFiCant aCCountinG PoliCies

The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to all periods presented in 
these financial statements unless otherwise indicated.

3.1  basis oF Consolidation

(i)  business Combinations

business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method as at the acquisition 
date, which is the date on which control is transferred to the group. control is the power 
to govern the financial and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from its 
activities. in assessing control, the group takes into consideration potential voting rights that 
currently are exercisable.

The group measures goodwill at the acquisition date as:

 z the fair value of the consideration transferred; plus
 z the recognised amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree; plus
 z if the business combination is achieved in stages, the fair value of the pre-existing equity 
interest in the acquiree; less

 z the net recognised amount (generally fair value) of the identifiable assets acquired and 
liabilities assumed.
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when the excess is negative, a bargain purchase gain is recognised immediately in profit 
and loss.

The consideration transferred does not include amounts related to the settlement of  
pre-existing relationships. such amounts generally are recognised in profit and loss.

transactions costs, other than those associated with the issue of debt or equity securities, 
that the group incurs in connection with a business combination are expensed as incurred.

(ii)  aCquisitions oF non-ContRollinG inteRest

acquisitions of non-controlling interest are accounted for as transactions with owners in their 
capacity as owners and therefore no goodwill is recognised as a result. adjustments to non-
controlling interest arising from transactions that do not involve the loss of control are based 
on a proportionate amount of the net assets of the subsidiary.

(iii)  subsidiaRies

subsidiaries are entities controlled by the group. The financial statements of subsidiaries are 
included in the consolidated financial statements from the date that control commences until 
the date that control ceases.

(iv)  loss oF ContRol

On the loss of control, the group derecognises the assets and liabilities of the subsidiary, any 
non-controlling interest and the other components of equity related to the subsidiary. any 
surplus or deficit arising on the loss of control is recognised in profit and loss. if the group 
retains any interest in the previous subsidiary, then such interest is measured at fair value at the 
date that control is lost. subsequently it is accounted for as an equity-accounted investee or as 
an available-for-sale financial asset depending on the level of influence retained.

(v)  tRansaCtions eliminated on Consolidation

intra-group balances and transactions, and any unrealised income and expenses arising from 
intra-group transactions, are eliminated in preparing the consolidated financial statements. 
unrealised gains arising from transactions with equity-accounted investees are eliminated 
against the investment to the extent of the group’s interest in the investee. unrealised losses are 
eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains, but only to the extent that there is no evidence 
of impairment.



AnnuAl RepoRt 2014 – SRI lAnKA InSuRAnCe CoRpoRAtIon ltd.

139

3.2  FoReiGn CuRRenCy tRansaCtions

transactions in foreign currencies are translated to the functional currencies of the group 
at exchange rates at the dates of transactions. monetary assets and liabilities denominated 
in foreign currencies at the reporting date are retranslated to the functional currency at the 
exchange rate at that date.

The foreign currency gain or loss on monetary items is the difference between amortised 
cost in the functional currency at the beginning of the period, adjusted for effective interest 
and payments during the period, and the amortised cost in foreign currency translated at the 
exchange rate at the end of the reporting period.

non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies that are measured at 
fair value are retranslated to the functional currency at the exchange rate at the date that the fair 
value was determined. non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a 
foreign currency are translated using the exchange rate at the date of transaction.

foreign currency differences arising on retranslation are recognised in profit and loss, except 
for differences arising on the retranslation of available-for-sale equity instruments, which are 
recognised in profit or loss and Other comprehensive income.

3.3  insuRanCe ContRaCts

as permitted by slfrs 4 – ‘insurance contracts’, the group continues to apply the existing 
accounting policies for insurance contracts that were applied prior to the adoption of slfrs.

3.3.1  PRoduCt ClassiFiCation

slfrs 4 requires contracts written by insurers to be classified as either ‘insurance contracts’ or 
‘investment contracts’ depending on the level of insurance risk transferred.

insurance contracts are those contracts when the group (the insurer) has accepted 
significant insurance risk from another party (the policyholders) by agreeing to compensate 
the policyholders if a specified uncertain future event (the insured event) adversely affects 
the policyholders. as a general guideline, the group determines whether it has significant 
insurance risk, by comparing benefits paid with benefits payable if the insured event did not 
occur. insurance contracts can also transfer financial risk.
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investment contracts are those contracts that transfer significant financial risk and non 
significant insurance risk. financial risk is the risk of a possible future change in one or more 
of a specified interest rate, financial instrument price, commodity price, foreign exchange rate, 
index of price or rates, credit rating or credit index or other variable, provided in the case of a 
non-financial variable that the variable is not specific to a party to the contract.

Once a contract has been classified as an insurance contract, it remains an insurance 
contract for the remainder of its lifetime, even if the insurance risk reduces significantly during 
this period, unless all rights and obligations are extinguished or expired. investment contracts 
can, however, be reclassified as insurance contracts after inception if insurance risk becomes 
significant.

all the products sold by the group are insurance contracts and therefore classified as 
insurance contracts under slfrs 4 – ‘insurance contracts’. Thus, the group does not have any 
investment contracts within its product portfolio as at the reporting date.

3.4  intanGible assets

3.4.1  GoodWill

goodwill that arises on the acquisition of the subsidiaries is presented with intangible assets. 
The measurement of goodwill at initial recognition is given in note 3.1. (i) to the financial 
statements.

3.4.1.2  imPaiRment oF GoodWill

goodwill is tested for impairment annually (as at 31st december) and when circumstances 
indicate that the carrying value may be impaired. impairment is determined for goodwill by 
assessing the recoverable amount of each cash-generating unit to which the goodwill relates. 
where the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit is less than their carrying amount, 
an impairment loss is recognised in profit and loss. impairment losses relating to goodwill 
cannot be reversed in the future.

otheR intanGible assets

Other intangible assets that have finite useful lives are measured at cost less accumulated 
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses. 
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3.4.2  soFt WaRe
3.4.2.1  basis oF ReCoGnition

an intangible asset is recognised if it is probable that future economic benefits that are 
attributable to the asset will flow to the group and the cost of the asset can be measured reliably.

3.4.2.2  basis oF measuRement

intangible assets acquired separately are measured as initial recognition at cost. following 
initial recognition intangible assets are carried at cost or any accumulated amortisation and 
any accumulated impairment losses. The intangible assets with finite useful life are amortised 
over the useful life and assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that intangible 
assets may be impaired. intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested for impairment 
annually either individually or at the cash generating unit (cgu) level.

3.4.2.3  subsequent measuRement

subsequent expenditure on software assets is capitalised only when it increases the future 
economic benefits embodied in the specific asset to which it relates. all other expenditure is 
expensed as incurred.

3.4.2.4  amoRtisation

amortisation is recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful 
life of the software, from the date that it is available for use since this most closely reflects the 
expected pattern of consumption of the future economic benefits embodied in the asset. The 
estimated useful life of software is six years.

amortisation methods and useful lives are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted 
if appropriate.

3.4.2.5  deReCoGnition

an intangible asset is derecognised on disposal or when no future economic benefits are 
expected from it. The gain or loss arising from the derecognition of such intangible assets is 
included in profit or loss when the item is derecognised.
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3.5  PRoPeRt y, Plant & equiPment

3.5.1  basis oF ReCoGnition and measuRement

items of property, plant & equipment are measured at cost/revaluation less accumulated 
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.

cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the asset. The cost 
of self-constructed assets includes the following:

 z the cost of materials and direct labour;
 z any other costs directly attributable to bringing the assets to a working condition for their 
intended use;

 z when the group has an obligation to remove the asset or restore the site, an estimate of 
the costs of dismantling and removing the items and restoring the site on which they  
are located.

purchased software that is integral to the functionality of the related equipment is  
capitalised as part of that equipment. when parts of an item of property, plant & equipment 
have different useful lives, they are accounted for as separate items (major components) of 
property, plant & equipment.

any gain or loss on disposal (calculated as the difference between the net proceeds from 
disposal and the carrying amount of the item) is recognised in other operating income in profit 
and loss. when revalued assets are sold, any related amount included in the revaluation surplus 
reserves are transferred to retained earnings.

3.5.2  subsequent Costs

The cost of replacing a part of an item of plant and equipment is recognised in the carrying 
amount of the item if it is probable that the future economic benefits embodied within the part 
will flow to the group and its cost can be measured reliably. The cost of day-to-day servicing of 
property, plant & equipment is expensed as incurred.

3.5.3  Revaluations

land and buildings are measured at fair value less accumulated depreciation on buildings and 
impairment losses are recognised after the date of the revaluation. valuations are performed to 
ensure that the fair value of a revalued asset does not differ materially from its carrying amount.
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any revaluation surplus is recognised in profit or loss and Other comprehensive income 
and accumulated in equity in the revaluation reserve, except to the extent that it reverse a 
revaluation decrease of the same asset previously recognised in profit and loss, in which case 
the increase is recognised in profit and loss. a revaluation deficit is recognised in profit and loss, 
except to the extent that it offsets an existing surplus on the same asset recognised in the asset 
revaluation reserve.

additionally, accumulated depreciation as at the revaluation date is eliminated against the 
gross carrying amount of the asset and the net amount is restated to the revalued amount of 
the asset. upon disposal, any revaluation reserve relating to the particular asset being sold is 
transferred to retained earnings.

3.5.4  dePReCiation

items of property, plant & equipment are depreciated on a straight-line basis in profit and loss 
over the estimated useful of each component.

items of property, plant & equipment are depreciated from the date that they are installed 
and are ready for use, or in respect of internally constructed assets, from the date that the asset 
is completed and ready for use.

The estimated useful lives for the current and comparative years are as follows:

buildings 20 years
furniture & fittings 10 years
electrical generators 10 years
Office & Other equipment 10 years
air condition plant 10 years
passenger lifts 6 2/3 years
electrical fixtures & fittings 6 2/3 years
computers and computer equipment 4 years
motor vehicles 4 years

3.5.5 deReCoGnition

The carrying amount of an item of property, plant & equipment is derecognised on disposal 
or when no future economic benefits are expected from it. The gain or loss arising from the 
derecognition of an item of property, plant & equipment is included in profit and loss when the 
item is derecognised.
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3.5.6  CaPital WoRk-in-PRoGRess

capital work-in-progress is stated at cost. These are expenses of a capital nature directly 
incurred on property, plant & equipment, awaiting capitalisation.

3.5.7  leased assets – lessee

The determination of whether an arrangement is a lease, or contains a lease, is based on the 
substance of the arrangement at the inception date.

leased assets 

leases in terms of which the group assumes substantially all of the risks and rewards of  
ownership are classified as finance leases. On initial recognition, the leased asset is measured 
at an amount equal to the lower of its fair value and the present value of the minimum lease 
payments. subsequent to initial recognition, the asset is accounted for in accordance with the 
accounting policy applicable to that asset.

oPeRatinG lease
leases that do not transfer to the group substantially all the risks and benefits incidental to 
ownership of the leased items are operating leases. Operating lease payments are recognised as 
an expense in profit and loss on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

3.6  imPaiRment oF non-FinanCial assets

The carrying amounts of the group’s non-financial assets, other than deferred tax assets, are 
reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. if 
any such indication exists, then the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. for intangible assets 
that have indefinite useful lives or that are not yet available for use, the recoverable amount is 
estimated each year at the same time. an impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount 
of an asset or cgu exceeds its estimated recoverable amount.

The recoverable amount of an asset or cgu is the greater of its value in use and its fair value 
less costs to sell. in assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to 
their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the 
time value of money and the risks specific to the asset or cgu. for the purpose of impairment 
testing, assets that cannot be tested individually are grouped together into the smallest group of 
assets that generates cash inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash 
inflows of other assets.

impairment losses are recognised in profit and loss.
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3.7  FinanCial instRuments
3.7.1  non-deRivative FinanCial assets
3.7.1.1  initial ReCoGnition and measuRement

The group initially recognises loans and receivables and deposits on the date at which they are 
originated. all other financial assets and liabilities (including assets and liabilities designated 
at fair-value-Through-profit-or-loss) are initially recognised on the trade date at which the 
group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

a financial asset or financial liability is measured initially at fair value plus, for an item 
not at fair-value-Through-profit-or-loss, transaction costs that are directly attributable to its 
acquisition or issue.

at inception a financial asset is classified into one of the following categories:
 z fair-value-Through-profit-or-loss (fvtpl);
 z loans and receivables (l&r);
 z held-to-maturity (htm); and
 z available-for-sale (afs) as appropriate.

The group determines the classification of its financial assets at initial recognition.

The classification depends on the purpose for which the investments were acquired or 
originated (i.e. intention) and based on the group’s ability. financial assets are classified as at 
fair-value-Through-profit-or-loss where the group’s investment strategy is to manage financial 
investments on a fair value basis. The available-for-sale and held-to-maturity categories are 
used when the relevant liability (including shareholders’ funds) is passively managed and/or 
carried at amortised cost.

purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame 
established by regulation or convention in the marketplace are recognised on the settlement 
date, i.e. the date that the group receives/settles money for the sale/purchase of the financial 
asset. however, when it comes to investment in quoted equities and quoted corporate debt, the 
transaction date (i.e. trade date) is used to recognise/derecognise the asset.
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The group’s existing types of financial assets and their classifications are shown in the  
table below:

financial asset category

treasury bonds available-for-sale/held-to-maturity
treasury bills available-for-sale/held-to-maturity
listed equity shares fair-value-Through-profit-or-loss/available-for-sale
unlisted equity shares available-for-sale
unit trusts available-for-sale
listed corporate debt available-for-sale
unlisted corporate debt loans and receivables
term deposits loans and receivables
trust certificates loans and receivables
development bonds loans and receivables
commercial papers loans and receivables
policy loans loans and receivables
staff and advisor loans loans and receivables

3.7.1.2 subsequent measuRement

(a)  Available-For-Sale Financial Assets (AFS)

available-for-sale financial investments include equity and debt securities (government 
securities and corporate debt). equity investments classified as available-for-sale are those 
that are neither classified as held-to-maturity nor designated at fair-value-Through-profit-
or-loss. debt securities in this category are those that are intended to be held for an indefinite 
period of time and which may be sold in response to needs for liquidity or in response to 
changes in the market conditions.

after initial measurement, available-for-sale financial assets are subsequently measured at 
fair value, with unrealised gains or losses recognised in profit or loss and Other comprehensive 
income in the available-for-sale reserve.

interest earned whilst holding available-for-sale investments is reported as ‘interest 
income’ using the effective interest rate (eir). dividends earned whilst holding available-
for-sale investments are recognised in profit or loss as ‘investment income’ when the right of 
the payment has been established. when the asset is derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss 
is recognised in the investment income.
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if the asset is determined to be impaired, the cumulative loss is recognised in profit or loss 
in the ‘investment income’ and removed from the available-for-sale reserve.

The group evaluates its available-for-sale financial assets to determine whether the ability 
and intention to sell them in the near term would still be appropriate. in the case where the group 
is unable to trade these financial assets due to inactive markets and management’s intention 
significantly changes to do so in the foreseeable future, the group may elect to reclassify these 
financial assets in rare circumstances. reclassification to loans and receivables is permitted 
when the financial asset meets the definition of loans and receivables and management has 
the intention and ability to hold these assets for the foreseeable future or until maturity. The 
reclassification to held-to-maturity is permitted only when the entity has the ability and 
intention to hold the financial asset until maturity.

for a financial asset that is reclassified out of the available-for-sale category, any previous 
gain or loss on that asset that has been recognised in equity is amortised to profit or loss over 
the remaining life of the investment using the eir. any difference between the new amortised 
cost and the expected cash flows is also amortised over the remaining life of the asset using the 
eir. if the asset is subsequently determined to be impaired then the amount recorded in equity 
is reclassified to the income statement.

(b)  Financial Assets at Fair-Value-Through-Profit-or-Loss (FVTPL)

financial assets at fair-value-Through-profit-or-loss include financial assets held for trading 
and those designated upon initial recognition at fair-value-Through-profit-or-loss. investments 
typically bought with the intention to sell in the near future are classified as held for trading.

for investments designated as at fair-value-Through-profit-or-loss, the following criteria 
must be met:

The designation eliminates or significantly reduces the inconsistent treatment that would 
otherwise arise from measuring the assets or liabilities or recognising gains or losses on a 
different basis.

The assets and liabilities are part of a group’s financial assets, financial liabilities, or both, 
which are managed and their performance evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with 
the group’s investment strategy.

These investments are initially recorded at fair value. subsequent to initial recognition, they 
are remeasured at fair value. changes in fair value are recorded in ‘fair value gains and losses’ 
in profit or loss.
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interest is accrued and presented in ‘investment income’ or ‘finance cost’, respectively, 
using the (eir). dividend income is recorded in the ‘investment income’ when the right to the 
payment has been established.

The group evaluates its financial assets at fair-value-Through-profit-or-loss (held-for-
trading) whether the intent to sell them in the near term is still appropriate. when the group 
is unable to trade these financial assets due to inactive markets and management’s intent to sell 
them in the foreseeable future significantly changes, the group may elect to reclassify these 
financial assets in rare circumstances. The reclassification to loans and receivables, available-
for-sale or held-to-maturity depends on the nature of the asset.

(c)  Held-To-Maturity Financial Assets (HTM)

non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturities are 
classified as held-to-maturity when the group has both the intention and ability to hold 
until maturity. after initial measurement, held-to-maturity financial assets are measured at 
amortised cost, using the eir, less impairment.

The eir amortisation is included in ‘investment income’ in the statement of income.

gains and losses are recognised in the profit or loss when the investments are derecognised 
or impaired, as well as through the amortisation process.

(d)  Loans and Receivables – (L & R)

loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments 
that are not quoted in an active market. 

These investments are initially recognised at cost, being the fair value of the consideration 
paid for the acquisition of the investment. all transaction costs directly attributable to the 
acquisition are also included in the cost of the investment. after initial measurement, loans 
and receivables are measured at amortised cost, using the eir, less allowance for impairment.

amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium if any, on 
acquisition and fee or costs that are an integral part of the eir. The eir amortisation is included 
in ‘investment income’ in profit or loss.

gains and losses are recognised in the profit or loss when the investments are derecognised 
or impaired, as well as through the amortisation process.
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The fair value of policy loans are estimated by discounting future cash flows using interest 
rates currently being offered in respect of similar loans. The fair value of fixed rate policy 
loans are estimated by discounting cash flows at the interest rates charged on policy loans of 
similar policies currently being issued. The varying values of policy loans with variable rates 
approximate to their fair value.

(e)  Cash and Cash Equivalents

cash and cash equivalents comprise, reverse repurchase agreements, cash balances and call 
deposits with maturities of three months or less from the acquisition date that are subject to an 
insignificant risk of changes in their fair value, and are used by the group in the management 
of its short-term commitments.

3.7.1.3  deReCoGnition

The group derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from 
the financial asset expire, or when it transfers the financial asset in a transaction in which 
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred or in 
which the group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership 
and it does not retain control of the financial asset. any interest in transferred financial assets 
that qualify for derecognition that is created or retained by the group is recognised as a separate 
asset or liability in the statement of financial position. On derecognition of a financial asset, the 
difference between the carrying amount of the asset (or the carrying amount allocated to the 
portion of the asset transferred), and consideration received (including any new asset obtained 
less any new liability assumed) is recognised in profit or loss.

The group derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged 
or cancelled or expired.

3.7.2  non-deRivative FinanCial liabilities

The group initially recognises debt securities issued and subordinated liabilities on the date 
that they are originated. all other financial liabilities (including liabilities designated as at fair-
value-Through-profit-or-loss) are recognised initially on the trade date, which is the date that 
the group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

The group derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged, 
cancelled or expire.
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The group classifies non-derivative financial liabilities into the other financial liabilities 
category. such financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value less any directly 
attributable transaction costs. subsequent to initial recognition, these financial liabilities are 
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Other financial liabilities comprise loans and borrowings, bank overdrafts and trade &  
other payables.

bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand and form an integral part of the group’s cash 
management are included as a component of cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of the 
statement of cash flows.

3.7.3  stated CaPital
oRdinaRy shaRes

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of 
ordinary shares are recognised as a deduction from equity, net of any tax effects.

3.7.4  amoRtised Cost measuRement

The amortised cost of a financial asset or liability is the amount at which the financial asset 
or liability is measured at initial recognition, minus principal repayments, plus or minus the 
cumulative amortisation using the effective interest method of any difference between the 
initial amount recognised and the maturity amount, minus any reduction for impairment.

3.7.5  FaiR value measuRement

fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability settled, between 
knowledgeable, willing parties in an arm’s length transaction on the measurement date.

when available, the group measures the fair value of an instrument using quoted prices in 
an active market for that instrument (categorised as level 1). a market is regarded as active if 
quoted prices are readily and regularly available and represent actual and regularly occurring 
market transactions on an arm’s length basis.

if a market for a financial instrument is not active, then the group establishes fair value 
using a valuation technique (categorised as level 2). valuation techniques include using recent 
arm’s length transactions between knowledgeable, willing parties (if available), reference to the 
current fair value of other instruments that are substantially the same, discounted cash flow 
analyses and option pricing models.
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for discounted cash flow techniques, estimated future cash flows are based on management’s 
best estimates and the discount rate used is a market-related rate for a similar instrument. The 
use of different pricing models and assumptions could produce materially different estimates 
of fair values.

if the fair value cannot be measured reliably, these financial instruments are measured at 
cost, being the fair value of the consideration paid for the acquisition of the investment or the 
amount received on issuing the financial liability (categorised as level 3). all transaction costs 
directly attributable to the acquisition are also included in the cost of the investment.

The best evidence of the fair value of a financial instrument at initial recognition is the 
transaction price, i.e., the fair value of the consideration given or received, unless the fair value of 
that instrument is evidenced by comparison with other observable current market transactions 
in the same instrument, i.e., without modification or repackaging or based on a valuation 
technique whose variables include only data from observable markets. when transaction price 
provides the best evidence of fair value at initial recognition, the financial instrument is initially 
measured at the transaction price and any difference between this price and the value initially 
obtained from a valuation model is subsequently recognised in profit or loss on an appropriate 
basis over the life of the instrument but not later than when the valuation is supported wholly 
by observable market data or the transaction is closed out.

3.7.6  identiFiCation and measuRement oF imPaiRment

The group assesses at each reporting date whether there is any objective evidence that a financial 
asset or group of financial assets is impaired. a financial asset or a group of financial assets is 
deemed to be impaired if, and only if, there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of 
one or more events that has occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (an incurred ‘loss 
event’) and that loss event has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset 
or the group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated.

evidence of impairment may include indications that the debtors or a group of debtors 
is experiencing significant financial difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or principal 
payments, the probability that they will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation and 
where observable data indicate that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash 
flows, such as changes in arrears or economic conditions that correlate with defaults.
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3.7.6.1  FinanCial assets CaRRied at amoRtised Cost

for financial assets carried at amortised cost, the group first assesses individually whether 
objective evidence of impairment exists individually for financial assets that are individually 
significant, or collectively for financial assets that are not individually significant.

if the group determines that no objective evidence of impairment exists for an individually 
assessed financial asset, whether significant or not, it includes the asset in a group of financial 
assets with similar credit risk characteristics and collectively assesses them for impairment.

assets that are individually assessed for impairment and for which an impairment loss is, or 
continues to be recognised are not included in a collective assessment of impairment.

if there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on assets carried at amortised cost 
has been incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the carrying 
amount of the asset and the present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future 
expected credit losses that have not been incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s original 
effective interest rate. if a loan has a variable interest rate, the discount rate for measuring any 
impairment loss is the current effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an allowance account and 
the amount of the loss is recognised in profit or loss. interest income continues to be accrued 
on the reduced carrying amount and is accrued using the rate of interest used to discount the 
future cash flows for the purpose of measuring the impairment loss. The interest income is 
recorded as a part of investment income in the statement of comprehensive income.

loans together with the associated allowance are written off when there is no realistic 
prospect of future recovery and all collateral has been realised or has been transferred to the 
group. if, in a subsequent year, the amount of the estimated impairment loss increases or 
decreases because of an event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously 
recognised impairment loss is increased or reduced by adjusting the allowance account. if a 
future write-off is later recovered, the recovery is credited to the ‘investment income’ in the 
statement of comprehensive income.

The group has not experienced any indication of impairment and thus no impairment 
losses were recognised during the financial year.
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3.7.6.2  available-FoR-sale FinanCial assets (aFs)

for available-for-sale financial assets, the group assesses at each reporting date whether there 
is objective evidence that an investment or a group of investments is impaired.

in the case of debt instruments classified as available-for-sale, impairment is assessed based 
on the same criteria as financial assets carried at amortised cost. however, the amount recorded 
for impairment is the cumulative loss measured as the difference between the amortised cost 
and the current fair value, less any impairment loss on that investment previously recognised 
in the statement of  income.

future interest income continues to be accrued based on the reduced carrying amount 
of the asset and is accrued using the rate of interest used to discount the future cash flows 
for the purpose of measuring the impairment loss. The interest income is recorded as part 
of ‘investment income’. if, in a subsequent year, the fair value of a debt instrument increases 
and the increase can be objectively related to an event occurring after the impairment loss  
was recognised in the statement of  income, the impairment loss is reversed through the 
income statement.

3.7.7  oFFset tinG oF FinanCial investments 

financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the statement 
of financial position only when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised 
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the 
liability simultaneously.

3.8  deFeRRed exPenses 

3.8.1  deFeRRed aCquisition Costs (daC)

Those direct and indirect costs incurred during the financial period arising from the writing or 
renewing of insurance contracts are deferred and amortised over the period in which the related 
revenues are earned. all other acquisition costs are recognised as an expense when incurred.

The dac is applicable only to non-life insurance contracts. no dac is calculated for life 
insurance contracts as the acquisition costs are incurred in line with the revenues earned.

in line with the available regulatory guidelines from the insurance board of sri lanka 
(ibsl), the dac is calculated based on the 365 basis.



SRI LANKA INSURANCE CoRpoRAtIoN Ltd. – ANNUAL REpoRt 2014

154

an impairment review is performed at each reporting date or more frequently when 
an indication of impairment arises. when the recoverable amount is less than the carrying 
amount, an impairment loss is recognised in the statement of comprehensive income.  
no such indication of impairment was experienced during the year.

dac is derecognised when the related contracts are either settled or disposed of.

3.9  ReinsuRanCe

group cedes insurance risk in the normal course of business to recognised reinsurers through 
formal reinsurance arrangements.

reinsurance assets include the balances due from reinsurance companies for paid and 
unpaid losses and loss adjustment expenses. amounts recoverable from reinsurers are estimated 
in a manner consistent with the outstanding claims provision or settled claims associated with 
the reinsurer’s policies and are in accordance with the related reinsurance contract.

reinsurance is recorded gross in the statement of financial position unless a right to  
offset exists.

reinsurance assets are reviewed for impairment at each reporting date, or more frequently, 
when an indication of impairment arises during the reporting year. impairment occurs when 
there is objective evidence as a result of an event that occurred after initial recognition of the 
reinsurance asset that the group may not receive all outstanding amounts due under the terms 
of the contract and the event has a reliably measurable impact on the amounts that the group 
will receive from the reinsurer. The impairment loss, if any is recorded in profit and loss.

ceded reinsurance arrangements do not relieve the group from its obligations to policyholders.

reinsurance assets or liabilities are derecognised when the contractual rights are 
extinguished or expire or when the contract is transferred to another party.

3.10  PRemium ReCeivable

insurance receivables are recognised when due and measured on initial recognition at 
the fair value of the consideration receivable. collectability of premiums is reviewed on an  
ongoing basis.

according to the premium payment warranty (ppw) directive issued by the insurance 
board of sri lanka (ibsl), all non-life insurance policies are issued subject to ppw and are 
cancelled upon the expiry of 60 days if not settled.
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The group account for life insurance premiums on accrual basis with the implementation 
of slfrs/lKas. accordingly, due life insurance premiums (only the premiums due in the  
30-day grace period) are recognised at each reporting date and will be reversed if the premiums 
are not settled during the subsequent month, and thus the policies will be lapsed as per the 
group policy.

reinsurance commission - unearned commission reserve (ucr) – non-life.

3.11  otheR assets
3.11.1  otheR ReCeivables and dues FRom Related PaRties

Other receivables and dues from related parties are recognised at cost less allowances for bad 
and doubtful receivables.

3.11.2  inventoRies

inventories include all consumable items which are stated at lower of cost and net realisable value.

liabilities and PRovisions
3.12  insuRanCe ContRaCt liabilities
3.12.1  insuRanCe PRovision - liFe insuRanCe

life insurance liabilities are recognised when contracts are entered into and premiums are 
charged. These liabilities are measured by using the net premium method as specified by 
the insurance board of sri lanka (ibsl) based on the recommendation of the independent 
consultant actuary. The liability is determined as the sum of the discounted value of the 
expected future benefits, less the discounted value of the expected future premiums that would 
be required to meet the future cash outflows based on the valuation assumptions used. The 
liability is computed based on ibsl specified guidelines and current assumptions which vary 
based on the contract type.

furthermore, adjustments are performed to capture the likely liabilities that may arise due 
to currently lapsed contracts reviving in the future.

as required by the slfrs 4 – ‘insurance contracts’, the group performed a liability 
adequacy test (lat) in respect of life insurance contract liabilities with the assistance of an 
external actuary. in performing the liability adequacy test, current best estimates of future 
contractual cash flows, including related cash flows such as claims handling and policy 
administration expenses, policyholder options and guarantees, as well as investment income 
from assets backing such liabilities, are used.
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3.12.2  insuRanCe PRovision – non-liFe insuRanCe

non-life insurance contract liabilities include the outstanding claims provision including ibnr 
and ibner, the provision for unearned premium and the provision for premium deficiency.

The outstanding claims provision is based on the estimated ultimate cost of all claims 
incurred but not settled at the reporting date, whether reported or not, together with related 
claims handling costs and reduction for the expected value of salvage and other recoveries. 
delays can be experienced in the notification and settlement of certain types of claims, therefore, 
the ultimate cost of these cannot be known with certainty at the reporting date.

The valuation of unearned premium reserve are measured in accordance with guidelines 
of the regulation of insurance industry act no. 43 of 2000 (i.e. based on the 365 basis).

The incurred but not reported (ibnr) and incurred but not enough reported (ibner) 
claims reserve are actuarially computed.

no provision for equalisation or catastrophe reserves is recognised. The liabilities are 
derecognised when the obligation to pay a claim expires, is discharged or is cancelled.

as required by the slfrs 4 – ‘insurance contracts’, the group performed a liability 
adequacy test (lat) in respect of non-life insurance contract liabilities with the assistance of 
the external actuary.

3.12.3  title insuRanCe ReseRve

title insurance reserve is maintained by the group to pay potential claims arising from the title 
insurance policies. title insurance policies are normally issued for a long period such as 5 years 
or more. Thus, no profit is recognised in the first year of the policy given the higher probability 
of claims occurring in that year. from the 2nd year onwards, profit is recognised by amortising 
the premium received and will be distributed throughout the remaining period of the policy 
using the straight-line method. profit for the first year will only be recognised in the 2nd year 
and thereafter it is periodically recognised.

if the corresponding loan of the title insurance policy issued is settled before the maturity, 
full premium of such policies remaining as at the date of settlement of such loan is recognised 
in profit and loss upon confirmation of the same by the respective bank. 
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3.13  emPloyee beneFits
3.13.1  shoRt-teRm beneFits

short-term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are 
expensed as the related service is provided. a liability is recognised for the amount expected to 
be paid under short-term cash bonus or profit-sharing plans if the group has a present legal or 
constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service provided by the employee 
and the obligation can be estimated reliably.

3.13.2  deFined ContRibution Plans

a defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which an entity pays 
fixed contributions into a separate entity and will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay 
further amounts. Obligations for contributions to defined contribution plans are recognised as 
an expense in profit and loss when incurred.

emPloyees’ PRovident Fund

all employees of the group are members of the employees’ provident fund (epf).  
The group and employees contribute 15% and 10% respectively of the salary to epf.

emPloyees’ tRust Fund

all employees of the group are members of the employees’ trust fund (etf). The group 
contributes 3% of the salary of each employee to etf.

3.13.3  deFined beneFit Plans

a defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan other than a defined contribution 
plan. The liability recognised in the financial statements in respect of defined benefit plans is 
the present value of the defined benefit obligation as at the reporting date. The defined benefit 
obligation is calculated by a qualified actuary as at the reporting date using the projected 
unit credit (puc) method as recommended by lKas 19 – ‘employee benefits’. The actuarial 
valuation involves making assumptions about discount rate, salary increment rate and balance 
service period of employees. due to the long-term nature of the plans such estimates are subject 
to significant uncertainty.

under the payment of gratuity act no. 12 of 1983, the liability to an employee arises only 
on completion of 5 years of continued service.

The liability is not externally funded.
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aCtuaRial Gains and losses

The remeasurement of the net defined benefit obligation, which comprises actuarial gains and 
losses are recognised immediately in Other comprehensive income.

3.14  PRovisions

a provision is recognised if, as a result of a past event, the group has a present legal or constructive 
obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits 
will be required to settle the obligation. provisions are determined by discounting the expected 
future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of 
money and, where appropriate, the risks specific to the liability.

3.15  Revenue ReCoGnition
3.15.1  insuRanCe PRemiums
3.15.1.1  liFe insuRanCe business

gross recurring premiums on life insurance contracts are recognised as revenue when payable 
by the policyholder (policies within the 30-day grace period are considered as due). any 
premiums received in advance is not recorded as revenue and recorded as a liability until the 
premium is due. benefits and expenses are provided against such revenue to recognise profits 
over the estimated life of the policies.

for single premium business, revenue is recognised on the date on which the policy is effective.

3.15.1.2  non-liFe insuRanCe business

gross written premiums – non-life insurance comprises the total premiums received/receivable 
for the whole period of cover provided by contracts entered into during the accounting 
period. gross written premium is generally recognised is written upon inception of the policy.  
upon inception of the contract, premiums are recorded as written and are earned primarily on 
a pro rata basis over the term of the related policy coverage.

unearned premiums are those proportions of premiums written in a year that relate to 
periods of risk after the reporting date. unearned premiums are calculated on 365 basis in 
accordance with the regulation of insurance industry act no. 43 of 2000. however, for those 
contracts for which the period of risk differs significantly from the contract period, premiums 
are earned over the period of risk in proportion to the amount of insurance protection provided. 
The proportion attributable to subsequent periods is deferred as a provision for unearned 
premiums which is included under liabilities.
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3.15.2  ReinsuRanCe PRemiums

gross reinsurance premiums on insurance contracts are recognised as an expense on the earlier 
of the date when premiums are payable or when the policy becomes effective. reinsurance 
premiums are decided based on rates agreed with reinsurers.

unearned reinsurance premiums are those proportions of premiums written in a year that 
relate to periods of risk after the reporting date. unearned reinsurance premiums are deferred 
over the term of the underlying direct insurance policies for risks-attaching contracts (using 
365 basis in accordance with the regulation of insurance industry act no. 43 of 2000).

3.16  Fees and Commission inCome

insurance and investment contract policyholders are charged for policy administration services 
and other contract fees. These fees are recognised as revenue upon receipt or becoming due.

3.17  inteRest

interest income and expenses are recognised in profit and loss using the effective interest 
method. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash 
receipts or payments through the expected life of the financial asset or liabilities (or, where 
appropriate, a shorter period) to the carrying amount of the financial asset or liabilities. when 
calculating the effective interest rate, the group estimates future cash flows considering all 
contractual terms of the financial instrument, but not future credit losses.

The calculation of the effective interest rate includes all transaction costs and fees and  
points paid or received that are an integral part of the effective interest rate. transaction costs 
include incremental costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of a financial 
asset or liability.

3.18  dividends

dividend income is recognised when the right to receive income is established. usually this is 
the ex-dividend date for equity securities. dividends are presented in net trading income or net 
income from other financial instruments at fair-value-Through-profit-or-loss based on the 
underlying classification of the equity investment.
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3.19  PRoFit/loss on sale oF PRoPeRt y, Plant & equiPment 

profit/loss on sale of property, plant & equipment is recognised in the period in which the sale 
occurs and is classified under other income.

3.20  beneFits, Claims and exPenses

3.20.1  GRoss beneFits and Claims
3.20.1.1  liFe insuRanCe business

claims by death and maturity are charged against revenue on notification of death or on expiry of 
the term. The interim payments and surrenders are accounted for only at the time of settlement.

expenses on life insurance relates to the acquisition expenses and expenses for maintenance 
of life insurance business, investment-related expenses not treated as a part of the capital cost of 
investment, etc., which are accounted on accrual basis.

3.20.1.2  non-liFe insuRanCe business

non-life insurance claims include all claims occurring during the year, whether reported or not 
together with claims handling costs that are directly related to the processing and settlement of 
claims, a reduction for the value of salvage and other recoveries and any adjustments to claims 
outstanding from previous years. claims outstanding are assessed by review of individual claim 
files and estimating changes in the ultimate cost of settling claims.

The provision in respect of claims incurred but not reported (ibnr) and claims incurred 
but not enough reported (ibner) is actuarially valued to ensure a more realistic estimation of 
the future liability based on the past experience and trends. actuarial valuations are performed 
on a semi-annual basis.

whilst the directors consider that the provisions for claims are fairly stated on the basis 
of information currently available, the ultimate liability will vary as a result of subsequent 
information and events. This may result in adjustments to the amounts provided. such amounts 
are reflected in the financial statements for that period.

The methods used to estimate claims and the estimates made are reviewed regularly.
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3.20.1.3  ReinsuRanCe Claims

reinsurance claims are recognised when the related gross insurance claim is recognised 
according to the terms of the relevant contract.

3.21  net deFeRRed aCquisition exPenses

acquisition expenses, representing commissions, which vary with and are directly related to 
the production of business, are deferred and amortised over the period in which the related 
written premiums are earned.

reinsurance commission is also treated in the same manner within deferred acquisition costs.

3.22  aCtuaRial valuation oF liFe insuRanCe Fund

The directors agree to the long-term insurance provision for the group at the year-end on the 
recommendations of the independent consultant actuary following his annual investigation of 
the life insurance business. The actuarial valuation takes into account all liabilities and is based 
on assumptions recommended by the independent consultant actuary.

3.23  otheR exPenses

Other expenses are recognised on accrual basis. all expenditure incurred in the running of 
the business and in maintaining the property, plant & equipment has been charged to the 
statement of comprehensive income.

3.24  inCome tax exPense

income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. current and deferred taxes are 
recognised in profit and loss except to the extent that it relates to items recognised directly in 
equity, when it is recognised in equity.

3.24.1  CuRRent tax

current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year, using tax rates 
enacted or substantively enacted on the reporting date, and any adjustment to tax payable in 
respect of previous years. provision for taxation is based on the profit for the year adjusted for 
taxation purposes in accordance with the provisions of the inland revenue act no. 10 of 2006 
and the amendments thereto.
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current income tax assets and liabilities also include adjustments for tax expected to be 
payable or recoverable in respect of previous periods.

current income tax relating to items recognised directly in equity or profit or loss and 
Other comprehensive income is recognised in equity or statement of profit or loss and Other 
comprehensive income and not in the statement of comprehensive income.

management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to 
situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes 
provisions, where appropriate.

3.24.2  deFeRRed tax

deferred taxation is provided using the liability method, providing for temporary differences 
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the 
tax base of assets and liabilities, which is the amount attributed to those assets and liabilities 
for tax purposes. The amount of deferred tax provided is based on the expected manner of 
realisation or settlement of the carrying amount substantively enacted by the reporting date.

deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences. as at the date of 
the statement of financial position, the group has deferred tax liabilities arising from property, 
plant & equipment only.

deferred tax assets, including those related to temporary tax effects of income tax losses 
and credits available to be carried forward, are recognised only to the extent that it is probable 
that future taxable profits will be available against which the asset can be fully utilised. deferred 
tax assets, if any, are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it is no 
longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realised.

unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at each reporting date and are recognised 
to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profit will allow the deferred tax 
asset to be recovered.

deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss, if any is recognised outside 
profit or loss. deferred tax items are recognised in relation to the underlying transaction either 
in profit or loss and Other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset, if a legally enforceable right exists 
to set-off current tax assets against current income tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to 
the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.
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3.24.3  PRemium inCome (GWP) and otheR sundRy sales Related taxes

revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of sales taxes and premium 
taxes except where the premium or sales tax incurred on the purchase of assets or services is not 
recoverable from the taxation authority, in which case, the sales tax is recognised as a part of the 
cost of acquisition of the asset or as a part of the expense item, as applicable.

Outstanding net amounts of sales or premium tax recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation 
authority are included as a part of receivables or payables in the statement of financial position.

3.24.4  WithholdinG tax on dividends

withholding tax that arises from the distribution of dividends by the group is recognised at the 
same time as the liability to pay the related dividend is recognised.

3.24.5  eConomiC seRviCe ChaRGe (esC)

as per the provisions of the economic service charge act no. 13 of 2006, esc is payable 
on the liable turnover at specified rates. esc is deductible from the income tax liability.  
any unclaimed receivable esc amount can be carried forward and set-off against the income 
tax payable as per the relevant provisions in the act.

however, with the amendment made by inland revenue, if the group in relation to any 
relevant quarter commencing on or after 1st april 2012, where such part of the taxable income 
as consists of profits from any trade, business, profession or vocation assessed under the 
provisions of inland revenue act no. 10 of 2006 for the year of assessment 2011/12, is more 
than zero, the relevant turnover for such quarter shall be deemed to be zero.

3.25  seGmental RePoRtinG

an operating segment is a component of the group that engages in business activities from 
which it may earn revenues and incur expenses, including revenues and expenses that relate 
to transactions with any of the group’s other components. all operating results are reviewed 
regularly by the chief executive Officer (ceO) to make decisions regarding resources to 
be allocated to the segments and to assess its performance, and for which discrete finance 
information is available.



SRI LANKA INSURANCE CoRpoRAtIoN Ltd. – ANNUAL REpoRt 2014

164

segment results that are reported to the ceO include items directly attributable to a segment 
as well as those that can be allocated on a reasonable basis. accordingly, segmental information 
of the group reflects non-life insurance and life insurance. inter-segment transfers are based 
on fair market prices.

3.26  eaRninGs PeR shaRe (ePs)

The group presents basic and diluted earnings per share data for its ordinary shareholders. basic 
eps is calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the group 
by the weighted average number of ordinary shares determined in accordance with lKas 33.

3.27  PRoPosed dividends

dividend proposed by the board of directors after the reporting date is not recognised as a 
liability and is only disclosed as a note to the financial statements. provision for dividend is 
recognised only at the time the dividend proposed by the board of directors is approved by the 
shareholders at the annual general meeting.

3.28  CaPital Commitments and ContinGenCies

all discernible risks are accounted for in determining the amount of all known liabilities. 
contingent liabilities are possible obligations whose existence will be confirmed only by 
uncertain future events or present obligations where the transfer of economic benefit is not 
probable or cannot be reliably measured. contingent liabilities are not recognised in the 
statement of financial position but are disclosed unless they are remote.

3.29  events oCCuRRinG aFteR the RePoRtinG date

all material post-statement of financial position events have been considered and where 
appropriate, adjustments or disclosures have been made in the respective notes to the  
financial statements.
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3.30  Cash FloW statement

The cash flow statement has been prepared using the indirect method of preparing cash flows 
in accordance with the sri lanka accounting standard (lKas) 7 – ‘cash flow statements’.

cash and cash equivalents comprise short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily 
convertible to known amounts of cash and are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in 
value. The cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, balances with banks and short-term 
deposits with banks.

for cash flow purposes, cash and cash equivalents are presented net of bank overdrafts. 

4.  neW and amended standaRds and inteRPRetations adoPted   
 duRinG the yeaR

for the first time, the group applied, the following new sri lanka accounting standards 
and amendments which became applicable to the financial statements with effect from  
1st January 2014.

SLFRS 10 – Consolidated Financial Statements

with the adoption of slfrs 10, the group changed its accounting policy for determining 
whether an investee is a subsidiary based on the definition of control. On adoption of this 
standard, group reassessed the control conclusion for its investees. 

SLFRS 12 – Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities

slfrs 12 sets out the requirements for disclosures relating to an entity’s interests in subsidiaries, 
joint arrangements, associates and structured entities. 

SLFRS 13 – Fair Value Measurement

slfrs 13 establishes a single framework for measuring fair value and making disclosures about 
fair value measurements, when such measurements are required or permitted by other lKass.
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4.1  standaRds issued but not yet eFFeCtive

The institute of chartered accountants of sri lanka has issued the following new sri lanka 
accounting standards which will become applicable for financial periods beginning on or 
after 1st January 2015. accordingly, the group has not applied the following new standards in 
preparing these consolidated financial statements.

SLFRS 9 – Financial Instruments

slfrs 9 – ‘financial instruments’ replaces the existing guidance in lKas 39 – financial 
instruments: recognition and measurement. slfrs 9 includes revised guidance on the 
classification and measurement of financial instruments including a new expected credit loss 
model for calculating impairment on financial assets. slfrs 9 is effective for annual period 
beginning on or after 1st January 2018 with early adoption permitted. The group is assessing 
the potential impact on its consolidated financial statements resulting from slfrs 9. 

SLFRS 15 – Revenue from Contracts with Customers

slfrs 15 – ‘revenue from contracts with customers’ establishes a comprehensive framework 
for determining whether, how much and when revenue is recognised. it replaces existing 
revenue recognition guidance lKas 18 - ‘revenue’, lKas 11 - ‘construction contracts’.  
slfrs - 15 is effective for annual reporting period beginning on or after 1st January 2018, with 
early adoption permitted. 
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as at 31st december 2014 2013

group/company note carrying 
Value

 Rs. ’000 

fair
Value

 Rs. ’000

carrying
value

rs. ’000 

fair 
value

 rs. ’000

5.  FinanCial investments 
held-to-maturity (htm)  
   financial assets 5.1 26,076,867 29,832,970 19,324,293 20,708,066

loans and receivables (l & r) 5.2 31,740,973 31,738,711 30,048,030 30,043,868

available-for-sale (afs)  
   financial assets 5.3 53,268,425 53,268,425 39,442,223 39,442,223

fair-value-Through-profit-or-loss (fvtpl) 
   financial assets 5.4 5,538,347 5,538,347 5,956,726 5,956,726

total financial investments 116,624,612 120,378,453 94,771,272 96,150,883

5.1  held-to-matuRit y (htm) 
   FinanCial assets 
treasury bills 487,576 490,450 – –

treasury bonds 25,589,291 29,342,520 19,324,293 20,708,066

26,076,867 29,832,970 19,324,293 20,708,066

5.2  loans & ReCeivables (l & R)
unlisted debentures 5.2.1 1,367,206 1,364,944 1,890,781 1,886,620

term deposits 27,945,441 27,945,441 22,864,910 22,864,910

development bonds 2,428,326 2,428,326 5,254,857 5,254,857

trust certificates – – 37,481 37,481

31,740,973 31,738,711 30,048,030 30,043,868
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as at 31st december 2014 2013

maturity
date

face
Value

Rs. ’000

carrying
Value

Rs. ’000

fair
Value

Rs. ’000

maturity
date

face
value

rs. ’000

carrying
value

rs. ’000

fair
value

rs. ’000

5.2.1  unlisted debentuRes
commercial bank of ceylon plc 15.05.2016 125,000 141,608 134,834 15.05.2016 125,000 141,608 131,784

people’s leasing & finance plc – – – – 26.04.2014 500,000 515,375 515,375

lankem ceylon plc 08.04.2016 200,000 200,041 200,041 08.04.2016 200,000 200,064 200,064

singer (sri lanka) plc 30.04.2015 250,000 254,040 254,040 30.04.2015 250,000 255,327 255,327

central finance plc 24.05.2015 500,000 521,138 521,148 24.05.2015 500,000 528,015 528,015

siyapatha finance ltd.  
   (formerly, sampath leasing &  
   factoring ltd.) 17.12.2015 50,000 50,336 54,848 17.12.2015 50,000 50,336 55,999

national development bank plc 30.06.2016 200,000 200,043 200,043 30.06.2016 200,000 200,056 200,056

1,325,000 1,367,206 1,364,944 1,825,000 1,890,781 1,886,620

as at 31st december 2014 2013

note carrying 
Value

 Rs. ’000 

fair
Value

 Rs. ’000

carrying
value

rs. ’000 

fair 
value

 rs. ’000

5.3  available-FoR-sale (aFs) 
   FinanCial assets
listed shares 5.3.1 35,711,339 35,711,339 24,798,653 24,798,653

unlisted shares 5.3.2 143,257 143,257 124,480 124,480

unit trusts 5.3.3 1,146,236 1,146,236 1,426,408 1,426,408

listed debentures 5.3.4 11,880,406 11,880,406 7,190,339 7,190,339

treasury bills – – 483,700 483,700

treasury bonds 4,387,187 4,387,187 5,418,642 5,418,642

53,268,425 53,268,425 39,442,223 39,442,223
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as at 31st december 2014 2013

no. of
shares

carrying 
Value

Rs. ’000

fair
Value

Rs. ’000

no. of
shares

carrying
value

rs. ’000

fair
value

rs. ’000

5.3.1  listed shaRes
Banks, finance and insurance

commercial bank of ceylon plc 75,978,852 12,992,383 12,992,383 74,802,912 9,058,633 9,058,633

dfcc bank plc 26,509,832 5,805,653 5,805,653 26,509,832 3,433,023 3,433,023

seylan bank plc 26,396,608 2,507,678 2,507,678 26,396,608 1,713,140 1,713,140

hatton national bank plc 47,635,487 9,288,920 9,288,920 47,635,487 7,002,417 7,002,417

national development bank plc 17,193,914 4,298,479 4,298,479 17,193,914 2,759,623 2,759,623

sector total 34,893,113 34,893,113 23,966,836 23,966,836

construction and engineering

colombo dock yard plc 3,592,998 693,449 693,449 3,592,998 682,670 682,670

sector total 693,449 693,449 682,670 682,670

telecommunications

sri lanka telecom plc 2,094,476 105,771 105,771 3,032,200 112,191 112,191

sector total 105,771 105,771 112,191 112,191

manufacturing

blue diamonds Jewellery  
  worldwide plc 10,559,100 19,006 19,006 10,559,100 36,957 36,957

sector total 10,559,100 19,006 19,006 36,957 36,957

total investment in listed shares 35,711,339 35,711,339 24,798,653 24,798,653
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as at 31st december 2014 2013

no. of
shares

carrying 
Value

Rs. ’000

fair
Value

Rs. ’000

no. of
shares

carrying
value

rs. ’000

fair
value

rs. ’000

5.3.2  unlisted shaRes
associated newspapers of  
   ceylon ltd. 61,206 5,671 5,671 61,206 4,784 4,784

fitch ratings lanka ltd. 62,500 1,368 1,368 62,500 963 963

ceybank asset management ltd. 759,998 99,925 99,925 759,998 83,227 83,227

texpro industries ltd. 2,250,000 13,793 13,793 2,250,000 13,005 13,005

national asset management ltd. 1 – – 1 – –

vinc advertising (pvt) ltd. – – – 250,000 – –

ceylon asset management  
   company ltd. 1,250,000 22,500 22,500 1,250,000 22,500 22,500

total investment in unlisted shares 143,257 143,257 124,480 124,480

as at 31st december 2014 2013

no. of
shares

carrying 
Value

Rs. ’000

fair
Value

Rs. ’000

no. of
shares

carrying
value

rs. ’000

fair
value

rs. ’000

5.3.3  unit tRust
ceybank unit trust 17,000,000 549,100 549,100 33,628,291 867,946 867,946

ceylon income fund 25,000,000 351,250 351,250 27,004,714 356,462 356,462

comtrust equity fund 24,836,957 245,886 245,886 12,016,630 202,000 202,000

1,146,236 1,146,236 1,426,408 1,426,408
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as at 31st december 2014 2013

maturity
date

face
Value

Rs. ’000

carrying
Value

Rs. ’000

fair
Value

Rs. ’000

maturity
date

face
value

rs. ’000

carrying
value

rs. ’000

fair
value

rs. ’000

5.3.4  listed debentuRes 
Banks, finance and insurance
bank of ceylon 29.11.2017 500,000 507,014 507,014 29.11.2017 500,000 507,014 507,014

bank of ceylon 24.10.2018 287,970 294,944 294,944 24.10.2018 287,970 294,944 294,944

bank of ceylon 21.09.2019 500,000 510,768 510,768 – – – –

bank of ceylon 24.10.2023 67,050 80,381 80,381 24.10.2023 67,050 68,768 68,768

hatton national bank plc 12.06.2018 316,717 341,256 341,256 12.06.2018 316,717 341,256 341,256

hatton national bank plc 14.12.2019 500,000 501,805 501,805 – – – –

hatton national bank plc 31.03.2021 478,459 249,130 249,130 31.03.2021 478,459 224,437 224,437

hatton national bank plc 30.08.2023 126,888 92,435 92,435 30.08.2023 126,888 90,506 90,506

hatton national bank plc 31.03.2024 1,362,794 508,121 508,121 31.03.2024 1,362,794 456,742 456,742

commercial bank of ceylon plc 18.12.2016 250,000 285,032 285,032 18.12.2016 250,000 285,032 285,032

national development bank plc 19.12.2023 750,000 984,600 984,600 19.12.2013 750,000 753,713 753,713

seylan bank plc 21.02.2018 449,520 473,905 473,905 21.02.2018 449,520 473,905 473,905

sampath bank plc 22.12.2019 500,000 501,060 501,060 – – – –

sampath bank plc 11.10.2017 36,600 45,201 45,201 11.10.2017 36,600 45,201 45,201

sampath bank plc 04.12.2018 340,190 362,484 362,484 04.12.2018 340,190 343,583 343,583

sampath bank plc 14.12.2019 500,000 501,886 501,886 – – – –

nations trust bank plc 04.08.2016 200,000 209,041 209,041 04.08.2016 200,000 209,041 209,041

dfcc bank plc 18.08.2017 64,660 66,656 66,656 – – – –

dfcc vardhana bank plc 07.09.2016 148,148 148,181 148,181 07.09.2016 148,148 148,190 148,190

pan asia banking corporation plc 18.03.2017 200,000 205,647 205,647 18.03.2017 200,000 207,784 207,784

The housing development finance  
   corporation bank of sri lanka 23.10.2018 100,000 122,470 122,470 23.10.2018 100,000 103,970 103,970

merchant bank of sri lanka plc – – – – 15.11.2014 140,000 148,245 148,245

merchant bank of sri lanka plc 11.12.2019 113,520 114,892 114,892 – – – –

people’s leasing & finance plc 23.09.2017 750,000 767,800 767,800 – – – –

people’s leasing & finance plc 26.03.2018 105,900 135,863 135,863 26.03.2018 105,900 123,960 123,960

people’s leasing & finance plc 23.09.2018 750,000 769,580 769,580 – – – –

lb finance plc 28.11.2018 220,670 236,800 236,800 28.11.2018 220,670 223,563 223,563

lanka OriX leasing company plc 30.06.2015 100,000 105,846 105,846 30.06.2015 100,000 105,846 105,846

senkadagala finance plc 10.12.2018 100,000 100,853 100,853 10.12.2018 100,000 100,863 100,863

citizens development business  
   finance plc 19.12.2018 37,350 37,556 37,556 19.12.2018 37,350 37,556 37,556

softlogic finance plc* 29.08.2019 12,600 13,061 13,061 – – – –

sector total 9,869,036 9,274,268 9,274,268 6,318,256 5,294,118 5,294,118

*guaranteed by guaranco ltd. which is ultimately owned by multilateral g10 governments.
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as at 31st december 2014 2013

maturity
date

face
Value

Rs. ’000

carrying
Value

Rs. ’000

fair
Value

Rs. ’000

maturity
date

face
value

rs. ’000

carrying
value

rs. ’000

fair
value

rs. ’000

diversified holdings

hayleys plc 09.07.2016 80,800 83,702 83,702 09.07.2016 80,800 80,800 80,800

hemas holdings plc 29.04.2019 119,970 125,900 125,900 – – –

richard pieris and company plc 16.05.2017 29,580 30,739 30,739 – – –

sector total 230,350 240,341 240,341 80,800 80,800 80,800

heath care

nawaloka hospitals plc 30.09.2021 150,000 155,425 155,425 30.09.2021 150,000 155,484 155,484

sector total 150,000 155,425 155,425 150,000 155,484 155,484

trading

abans plc 20.12.2018 400,000 481,798 481,798 20.12.2018 400,000 401,907 401,907

singer sri lanka plc 22.12.2017 68,340 68,479 68,479 – – –

sector total 468,340 550,277 550,277 400,000 401,907 401,907

Beverages, food and tobacco

The lion brewery ceylon plc 17.06.2016 105,600 109,193 109,193 17.06.2016 105,600 109,193 109,193

The lion brewery ceylon plc 17.06.2017 105,600 109,260 109,260 17.06.2017 105,600 109,260 109,260

The lion brewery ceylon plc 17.06.2018 140,800 145,769 145,769 17.06.2018 140,800 145,769 145,769

The lion brewery ceylon plc 08.12.2019 400,000 402,065 402,065 – – –

sector total 752,000 766,287 766,287 352,000 364,222 364,222

land and property

urban development authority* 05.10.2015 871,480 893,808 893,808 05.10.2015 871,480 893,808 893,808

sector total 871,480 893,808 893,808 871,480 893,808 893,808

total investment in  
   listed debentures 12,341,206 11,880,406 11,880,406 8,172,536 7,190,339 7,190,339

* guaranteed by government treasury
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as at 31st december 2014 2013

note carrying 
Value

 Rs. ’000 

fair
Value

 Rs. ’000

carrying
value

rs. ’000 

fair 
value

 rs. ’000

5.4  FaiR-value-thRouGh-PRoFit-    
   oR-loss (FvtPl) FinanCial asset
listed shares 5.4.1 5,538,347 5,538,347 5,956,726 5,956,726

fair-value-Through-profit-or-loss investments and available-for-sale investments have been measured at fair 
value. held-to-maturity investments and loans and receivables investments are measured at amortised cost.

as at 31st december 2014 2013

no. of 
shares

carrying 
Value

Rs. ’000

fair 
Value

Rs. ’000

no. of 
shares

carrying 
value

rs. ’000

fair 
value

rs. ’000

5.4.1  listed shaRes 
Banks, finance and insurance
sampath bank plc 287,487 67,559 67,559 387,487 66,609 66,609

seylan bank plc (nv) – – – 359,000 11,057 11,057

pan asia banking corporation plc – – – 1,394,666 21,617 21,617

lb finance plc 1,842,900 305,921 305,921 1,842,900 188,160 188,160

people’s merchant finance plc 1,500 38 38 1,500 17 17

nations lanka finance plc 979,500 4,800 4,800 979,500 6,954 6,954

union bank of colombo plc – – – 11,100 184 184

sector total 378,318 378,318 294,599 294,599

Beverages, food and tobacco
raigam wayamba salterns plc – – – 1,700,000 3,740 3,740

sector total – – 3,740 3,740

diversified holdings
hemas holdings plc – – – 5,160,700 175,464 175,464

John Keells holdings plc 611,176 152,794 152,794 611,176 137,515 137,515

expo lanka holdings plc – – – 1,071,600 8,037 8,037

richard pieris & company plc 2,430,000 20,655 20,655 2,430,000 15,309 15,309

vallibel One plc 1,121,800 26,923 26,923 1,121,800 18,398 18,398

softlogic holdings plc – – – 15,812,400 132,824 132,824

The colombo fort land & building plc – – – 3,020,600 85,181 85,181

sector total 200,372 200,372 572,727 572,727
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as at 31st december 2014 2013

no. of 
shares

carrying 
Value

Rs. ’000

fair 
Value

Rs. ’000

no. of 
shares

carrying 
value

rs. ’000

fair 
value

rs. ’000

footwear and textiles
hayleys mgt Knitting mills plc – – – 78,800 875 875

sector total – – – 875 875

hotels and travels
aitken spence hotel holdings plc 5,518,727 435,979 435,979 7,268,727 543,701 543,701

asian hotels & properties plc 10,055,900 688,829 688,829 10,055,900 653,634 653,634

John Keells hotels plc 71,622,800 1,231,912 1,231,912 72,847,800 910,598 910,598

anilana hotels & properties plc 2,500,000 20,000 20,000 2,500,000 19,000 19,000

sector total 2,376,720 2,376,720 2,126,932 2,126,932

manufacturing

sierra cables plc – – – 800 1 1

lanka cement plc 509,700 3,415 3,415 509,700 3,364 3,364

acl cables plc 558,557 42,618 42,618 2,100,200 136,513 136,513

tokyo cement company (lanka) plc – – – 3,306,572 94,237 94,237

tokyo cement company (lanka) plc (nv) – – – 3,207,320 75,372 75,372

royal ceramics plc 4,083,186 477,733 477,733 4,913,279 422,542 422,542

lanka walltiles plc 807,600 79,064 79,064 807,600 43,287 43,287

samson international plc – – – 37 3 3

sector total 602,830 602,830 775,321 775,321

investment trusts
renuka holdings plc 1,703,308 53,484 53,484 2,122,698 64,955 64,955

sector total 53,484 53,484 64,955 64,955

motors
united motors lanka plc – – – 24,200 2,807 2,807

cm holdings plc 392,076 50,578 50,578 571,428 48,000 48,000

diesel & motor engineering plc – – – 315,466 151,739 151,739

sector total 50,578 50,578 202,546 202,546

trading
singer sri lanka plc 87,500 10,316 10,316 177,500 15,798 15,798

brown & company plc 906,990 97,048 97,048 906,990 77,094 77,094

tess agro plc 33,993,806 54,390 54,390 35,173,600 45,726 45,726

sector total 161,754 161,754 138,617 138,617
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as at 31st december 2014 2013

no. of 
shares

carrying 
Value

Rs. ’000

fair 
Value

Rs. ’000

no. of 
shares

carrying 
value

rs. ’000

fair 
value

rs. ’000

telecommunications
dialog axiata plc – – – 12,572,823 113,155 113,155

sri lanka telecom plc 17,713,735 894,544 894,544 17,713,735 655,408 655,408

sector total 894,544 894,544 768,564 768,564

plantations
talawakelle tea estates plc – – – 105,600 2,534 2,534

sector total – – 2,534 2,534

power and energy
lanka iOc plc – – – 271,362 8,955 8,955

laugfs gas plc 7,800 316 316 7,800 222 222

sector total 316 316 9,176 9,176

information technology
pc house plc 876,700 263 263 876,700 526 526

sector total 263 263 526 526

chemicals and pharmaceuticals
lankem ceylon plc 313,500 34,485 34,485 516,500 64,046 64,046

cic holdings plc – – – 3,848,894 184,747 184,747

sector total 34,485 34,485 248,793 248,793

land and property
Overseas reality plc 3,472,300 91,321 91,321 3,472,300 64,238 64,238

sector total 91,321 91,321 64,238 64,238

construction and engineering
colombo dockyard plc 3,592,548 693,362 693,362 3,592,548 682,584 682,584

sector total 693,362 693,362 682,584 682,584

total investment in listed shares 5,538,347 5,538,347 5,956,726 5,956,726
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5.5  movement oF CaRRyinG values in FinanCial investments

 available-
for-sale 

financial assets

 rs. ’000 

  fair-value- 
Through-

profit-or-loss 
financial assets  

 rs. ’000 

 held-to-
maturity

financial assets

rs. ’000 

 loans and
 receivables

rs. ’000 

 total 
 

rs. ’000 

as at 1st January 2013 38,520,336 10,953,885 15,372,693 23,938,051 88,784,965

purchases 4,313,538 96,276 9,601,236 47,403,683 61,414,733

maturities (6,298,703) (6,125,000) (42,298,375) (54,722,076)

disposals – (4,655,840) – – (4,655,840)

net fair value gain/(loss)  
   recorded in Other  
   comprehensive income 2,831,003 – – – 2,831,003

realised capital gain/(loss) – – – – –

realised/unrealised capital  
   gain/(loss) – (437,595) – – (437,595)

interest amortisation 163,152 – 431,165 (3,385) 590,930

foreign currency  
   translation adjustments – – – (14,723) (14,723)

interest/coupon receipts (87,103) – 44,199 1,022,779 979,875

As at 31st december 2013 39,442,223 5,956,726 19,324,293 30,048,030 94,771,272
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 available-
for-sale 

financial assets

 rs. ’000 

  fair-value- 
Through-

profit-or-loss 
financial assets  

 rs. ’000 

 held-to-
maturity

financial assets

rs. ’000 

 loans and
 receivables

rs. ’000 

 total 
 

rs. ’000 

As at 1st January 2014 39,442,223 5,956,726 19,324,293 30,048,030 94,771,272

purchases 4,557,040 – 6,855,132 47,698,666 59,110,838

maturities (1,840,000) – (900,001) (45,292,297) (48,032,298)

disposals (824,368) (1,842,007) – – (2,666,375)

fair value gain recorded in  
   Other comprehensive income 11,160,541 – – – 11,160,541

realised capital gain/(loss) 407,842 – – – 407,842

realised/unrealised capital  
   gain/(loss) – 1,423,628 – – 1,423,628

interest amortisation 167,207 – 472,836 (13,481) 626,562

foreign currency  
   translation adjustments – – – (170,776) (170,776)

interest income 1,536,342 – 2,405,388 3,141,767 7,083,497

interest/coupon receipts (1,338,401) – (2,080,781) (3,670,933) (7,090,115)

As at 31st december 2014 53,268,426 5,538,347 26,076,867 31,740,973 116,624,612

note 2014
 Rs. ’000 

2013
 rs. ’000 

6.  investment in subsidiaRies 
At cost
listed subsidiaries 6.1  2,925,567  2,925,567 

unlisted subsidiaries 6.2  18,160,338  14,660,337 

 21,085,905  17,585,904 
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as at 31st december 2014 2013

note no. of
shares 

holding
%

cost
 Rs. ’000 

fair Value
Rs. ’000

no. of
shares

holding
%

cost
 rs. ’000

fair value
rs. ’000

6.1  listed subsidiaRies

The lanka hospitals  
   corporation plc  122,177,993 54.61  2,925,567 5,864,544  122,177,993  54.61  2,925,567 4,948,209

 2,925,567 5,864,544  2,925,567 4,948,209

as at 31st december 2014 2013

note no. of
shares 

holding
%

cost
 Rs. ’000 

no. of
shares

holding
%

cost
 rs. ’000

6.2  unlisted subsidiaRies
litro gas lanka ltd. 35,976,853 99.94  3,510,063 35,976,853 99.94  3,510,063 

litro gas terminal lanka (pvt) ltd. 158,710,945  100.00  5,280,188 158,710,945 100.00  5,280,188 

management services rakshana (pvt) ltd. 6.2.1  5  100.00 –  5  100.00  –   

canwill holdings (pvt) ltd. 6.2.2 850,000,000 45.95  8,500,000 500,000,000 41.67  5,000,000 

canowin hotels and spas (pvt) ltd. 87,008,686  100.00  870,087 87,008,686  100.00 870,087

18,160,338 14,660,337

unlisted shares have been tested for impairment and these were no impairment required for the year.
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6.2.1   management services rakshana (pvt) ltd. is a wholly-owned subsidiary of sri lanka insurance 
corporation ltd., with a stated capital of rs. 50/-.

6.2.2   during the year canwill holdings (pvt) ltd. has made a share issue of 650,000,000. The company has 
subscribe for 350,000,000 shares and litro gas lanka ltd. has subscribed for the balance 300,000,000 shares.

as at 31st december 2014 2013

note no. of
shares

 

effective
holding   

% 

cost

 Rs. ’000 

no. of
shares

effective
holding   

%

cost

 rs. ’000

6.3  investment in sub-subsidiaRies
sinolanka hotels & spa (pvt) ltd. 6.3.1 1,450,000,000 73.0 14,500,000 1,200,000,000 58.3 12,000,000

lanka hospitals diagnostics (pvt) ltd. 6.3.2 3,500,020 54.6 350,000 5,000,002 54.6 50,000,020

helanco hotels & spa (pvt) ltd. 6.3.3 400,000,000 73.0 4,000,000 – – –

368,500,020 62,000,020

6.3.1   during the year sinolanka hotels & spa (pvt) ltd. has made a share issue of 250,000,000 and canwill 
holdings (pvt) ltd. has fully subscribed the share issue.

6.3.2   during the year lanka hospitals diagnostics (pvt) ltd. has made a share issue of 30,000,000 and  
The lanka hospitals corporation plc has fully subscribed the share issue.

6.3 .3   during the year helanco hotels & spa (pvt) ltd. has made a share issue of 400,000,000 and  
canwill holdings (pvt) ltd. has subscribed the entire share issue.

as at 31st december 2014
Rs. ’000

2013
rs. ’000

7.   PRoPeRt y, Plant & equiPment
7 .1   Consolidated
carrying amount 24,525,873 23,396,579

work-in-progress  (note 7.1.1) 11,057,326 7,416,316

35,583,199 30,812,895
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land

rs. ’000

 buildings 
on freehold 

land 

rs. ’000

 building on 
leasehold 

land 

rs. ’000

 equipment  

rs. ’000

 furniture & 
fittings  

rs. ’000

 motor 
vehicle  

rs. ’000

 electrical 
generators  

rs. ’000

 fixtures & 
fittings  

rs. ’000

 air-
condition 

plant 

rs. ’000

plant & 
machinery

rs. ’000

storage 
tanks, pipe  

lines and 
pumping 

stations 
rs. ’000

lpg 
cylinders

rs. ’000

 Others  

rs. ’000

 total  

rs. ’000

cost/Valuation
freehold
balance as at 1st January 2014 5,297,628 3,107,030 3,501,748 3,083,148 471,694 791,761 81,315 258,832 201,657 1,195,112 5,251,237 4,003,800 143,479 27,388,441
additions during the year – 39,811 81,482 547,134 99,929 149,718 22,540 52 1,863 59,441 36,619 924,972 57,553 2,021,114
revaluation 427,524 (40,511) (1,646) – – – 49,000 – – – – – – 434,367
disposals (13,838) (49,520) – (87,471) (32) (74,687) – – – – – (2,929) (190) (228,667)
Balance as at 31st december 2014 5,711,314 3,056,810 3,581,584 3,542,811 571,591 866,792 152,855 258,884 203,520 1,229,764 5,283,131 4,925,733 200,842 29,585,631

Accumulated depreciation
freehold
balance as at 1st January 2014 – 149,232 21,141 1,655,904 211,117 236,535 15,931 46,653 19,674 100,239 554,407 897,008 84,021 3,991,862
depreciation charge for the year – 147,705 98,831 212,417 40,791 199,497 9,119 37,377 20,208 58,019 212,391 438,712 19,650 1,494,717
revaluation – (276,082) (4,376) – – – – – – – – – – (280,458)
disposal – (1,649) – (79,286) (32) (35,168) – – – – – (1,166) (12) (117,313)
Balance as at 31st december 2014 – 19,206 115,596 1,789,035 251,876 400,864 25,050 84,030 39,882 133,758 762,248 1,334,554 103,659 5,059,758

net Book Value
as at 31st december 2013 5,297,628 2,957,798 3,480,607 1,427,244 260,577 555,226 65,384 212,179 181,983 1,094,873 4,696,830 3,106,792 59,458 23,396,579
As at 31st december 2014 5,711,314 3,037,604 3,465,988 1,753,776 319,715 465,928 127,805 174,854 163,638 1,096,006 4,520,883 3,591,179 97,183 24,525,873

the lanka hosPitals CoRPoRation PlC
The freehold lands of The lanka hospitals corporation plc were revalued as at 31st december 2014 by an 
independent professionally qualified valuer and a revaluation surplus of rs. 42,226,851/- was incorporated in 
the financial statements as at 31st december 2014. The revaluation was based on the market approach basis 
(direct comparison method) and cost approach basis. The surplus arising from the revaluation was transferred 
to the ‘revaluation reserve’ in shareholders equity and the value of the freehold land of the company was 
reflected in the financial statements at the revalued amount.

a revaluation of the buildings was performed by an independent professionally qualified valuer as at  
31st december 2013. The revaluation was based on the market approach basis (direct comparison method) 
and cost approach basis. The revaluation surplus net of applicable deferred income taxes was credited to other 
comprehensive income and is shown in ‘revaluation reserve’ in shareholders equity.
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land

rs. ’000

 buildings 
on freehold 

land 

rs. ’000

 building on 
leasehold 

land 

rs. ’000

 equipment  

rs. ’000

 furniture & 
fittings  

rs. ’000

 motor 
vehicle  

rs. ’000

 electrical 
generators  

rs. ’000

 fixtures & 
fittings  

rs. ’000

 air-
condition 

plant 

rs. ’000

plant & 
machinery

rs. ’000

storage 
tanks, pipe  

lines and 
pumping 

stations 
rs. ’000

lpg 
cylinders

rs. ’000

 Others  

rs. ’000

 total  

rs. ’000

cost/Valuation
freehold
balance as at 1st January 2014 5,297,628 3,107,030 3,501,748 3,083,148 471,694 791,761 81,315 258,832 201,657 1,195,112 5,251,237 4,003,800 143,479 27,388,441
additions during the year – 39,811 81,482 547,134 99,929 149,718 22,540 52 1,863 59,441 36,619 924,972 57,553 2,021,114
revaluation 427,524 (40,511) (1,646) – – – 49,000 – – – – – – 434,367
disposals (13,838) (49,520) – (87,471) (32) (74,687) – – – – – (2,929) (190) (228,667)
Balance as at 31st december 2014 5,711,314 3,056,810 3,581,584 3,542,811 571,591 866,792 152,855 258,884 203,520 1,229,764 5,283,131 4,925,733 200,842 29,585,631

Accumulated depreciation
freehold
balance as at 1st January 2014 – 149,232 21,141 1,655,904 211,117 236,535 15,931 46,653 19,674 100,239 554,407 897,008 84,021 3,991,862
depreciation charge for the year – 147,705 98,831 212,417 40,791 199,497 9,119 37,377 20,208 58,019 212,391 438,712 19,650 1,494,717
revaluation – (276,082) (4,376) – – – – – – – – – – (280,458)
disposal – (1,649) – (79,286) (32) (35,168) – – – – – (1,166) (12) (117,313)
Balance as at 31st december 2014 – 19,206 115,596 1,789,035 251,876 400,864 25,050 84,030 39,882 133,758 762,248 1,334,554 103,659 5,059,758

net Book Value
as at 31st december 2013 5,297,628 2,957,798 3,480,607 1,427,244 260,577 555,226 65,384 212,179 181,983 1,094,873 4,696,830 3,106,792 59,458 23,396,579
As at 31st december 2014 5,711,314 3,037,604 3,465,988 1,753,776 319,715 465,928 127,805 174,854 163,638 1,096,006 4,520,883 3,591,179 97,183 24,525,873
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if The lanka hospitals corporation plc has included its revalued assets at cost less depreciation in its 
financial statements, the carrying value would be as follows:

7.1.a  FReehold lands

location extent 
(perches)

cost of land
rs. ’000

narahenpita
hathbodiya, Kirula road, narahenpita, colombo 05 10.25 7,461

hathbodiya, Kirula road, narahenpita, colombo 05 10 5,257

7.1.b. buildinGs on leasehold land

cost

rs. ’000

accumulated 
depreciation

rs. ’000

net book 
value 

rs. ’000

building on leasehold land 1,489,295 383,474 1,105,821

7.1.C  dePReCiation
sRi lanka insuRanCe CoRPoRation ltd.
property, plant & equipment includes fully-depreciated assets having a gross carrying amount of  
rs. 286.5 million (2013 - rs. 286.5 million).

the lanka hosPitals CoRPoRation PlC
depreciation expense of rs. 90,292,205/- (2013 - rs. 92,537,707/-) has been charged under ‘cost of service’ 
and rs. 151,596,755/- (2013 - 127,957,387/-) under depreciation on property, plant & equipment in the 
statement of comprehensive income.

7.1.d  leasehold land
sinolanka hotels & sPa (Pvt) ltd.
sinolanka hotels & spa (pvt) ltd. has entered into an agreement dated 16th July 2012 with the urban 
development authority (hereafter referred to as the ‘lessor’), whereby lessor allocated to the company (hereafter 
referred to as the ‘lessee’) a block of land bearing assessment no. 116, galle road, colombo 03 comprising in 
extent 0.6057 hectares together with the partly constructed building thereon, for an annual nominal lease of  
rs. 10,000/- for a term of period of 99 years for the purpose of constructing and operating a luxury hotel complex. 
The agreement further provided that the settlement of nominal annual lease for the period of 99 years in one 
lump sum of rs. 990,000/- which was made during the period under review. 

upon the termination of the lease by effluxion of time, the lessor may grant to the lessee or its successors 
a renewal of the lease for a further period of 99 years or for a period to be mutually agreed upon by the lessor 
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and lessee. in the event of termination or de-termination of the lease at the expiration of the said term as 
the case may be and on lessee yielding the demised premises with all buildings and with all furniture and 
fixtures and everything standing thereon to the lessor, the lessor shall purchase the building and everything 
standing thereon at the market value prevailing at the time. 

in addition to the aforesaid lease agreement, the government valuation department determined a 
value of rs. 5.0 billion to be paid by the company as full and final  consideration to the secretary to the 
treasury in respect of the said property situated at no. 116, galle road, colombo 03. The government 
valuation department further determined that the value attributable to the land in extent of 0.6057 hectares 
based on a 99 year lease for the purpose of constructing and operating a luxury hotel complex amounted to  
rs. 1.228 billion. The balance value is arranged to the immovable properties constructed on the said lease land. 

7.1.e  FReehold land 
sinolanka hotels & sPa (Pvt) ltd. 
The sinolanka hotels & spa (pvt) ltd. has purchased three blocks of land with buildings attached to land, 
with the intention of demolishing the buildings in 2014 to facilitate the expansion of ballroom, car parking 
facilities, reorganisation of traffic circulation and compliance with the regulatory requirement. The total cost 
of the said land and buildings purchased during the year is rs. 1,139,357,179.30. The cost, of the buildings 
attached to the three blocks of land purchased with the intention of building a car park facilities expansion of 
ballroom and reorganisation of traffic circulation have been allocated to the hotel building under the capital 
work-in-progress since those facilities are not capable of generating independent cash flows from continued 
use. The cost of the freehold land is determined based on the valuation determined by the government 
valuation department which is rs. 7 million per perch. The land extend of three blocks of land are assessment 
no. 112 - 62.77 perches, assessment no. 108 - 15 perches and assessment no. 134 - 20.10 perches. The total 
additions to the freehold land above include the direct cost related to the acquisition.

7.1.1  CaPital WoRk-in-PRoGRess

consolidated company

as at 31st december 2014
 Rs. ’000 

2013
 rs. ’000

2014
Rs. ’000 

2013
 rs. ’000

at the beginning of the year 7,416,316 4,764,889  –    –   

cost incurred during the year 4,854,438 4,216,485  –    –   

Amount capitalised during the year (1,213,428) (1,565,058)  –    –   

at end of the year 11,057,326 7,416,316  –    –   

the capital-work-in-progress consist of the partly completed property at no. 116, galle road,  
colombo 03, hyatt regency colombo hotel which amounts to rs. 10,739,969,000/-.
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7.1.2  assets Revaluation     
sRi lanka insuRanCe CoRPoRation ltd. – ComPany
sri lanka insurance corporation ltd. has revalued its land and buildings as at 31st december 2014 by messrs 
sunil fernando associates (pvt) ltd. chartered valuation surveyor. assets were valued using cost approach 
basis. The surplus arising from the revaluation was transferred to the revaluation reserve. slic value of the 
lands and buildings are stated below:

location extend of the 
land

land

rs. ’000

building

rs. ’000

total

Rs. ’000

carrying 
amount at cost

rs. ’000

land situated at no. 288, union place,  
   colombo 2 a 01 r 00 p 20.35  1,352,625  32,460  1,385,085  5,283 
land & building situated at no. 267,  
   union place, colombo 2 a 0 r 0 p 37.62  263,340  420,889  684,229  6,151
land & building situated at no. 21,  
   vauxhall street, colombo 2 a 02 r 00 p 05.62  1,850,750  1,878,648  3,729,398  106,982 
land & building situated at Thelawala,  
   Katubedda, moratuwa a 02 r 00 p 13  149,850  50,433  200,283  2,487 
land & building situated at lake road,  
   4th lane, anuradhapura a 0 r 0 p 30  6,750  4,623  11,373  311 
land & building situated at main street,  
   2nd lane, anuradhapura a 0 r 0 p 34.9  61,075  8,177  69,252  780 
land & building situated at 571,  
   hospital road, Jaffna a 0 r 1 p 26.38  106,208  22,950  129,158  656
land & building situated at no. 25,  
   Kande veediya, Kandy a 0 r 0 p 16.45  102,812  33,172  135,984  21,961 
land & building situated at no. 20,  
   rajapaksha broadway, negombo a 0 r 0 p 19  47,500  28,155  75,655  2,136 
land & building situated at no. 7,  
   hakmana road, matara a 0 r 0 p 47.89  131,697  26,465  158,162  1,388 
land & building situated at no. 60/1,  
   park road, nuwara eliya a 0 r  02 p 23.01  113,311  4,158  117,469  755 
building situated at no. 16/1,  
   dambulla road, Kurunegala – –  61,689  61,689  3,075 
land & building situated at no. 14a,  
   pulathisigama, hingurakgoda a 0 r 0 p 49.42  3,459  1,183  4,643  320
land & building situated at no. 46,  
   main street, trincomalee a 0 r 01 p 37.65  77,650  10,951  88,601  2,068 
land & building situated at no. 77,  
   ratnapura road, awissawella a 0 r 0 p 30.75  84,562  3,727  88,290  2,201 
land situated at bauddhaloka mawatha,  
   gampaha a 0 r 0 p 24.54  67,485 –  67,485  3,758 
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location extend of the 
land

land

rs. ’000

building

rs. ’000

total

Rs. ’000

carrying 
amount at cost

rs. ’000

land & building situated at no. 14,  
   river side road, Kalutara a 0 r 0 p 61.9  29,402 –  29,402  3,551 
land & building situated at no. 32,  
   negombo road, marawila a 0 r 0 p 10  8,000  3,918  11,918  1,926 
land & building situated at no. 195,  
   bowela village, heerassagala, Kandy a 0 r 01 p 02  10,500  5,352  15,852  3,666 
land & building situated at no. 97,  
  new road, ambalangoda a 0 r 01 p 02  94,500  35,865  130,365  2,341 
land & building situated at no. 211/c,  
   colombo road, pilimatalawa a 0 r 0 p 08  20,000  12,568  32,568  20,799 
land situated at no. 42,   
   Kurunegala road, chilaw a 0 r 0 p 15.63  31,260 –  31,260  2,611 
land & building situated at no. 38,  
   miyugunagama, mahiyanganaya a 0 r 0 p 09.96  4,980  520  5,500  228 
land & building situated at bogahahena,  
   dikwella road, beliatta a 0 r 01 p 27.13  35,243 –  35,243  27,907 
land & building situated at no. 68,  
   ragala road, rikillagaskada a 0 r 0 p 6.832  17,080  5,942  23,022  18,880 
land situated at gorakadeniya,  
   yatinuwara, Kandy a 0 r 02 p 40.17  26,729 –  26,729  15,599 
land & building situated at no. 69,  
   Kothmale road, nawalapitiya a 0 r 0 p 05  11,250  10,269  21,519  14,376
land situated at no. 157, Thangalle road,  
   Thawaluwila, ambalantota

a 0.0817 r 0 p  
  32.33  5,250 –  5,250 –

land & building situated at no. 6,  
   wadugodapitiya veediya, Kandy a 0 r 0 p 08.50  31,875  15,273  47,148  17,350 
land & building situated at no. 389,  
   main street, Kegalle a 0 r 0 p 09.51  20,652 –  20,652  16,119 
land situated at Kachchery Junction,  
   Kandy road, Jaffna a 0 r 0 p 36.67  9,400 –  9,400  275 

 4,775,198  2,677,393  7,452,592  305,949 
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as at 31st december 2014
Rs. ’000

2013
rs. ’000

7 .2   ComPany
carrying amount 8,585,240 8,265,863

8,585,240 8,265,863

land

rs. ’000

 buildings 
on freehold 

land 

rs. ’000

 building on 
leasehold 

land 

rs. ’000

 equipment  

rs. ’000

 furniture & 
fittings  

rs. ’000

 motor 
vehicle  

rs. ’000

 electrical 
generators  

and passenger
lift

rs. ’000

 fixtures & 
fittings  

rs. ’000

 air-
condition 

plant 

rs. ’000

 Others  

rs. ’000

 total  
2014

Rs. ’000

cost/Valuation
balance as at 1st January 2014 4,428,965 2,773,010 10,426 560,464 227,113 358,693 81,314 258,832 201,658 16,317 8,916,792
additions during the year – – – 46,182 23,194 55,416 22,541 52 1,863 3,448 152,696
revaluation 360,072 (46,097) (1,648) – – – 49,000 – – – 361,327
disposals/transfers (13,838) (49,520) – – – (54,400) – – – – (117,758)
Balance as at 31st december 2014 4,775,199 2,677,393 8,778 606,646 250,307 359,709 152,855 258,884 203,521 19,765 9,313,057

Accumulated depreciation
balance as at 1st January 2014 – 138,650 3,012 273,363 67,296 83,634 15,931 46,653 19,673 2,717 650,929
depreciation charge for the year – 139,080 1,364 62,031 18,312 94,324 9,118 37,377 20,208 4,180 385,994
revaluation – (276,082) (4,376) – – – – – – – (280,458)
disposal – (1,648) – – – (27,000) – – – – (28,648)
Balance as at 31st december 2014 – – – 335,394 85,608 150,958 25,049 84,030 39,881 6,897 727,817

carrying Amount
as at 31st december 2013 4,428,965 2,634,360 7,414 287,101 159,817 275,059 65,383 212,179 181,985 13,600 8,265,863
As at 31st december 2014 4,775,199 2,677,393 8,778 271,252 164,699 208,751 127,806 174,854 163,640 12,868 8,585,240

during the year company has acquired property, plant & equipment amounting to rs. 152.696 million 
(2013 – rs. 190.804 million).

property, plant & equipment includes fully-depreciated assets having a gross carrying amount of  
rs. 286.5 million (2013 – rs. 286.5 million).

There were no assets pledged against the borrowings as at the reporting date.

On reassessment of the fair value of the company's assets, it has been identified that there is no permanent 
impairment of property, plant & equipment which requires provision in the financial statements other  
than those already written-off.
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land

rs. ’000

 buildings 
on freehold 

land 

rs. ’000

 building on 
leasehold 

land 

rs. ’000

 equipment  

rs. ’000

 furniture & 
fittings  

rs. ’000

 motor 
vehicle  

rs. ’000

 electrical 
generators  

and passenger
lift

rs. ’000

 fixtures & 
fittings  

rs. ’000

 air-
condition 

plant 

rs. ’000

 Others  

rs. ’000

 total  
2014

Rs. ’000

cost/Valuation
balance as at 1st January 2014 4,428,965 2,773,010 10,426 560,464 227,113 358,693 81,314 258,832 201,658 16,317 8,916,792
additions during the year – – – 46,182 23,194 55,416 22,541 52 1,863 3,448 152,696
revaluation 360,072 (46,097) (1,648) – – – 49,000 – – – 361,327
disposals/transfers (13,838) (49,520) – – – (54,400) – – – – (117,758)
Balance as at 31st december 2014 4,775,199 2,677,393 8,778 606,646 250,307 359,709 152,855 258,884 203,521 19,765 9,313,057

Accumulated depreciation
balance as at 1st January 2014 – 138,650 3,012 273,363 67,296 83,634 15,931 46,653 19,673 2,717 650,929
depreciation charge for the year – 139,080 1,364 62,031 18,312 94,324 9,118 37,377 20,208 4,180 385,994
revaluation – (276,082) (4,376) – – – – – – – (280,458)
disposal – (1,648) – – – (27,000) – – – – (28,648)
Balance as at 31st december 2014 – – – 335,394 85,608 150,958 25,049 84,030 39,881 6,897 727,817

carrying Amount
as at 31st december 2013 4,428,965 2,634,360 7,414 287,101 159,817 275,059 65,383 212,179 181,985 13,600 8,265,863
As at 31st december 2014 4,775,199 2,677,393 8,778 271,252 164,699 208,751 127,806 174,854 163,640 12,868 8,585,240
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consolidated company

as at 31st december 2014
Rs. ’000

2013
rs. ’000

2014
Rs. ’000

2013
rs. ’000

8.  investment PRoPeRt y
balance as at 1st January  1,333,645  1,325,154  549,600  549,600 

transfer from property, plant & equipment  –    8,491  –    –   

additions during the year  2,544  –    –    –   

transferred from leasehold property  21,680  –    –    –   

fair value gains/(loss)  (154,438)  –    (84,369)  –   

balance as at 31st december  1,203,431  1,333,645  465,231  549,600 

investment property held by sri lanka insurance corporation ltd. is located at no. 6, sir baron Jayathilake 
mawatha, colombo 1. extent of land is a0 r0 p38.88 and the extent of the building is 40,000 sq.ft.

The investment property held by canowin hotels and spas (pvt) ltd. (a subsidiary), is situated at southern 
expressway, welipenna was revalued as at 31st december 2014  by an external, independent property valuer, 
messrs sunil fernando associates (pvt) ltd.

consolidated company

as at 31st december 2014
Rs. ’000

2013
rs. ’000

2014
Rs. ’000

2013
rs. ’000

9.  leasehold PRoPeRt y
leasehold right to land (note 9.1)  192,545  21,075  20,806  21,075 

advance lease premium (note 9.2)  164,458  169,398 – –

balance as at 31st december  357,003  190,473  20,806  21,075 

The slic obtained leasehold rights to lands situated in puttalam, ratnapura, paradise island - bentota, nuwara-
eliya, batticaloa for 99 years from government of sri lanka. The leasehold right is amortised over ‘99’ years.
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consolidated company

as at 31st december 2014
Rs. ’000

2013
rs. ’000

2014
Rs. ’000

2013
rs. ’000

9.1  leasehold RiGht to land
Cost 
balance as at 1st January  28,015  28,015  28,015  28,015 

additions during the year  172,318  –    –    –   

balance as at 31st december  200,333  28,015  28,015  28,015 

amortisation
balance as at 1st January  6,940  6,671  6,940  6,671 

amortisation of leasehold land  848  269  269  269 

balance as at 31st december  7,788  6,940  7,209  6,940 

net balance as at 31st december  192,545  21,075  20,806  21,075 

helanCo hotels & sPa (Pvt) ltd. 
helanco hotels & spa (pvt) ltd. entered into an agreement dated 1st september 2014 with the urban 
development authority (‘uda’), whereby uda allocated to the company a block of land situated at lewaya 
road, hambanthota, comprising in extent 3.812 hectares, for a sum of rs. 149,601,875/- for a term period 
of 99 years, for the purpose of constructing and operating a luxury hotel complex. The agreement further 
provided that the settlement of annual lease for the period of 99 years in one lump sum of rs. 4,950,000/- 
which was made during the period under review.

consolidated company

as at 31st december 2014
Rs. ’000

2013
rs. ’000

2014
Rs. ’000

2013
rs. ’000

9.2  advanCed lease PRemium
balance at the beginning of the Period  169,398  155,758  –    –   

premium paid during the period  21,506  18,547  –    –   

amortised during the period  (4,766)  (4,907)  –    –   

transferred to investment property  (21,680) – – –

balance at the end of the Period   164,458  169,398  –    –   
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canowin hotels and spas (pvt) ltd. (a subsidiary), has a leasehold property located on southern expressway, 
welipenna, which has been leased from the road development authority for a period of 99 years starting 
from 19th august 2011.

The lanka hospitals corporation plc a subsidiary of slic, has entered into a 99-year lease agreement  
with the urban development authority from 1999. in terms of this agreement, a further sum of  
rs. 268.92 million is payable by 2026. lease rent on each installment is carried forward and amortised over 
the 99-year period, in accordance with the said agreement.

consolidated company

as at 31st december 2014
Rs. ’000

2013
rs. ’000

2014
Rs. ’000

2013
rs. ’000

10.  intanGible assets
goodwill on acquisition (note 10.1)  2,992,805  2,992,805 – –

computer software (note 10.2)  173,966  126,798  141,336  120,041 

 3,166,771  3,119,603  141,336  120,041 

consolidated company

as at 31st december 2014
Rs. ’000

2013
rs. ’000

2014
Rs. ’000

2013
rs. ’000

10.1  GoodWill on aCquisition 
Cost 
balance as at 1st January  2,992,805  2,992,805  –    –   

balance as at 31st december  2,992,805  2,992,805  –    –   

The aggregated carrying amount of goodwill allocated to each unit is as follows: 

2014
Rs. million

2013
rs. million

2014
Rs. million

2013
rs. million

The lanka hospitals corporation plc  1,577  1,577  –    –   

litro gas lanka ltd.  842  842  –    –   

litro gas terminal lanka (pvt) ltd.  574  574  –    –   

 2,993  2,993  –    –   
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There has been no permanent impairment of intangible assets that requires a provision. methods used in 
estimating recoverable amounts are given below:

The recoverable amount of goodwill related to acquisition of The lanka hospitals corporation plc, litro 
gas lanka ltd. and litro gas terminal lanka (pvt) ltd. was determined based on value in use.

business growth based on historical growth rate and business plan:

current inflation rate as per cbsl
discount rate – average market borrowing rate adjusted for risk premium
margin  – based on current margins and business plan

consolidated company

as at 31st december 2014
Rs. ’000

2013
rs. ’000

2014
Rs. ’000

2013
rs. ’000

10.2  ComPuteR soFt WaRe
Cost 
balance as at 1st January  182,901  171,318  175,444  170,104 

additions  93,981  11,583  64,766  5,340 

balance as at 31st december  276,882  182,901  240,210  175,444 

amortisation
balance as at 1st January  56,104  21,433  55,403  21,382 

amortisation charge  46,812  34,671  43,471  34,021 

balance as at 31st december  102,916  56,104  98,874  55,403 

 173,966  126,798  141,336  120,041 
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consolidated company

as at 31st december 2014
Rs. ’000

2013
rs. ’000

2014
Rs. ’000

2013
rs. ’000

11.  loans to PoliCyholdeRs
Policyholder loans
balance as at 1st January 1,578,196 1,559,451 1,578,196 1,559,451

loans granted during the year 506,943 625,011 506,943 625,011

interest receivable on loans 253,263 221,796 253,263 221,796

loans settled during year (against claims) (828,336) (828,063) (828,336) (828,063)

balance as at 31st december 1,510,067 1,578,196 1,510,067 1,578,196

the surrender value of the loans granted to policyholders as at 31st december 2014 amounted to  
rs. 2,809 million (2013 – rs. 2,955 million).

The company grants policy loans at the market rate and hence initial recognition is at fair value.

if the total receivable of the loan including interest due and accrued exceeds the surrender value the policy 
terminates and becomes void. The company has the first lien on all policies which are subject to policy loans 
and this mitigates the company's credit exposure on policy loans.

The board of directors has assessed the potential impairment loss of loans where total receivable exceeds 
the surrender value and charged (reversed) in the financial statements as at the reporting date in respect of 
loans to life policyholders.

the carrying value of policyholder’s loan approximate to the fair value at the reporting date.

consolidated company

as at 31st december 2014
Rs. ’000

2013
rs. ’000

2014
Rs. ’000

2013
rs. ’000

12.  ReinsuRanCe ReCeivable
reinsurance receivables on settled claims  225,175  286,043  225,175  286,043 

reinsurance receivables on Outstanding claims  1,003,992  1,160,449  1,003,992  1,160,449 

1,229,167 1,446,491 1,229,167 1,446,491

impairment on reinsurance receivables  (22,322)  (249)  (22,322)  (249)

 1,206,845  1,446,243  1,206,845  1,446,243 
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imPaiRment oF ReinsuRanCe ReCeivables

The board of directors has assessed the potential impairment loss of reinsurance receivables and provide the 
rs. 22.322 million to financial statements as at the reporting date in respect to the reinsurance receivable.

The carrying value of reinsurance receivables approximate the fair value at the reporting date.

consolidated company

as at 31st december 2014
Rs. ’000

2013
rs. ’000

2014
Rs. ’000

2013
rs. ’000

13.  PRemium ReCeivable
13.1  PRemium ReCeivable  
   FRom PoliCyholdeRs
premium receivable from policyholders  2,429,106  2,381,614  2,429,106  2,381,614 

 2,429,106  2,381,614  2,429,106  2,381,614 

impairment on Premium Receivable 
as at the beginning of the year  (27,070)  (65,670)  (27,070)  (65,670)

impairment reversal made during the year  (190,758)  38,600  (190,758)  38,600 

as at the end of the year  (217,828)  (27,070)  (217,828)  (27,070)

sub total of Premium Receivable  
   from Policyholders  2,211,278  2,354,544  2,211,278  2,354,544 

13.2  PRemium ReCeivable FRom  
   aGents, bRokeRs and  
   inteRmediaRies
premium receivable from agents and brokers  719,633  684,620  719,633  684,620 

 719,633  684,620  719,633  684,620 

impairment on Premium Receivable 
as at the beginning of the year  (9,023)  (21,890)  (9,023)  (21,890)

impairment reversal made during the year  (63,586)  12,867  (63,586)  12,867 

as at the end of the year  (72,609)  (9,023)  (72,609)  (9,023)

sub total of Premium Receivable from  
   agents and brokers  647,024  675,597  647,024  675,597 

total Premium Receivable  2,858,302  3,030,141  2,858,302  3,030,141 

The board of directors has assessed the potential impairment loss on premium receivables as at the reporting 
date and adequate provisions have been made in the financial statements.
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consolidated company

as at 31st december 2014
Rs. ’000

2013
rs. ’000

2014
Rs. ’000

2013
rs. ’000

14.  deFeRRed tax assets
deferred tax liability 
capital allowance for tax purpose  (5,906)  (5,586)  (5,841)  (5,548)

revaluation deficit of building  2,965  –    2,965  –   

 (2,941)  (5,586)  (2,876)  (5,548)

deferred tax assets
defined benefits Obligations  89,954  62,461  89,505  62,017 

net deferred tax assets  87,013  56,876  86,629  56,469 

consolidated company

2014
Rs. ’000

2013
rs. ’000

2014
Rs. ’000

2013
rs. ’000

balance as at 1st January 56,876 48,116 56,469 47,960

Origination/(reversal) of temporary difference -  
   recognised in profit or loss 30,137 8,760 30,160 8,509

balance as at 31st december 87,013 56,876 86,629 56,469
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consolidated company

as at 31st december 2014
Rs. ’000

2013
rs. ’000

2014
Rs. ’000

2013
rs. ’000

15.  otheR assets
inventories (note 15.1)  2,022,736  2,386,054  102,052  172,685 

Other receivables  2,452,937  1,764,949 2,471,043  1,665,776 

impairment on Other receivables  (124,386)  (125,902)  (124,386)  (125,902)

 2,328,551  1,639,047  2,346,657  1,539,874 

amount due from distilleries company  
   of sri lanka plc and related companies  149,665.00  132,635  149,665  132,635 

staff loans (note 15.2)  564,406  563,578  564,406  563,578 

prepaid staff cost  159,759  221,383  159,759  221,383 

Other loans  208,985  171,415  208,985  171,415 

advance on fixed assets  45,584  58,807  45,584  58,807 

trade and Other receivables (note 15.3)  1,181,175  1,177,102  –    –   

esc receivable  23,512  28,008  –    –   

 6,684,373  6,378,029  3,577,108  2,860,377 

15.1  inventoRies 
insurance  102,052  172,685  102,052  172,685 

healthcare  306,301  175,976  –    –   

energy  1,614,383  2,037,394  –    –   

 2,022,736  2,386,054  102,052  172,685 

15.2  staFF loans
at the beginning of the year  563,578  474,448  563,578  474,448 

loans granted during the year  147,283  246,629  147,283  246,629 

recoveries during the year  (180,409)  (169,899)  (180,409)  (169,899)

fair value adjustment on staff loan  33,954  12,400  33,954  12,400 

at the end of the year  564,406  563,578  564,406  563,578 
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consolidated company

as at 31st december 2014
Rs. ’000

2013
rs. ’000

2014
Rs. ’000

2013
rs. ’000

15.3  tRade and otheR 
ReCeivables
trade Receivables
trade and Other receivables  666,428  460,310  –    –   

provision for doubtful debt  (17,284)  (9,951)  –    –   

total trade receivables – net  649,144  450,359  –    –   

deposit and prepayments  335,183  214,930  –    –   

advances and Other receivables  196,848  511,812  –    –   

 1,181,175  1,177,101  –    –   

consolidated company

as at 31st december 2014
Rs. ’000

2013
rs. ’000

2014
Rs. ’000

2013
rs. ’000

16.  deFeRRed exPenses –  
   insuRanCe ContRaCt
Reserve for deferred acquisition expenses -  
   net of Reinsurance
Reserve for deferred acquisition expenses
balance as at 1st January  384,242  374,148  384,242  374,148 

increase in deferred acquisition expenses  9,704  10,094  9,704  10,094 

balance as at 31st december  393,946  384,242  393,946  384,242 

Reserve for deferred Reinsurance Commission
balance as at 1st January  (137,346)  (152,712)  (137,346)  (152,712)

increase in deferred acquisition expenses  5,260  15,366  5,260  15,366 

balance as at 31st december  (132,086)  (137,346)  (132,086)  (137,346)

Reserve for deferred acquisition expenses -  
   net of Reinsurance  261,860  246,895  261,860  246,895 
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consolidated company

as at 31st december 2014
Rs. ’000

2013
rs. ’000

2014
Rs. ’000

2013
rs. ’000

17.  Cash and Cash equivalents
cash in hand and at bank  901,895  767,825  637,799  493,965 

short-term investments  24,637,543  28,490,167  5,130,628  12,530,569 

total Cash and Cash equivalents  25,539,438  29,257,992  5,768,427  13,024,534 

consolidated company

as at 31st december 2014
Rs. ’000

2013
rs. ’000

2014
Rs. ’000

2013
rs. ’000

18.  stated CaPital
issued and fully paid
Ordinary shares (599,743,200 shares)  6,000,000  6,000,000  6,000,000  6,000,000 

 6,000,000  6,000,000  6,000,000  6,000,000 

18.1  RiGht oF oRdinaRy shaReholdeRs

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as declared from time to time and are 
entitled to one vote per share at meetings of the company.

consolidated  company

as at 31st december
note

2014
Rs. ’000

2013
rs. ’000

2014
Rs. ’000

2013
rs. ’000

19.  Revaluation ReseRve
revaluation reserve    19.1  9,325,393  8,752,045  5,971,570  5,411,866 

 9,325,393  8,752,045  5,971,570  5,411,866 

19.1  ReseRve FoR Revaluation  
   oF land and buildinG
balance as at 1st January  8,752,045  9,161,368  5,411,866  5,632,161 

surplus on revaluation of land and building  650,495  102,325  592,783   –    

deferred tax on revaluation surplus  (5,545)  (291,353)  (3,778)   –    

realisation of revaluation surplus  (71,602)  (30,320)  (29,301)  (30,320)

transfer of fair value gain on  
   investment property   –     (189,975)   –     (189,975)

balance as at 31st december  9,325,393  8,752,045  5,971,570  5,411,866 
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consolidated company

as at 31st december 2014
Rs. ’000

2013
rs. ’000

2014
Rs. ’000

2013
rs. ’000

20.  available-FoR-sale ReseRve 
balance as at 1st January  15,364,711  12,521,041  15,364,711  12,521,041 

recognised in Other comprehensive income  
   for the year  11,160,541  2,843,670  11,160,541  2,843,670 

balance as at 31st december  26,525,252  15,364,711  26,525,252  15,364,711 

available-for-sale reserves comprise of the impact arising from the changes in market values of financial 
assets classified under available-for-sale (afs).

consolidated company

as at 31st december
note

2014
Rs. ’000

2013
rs. ’000

2014
Rs. ’000

2013
rs. ’000

21. Revenue ReseRve 
general reserve 643,442 643,442 643,442 643,442

surplus from life insurance 21.1 4,450,665 4,528,867 4,450,665 4,528,867

policyholder reserve fund 21.2 (3,328,928) (510,889) (3,328,928) (510,888)

retained earnings 21.3 35,734,633 28,617,542 23,954,309 21,737,166

37,499,812 33,278,962 25,719,488 26,398,587

21.1  suRPlus FRom liFe insuRanCe
balance as at 1st January  4,528,867  8,268,739  4,528,867  8,268,739 

surplus attributable to shareholders  
   from life insurance  1,612,402  1,721,809  1,612,402  1,721,809 

transferred to shareholders  (1,690,604)  (5,461,681)  (1,690,604)  (5,461,681)

balance as at 31st december  4,450,665  4,528,867  4,450,665  4,528,867 

21.2  PoliCyholdeR ReseRve Fund
balance as at 1st January  (510,888)  806,271  (510,888)  806,271 

change in fair value measurements  
   applicable to life contract liability 22  (2,818,040)  (1,317,160)  (2,818,040)  (1,317,160)

balance as at 31st december  (3,328,928)  (510,889)  (3,328,928)  (510,888)

The life policyholder reserve fund includes the initial impact of the implementation of slfrss/lKass w.e.f. 
1st January 2012 and the fair value gains and losses recorded under Other comprehensive income in respect 
of life insurance related to available-for-sale financial assets since then.
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consolidated company

as at 31st december 2014
Rs. ’000

2013
rs. ’000

2014
Rs. ’000

2013
rs. ’000

21.3  Retained eaRninGs
balance as at 1st January 28,617,540 15,947,151 21,737,166 14,316,177

profit for the year 8,037,407 9,681,178 3,257,013 4,654,830

Other comprehensive income (88,055) 8,420 (87,955) 5,992

surplus attributable to shareholders from  
   life insurance (1,612,402) (1,721,809) (1,612,402) (1,721,809)

transfer from life division 1,690,604 5,461,681 1,690,604 5,461,681

effect of acquisition of subsidiary and  
   changes in holding 77,355 (68,857) – –

deferred tax on revaluation surplus transfer – 289,484 – –

transfer of fair value gain on investment property – 189,975 – 189,975

realisation of revaluation surplus on disposal 71,602 30,320 29,301 30,320

dividend declared and paid (1,002,000) (1,200,000) (1,002,000) (1,200,000)

share buyback * 57,245 – (57,245) –

balance as at 31st december 35,734,633 28,617,542 23,954,309 21,737,166

* during the year company has re-purchased 57,245 million shares from its shareholders.

22.  insuRanCe ContRaCt liabilities - liFe
life insurance fund as at 1st January  66,511,608  60,084,899  66,511,608  60,084,899 

movement of the fund  6,988,818  6,831,358  6,988,818  6,831,358 

transferred from life policyholders reserve fund  2,818,040  1,317,160  2,818,040  1,317,160 

surplus distributed to shareholders  (1,612,402)  (1,721,809)  (1,612,402)  (1,721,809)

life insurance fund as at 31st december  74,706,064  66,511,608  74,706,064  66,511,608 

policyholder Outstanding claims  
   (unclaimed benefits)  2,548,432  2,567,453  2,548,432  2,567,453 

 77,254,496  69,079,061  77,254,496  69,079,061 
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contract liability included in the life insurance fund, consist of traditional participating and  
non-participating life insurance products liabilities. The insurance provision has been established based 
upon the following:

 z interest rate which is prescribed under ibsl guidelines.
 z mortality rates used are a 67/70 for non-annuity business and a(90)m for male annuitants and (90)f for 

female annuitant which are prescribed under ibsl guidelines .

The amount of policyholder's reversionary bonus to be paid is determined annually by the company. 
The bonus includes life policyholders share of net income that are required to be allocated by the insurance 
contract or, by insurance regulations.

The valuation of the insurance provision – life insurance business, as at 31st december 2014 was made by 
mark alan birch, fellow of the institute and faculty of actuaries uK, of towers watson, for and on behalf of 
sri lanka insurance corporation ltd. in accordance with the consultants actuary’s report, the sum of provision, 
rs: 2,699 million (in - 2013 rs. 2,579 million), is included as the liability in respect of policyholders’ bonus. 
in the opinion of the consultant actuary, the admissible assets of the life insurance fund as at 31st december 
2014 is adequate to cover the liabilities of the fund and the solvency margin requirement prescribed under 
section 26 of the regulation of insurance industry act no. 43 of 2000. The life fund also carried forward 
surplus for future growth and contingencies.

the life insurance fund assets inclusive of shareholders’ transfer as at 31st december 2014 is  
rs. 76,318 million (2013 – rs. 68,233 million). the board of directors decided to transfer  
rs. 1,612 million (2013 – rs. 1,722 million) to the shareholders’ fund in the statement of financial  
position in life insurance. subsequent to this transfer, the life insurance fund stands rs. 74,706 million  
(2013 - rs. 66,512 million).

liabilit y adequaCy test (lat) – liFe insuRanCe

a liability adequacy test (‘lat’) for life insurance contract liability was carried out by mark alan birch, 
fellow of the institute and faculty of actuaries, uK, of towers watson, as at 31st december 2014 as required 
by slfrs 4 - ‘insurance contracts’. when performing the lat, the company has compared the provisions 
held as per audited accounts with the actuarial liability. for this purpose, the value of the actuarial liability 
is computed following the principles laid out within risk-based capital framework as prescribed by the 
ibsl, whereby liabilities are valued using a discounted cash-flow approach covering the full lifetime of all 
cash in- and out-flows required to settle the obligations related to existing in-force life insurance contracts.  
The projections are based on in-force policies and riders as at 31st december 2014. 

according to the actuary’s report, assets are sufficiently adequate as compared to the discounted cash 
flow reserves and in contrast to the reserves as at 31st december 2014. no additional provision is required 
against the lat as at 31st december 2014.
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23. insuRanCe ContRaCt liabilities – non-liFe

the non-life insurance reserves as shown in the statement of  financial position represents  
the following:

consolidated  company

as at 31st december
note

2014
Rs. ’000

2013
rs. ’000

2014
Rs. ’000

2013
rs. ’000

reserves for net unearned premium 23.1  5,235,223  5,034,687  5,235,223  5,034,687 

reserves for title insurance and  
   unexpired risk reserve 23.2  251,594  436,468  251,594  436,468 

reserves for gross Outstanding claims 23.3  7,708,966  7,817,801  7,708,966  7,817,801 

 13,195,783  13,288,956  13,195,783  13,288,956 

23.1  ReseRve FoR net uneaRned PRemium
Reserve for unearned premium
balance as at 1st January  6,896,179  6,449,789  6,896,179  6,449,789 

transfer during the year  309,921  446,390  309,921  446,390 

balance as at 31st december  7,206,100  6,896,179  7,206,100  6,896,179 

Reserve for unearned Reinsurance premium
balance as at 1st January  (1,861,492)  (1,598,252)  (1,861,492)  (1,598,252)

transfer during the year  (109,385)  (263,241)  (109,385)  (263,241)

balance as at 31st december  (1,970,877)  (1,861,492)  (1,970,877)  (1,861,492)

total reserve for net unearned premium  5,235,223  5,034,687  5,235,223  5,034,687 



SRI LANKA INSURANCE CoRpoRAtIoN Ltd. – ANNUAL REpoRt 2014

202

consolidated company

as at 31st december 2014
Rs. ’000

2013
rs. ’000

2014
Rs. ’000

2013
rs. ’000

23.2  ReseRve FoR title insuRanCe  
   and unexPiRed Risk ReseRve
Reserve for title insurance 
balance as at 1st January  436,468  301,108  436,468  301,108 

transfer during the year  (184,874)  135,360  (184,874)  135,360 

balance as at 31st december  251,594  436,468  251,594  436,468 

Reserve for unexpired Risk Reserve
balance as at 1st January   –     487,847   –     487,847 

transfer during the year   –     (487,847)   –     (487,847)

balance as at 31st december   –      –      –      –    

Reserve for Reinsurance unexpired Risk Reserve
balance as at 1st January   –     (59,043)   –     (59,043)

transfer during the year   –     59,043   –     59,043 

balance as at 31st december   –      –      –      –    

total Reserve for title insurance  
   and unexpired Risk Reserve  251,594  436,468  251,594  436,468 

23.3  ReseRves FoR GRoss  
   outstandinG Claims – non-liFe
balance as at 1st January  5,228,781  6,239,151  5,228,781  6,239,151 

claims incurred during the year  6,866,601  5,330,509  6,866,601  5,330,509 

claims paid during the year  (6,568,888)  (6,340,879)  (6,568,888)  (6,340,879)

Balance as at 31st december  5,526,494  5,228,781  5,526,494  5,228,781 

ibnr/ibner balance as at 1st January  2,589,019  2,477,202  2,589,019  2,477,202 

increase in ibnr/ibner  (406,547)  111,817  (406,547)  111,817 

iBnR/iBneR Balance as at 31st december  2,182,472  2,589,019  2,182,472  2,589,019 

total Reserves for Gross outstanding claims  7,708,966  7,817,801  7,708,966  7,817,801 
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significant delays occur in the notification of claims and a substantial measure of experience and judgment is 
involved in assessing outstanding liabilities, the ultimate cost of which cannot be known with certainty as of the 
reporting date. The reserves are determined based on the information currently available. however, it is inherent 
to the nature of the business written that the ultimate liability may vary as a result of subsequent developments.

liabilit y adequaCy test (lat) – non-liFe insuRanCe

a liability adequacy test (‘lat’) for non-life insurance contract liability was carried out by mr. matthew 
maguire, fellow of the australian actuarial society (aag) on behalf of sri lanka insurance corporation 
ltd. as at 31st december 2014 as required by slfrs 4 – insurance contracts. The lat is performed to asses 
the adequacy of the carrying amount of the unearned premium reserve (upr). according to the consultant 
actuary’s report, the company adequately satisfies the lat as at 31st december 2014. no additional provision 
was required against the lat as at 31st december 2014.

consolidated company

as at 31st december 2014
Rs. ’000

2013
rs. ’000

2014
Rs. ’000

2013
rs. ’000

Reconciliation between insurance contract 
liabilities non-life and technical Reserves
insurance contract liabilities non-life  13,195,783  13,288,956  13,195,783  13,288,956 

reserve for net deferred acquisition expenses  (261,860)  (246,896)  (261,860)  (246,896)

reinsurance on claims reserves  (1,003,992)  (1,160,449)  (1,003,992)  (1,160,449)

technical reserves  11,929,931  11,881,611  11,929,931  11,881,611 

23.4  Claims develoPment inFoRmation

table below presents changes in the historical non-life reserves, net of reinsurance. The top line of the table 
shows the estimated gross reserves for unpaid losses and loss adjustment expenses as of each reporting date, 
which represents the estimated amount of future payments for losses incurred in that year and in prior years. 
The cumulative paid portion of the table presents the cumulative amounts paid through each subsequent 
year in respect of the reserves established at each year-end. similarly, the cumulative reported losses section 
details the sum of the cumulative paid amounts shown in the triangle above and the net outstanding position 
at the end of the financial year. 
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as at 31st december 2009
rs.

2010
rs.

2011
rs.

2012
rs.

2013
rs.

2014
Rs.

gross reserves for losses and  
   loss adjustment expenses  6,146,598,253  6,759,172,132  7,898,096,692  8,720,582,620  7,817,800,636  7,709,470,517 

reinsurance recoverable  (942,908,191)  (1,361,271,745)  (1,168,930,136)  (1,509,187,974)  (1,160,448,524)  (1,004,432,194)

net reserves for losses and  
   loss adjustment expenses  5,203,690,062  5,397,900,387  6,729,166,557  7,211,394,645  6,657,352,112  6,705,038,323 

cumulative paid as of 31st december:

One year later  2,777,513,593  2,874,874,128  3,632,757,028  4,545,085,355  4,481,213,520  4,572,092,748 

two years later  3,522,688,732  3,714,910,249  4,903,405,392  5,908,837,239  5,873,385,629 

Three years later  3,570,404,152  3,788,276,570  4,980,092,970  6,016,063,272 

four years later  3,589,944,991  3,806,053,537  5,014,506,148 

five years later  3,615,680,225  3,832,694,904 

six years later  3,647,979,624 

cumulative Reported as of 31st december: 

One year later  3,679,732,673  3,877,357,626  4,740,384,794  5,765,263,148  5,564,838,084  5,631,797,127 

two years later  3,890,505,082  4,091,340,643  5,147,257,128  6,199,143,542  6,107,020,752 

Three years later  3,805,274,933  4,020,496,575  5,195,146,471  6,287,566,401 

four years later  3,705,919,728  3,995,269,295  5,289,158,538 

five years later  3,711,999,165  4,110,863,857 

six years later  3,843,689,041 

consolidated company

as at 31st december 2014
Rs. ’000

2013
rs. ’000

2014
Rs. ’000

2013
rs. ’000

24.  CuRRent tax liabilities
balance as at 1st January 2,895,797 1,608,096 1,739,675 1,071,066

income tax charge for the year 2,785,703 3,430,737 1,308,460 1,761,639

income tax settlements made during the year (4,208,954) (2,260,289) (2,084,970) (1,093,030)

at the end of the year 1,472,546 2,778,544 963,165 1,739,675
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consolidated company

as at 31st december 2014
Rs. ’000

2013
rs. ’000

2014
Rs. ’000

2013
rs. ’000

25.  deFeRRed tax
deferred tax liabilities
capital allowances for tax
purposes 2,590,603 2,396,092 955,494 1,044,913

revaluation/(deficit) of building 553,027 600,057 3,778 –

3,143,630 2,996,149 959,272 1,044,913

deferred tax Assets
defined benefit Obligations (130,360) (97,352) (97,642) (67,655)

impairment on trade receivables (118,574) (42,628) (118,574) (41,602)

tax loss carried forward (60,068) (45,626) – –

impairment on inventories – (2,174) – –

(309,002) (187,779) (216,216) (109,257)

net deferred tax liabilities 2,834,628 2,808,369 743,056 935,656

company

as at 31st december 2014 2013

temporary 
difference

Rs. ’000

tax effect

Rs. ’000

temporary 
difference

rs. ’000

tax effect

rs. ’000

deferred tax liabilities
capital allowances for tax purposes 3,412,479 955,494 3,731,832 1,044,913

revaluation surplus/(deficit) of building 13,493 3,778 – –

3,425,971 959,272 3,731,832 1,044,913

deferred tax Assets
defined benefit Obligations (348,721) (97,642) (241,626) (67,655)

impairment on trade receivables (423,479) (118,574) (148,579) (41,602)

(772,200) (216,216) (390,205) (109,257)

net deferred tax liabilities 2,653,771 743,056 3,341,628 935,656
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consolidated

as at 31st december 2014 2013

temporary 
difference

Rs. ’000

tax effect

Rs. ’000

temporary 
difference

rs. ’000

tax effect

rs. ’000

deferred tax liability
capital allowances for tax purposes 10,162,529 2,590,603 9,399,493 2,396,092

revaluation surplus/(deficit) of building 2,632,281 553,027 2,856,131 600,057

12,794,810 3,143,630 12,255,624 2,996,149

deferred tax Assets
defined benefit Obligations (3,230,303) (130,360) (2,412,357) (97,352)

provision for doubtful debtors (208,951) (118,574) (75,119) (42,628)

tax loss carried forward (214,528) (60,068) (162,950) (45,626)

impairment on inventories – – (7,763) (2,174)

(3,653,781) (309,002) (2,658,189) (187,779)

net deferred tax liabilities 9,141,028 2,834,628 9,597,435 2,808,369

consolidated company

as at 31st december 2014
Rs. ’000

2013
rs. ’000

2014
Rs. ’000

2013
rs. ’000

26.  emPloyee beneFits 
balance as at 1st January  635,244  547,212  463,117  401,759 

current service cost  73,522  49,994  39,570  28,395 

interest expenses  63,699  59,464  46,312  44,194 

actuarial (gain)/loss  127,024  (8,554)  122,160  (5,992)

 899,489  648,117  671,159  468,356 

benefit paid during the year  (26,914)  (12,873)  (2,778)  (5,239)

Balance as at 31st december  872,575  635,244  668,381  463,117 
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26.1  mr. m. poopalanathan, aia, of The group’s gratuity liability was actuarially valued under the projected 
unit credit (puc) method by messrs actuarial & management consultants (pvt) ltd., 1st floor, no. 434, 
r.a. de mel mawatha, colombo 3. The actuarial valuation is performed annually. 

consolidated company

2014
Rs. ’000

2013
rs. ’000

2014
Rs. ’000

2013
rs. ’000

26.2  GRatuit y exPense  
   ReCoGnised in the statement  
   oF ComPRehensive inCome
current service cost 73,522 49,994 39,570 28,395

interest on Obligation 63,699 59,464 46,312 44,194

137,221 109,459 85,882 72,589

26.3  GRatuit y exPense  
   ReCoGnised in the statement  
   oF otheR ComPRehensive inCome
actuarial losses/(gains)  127,024  (8,554)  122,160  (5,992)

26.4  PRinCiPal aCtuaRial assumPtions used

2014
%

2013
%

discount rate 9 - 10 9 -12

salary increment rate 5 - 10 5 - 10

staff turnover factor 16 -10 10

retirement age; female 60 years 60 years

retirement age; male 60 years 60 years

retirement age; minor staff 57 years 57 years

The group’s gratuity liability is not externally funded.
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26.5  sensitivit y analysis

reasonable possible changes at the reporting date to one of the relevant actuarial assumptions, holding other 
assumptions constant, would have affected the defined obligation by the amounts shown below:

as at 31st december 2014

increase
Rs. ’000

decrease
rs. ’000

discount rate 1% 615,505 708,576

future salary growth 1% 617,139 705,895

consolidated company

as at 31st december 2014
Rs. ’000

2013
rs. ’000

2014
Rs. ’000

2013
rs. ’000

27.  otheR liabilities 
policyholder advance payments 499,336 354,163 499,336 354,163

agency commission payable 934,941 867,984 934,941 867,984

income tax payable – 117,253 – –

economic services charge tax 343 2,684 – –

accrued expenses 2,410,125 1,989,927 1,904,151 1,989,927

riot fund 65,331 59,106 65,331 59,106

trade payable 1,804,705 2,477,590 – –

vat payable 32,684 22,925 – –

provision for assessment on vat liability 345,000 345,000 345,000 345,000

Other payables 527,291 1,183,591 – –

advance received 54,212 43,735 – –

customer deposit payable 4,569,545 4,323,978 – –

total Other liabilities 11,243,513 11,787,935 3,748,759 3,616,179
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consolidated company

as at 31st december 2014
Rs. ’000

2013
rs. ’000

2014
Rs. ’000

2013
rs. ’000

28.  bank oveRdRaFt
bank Overdraft 599,328 496,776 388,907 361,721

599,328 496,776 388,907 361,721

consolidated  company 

for the year ended 31st december
note

2014
Rs. ’000

2013
rs. ’000

2014
Rs. ’000

2013
rs. ’000

29.  Revenue 
gross written premium 30  20,584,486  21,262,140  20,665,985  21,350,869 

net change in reserve for  
   unearned premium 29.1  (125,047)  (581,750)  (125,047)  (581,750)

gross earned premium  20,459,439  20,680,390  20,540,938  20,769,119 

premium ceded to reinsurers 29.2  (2,845,418)  (3,227,303)  (2,845,418)  (3,227,303)

net change in reserve for  
   unearned reinsurance premium 29.3  109,385  263,241  109,385  263,241 

net earned premium 29.4  17,723,406  17,716,327  17,804,905  17,805,056 

income from investments 31  11,708,619  8,895,213  11,216,572  9,275,562 

Other income  1,075,532  1,323,566  280,503  900,233 

hospital revenue  3,706,401  3,081,541  –    –   

pharmacy revenue  1,047,188  872,569  –    –   

room rental and services charges  24,960  79,155  –    –   

revenue from liquid petroleum gas  
   (lpg) activities  28,937,543  28,106,333  –    –   

 64,223,649  60,074,704  29,301,980  27,980,852 

sinolanka hotels & spa (pvt) ltd. a subsidiary of slic, is in the process of constructing the hyatt regency 
colombo hotel.
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consolidated  company 

for the year ended 31st december
note

2014
Rs. ’000

2013
rs. ’000

2014
Rs. ’000

2013
rs. ’000

29.1  net ChanGe in ReseRve  
   FoR uneaRned PRemium 
non-life insurance
change in reserve for unearned premium 23.1  (309,921)  (446,390)  (309,921)  (446,390)

transfer to title insurance reserve 23.2  184,874  (135,360)  184,874  (135,360)

 (125,047)  (581,750)  (125,047)  (581,750)

consolidated company

as at 31st december 2014
Rs. ’000

2013
rs. ’000

2014
Rs. ’000

2013
rs. ’000

29.2  PRemiums Ceded to ReinsuReRs
life insurance  136,401  97,636  136,401  97,636 

 136,401  97,636  136,401  97,636 

non-life insurance
fire  1,394,800  1,688,446  1,394,800  1,688,446 

motor  164,882  170,004  164,882  170,004 

marine  280,430  275,849  280,430  275,849 

miscellaneous  868,905  995,368  868,905  995,368 

 2,709,017  3,129,667  2,709,017  3,129,667 

total premium ceded to reinsurers  2,845,418  3,227,303  2,845,418  3,227,303 

consolidated  company 

for the year ended 31st december
note

2014
Rs. ’000

2013
rs. ’000

2014
Rs. ’000

2013
rs. ’000

29.3  net ChanGe in  
   ReseRve FoR uneaRned  
   ReinsuRanCe PRemium 
non-life insurance
premium 23.1  109,385  263,241  109,385  263,241 

 109,385  263,241  109,385  263,241 

 (15,662)  (318,510)  (15,662)  (318,510)
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consolidated/company

for the year ended 31st december 2014 2013

 non-life
Rs. ’000 

 life 
Rs. ’000

total
Rs. ’000

 non-life
rs. ’000 

 life
rs. ’000 

total
rs. ’000

29.4  net eaRned PRemiums
gross written premium  12,544,828  8,121,159  20,665,987  12,953,151  8,397,718  21,350,869 

change in reserve for 
   unearned premium  (309,921)  –    (309,921)  (446,390)  –    (446,390)

gross earned premium  12,234,907  8,121,159  20,356,066  12,506,761  8,397,718  20,904,479 

premiums ceded to 
   reinsurers  2,709,017  136,401  2,845,418  3,129,667  97,636  3,227,303 

change in reserve 
   for unearned 
   reinsurance premium  (109,385)  –    (109,385)  (263,241)  –    (263,241)

gross reinsurance 
   premium  2,599,632  136,401  2,736,033  2,866,426  97,636  2,964,063 

transfer to title 
   insurance reserve  184,874  –    184,874  135,360  –    135,360 

 2,414,758  136,401  2,551,158  3,001,787  97,636  3,099,423 

net earned premium  9,820,150  7,984,758  17,804,908  9,504,974  8,300,082  17,805,056 

consolidated  company 

For the year ended 31st December 2014
Rs. ’000

2013
rs. ’000

2014
Rs. ’000

2013
rs. ’000

30.  GRoss WRit ten PRemium
life insurance
Gross Written premium – life insurance  8,039,660  8,308,989  8,121,159  8,397,718 

non-life insurance
fire and engineering risk  1,553,150  1,867,398  1,553,150  1,867,398 

general accident  3,384,287  3,291,840  3,384,287  3,291,840 

marine  402,133  377,535  402,133  377,535 

workmen’s compensation  –    83,964  83,964 

motor  7,205,256  7,332,414  7,205,256  7,332,414 

Gross Written premium – non-life insurance  12,544,826  12,953,151  12,544,826  12,953,151 

total Gross Written premium  20,584,486  21,262,140  20,665,985  21,350,869 
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consolidated  company 

For the year ended 31st December
note

2014
Rs. ’000

2013
rs. ’000

2014
Rs. ’000

2013
rs. ’000

31.  investment inCome 
interest income 31.1  8,448,367  7,855,339  7,697,430  7,855,339 

dividends income 31.2  1,337,454  1,436,041  1,646,244  1,816,390 

capital gains/(losses) 31.3  1,831,470  (437,595)  1,831,470  (437,595)

rental income from investment properties  91,328  41,428  41,428  41,428 

 11,708,619  8,895,213  11,216,572  9,275,563 

consolidated  company 

For the year ended 31st December 2014
Rs. ’000

2013
rs. ’000

2014
Rs. ’000

2013
rs. ’000

31.1  inteRest inCome
financial investments at held-to-maturity (htm)
treasury bonds  3,119,130  2,138,965  3,119,130  2,138,965 

treasury bills  22,637  33,583  22,637  33,583 

financial investments at loans and  
   Receivables (l&R)
development bonds  176,165  219,588  176,165  219,588 

unlisted debentures  161,128  280,024  161,128  280,024 

term deposits  2,194,104  2,557,840  2,066,708  2,557,840 

commercial papers  –    23,281  –    23,281 

trust certificates  1,387  6,650  1,387  6,650 

financial investments at Available-for-sale (Afs)
treasury bonds  517,367  886,084  517,367  886,084 

treasury bills  256,472  13,113  20,833  13,113 

listed debentures  998,142  590,797  998,142  590,797 
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consolidated  company 

For the year ended 31st December 2014
Rs. ’000

2013
rs. ’000

2014
Rs. ’000

2013
rs. ’000

cash and cash equivalents
reverse repurchase agreements  995,145  1,101,754  609,735  1,101,754 

call & savings accounts  6,690  2,799  4,198  2,799 

other fee Based income
participation fees – listed debentures  –    861  –    861 

total interest income  8,448,367  7,855,339  7,697,430  7,855,339 

31.2  dividend inCome
Financial investments at Cost
listed subsidiaries  –    –    61,089  244,356 

unlisted subsidiaries  –    –    247,701  135,993 

Financial investments at available-For-sale (aFs)
listed shares  1,082,309  1,161,635  1,082,309  1,161,635 

unlisted shares  4,298  3,598  4,298  3,598 

unit trusts  108,573  78,654  108,573  78,654 

Financial investments at Fair-value-Through-   
   Profit-or-loss (FvtPl)
listed shares  142,274  192,154  142,274  192,154 

total dividend income  1,337,454  1,436,041  1,646,244  1,816,390 

31.3  CaPital Gains/(losses)
Financial investments at available-For-sale (aFs)
listed shares  18,070  –    18,070  –   

unit trusts  389,772  –    389,772  –   

Financial investments at Fair-value-Through- 
   Profit-or-loss (FvtPl)
listed shares  1,423,628  (437,595)  1,423,628  (437,595)

total capital gains/(losses)  1,831,470  (437,595)  1,831,470  (437,595)
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consolidated  company 

For the year ended 31st December 2014
Rs. ’000

2013
rs. ’000

2014
Rs. ’000

2013
rs. ’000

32.  Fees and Commission inCome
reinsurance commission  46,612  25,087  46,612  25,087 

policy fees  2,684  2,795  2,684  2,795 

 49,296  27,881  49,296  27,881 

consolidated  company 

For the year ended 31st December 2014
Rs. ’000

2013
rs. ’000

2014
Rs. ’000

2013
rs. ’000

33.  net Realised Gains/(losses)
foreign currency gains/(losses)  (152,291)  39,906  (157,737)  39,906 

 (152,291)  39,906  (157,737)  39,906 

consolidated  company 

For the year ended 31st December 2014
Rs. ’000

2013
rs. ’000

2014
Rs. ’000

2013
rs. ’000

34.  otheR inCome
rent income  84,360  46,438  74,410  57,363 

loans  301,733  309,229  301,733  309,229 

sundry income  794,554  904,195  15,082  474,227 

gain/(loss) on disposal of property,  
   plant & equipment  (2,120)  8,588  (2,281)  4,298 

 1,178,527  1,268,450  388,944  845,117 
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consolidated  company 

For the year ended 31st December 2014
Rs. ’000

2013
rs. ’000

2014
Rs. ’000

2013
rs. ’000

35.  net beneFit and Claims 
(a)  Gross Benefits and claims paid 
   non-life insurance
fire  230,196  228,919  230,196  228,919

motor  4,126,087  4,104,179  4,126,087  4,104,179

marine  164,245  166,597  164,245  166,597

miscellaneous  2,048,359  1,841,183  2,048,359  1,841,183

total  6,568,887  6,340,879  6,568,887  6,340,879

life insurance 
death claims  315,939  239,916  315,939  239,916

policy maturities  5,012,580  4,135,785  5,012,580  4,135,785

surrenders  356,446  308,768  356,446  308,768

disability, ex-gratia, annuities,  
   hospitalisation and mortgage protection  74,028  95,548  74,028  95,548

total  5,758,993  4,780,017  5,758,993  4,780,017

total Gross Benefits and claims paid  12,327,880  11,120,896  12,327,880  11,120,896

(b)  claims ceded to Reinsurers
claims recovered from reinsurers (436,246)  (461,340)  (436,246)  (461,340) 

total Claims Ceded to Reinsurers  (436,246)  (461,340)  (436,246)  (461,340) 

(c)  Gross change in contract liabilities 
change in non-life insurance contract  
   Outstanding claims provision  (108,330)  (772,003)  (108,330)  (772,003) 

change in premium deficiency provision  –   (428,805)  –    (428,805) 

total Gross Change in Contract liabilities  (108,330)  (1,200,808)  (108,330)  (1,200,808) 

(d)  change in contract liabilities  
   ceded to Reinsurers
change in non-life insurance contract  
   Outstanding claims provision  156,016  345,735  156,016  345,735

total change in contract liabilities ceded  
   to reinsurers –  –    –    –   

total Change in Contract liabilities Ceded  
   to Reinsurers  156,016  345,735  156,016  345,735

total net benefits and Claims  11,939,320  9,804,484  11,939,320  9,804,484
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consolidated  company 

For the year ended 31st December 2014
Rs. ’000

2013
rs. ’000

2014
Rs. ’000

2013
rs. ’000

36.  undeRWRitinG and net aCquisition  
   Costs(inCludinG ReinsuRanCe)
acquisition cost  1,939,842  1,885,522  1,939,842  1,885,522 

net change in reserve for deferred  
   acquisition cost (dac)  (9,704)  (10,094)  (9,704)  (10,094)

 1,930,138  1,875,428  1,930,138  1,875,428 

reinsurance commission received  311,636  306,135  311,636  306,135 

net change in reserve for unearned 
   commission (ucr)  (5,260)  (15,366)  (5,260)  (15,366)

 316,896  321,500  316,896  321,500 

net Acquisition costs and underwriting  1,613,242  1,553,928  1,613,242  1,553,928 

consolidated  company 

For the year ended 31st December 2014
Rs. ’000

2013
rs. ’000

2014
Rs. ’000

2013
rs. ’000

37.  otheR oPeRatinG and 
   administRation exPenses
Other Operating and administration expenses  
   includes following:

audit fees  7,289  6,609  3,900  3,600 

audit-related fees  1,239  1,762  1,000  1,400 

fees for non-audit services  12,645  1,638  12,645  1,514 

depreciation  1,494,717  393,780  385,994  369,353 

amortisation of intangible assets  46,812  34,021  43,471  34,021 

amortisaton of advanced lease premium  4,766  4,907 – –

amortisaton of leasehold land  848  493  269  269 

staff benefits  3,988,233  2,493,786  2,093,475  2,093,475 
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consolidated  company 

For the year ended 31st December 2014
Rs. ’000

2013
rs. ’000

2014
Rs. ’000

2013
rs. ’000

38.  inCome tax exPense 
current tax expense
income tax on current year profit  2,822,581  3,470,436  1,308,460  1,761,639 

Over provision in previous years  (36,878)  (10,768)  –    –   

 2,785,703  3,459,668  1,308,460  1,761,639 

deferred tax expense
Origination/(reversal) of temporary differences 27,751  198,720  (192,334)  (61,600)

income tax expenses reported in  
   the income statement  2,813,454  3,658,388  1,116,126  1,700,039 

income tax expense reported in the  
   statement of changes in equity  (35,313)  (338)  (34,205) –

income tax expense reported in the  
   income statement  2,778,141  3,658,050  1,081,921  1,700,039 

38.1  ReConCiliation oF eFFeCtive tax Rate
profit for the year before change in contract  
   liabilities – life fund  16,529,538 18,906,728  9,749,555  11,464,419 

change in contract liabilities – life fund  (5,376,416)  (5,109,549)  (5,376,416)  (5,109,549)

profit for the year before tax  11,153,122 13,797,179  4,373,139  6,354,870 

current tax expense (including deferred tax  
   on revaluation)  (2,813,454) (3,658,388) (1,116,126)  (1,700,039) 

profit for the year  8,339,668  10,138,791  3,257,013  4,654,830 

at the statutory income tax rate (28%)  4,605,867  5,417,208  2,768,526  3,211,719 

at the statutory income tax rate (12%)  62,636  –    –    –   

income exempt from tax  (1,014,813)  (927,042)  (624,737)  (596,143)

aggregate allowable expenses  (1,368,623)  (1,022,848)  (1,058,598)  (1,005,882)

aggregate disallowable expenses  617,698  3,602  223,269  151,946 

tax loss utilised during the year  (80,183)  (484)  –    –   

Over provision for income tax in respect of  
   prior year  (36,878)  (10,768)  –    –   

deferred taxation charge/(reversal)  27,751  198,720  (192,334)  (61,600)

income tax expense reported in the  
   statement of changes in equity  (35,313)  (338)  (34,205)  –   

current tax expense  2,813,454  3,658,388  1,116,126  1,700,039 
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consolidated

For the year ended 31st December 2014  2013 

temporary
difference

Rs. ’000

tax
effect

Rs. ’000

temporary
difference

rs. ’000

tax
effect

rs. ’000

38.2  deFeRRed taxation
deferred tax liability 
capital allowances for tax purposes  10,186,100  2,596,603  9,399,493  2,396,092 

revaluation surplus/(deficit) of building  2,607,579  550,062  2,856,131  600,057 

 12,794,810  3,143,630  12,255,624  2,996,149 

deferred tax assets
defined benefits Obligations  (3,230,303)  (130,360)  (2,412,357)  (97,352)

provision for doubtful debtors  (208,951)  (118,574)  (75,119)  (42,628)

tax loss carried forward  (214,528)  (60,068)  (162,950)  (45,626)

provision for stocks – –  (7,763)  (2,174)

 (3,653,781)  (309,002) (2,658,189) (187,779)

net deferred tax liability  9,141,028  2,834,628 9,597,435  2,808,369 

company

For the year ended 31st December 2014  2013 

temporary
difference

Rs. ’000

tax
effect

Rs. ’000

temporary
difference

rs. ’000

tax
effect

rs. ’000

deferred tax liability 
capital allowances for tax purposes  3,412,479  955,494  3,731,832  1,044,913 

revaluation surplus/(deficit) of building 13,493  3,778  –    –   

 3,425,971  959,272  3,731,832  1,044,913 

deferred tax assets
defined benefit Obligations (348,721)  (97,642)  (241,626)  (67,655) 

provision for doubtful debtors  423,479  118,574  148,579  41,602 

(772,200) (216,216) (390,205) (109,257)

net deferred tax liability  2,653,771  743,056  3,341,628  935,656 

The company is liable to income tax of 28% in terms of inland revenue act no. 10 of 2006 and amendments 
thereto. current year tax charge consists of income tax charge on general insurance and investment income 
in life insurance.
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litro gas terminal lanka (pvt) ltd. and litro gas lanka ltd. business profits are exempted from income 
tax for a period of 15 years according to the agreement entered into by the litro gas terminal lanka (pvt) 
ltd. and litro gas lanka ltd. with the board of investment of sri lanka (bOi). The said exemption period 
commenced in 2000 and will expire in 2015. accordingly, the current year income tax represents the income 
tax charge on interest income received during the year at the rate of 28% (2013 – 28%).

in accordance with and subject to the power conferred on the board of investment of  
sri lanka, under section 17 of the bOi law no. 4 of 1978, the operating profits and income accruing to  
The lanka hospitals corporation plc was exempt from tax for a period of 12 years from 2002. accordingly, 
the tax exemption period ended in June 2014. after expiry of tax exemption period the business profit is taxable 
at a rate of 12%. however, in view of tax losses incurred on main business activities subsequent to the expiry 
of tax holiday period, the company is liable for income tax for the period from July 2014 to december 2014.

lanka hospitals diagnostics (pvt) ltd., is exempt from tax for a period of 7 years commencing from 
year in which the enterprise commences to make profits or any year of assessment not later than two years 
reckoned from the date of commencement of commercial operations whichever comes first.

under the strategic development projects act no. 14 of 2008, the provisions of the inland revenue act 
relating to income tax shall not apply to the profit from business of sinolanka hotels & spa (pvt) ltd., for a 
period of 10 years.

canowin hotels and spas (pvt) ltd., is liable to income tax of 28% in terms of inland revenue act  
no. 10 of 2006 and amendments thereto.

39.  basiC eaRninGs PeR shaRe
basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit for the year attributable to ordinary shareholders 
by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year.

consolidated  company 

2014 2013 2014 2013

amounts used as the numerators
net profit attributable to  
   Ordinary shareholders (rs. ’000)  8,037,407  9,681,178  3,257,013  4,654,830 

numbers of ordinary shares  
   used as denominators
weighted average number of Ordinary  
   shares in issue (’000)  599,743  600,000  599,743  600,000 

basic earnings per share (rs.)  13.40  16.14  5.43  7.76 



SRI LANKA INSURANCE CoRpoRAtIoN Ltd. – ANNUAL REpoRt 2014

220

 company 

2014 2013

40.  dividend Paid and PRoPosed

dividend paid/proposed (rs. ’000)  2,003,141  1,002,000 

weighted average number of Ordinary shares in issue (’000)  599,743  600,000 

dividend per share (rs.)   3.34  1.67 

41.  FinanCial assets and liabilities
41.1  aCCountinG ClassiFiCations and FaiR value

The table below sets out the carrying amounts and fair values of the company’s financial assets and financial liabilities:

As at 31st december 2014

note  fair-Value-
 Through-

 profit-or-loss
Rs. ’000  

 Available-
for-sale 

Rs. ’000 

 held-to-
 maturity

Rs. ’000   

 loans and
 Receivables

Rs. ’000   

 carrying
 Value
total

Rs. ’000  

fair Value
total

Rs. ’000 

FinanCial assets  
   measuRed at  
   FaiR value
listed shares 5  5,538,347  35,711,339  –    –    41,249,686  41,249,686 

unit trusts 5  –    1,146,236  –    –    1,146,236  1,146,236 

listed debentures 5  –    11,880,406  –    –    11,880,406  11,880,406 

treasury bills and bonds 5  –    4,387,187  –    –    4,387,187  4,387,187 

financial Assets not measured  
   at fair value **

treasury bills and bonds 5  –    –    26,076,867  –    26,076,867  29,832,970 

unlisted debentures 5  –    –    –    1,367,206  1,367,206 1,364,944

term deposits 5  –    –    –    27,945,441  27,945,441 27,945,441

development bonds 5  –    –    –    2,428,326  2,428,326 2,428,326 

loans to life policyholders 11  –    –    –   1,510,067 1,510,067 1,510,067

reinsurance receivable 12  –    –    –    1,206,845  1,206,845 1,206,845

premium receivable 13  –    –    –    2,858,302  2,858,302 2,858,302 

Other receivables 15  –    –    –    6,684,373  6,684,373 6,684,373 

cash and cash equivalents 17  –    –    –    25,539,438  25,539,438 25,539,438 

total financial Assets  5,538,347  53,125,168  26,076,867  69,539,998  154,280,380 158,034,221
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As at 31st december 2014

note  fair-Value-
 Through-

 profit-or-loss
Rs. ’000  

 Available-
for-sale 

Rs. ’000 

 held-to-
 maturity

Rs. ’000   

 loans and
 Receivables

Rs. ’000   

 carrying
 Value
total

Rs. ’000  

fair Value
total

Rs. ’000 

financial liabilities not  
   measured at fair value**

reinsurance creditors  1,013,511  1,013,511 1,013,511

trade payable 27  –    –    –    1,804,705  1,804,705 1,804,705

bank Overdraft 28  –    –    –    599,328  599,328 599,328

total financial liabilities  –    –    –    2,404,033  2,404,033 2,404,033

as at 31st december 2013

note  fair-value-
 Through-

 profit-or-loss
rs. ’000  

 available-
for-sale 

rs. ’000 

 held-to-
 maturity

rs. ’000   

 loans and
 receivables

rs. ’000   

 carrying
 value
total

rs. ’000  

fair value
total

rs. ’000 

FinanCial assets  
   measuRed at FaiR value
listed shares 5  5,956,726  24,798,653  –    –    30,755,379  30,755,379 

unit trusts 5  –    1,426,408  –    –    1,426,408  1,426,408 

listed debentures 5  –    7,190,339  –    –    7,190,339  7,190,339 

treasury bills and bonds  –    5,902,342  –    –    5,902,342  5,902,342 

financial Assets not measured  
   at fair value **

treasury bills and bonds 5  –    –    19,324,293 –  19,324,293  20,708,066 

unlisted debentures 5  –    –    –    1,890,781  1,890,781 1,886,621

term deposits 5  –    –    –    22,864,910  22,864,910 22,864,910

development bonds 5  –    –    –    5,254,857  5,254,857 5,254,857

trust certificates 5  –    –    –    37,481  37,481 37,481

loans to life policyholders 11 1,578,196 1,578,196 1,578,196

reinsurance receivable 12  –    –    –    1,446,243  1,446,243 1,446,243

premium receivable 13  –    –    –    3,030,141  3,030,141 3,030,141

Other receivables 15  –    –    –    1,222,834  1,222,834 1,222,834

cash and cash equivalents 17  –    –    –    29,257,992  29,257,992 29,257,992

total financial Assets  5,956,726  39,317,742  19,324,293  66,583,435  131,182,196  132,561,809 
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as at 31st december 2013

note  fair-value-
 Through-

 profit-or-loss
rs. ’000  

 available-
for-sale 

rs. ’000 

 held-to-
 maturity

rs. ’000   

 loans and
 receivables

rs. ’000   

 carrying
 value
total

rs. ’000  

fair value
total

rs. ’000 

financial liabilities not  
   measured at fair Value**

reinsurance creditors  897,082  897,082 897,082

trade payable 27  –    –    –    2,477,590  2,477,590 2,477,590

bank Overdraft 28  –    –    –    496,776  496,776 496,776

total financial liabilities  –    –    –    3,871,448  3,871,448 3,871,448

* The fair value of quoted equity shares and unit trust are estimated based on quoted market prices.  
* The fair values of financial assets Held-To-Maturity (Treasury Bills and Bonds) are estimated based on quoted market prices. 
* The fair values of unlisted floating rate debentures and development bonds are estimated as equal to the carrying values. 
* The fair values of unlisted fixed rate debentures are arrived at discounting the future cash flows at market yields of comparable  

newly issued corporate debt instruments carrying similar maturities and credit ratings. 
* The fair values of commercial papers, term deposits, loans to policyholders, reinsurance receivable, premium receivable and loans to  

staff are estimated as equal to the carrying values as maturities do not exceed one year.
** The carrying amounts of financial assets classified as loans and receivable and financial liabilities that are not measured at fair value are 

reasonable approximation of fair value

41.   FinanCial assets and liabilities 
41.2  FaiR value hieRaRChy FoR assets CaRRied at FaiR value

The following note shows an analysis of financial investments recorded at fair value by level of the fair 
value hierarchy.

The group uses the following hierarchy in determining and disclosing the fair value of financial 
instruments by valuation techniques:

level fair value measurement method

level 1 Quoted (unadjusted) prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.
level 2 techniques for which, all inputs that have a significant effect on the recorded fair value 

are observable, either directly or indirectly.
level 3 techniques, which use inputs that have a significant effect on the recorded fair value are 

not based on observable market data.



AnnuAl RepoRt 2014 – SRI lAnKA InSuRAnCe CoRpoRAtIon ltd.

223

as at 31st december 2014

level 1

Rs. ’000

level 2

Rs. ’000

level 3

Rs. ’000

total
fair Value

Rs. ’000

Available-for-sale (Afs) financial Assets
listed shares  35,711,339  –    –    35,711,339 

unlisted shares –  –    143,257  143,257 

unit trusts  1,146,236  –    –    1,146,236 

listed debentures  11,880,406  –    –    11,880,406 

treasury bonds 4,387,187  –    –   4,387,187

total  53,125,168  –    143,257  53,268,424 

Fair-value-Through-Profit-or-loss (FvtPl)  
   Financial assets
listed shares  5,538,388  –    –    5,538,388 

total  5,538,388  –    –    5,538,388 

total Financial assets  54,276,369  –    143,257  54,419,626 

as at 31st december 2013

level 1

rs. ’000

level 2

rs. ’000

level 3

rs. ’000

total
fair value

rs. ’000

Available-for-sale (Afs) financial Assets
listed shares  24,798,653  –    –    24,798,653 

unlisted shares  –    –    124,480  124,480 

unit trusts  1,426,408  –    –    1,426,408 

listed debentures  7,190,339  –    –    7,190,339 

treasury bills  483,700  –    –    483,700 

treasury bonds  5,418,642  –    –    5,418,642 

total  39,317,743  –    124,480  39,442,223 

Fair-value-Through-Profit-or-loss (FvtPl)  
   Financial assets
listed shares  5,956,726  –    –    5,956,726 

total  5,956,726  –    –    5,956,726 

total Financial assets  45,274,469  –    124,480  45,398,949 
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41.3  ReConCiliation oF movements in level 3 FinanCial assets  
   measuRed at FaiR value

as at 31st
 december

 2013

total gains/
(losses) 

in income 
statement

total gains/
(losses) 
in Oci

purchases sales transfers
 from level

 1 & 2

As at 31st
 december

 2014

total gains/(losses)
for the period

included in profit or
loss for assets held at

31st december 2013
rs. ’000 rs. ’000 rs. ’000 rs. ’000 rs. ’000 rs. ’000 Rs. ’000 rs. ’000

available-for-sale  
   (afs) financial assets

unlisted stocks  124,480  4,298  18,777 – – –  143,257  23,074 

as at
31st

 december
 2012

total gains/
(losses) 

in income 
statement

total gains/
(losses) 
in Oci

purchases sales transfers
 from level

 1 & 2

as at
31st

 december
 2013

total gains/(losses)
for the period

included in profit or
loss for assets held at

31st december 2012
rs. ’000 rs. ’000 rs. ’000 rs. ’000 rs. ’000 rs. ’000 rs. ’000 rs. ’000

available-for-sale  
   (afs) financial assets

unlisted stocks  90,581  3,598  33,899 – – –  124,480  37,497 

42.  Related PaRt y disClosuRes
42.1  tRansaCtions With key manaGement PeRsonnel

according to sri lanka accounting standard 24 (lKas) – ‘related party transaction’, Key management 
personnel, are those having authority and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the 
activities of the entity. accordingly, the chairman and the board of directors have been classified as  
Key management personnel of the group.

The following directors who held office at 31st december 2014 ceased to be effective from 20th January 2015  
from sri lanka insurance corporation ltd:

mr. h.K. upali dharmadasa
mr. piyadasa Kudabalage
mr. h. isuru balapatabendi
mr. nayana d.p. dehigama
mr. s.v.r. samarasinghe
ms. K.m.a.n. daulagala 
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The secretary to the treasury reconstituted the board by appointing the following directors  
with effect from 20th January 2015:

mr. hemaka d.s. amarasuriya } appointed with effect from 9th february 2015mr. t.m.r. bangsa Jayah
mr. p.p.J. perera
prof. l.g. chandrasena
mr. h. imal s. fonseka
mr. p. algama

42.1.1  key manaGement PeRsonnel ComPensation
emoluments and compensation paid to Key management personnel are as follows:

  Group  company  

for the year ended 31st december 2014
Rs. ’000

2013
rs. ’000

2014
Rs. ’000

2013
rs. ’000

salaries and short-term employee benefits  119,864 142,569 21,085 27,803 

post-employment benefits – 7,868 – –   

consultation fee 7,143 7,143 – –   

guaranteed payments to directors  3,600 – – –

42.1.2  otheR tRansaCtions With key manaGement PeRsonnel 

  Group  company  

for the year ended 31st december 2014
Rs. ’000

2013
rs. ’000

2014
Rs. ’000

2013
rs. ’000

sale of goods and services – – – 179



SRI LANKA INSURANCE CoRpoRAtIoN Ltd. – ANNUAL REpoRt 2014

226

42.2.1  tRansaCtions With subsidiaRy ComPanies 

details of significant related party disclosures are as follows: 

amount paid/received

name of the company nature of the 
relationship

transaction 2014
Rs. ’000

2013
rs. ’000

management services  
   rakshana (pvt) ltd.

subsidiary loan granted  4,454  6,337 

payment of emoluments  295,904  287,187 

advances given  7,799  7,799 

loans Outstanding  28,900  23,447 

Other payables  26,216  38,069 

investment in equity shares  0 0

The lanka hospitals 
   corporation plc

subsidiary investment in equity shares  2,925,567  2,925,567 

insurance premium received  23,571  32,898 

claims paid  2,496  1,398 

Other receivables  7,388  8,771 

services  141,010  127,566 

litro gas lanka ltd. subsidiary rent charged  15,741  15,741 

insurance premium received  35,063  31,744 

claims paid  4,621  53 

Other receivables  22,829  37,488 

investment in equity shares  3,510,063  3,510,063 

litro gas terminal 
  lanka ltd.

subsidiary insurance premium received 19,260 31,264 

claims paid – –   

Other receivables 18,178 14,073 

investment in equity shares 5,280,188 5,280,188 

canwill holdings 
   (pvt) ltd.

subsidiary investment in equity shares 8,500,000 5,000,000 

insurance premium received 2,928 1,968 

claims paid – –   

canowin hotels and  
  spas (pvt) ltd.

investment in equity shares 870,087 870,087 

insurance premium received 885 868 

claims paid – –   
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42.2.2  tRansaCtions With otheR Related ComPanies
 details of significant related party disclosures are as follows:

amount paid/received

name of the company nature of the 
relationship

transaction 2014
Rs. ’000

2013
rs. ’000

seylan bank plc affiliate insurance premium received  2,222  2,142 

claims paid  1,752  2,519 

ceybank asset  
   management ltd.

affiliate investments in unit trusts  549,100  867,946 

claims paid  83 –

insurance premium received  2,555  2,438 

investment in equity shares  99,925  83,227 

ceylon asset  
   management co. ltd.

affiliate investments in unit trusts  597,136  558,462 

investments in equity shares  22,500  22,500 

42.2.3  tRansaCtions oF GRouP ComPanies 
42.2.3.1  the lanka hosPitals CoRPoRation PlC

amount paid/received

name of the company nature of the 
relationship

transaction 2014
Rs. ’000

2013
rs. ’000

lanka hospitals  
   diagnostics  
   (pvt) ltd.

subsidiary reimbursement of expenses and  
   the rent income receivable by  
   the company 3,150 –

services provided to company  125,000 –

share issued  300,000 –

srl ltd. affiliate technical services provided to  
   lanka hospitals diagnostics  
   (pvt) ltd.  33,230 –
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42.2.3.2  litRo Gas lanka ltd. 

amount paid/received

name of the company nature of the 
relationship

transaction 2014
Rs. ’000

2013
rs. ’000

litro gas terminal  
   lanka (pvt) ltd.

affiliate sale of services
reimbursement of staff costs  8,266  10,821,622 

reimbursement of costs on  
   Other utilities  1,476 1,534,936 

purchase of lpg pump  54,895 –

Purchase of services
Throughput fee  
   (excluding vat and nbt)  1,141,033  932,613 

amounts payable to marine  
   service provider  18,995  19,174 

fuel for tanks  2,108  25,919 

Other  20,339  2,601 

canwill holdings  
   lanka (pvt) ltd. affiliate Other  513  1,067 

helanco hotels &  
   spa (pvt) ltd. affiliate Other  181 –

people’s bank affiliate investments made  579,480  2,312,458 

trade services  1,046,506  249,458 

bank charges  399  1,921 

Others  22,110  2,134 

42.2.3.3  litRo Gas teRminal lanka (Pvt) ltd. 

amount paid/received

name of the company nature of the 
relationship

transaction 2014
Rs. ’000

2013
rs. ’000

people’s bank affiliate investments made  173,187  806,133 

bank charges  81  11 

trade  7,470  1,217 
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42.2.3.4  CanWill holdinGs (Pvt) ltd. 

amount paid/received

name of the company nature of the 
relationship

transaction 2014
Rs. ’000

2013
rs. ’000

canowin hotels  
  and spas (pvt) ltd. affiliate staff related cost  2,883  –   

inreach hotels  
  & spa (pvt) ltd. affiliate expenses paid  279  38 

nilyan hotels  
  & spa (pvt) ltd. affiliate expenses paid  350  –   

helanco hotels  
  & spa (pvt) ltd. subsidiary staff related cost  11,530  –   

expenses paid  544  659 

sinolanka hotels  
  & spa (pvt) ltd. subsidiary staff-related cost  50,174  47,100 

42.2.3.5  CanoWin hotels and sPas (Pvt) ltd. 

amount paid/received

name of the company nature of the 
relationship

transaction 2014
Rs. ’000

2013
rs. ’000

sinolanka hotels  
  & spa (pvt) ltd. affiliate expenses paid  35  35 

42.2.3.6  sinolanka hotels & sPa (Pvt) ltd. 

amount paid/received

name of the company nature of the 
relationship

transaction 2014
Rs. ’000

2013
rs. ’000

litro gas lanka ltd. affiliate cash settlement  20  20 

helanco hotels &  
   spa (pvt) ltd. affiliate expenses paid  12,186  2,470 

cash settlement  14,429 

canowin hotels and  
   spas (pvt) ltd. affiliate cash settlement  35  50,700 

inreach hotels &  
   spa (pvt)ltd. affiliate expenses paid  15  –   

nilyan hotels &  
   spa (pvt) ltd. affiliate expenses paid  5  –   
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42.2.3.7  helanCo hotels & sPa (Pvt) ltd. 

amount paid/received

name of the company nature of the 
relationship

transaction 2014
Rs. ’000

management services 
   rakshana (pvt) ltd. affiliate staff salaries & allowances  1,357 

43.  all the transactions with government-related entities which are significant for the users of this 
annual report are listed below:

43.1  outstandinG balanCes as at 31st deCembeR 2014

nature of the transaction/             
name of the company/entity

 Bank of
ceylon

Rs. ’000 

 people’s Bank 

Rs. ’000

 national
savings 

Bank 
Rs. ’000

 Regional
development

Bank
Rs. ’000 

 people’s
leasing &

finance plc
Rs. ’000 

 merchant
Bank of 

sri lanka plc 
Rs. ’000

 urban
development

Authority
Rs. ’000 

 people’s
merchant

finance plc 
Rs. ’000

 sri lanka
telecom plc 

Rs. ’000

  ceybank Asset
management 

ltd.
Rs. ’000

  hdfc Bank 

Rs. ’000

 Associated
newspapers of

ceylon ltd. 
Rs. ’000

 lanka 
cement plc 

Rs. ’000

reverse repos  15,585  –    3,631,940  –    –    –    –    –    –    –    –    –    –   

listed debentures  1,377,402  –    –    –    1,664,300  106,660  774,833  –    –    –    119,540  –    –   

unlisted debentures  –    –    –    –    –    –    –    –    –    –    –    –    –   
fixed deposits  9,613,466  9,756,344  5,863,385  50,418  –    –    –    –    –    –    –    –    –   
unit trusts  –    –    –    –    –    –    –    –    –    549,100  –    –    –   
unlisted shares  –    –    –    –    –    –    –    –    –    99,925  –    5,671  –   
listed shares  –    –    –    –    –    –    –    38  1,000,315  –    –    –    3,415 

 11,006,452  9,756,344  9,495,325  50,418  1,664,300  106,660  774,833  38  1,000,315  649,025  119,540  5,671  3,415 

43.2  outstandinG balanCes as at 31st deCembeR 2013

nature of the transaction/             
name of the company/entity

 bank of
ceylon

rs. ’000 

 people's bank 

rs. ’000

 national
savings 

bank 
rs. ’000

 regional
development

bank
rs. ’000 

 people’s
leasing &

finance plc
rs. ’000 

 merchant
bank of 

sri lanka plc 
rs. ’000

 urban
development

authority
rs. ’000 

 people’s
merchant

finance plc 
rs. ’000

 sri lanka
telecom plc 

rs. ’000

  ceybank asset
management 

ltd.
rs. ’000

  hdfc bank 

rs. ’000

 associated
newspapers of

ceylon ltd. 
rs. ’000

 lanka 
cement plc 

rs. ’000

reverse repos  49,536  –    6,480,024  –    –    –    –    –    –    –    –    –    –   
listed debentures  870,726  –    –    –    123,960  148,245  893,808  –    –    –    103,970  –    –   
unlisted debentures  –    –    –    –    515,375  –    –    –    –    –    –    –    –   
fixed deposits  9,042,908  6,222,796  5,577,267  50,752  –    –    –    –    –    –    –    –    –   
Unit Trusts  –    –    –    –    –    –    –    –    –    867,946  –    –    –   
unlisted shares  –    –    –    –    –    –    –    –    –    83,227  –    4,784  –   

listed shares  –    –    –    –    –    –    –    17  767,600  –    –    –    3,364 

 9,963,169  6,222,796  12,057,291  50,752  639,335  148,245  893,808  17  767,600  951,174  103,970  4,784  3,364 
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42.2.3.7  helanCo hotels & sPa (Pvt) ltd. 

amount paid/received

name of the company nature of the 
relationship

transaction 2014
Rs. ’000

management services 
   rakshana (pvt) ltd. affiliate staff salaries & allowances  1,357 

43.  all the transactions with government-related entities which are significant for the users of this 
annual report are listed below:

43.1  outstandinG balanCes as at 31st deCembeR 2014

nature of the transaction/             
name of the company/entity

 Bank of
ceylon

Rs. ’000 

 people’s Bank 

Rs. ’000

 national
savings 

Bank 
Rs. ’000

 Regional
development

Bank
Rs. ’000 

 people’s
leasing &

finance plc
Rs. ’000 

 merchant
Bank of 

sri lanka plc 
Rs. ’000

 urban
development

Authority
Rs. ’000 

 people’s
merchant

finance plc 
Rs. ’000

 sri lanka
telecom plc 

Rs. ’000

  ceybank Asset
management 

ltd.
Rs. ’000

  hdfc Bank 

Rs. ’000

 Associated
newspapers of

ceylon ltd. 
Rs. ’000

 lanka 
cement plc 

Rs. ’000

reverse repos  15,585  –    3,631,940  –    –    –    –    –    –    –    –    –    –   

listed debentures  1,377,402  –    –    –    1,664,300  106,660  774,833  –    –    –    119,540  –    –   

unlisted debentures  –    –    –    –    –    –    –    –    –    –    –    –    –   
fixed deposits  9,613,466  9,756,344  5,863,385  50,418  –    –    –    –    –    –    –    –    –   
unit trusts  –    –    –    –    –    –    –    –    –    549,100  –    –    –   
unlisted shares  –    –    –    –    –    –    –    –    –    99,925  –    5,671  –   
listed shares  –    –    –    –    –    –    –    38  1,000,315  –    –    –    3,415 

 11,006,452  9,756,344  9,495,325  50,418  1,664,300  106,660  774,833  38  1,000,315  649,025  119,540  5,671  3,415 

43.2  outstandinG balanCes as at 31st deCembeR 2013

nature of the transaction/             
name of the company/entity

 bank of
ceylon

rs. ’000 

 people's bank 

rs. ’000

 national
savings 

bank 
rs. ’000

 regional
development

bank
rs. ’000 

 people’s
leasing &

finance plc
rs. ’000 

 merchant
bank of 

sri lanka plc 
rs. ’000

 urban
development

authority
rs. ’000 

 people’s
merchant

finance plc 
rs. ’000

 sri lanka
telecom plc 

rs. ’000

  ceybank asset
management 

ltd.
rs. ’000

  hdfc bank 

rs. ’000

 associated
newspapers of

ceylon ltd. 
rs. ’000

 lanka 
cement plc 

rs. ’000

reverse repos  49,536  –    6,480,024  –    –    –    –    –    –    –    –    –    –   
listed debentures  870,726  –    –    –    123,960  148,245  893,808  –    –    –    103,970  –    –   
unlisted debentures  –    –    –    –    515,375  –    –    –    –    –    –    –    –   
fixed deposits  9,042,908  6,222,796  5,577,267  50,752  –    –    –    –    –    –    –    –    –   
Unit Trusts  –    –    –    –    –    –    –    –    –    867,946  –    –    –   
unlisted shares  –    –    –    –    –    –    –    –    –    83,227  –    4,784  –   

listed shares  –    –    –    –    –    –    –    17  767,600  –    –    –    3,364 

 9,963,169  6,222,796  12,057,291  50,752  639,335  148,245  893,808  17  767,600  951,174  103,970  4,784  3,364 
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44.  manaGement oF insuRanCe, FinanCial and ReGulatoRy Risks
intRoduCtion to the oveRvieW 

The group is mainly exposed to the financial risks, insurance risks and regulatory risks. This note provides 
the group’s policies and procedures in measuring, managing and mitigating such risks. The group has 
implemented a risk management framework and the board of directors has the overall responsibility for the 
establishment and oversight of the group’s risk management functions. 

44.1  insuRanCe Risk manaGement – liFe
44.1.1  liFe insuRanCe ContRaCts
The following paragraph describes the concentration of life insurance-based on the nature of the contract:

ConCentRation oF insuRanCe Risk
concentration risk is defined as the risk of exposure to increased losses associated with inadequately diversified 
portfolios of assets or obligations. concentration risk for a life insurer may arise with respect to investments 
in a geographical area, economic sector, or individual issuers, or due to a concentration of business written 
within a geographical area, of a policy type or of underlying risks covered.

1. from a market risk perspective, although we have invested significantly in the financial sector, our 
portfolio is diversified and contains huge margins.

2. from an insurance risk perspective, the main factors that would affect concentration risk include mortality 
risk, morbidity risk, longevity risk, policyholder behaviour risk (lapse, anti-selection) and expense risk. 
There is diversification across geographical regions, lines of business and even across the different insurance 
risk factors such that slic is not exposed to significant concentrations of insurance risk.

The risks associated with life insurance include -

 z ‘mortality risk’ is the risk that actual policyholder death experience on life insurance policies is higher 
than expected.

 z ‘longevity risk’ is the risk that annuitants live longer than expected.

 z ‘morbidity risk’ is the risk that policyholder health-related claims are higher than expected.

 z  ‘policyholders’ behaviour risk’ is the risk that policyholders’ behavior in discontinuing and reducing 
contributions or withdrawing benefits prior to the maturity of the contract is worse than expected. poor 
persistency rates may lead to fewer policies remaining on the books to defray future fixed expenses and 
reduce the future positive cash flows from the business written, potentially impacting its ability to recover 
deferred acquisition expenses.

 z ‘expense risk’ is the risk that expenses incurred in acquiring and administering policies are higher than 
expected.
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 z market risk is the risk associated with the group’s balance sheet positions where the value or cash flow 
depends on financial markets, which is analysed in the ‘market risk’ section in the risk review.

 z credit risk is the risk associated with a loss or potential loss from counterparties failing to fulfil their 
financial obligations, which is analysed in the ‘credit risk’ section in the risk review.

sensitivities analysis FoR liFe insuRanCe Risk

provide assumptions used in determining life insurance contract liability:

Assumption description 

mortality guidelines provided by rii act no. 43 of  2000, which are:
   - a67/70 for non-annuity business
   - a(90)m for male annuitants and (90)f for female annuitants 

investment Return guidelines provided by rii act no. 43 of 2000, minimum interest used  
for 31st december 2013 valuation is 3.5% which is consistent with last  
5 years valuation. 

The total liability set-up under the above guidelines is rs. 60,107 million excluding cost of bonus.

slic participated in the rbc parallel run during 2014 and results as at 31st december 2014  
are as follows. the total net liability set-up under rbc guidelines for best estimated assumption is  
rs. 20,905 million. 

assumption change in assumption
%

impact on liability
million

mortality 10      785

-10    (792) 

investment Return up shock scenario under rbc (6,009)

down shock scenario under rbc    8,837
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seGReGation oF PoliCy liabilit y based on PRoduCt CateGoRy

31st december 2014 2013

insurance 
liabilities

(with profits)

Rs. ’000

insurance
 liabilities

(without 
profits)

Rs. ’000

total Gross
 insurance
liabilities

Rs. ’000

insurance 
liabilities

(with profits)

rs. ’000

insurance
 liabilities

(without 
profits)

rs. ’000

total gross
 insurance
liabilities

rs. ’000

whole life  59,752  37,203  96,955  52,740  30,909  83,649 

endowment assurance  38,338,641  1,327,033  39,665,674  35,421,598  1,935,148  37,356,746 

term assurance –  1,061,883  1,061,883 –  646,181  646,181 

annuity  17,799,408  436,238  18,235,646  15,870,030  617,318  16,487,347 

rider benefits  1,005,940  41,361  1,047,301  856,936  34,043  890,979 

total  57,203,741  2,903,718  60,107,459  52,201,303  3,263,599  55,464,902 

The following table shows the participating and non-participating fund position of the group. 
during the last quarter of the 2014, group introduced ‘yasas’ single premium investment policy 
which boosted the non-participating portfolio.

PaRtiCiPatinG Fund vs non-PaRtiCiPatinG Fund

participating

rs. ’000

non-
participating

rs. ’000

total 

rs. ’000

2014  71,802,345  2,903,718  74,706,063 

percentage 96.11 3.89

2013  63,248,008  3,263,599  66,511,606 

percentage 95.09 4.91 100.00
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44.2  insuRanCe Risk manaGement – non-liFe
44.2.1  GeneRal insuRanCe Risk 

general insurance risk includes the reasonable possibility of significant loss due to uncertainty in the 
frequency of the occurrence of the insured events as well as in the severity of the resulting claims.

The following provides an overview of the group’s main lines of business:

 z motor includes automobile physical damage, loss of the insured vehicle and automobile 
third-party liability insurance.

 z property includes fire risks (for example – fire, explosion and business interruption), 
natural perils (for example – earthquake, windstorm and flood), engineering lines (for 
example – boiler explosion, machinery breakdown and construction) and marine (cargo 
and hull).

 z liability includes general/public and product liability, excess and umbrella liability, 
professional liability including medical malpractice and errors and omissions liability.

 z special lines include directors and officers, credit and surety, crime and fidelity, accident 
and health and crop.

 z worker injury includes workers compensation and employers liability.  
 

44.2.1  The group’s underwriting strategy is to take advantage of the diversification of general 
insurance risks across industries and geographic regions in which the group operates. The 
group seeks to optimise shareholder value by achieving its mid-term return on equity goals. 
doing so necessitates a prudent, stable underwriting philosophy that aims to take advantage 
of its competitive strengths while avoiding risks with disruptive volatility. at the core of the 
group’s underwriting is a robust governance process. 

in addition to the specific risks insured, each line of business could expose the group to 
losses that could arise from natural and man-made catastrophes. The main concentrations of 
risks arising from such potential catastrophes are regularly reported to the senior management.
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The table below shows the group’s concentration of risk within the general insurance 
business by line  of business based on direct written premiums before reinsurance and after 
reinsurance: 

2014

class gwp
rs. ’000

reinsurance 
rs. ’000

nwp
rs. ’000 %

motor  7,205,255  164,882  7,040,373  71.58 

fire  1,553,151  1,394,799  158,352  1.61 

marine  402,134  280,430  121,704  1.24 

Other  3,384,285  868,905  2,515,380  25.57 

 12,544,825  2,709,016  9,835,809  100.00 

2013

class gwp
rs. ’000

reinsurance 
rs. ’000

nwp
rs. ’000 %

motor  7,332,414  170,004  7,162,410  72.91 

fire  1,867,397  1,688,446  178,951  1.82 

marine  377,535  275,849  101,686  1.04 

Other  3,375,804  995,367  2,380,437  24.23 

 12,953,150  3,129,666  9,823,484  100.00 

44.2.2  ReinsuRanCe Risk

The group purchases reinsurance as a part of its risks mitigation programme. reinsurance 
ceded is placed on both proportional and non–proportional basis. proportional reinsurance 
arrangement includes both Quota share and facultative treaty programmes which is taken out 
to reduce the overall exposure of the group to certain classes of business. non–proportional 
reinsurance programmes, which are primarily excess-of-loss reinsurance arrangements, are 
designed to mitigate the group net exposure to large single and catastrophic losses. retention 
limits on the excess-of-loss reinsurance programmes vary by product line.
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The following table shows the credit ratings of the reinsurance companies with whom the 
group has arrangements:

name of the company  debit  
fss rating

credit 
rating

 rating 
agency

Zurich insurance company – australian  a+  a+  s & p 
uniQa Österreich versicherungen ag   a  a  s & p 
trust international insurance and reinsurance  a-  a-  a.m.best 
aviabel s.a. brussels, belgium  a-  a-  s & p 
aXa corporate solutions assurance sa, aviation  
   division, paris, france  a+  a  s & p 
generali Osiguranje d.d.  bbb+  bbb+  s & p 
hdi gerling insurance company hannover, germany  a  a+  a.m.best 
hdi – gerling industrie versicherung ag,  a  a+  a.m.best 
international insurance company of hannover ltd.  a+  aa-  a.m.best 
württembergische versicherung ag  a-  a-  s & p 
tm tryggingamidstodin hf  bbb-  bbb-  s & p 
general insurance corporation of india, mumbai, india  a-  a-  a.m.best 
The new india assurance company ltd., mumbai, india  a-  a-  a.m.best 
partner reinsurance europe se, dublin,  
   ireland per Zurich branch  a+  aa-  a.m.best 
tokio marine & nichido fire insurance co. ltd., tokyo, Japan  a++  aa+  a.m. best 
malaysian re  a-  a-  a.m.best 
african reinsurance corporation, lagos,  
   nigeria per mauritius branch  a-  a-  a.m.best 
delta lloyd schadeverzekering n.v.  a  a  s & p 
Korean reinsurance company, seoul, Korea  a  a  a.m.best 
samsung fire & marine insurance co., ltd., seoul, Korea  a++  aa+  a.m.best 
allianz gcs  a++  aa-  a.m.best 
asia capital reinsurance group pte. ltd.  a-  a-  a.m.best 
catlin singapore pte ltd.  a  a  a.m.best 
first capital insurance ltd.  a  a  a.m.best 
india international  a-  a-  s & p 
starr international insurance singapore pte. ltd.  a  a  a.m.best 
Xl insurance co. ltd.  a  a+  a.m.best 
markel syndicate management ltd.  a  a+  a.m.best 
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name of the company  debit  
fss rating

credit 
rating

 rating 
agency

sirius international insurance corporation (publ)  
   stockholm, sweden per Zurich branch  a  a  a.m.best 
helvetia schweizerische versicherungsgesellschaft ag  a  a  s & p 
Zurich insurance company – switzerland  a+  aa-  a.m.best 
abu dhabi national insurance company – uae  a  a  a.m.best 
american home assurance co. – dubai  a  a  a.m.best 
Oman insurance co. (psc)–dubai, uae  a  a  a.m.best 
royal and sun alliance  a-  a-  s & p 
ace european group ltd., london, england  aa  aa  s & p 
ace underwriting agencies ltd.  a  a+  a.m.best 
aegis managing agency ltd.   a  a+  a.m.best 
aig europe ltd.   a  a  a.m.best 
allianz global corporate & speciality se munich,  
   germany per london branch  a+  aa-  a.m.best 
amlin underwriting ltd.  a  a+  a.m.best 
antares managing agency ltd.  a  a+  a.m.best 
ascot underwriting ltd.  a  a+  a.m.best 
aspen managing agency ltd.  a  a+  a.m.best 
assicurazioni generali s p a, global risk, trieste, italy per 
   london branch  a  a  a.m.best 
 asta managing agency ltd.  a  a+  a.m.best 
 atrium underwriters ltd.  a  a+  a.m.best 
 aXis specialty europe se, dublin ireland per london branch  a+  a+  s & p 
 barbican managing agency ltd.  a  a+  a.m.best 
 beazley furlonge ltd.  a  a+  a.m.best 
 brit syndicates ltd.  a  a+  a.m.best 
 catlin insurance company (uK) ltd., london,england  a  a  a.m.best 
 catlin underwriting agencies ltd.  a  a+  a.m.best 
 chubb managing agent ltd.  a  a+  a.m.best 
global aerospace underwriting managers limited, ‘a’  
   london, england  a  a+  a.m.best 
 hardy (underwriting agencies) ltd.  a  a+  a.m.best 
 liberty syndicate management ltd.  a  a+  a.m.best 
 mitsui sumitomo insurance underwriting at lloyd's ltd.  a  a+  a.m.best 
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name of the company  debit  
fss rating

credit 
rating

 rating 
agency

novae syndicates ltd.  a  a+  a.m.best 
Qbe underwriting ltd.  a  a+  a.m.best 
talbot underwriting ltd.  a  a+  a.m.best 
The channel managing agency ltd.  a  a+  a.m.best 
torus underwriting management ltd.  a  a+  a.m.best 
travelers syndicate management ltd.  a  a+  a.m.best 
w r berkley syndicate management ltd.  a  a+  a.m.best 
Xl london market ltd.  a  a+  a.m.best 
arab insurance group  b++  bbb+  a.m.best 
emirates retakaful ltd.  b++  bbb+  a.m.best 
saudi reinsurance company  bbb+  bbb+  s & p  
cbl insurance ltd.  b+  bbb-  a.m.best 
national insurance trust fund Owned by government of sri lanka
chaucer syndicates ltd.  a  a+  a.m.best 

44.3  FinanCial Risk manaGement 

The investment activities of the group are exposed to the financial risks which include the 
credit risks, liquidity risks and market risks. The investment committee of the company is 
responsible in mitigating those risks and optimising investment returns.

investment risk management is of paramount importance in current turbulent markets 
characterised by high volatility of asset returns, reduced diversification benefits due to high 
correlations and wider dispersion in market sentiments and views.

The aim of investment risks management is  to promptly identify, measure, manage, report 
and monitor risks that affect the achievement of investment objectives. This includes taking, 
avoiding, mitigating and adjusting the risk profile to maintain the appropriate balance among 
asset growth as well as income to meet the obligations of the fund, based on prudent risk 
management principles within the context of applicable (ibsl) insurance regulations.
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44.3.1  maRket Risks

market risk is the risk of losses in positions arising from movements in market prices. This 
mainly impacts the stock prices being volatile in the market. market risks comprises foreign 
exchange rate, interest rate and market price risks.

The company is maintaining the maximum exposure limit for the equity in managing 
the investment portfolio. further, the company has diversified the investment portfolio into 
different sectors to mitigate the unsystematic risks.

rise of market fall of market

impact on profit impact on Oci impact on profit impact on Oci

 rs. ’000  rs. ’000  rs. ’000  rs. ’000 

As at 31st december 2014
shock level
5%  276,917  1,785,567  (276,917)  (1,785,567)

10%  553,835  3,571,134  (553,835)  (3,571,134)

 830,752  5,356,701  (830,752)  (5,356,701)

as at 31st december 2013
shock level
5%  297,836  1,239,933  (297,836)  (1,239,933)

10%  595,673  2,479,865  (595,673)  (2,479,865)

 893,509  3,719,798  (893,509)  (3,719,798)

44.3.2  inteRest Rate Risks

interest rate risk is the risk of loss resulting from changes in interest rates, including changes in 
the shape of yield curves while credit spread risk describes the sensitivity of the values of assets 
and liabilities due to changes in the level or the volatility of credit spreads over the risk-free 
interest rate yield curve.

interest rate risk is managed over each major maturity bucket and adherence to the 
aggregated positions with risk limits. The investment committee proactively managed the fixed 
income portfolio by strategically shifting from low-yielding investments to relatively high-
yielding ones, mitigating the pressure on interest income while closely monitoring the duration 
mismatches.
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further the group has adopted the following policies to mitigate the interest rate risks:

1. a considerable portion of the investments are made in risk free investments of government 
securities with adherence to the circulations issued by the ibsl in maintaining the risk-free 
investments.

2. a major part of the investment portfolio is made in the rated financial institutions or in 
rated instruments.

3. investment committee of the company is making the investment decisions and approval 
from the board of directors is sought wherever necessary.

following table summarises the exposure to the interest rate risk by the group:

100bps upward parallel  
shift of yield curve

100bps downward parallel  
shift of yield curve

31st december 2014 impact on 
interest income

impact on 
equity

impact on 
interest income

impact on 
equity

rs. ’000 rs. ’000 rs. ’000 rs. ’000

financial investments 
held-to-maturity (htm) – – – –

loans and receivables (l & r) 33,158 – (33,158) –

available-for-sale (afs) 3,481 (125,828) (3,481) 765,548

fair-value-Through- 
   profit-or-loss (fvtpl) – – – –

36,639 (125,828) (36,639) 765,548

100bps upward parallel  
shift of yield curve

100bps downward parallel  
shift of yield curve

31st december 2013 impact on 
interest income

impact on 
equity

impact on 
interest income

impact on 
equity

rs. ’000 rs. ’000 rs. ’000 rs. ’000

financial investments 
held-to-maturity (htm)  –    –    –    –   

loans and receivables (l & r)  68,310 –  (68,310) –

available-for-sale (afs)  3,481  (325,428)  (3,481)  343,198 

fair-value-Through- 
   profit-or-loss (fvtpl)  –    –    –    –   

 71,791  (325,428)  (71,791)  343,198 
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* in case of a shift in yield curve, there is -

 no impact to the interest income or to the equity for the fixed rate debt instruments 
classified under htm and l&r.

 an impact to the interest income but no impact to the equity for the floating rate debt 
instruments classified under htm and l&r.

 no impact to the interest income but there is an impact to the equity for the fixed rate debt 
instruments classified under afs.

 an impact to the interest income but no impact to the equity for the floating rate debt 
instruments classified under afs.

* no floating rate debt instruments have been classified under htm as at 31st december 2014.

* no debt instruments have been classified under fvtpl as at 31st december 2014.

CaRRyinG amounts oF FoReiGn CuRRenCy denominated  
FinanCial assets 

for the year ended 31st december 2014
carrying Value

Rs. ’000

2013
carrying value

rs. ’000

development Bonds:
usd 2,428,326 5,254,857

fixed deposits:
usd 4,616,334 1,350,280

gbp 998,116 1,010,769

aud 1,888,969 1,957,012

eur 8,012 –

mvr 93,682 90,919

10,033,438 9,663,837



AnnuAl RepoRt 2014 – SRI lAnKA InSuRAnCe CoRpoRAtIon ltd.

243

exChanGe Rate sensitivit y

as at 31st december 2014 exchange rate shock level 

1.0%
rs. ’000

1.5%
rs. ’000

2.0% 
rs. ’000

impact on forex Gain/loss
usd  70,213  105,320  140,427 

gbp  9,981  14,972  19,962 

aud  18,890  28,335  37,779 

eur  80  120  160 

mvr  937  1,405  1,874 

 100,101  150,152  200,202 

impact on interest income
usd 2,130 3,195 4,260

gbp 38 56 75

aud 80 120 161

eur 0 0 0

mvr 28 41 55

2,275 3,413 4,551
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as at 31st december 2013 exchange rate shock level 

1.0%
rs. ’000

1.5%
rs. ’000

2.0% 
rs. ’000

impact on forex Gain/loss
usd  65,323  97,984  130,646 

gbp  10,108  15,162  20,215 

aud  19,570  29,355  39,140 

eur – – –

mvr  909  1,364  1,818 

 95,910  143,865  191,820 

impact on interest income
usd 2,346 3,518 4,691

gbp 52 78 103

aud 98 147 196

eur – – –

mvr 21 31 41

2,516 3,774 5,032

maRket Rate Risk

The company is maintaining the maximum exposure limit for the equity in managing the 
investment portfolio. further the company has diversified the investment portfolio into 
different sectors to mitigate the unsystematic risks.
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PoRtFolio diveRsiFiCation oF equit y Risk

sRi lanka insuRanCe CoRPoRation ltd. – liFe insuRanCe business

2014 2013

sector carrying Value
Rs. ’000

% carrying value
rs. ’000

%

bank, finance and insurance 22,100,123 78.09 15,052,913 69.69

hotel and travel 2,376,721 8.40 2,125,682 9.84

healthcare* 1,457,914 5.15 1,457,914 6.75

telecommunication 894,544 3.16 768,564 3.56

construction and engineering 693,362 2.45 682,584 3.16

manufacturing 283,420 1.00 503,682 2.33

diversified holdings 154,376 0.55 399,240 1.85

trading 151,438 0.54 122,820 0.57

land and property 91,321 0.32 64,238 0.30

motors 50,578 0.18 199,739 0.92

investment trusts 47,926 0.17 46,705 0.22

information technology 263 – 526 0.00

power and energy 158 – 9,066 0.04

chemicals and pharmaceuticals – – 163,661 0.76

plantation – – 2,534 0.01

footwear and textiles – – 875 –

total 28,302,143 100.00 21,600,741 100.00

*including the The lanka hospitals corporation plc which is a subsidiary of slic.
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sRi lanka insuRanCe CoRPoRation ltd. – GeneRal insuRanCe business 

2014 2013

sector carrying Value
Rs. ’000

% carrying value
rs. ’000

%

bank finance and insurance 13,171,309 82.42 9,208,522 75.56

healthcare* 1,575,156 9.86 1,575,156 12.92

construction and engineering 693,449 4.34 682,670 5.60

manufacturing 338,416 2.12 308,595 2.53

telecommunication 105,771 0.66 112,191 0.92

diversified holdings 45,997 0.29 173,487 1.42

chemicals and pharmaceuticals 34,485 0.22 85,132 0.70

trading 10,316 0.06 15,798 0.13

investment trusts 5,558 0.03 18,249 0.15

power and energy 158 – 111 –

beverages, food and tobacco – – 3,740 0.03

motors – – 2,807 0.02

hotel and travel – – 1,250 0.01

total 15,980,614 100.00 12,187,708 100.00

*including the The lanka hospitals corporation plc which is a subsidiary of slic.

44.3.3  CRedit Risks
The credit risk is the risk of investee companies, reinsurers and other counter party defaulting to meet its 
contractual obligation. accordingly, it  refers to the risk that a borrower will default on any type of debt by 
failing to make payments which it is obligated to do. The risk is primarily that of the lender and include lost 
principal and interest, disruption to cash flows and increased collection costs.

The group has established its own limits on concentration in investments by single issuers and certain 
asset classes and also limits investments in illiquid instruments.

no investment has been made in term deposits other than in licensed commercial banks and licensed 
specialised banks.

investment grade credit rating for both the entity and the instrument by a recognised credit rating agency 
is expected for all investments in corporate debentures and commercial papers.

no debt investment has been made in any of the related companies.

a comprehensive credit analysis is carried out internally prior to making any investment in a debt security.
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as at 31st december 2014
Rs. ’000

% of
Allocation

2013
rs. ’000

% of
allocation

financial investments
debt securities – loans and receivables 19,485,506 62.54 18,659,562 72.39

debt securities – available-for-sale 11,671,181 37.46 7,116,244 27.61

31,156,687 100.0 25,775,807 100.0

CRedit Risk exPosuRe – GeneRal insuRanCe business 

as at 31st december 2014
Rs. ’000

% of
Allocation

2013
rs. ’000

% of
allocation

financial investments
debt securities – loans and receivables 9,827,141 97.92 6,133,611 98.81

debt securities – available-for-sale 209,225 2.08 74,095 1.19

10,036,367 100.0 6,207,706 100.0

debt seCuRities alloCation aCCoRdinG to CRedit RatinGs 
liFe insuRanCe business

as at 31st december 2014 2013

rating Rs. million % of
 total

rs. million % of 
total

aaa  4,454 14.16  4,258 16.90

aa+  12,968 41.22  11,666 46.31

aa  1,393 4.43  871 3.46

aa-  4,273 13.58  1,630 6.47

a+  3,157 10.03  2,441 9.69

a  206 0.65  461 1.83

a-  1,070 3.40  717 2.85

bbb+  1,515 4.82  697 2.77

bbb  307 0.97  205 0.81

bbb-  38 0.12  245 0.97

unrated  2,078 6.60  2,002 7.95

total  31,457 100.00  25,192 100.00

Credit Risk on Fixed Deposits is based on Credit Risk of the Bank.
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GeneRal insuRanCe business

as at 31st december 2014 2013

rating Rs. million % of
 total

rs. million % of 
total

aaa 1,422 14.17 1,319 21.25

aa+ 6,402 63.79 3,600 57.99

aa 141 1.40 12 0.20

aa- 964 9.61 487 7.84

a+ 174 1.73 174 2.80

a- 733 7.30 327 5.27

bbb+ 200 1.99 251 4.04

unrated – – 37 0.60

total 8,614 100.00 6,208 100.00

Credit Risk on Fixed Deposits is based on Credit Risk of the Bank.

44.3.4  the maximum CRedit exPosuRe

The carrying amount of the financial assets represent the maximum credit exposure. The 
maximum credit exposure to credit risk at the end of the reporting period was as follows:

consolidated company

for the year ended 31st december
notes

2014
Rs. ’000

2013
rs. ’000

2014
Rs. ’000

2013
rs. ’000

available-for-sale 5  11,880,406  7,190,339  11,880,406  7,190,339 

loans and receivables 5  29,312,647  24,793,173  29,312,647  24,793,173 

loans to policyholders 11 1,510,067 1,578,196 1,512,067 1,578,196

reinsurance receivable 12  1,206,845  1,446,243  1,206,845  1,446,243 

premium receivable from policyholders 13.1  2,858,302  3,030,141  2,858,302  3,030,141 

premium receivable from agents,  
   brokers and intermediaries 13.2  –    –    –    –   

Other receivables 15  6,684,328  1,222,834 3,577,063  1,222,834 

 51,942,528  37,682,730  51,942,528  37,682,730 
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liquidit y Risk
The risk of the company being unable to meet obligations due to inadequate availability of liquid assets is 
referred to as liquidity risk.

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the financial investments of the company based on 
remaining contractual obligations, including interest payable and receivable:

Maturity Analysis

company 

as at 31st december 2014

carrying
value

rs. ’000

up to 1
year

rs. ’000

1 to 2
years

rs. ’000

2 to 5
years

rs. ’000

5  to 10
years

rs. ’000

Over 10
years

rs. ’000

total 

rs. ’000

financial investments 
held-to-maturity  
  (htm) financial assets 26,076,867  1,150,000  400,000  15,936,230  2,000,000  6,900,000  26,386,230 

loans and receivables  
   (l&r) financial assets 31,740,973  34,997,660  525,000  455,000  –    –    35,977,660 

available-for-sale (afs) 
   financial assets 53,268,424  2,321,480  1,584,548  9,649,987  2,935,191  –    16,491,206 

fair-value-Through-     
   profit-or-loss (fvtpl)     
   financial assets  5,538,347    –    –    –    –    –    –   

 116,624, 612  38,469,140  2,509,548  26,041,217  4,935,191  6,900,000  78,855,096 

company

as at 31st december 2013

carrying
value

rs. ’000

up to 1
year

rs. ’000

1 to 2
years

rs. ’000

2 to 5
years

rs. ’000

5  to 10
years

rs. ’000

Over 10
years

rs. ’000

total 

rs. ’000

financial investments 
held-to-maturity  
  (htm) financial assets 19,324,293  900,000  650,000  15,336,230  3,385,000  2,400,000  22,671,230 

loans and receivables  
   (l&r) financial assets 30,048,030  26,145,623  2,735,000  525,000 – –  29,405,623 

available-for-sale (afs) 
   financial assets 39,442,223  1,840,000  2,321,480  6,925,865  1,572,397  1,362,794  14,022,536 

fair-value-Through-    
   profit-or-loss (fvtpl)     
   financial assets 5,956,726  –    –    –    –    –    –   

 94,771,272  28,885,623  5,706,480  22,787,095  4,957,397  3,762,794  66,099,389 
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45.  Commitments, ContinGenCies and GuaRantees
45.1  Commitments

The group does not have significant capital commitments as at the reporting date other than described below:

(a)  litRo Gas lanka ltd. 
There were capital commitments of rs. 250,907,700/- for new empty cylinders: mabima tank requalification, 
tank for volvo bowser and highway filling station.

(b)  litRo Gas teRminal lanka (Pvt) ltd.
financial commitments:

(i) litro gas terminal lanka (pvt) ltd. has an annual commitment to pay rs. 16,843,750/- (excluding 
taxes) as lease rental for the use of land.

(ii) litro gas terminal lanka (pvt) ltd. has paid rs. 30,720,225/- (excluding taxes) as lease rental for the 
use of storage facility at hambanthota port as year one rental.

litro gas terminal lanka (pvt) ltd. has capital commitments of rs. 20,935,460/- at the reporting date.

(C)  the lanka hosPitals CoRPoRation PlC 
Commitment on land lease
The lanka hospitals corporation plc has entered into a 99-year lease agreement with the urban development 
authority. in terms of this agreement, annual lease premiums payable are as follows:

year annual lease premiums
rs. ’000

1999 to 2003  9,273 (excluding taxes) 

2004 to 2025  18,547 (excluding taxes)

2026  9,273 (excluding taxes)

premiums paid on each installment is carried forward and amortised over the 99-year period, in accordance 
with the said agreement. 

from the year 2027, rs. 7,000/- per annum is payable as nominal ground rent for 5-years. Thereafter, the 
said ground rent will be revised every 5 years on the basis of an annual increase no greater than the average 
weighted deposit rate published by the central bank of sri lanka prevailing at the end of each year or 10% 
per annum whichever is lower.
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The future aggregate minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating lease by 2026 are as 
follows:

2014
Rs. ’000

2013
rs. ’000

not later than 1 year  18,546  185,467 

later than 1 year and not later than 5 years  74,186  74,186 

later than 5 years  120,552  139,099 

 213,284  398,752 

2014
Rs. ’000

2013
rs. ’000

(d)  aPPRoximate amount ContRaCted FoR but 
not inCuRRed 
sinolanka hotels & spa (pvt) ltd.  4,299,627  4,624,912 

helanco hotels & spa (pvt) ltd.  462,777 –

The lanka hospitals corporation plc  43,000 –

45.2  ContinGent liabilities and GuaRantees

There were no significant contingent liabilities and guarantees which no provision has been made in the 
accounts or approved by the board but not contracted as at the reporting date that would require adjustments 
to or disclosure in the financial statements, other than described below:

45.2.1  ContinGent liabilities
value added tax assessments issued by the CommissioneR GeneRal 
oF inland Revenue
in 2006, the commissioner general of inland revenue has issued value added tax assessments on 
reinsurance claims received from foreign reinsurers, for the years of assessments 2004/05 and 2005/06 
amounting to rs. 318,099,913/- and rs. 26,903,739/- respectively.

The company has filed valid appeals against these assessments. The board of review by the letter dated  
21st July 2010 determined that the assessments are valid. The company has made an appeal to the court of 
appeal contesting the determination made by the board of review. The company has provided the liability 
of rs. 345 million pending the decision of the court of appeal. 
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On 2nd april 2013, the commissioner general of inland revenue has issued a value added tax 
assessments on financial services for the taxable periods from 1st January 2010 to 31st december 2010 
amounting to rs. 2,363 million. The company has already made valid appeals against the assessments by the 
letter dated 3rd may 2013. appeals have been lodged against the assessments issued on incorrect reasons;  
and the commissioner general has determined the above liability as valid on 10th april 2015 and informed 
on 5th may 2015. The company has notified to the tax appeal commission of the intention of preferring 
an appeal to the commission against the determination of the commissioner general on 13th may 2015.

inCome taxes

On 28th november 2014 the commissioner general of inland revenue has issued an assessment on 
income tax for life insurance for the year of assessment 2011/12 amounting to rs. 524 million. company 
has already made valid appeal against the assessment by our letter dated 24th december 2014 have been 
lodged against the assessment issued on incorrect reasons. 

45.2.2  GuaRantees 
litRo Gas teRminal lanka (Pvt) ltd.
oPeRatinG lease With land ReClamation boaRd
according to lKas 17, the standard requires lease payments under an operating lease to be recognised as an 
expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term unless another systematic basis is more representative of 
the time pattern of the user’s benefit. litro gas terminal lanka (pvt) ltd. has an operating lease arrangement 
with land reclamation board where the lease term is 50 years and the rental increases by 175% in every five 
years. however, the litro gas terminal lanka (pvt) ltd., does not recognise the said lease on a straight-line 
basis since the directors are of the view that this represents a more systematic basis of the time pattern of 
the benefit.

46.  events aFteR the RePoRtinG date 

There were no significant events after the reporting date other than disclosed below:

46.1  suPeR Gain tax

The interim budget proposal presented by the minister of finance on 29th January 2015 and the pursuant 
bill gazette on 30th march 2015, imposed a one-off tax of 25% on taxable profits for the year of assessment 
2013/14 on any company or each company in a group of companies, if the company’s profit before income 
tax exceeds rs. 2,000 million. in the absence of applicability and measurement criteria for the computation 
of this tax at the time of publishing these financial statements, the company is not in a position to assess 
the impact of this one-off tax on these financials for the year ended 31st december 2014 and therefore no 
provision has been made on account of the said tax in these financial statements.
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ChanGe in boaRd oF diReCtoRs

The following directors who held office at 31st december 2014 ceased to be effective with effect from  
20th January 2015 from sri lanka insurance corporation ltd.:

mr. h.K. upali dharmadasa
mr. piyadasa Kudabalage 
mr. h. isuru balapatabendi
mr. nayana d.p. dehigama
mr. s.v.r. samarasinghe
ms. K.m.a.n. daulugala
 
The secretary to the treasury reconstituted the board by appointing the following directors: 

mr. hemaka d.s. amarasuriya (9th february 2015)
mr. t.m.r. bangsa Jayah (9th february 2015)
mr. p.p.J. perera (9th february 2015)
prof. l.g. chandrasena (20th January 2015)
mr. h. imal s. fonseka (20th January 2015)
mr. p. algama (20th January 2015)

47.  the seGReGation oF the liFe and GeneRal insuRanCe business

as stipulated in the amendment to the insurance act no. 03 of 2011, composite insurance companies are 
required to segregate the long-term insurance business and the general insurance business carried on by 
it, into two separately established companies and the said compliance was to be effective by 11th february 
2015. The company is currently discussing with the ministry of finance to agree a methodology to satisfy 
the legal framework. since the company has not been able to segregate the composite business due to the 
aforementioned facts, the disclosure requirements of the ‘guidelines on the presentation and disclosure of 
the long-term and general business under section 53 of the regulation of insurance industry (amendment) 
act no. 3 of 2011 issued by The institute of chartered accountants of sri lanka’ are not applicable.  



SRI LANKA INSURANCE CoRpoRAtIoN Ltd. – ANNUAL REpoRt 2014

254

48.  use oF teRminal FaCilit y by litRo Gas lanka ltd.

litro gas lanka ltd. obtains bulk storage facilities of lpg from litro terminal lanka (pvt) ltd. in obtaining 
this services, the company uses the latter’s own storage tanks, pipelines and pumping stations and pays a 
‘throughput fee’ to litro terminal for the facilities obtained. This throughput arrangement contains a lease 
arrangement identified under ifric 4 and, thus, constitute a finance lease arrangement as per the terms of 
the contract. however, in view of the storage facility of the terminal being available for other importers as 
well as the management’s intention to enter into contracts with other importers to store the lpg, the said 
storage facilities have not been recognised in the books of account of the company. however, during the 
year under review litro terminal had not entered into an agreement to lease out the facilities in absence of 
any favourable proposal from the prospective importers.

49.  PRinCiPle subsidiaRies and sub-subsidiaRies

company principal activities class of 
shares held

proportion 
of class 

held 
%

group 
interest

%

non-
controlling 

interest
%

The lanka hospitals corporation plc healthcare and laboratory services Ordinary 54.61 54.61 45.39

lanka hospitals diagnostics (pvt) ltd. healthcare and laboratory services Ordinary 100.00 54.61 45.39

litro gas lanka ltd. import, process, store, distribute and 
sell liquid petroleum gas (lpg) and  
provide Other incidental services Ordinary 100.00 100.00 0.00

litro gas terminal lanka (pvt) ltd. provide bulk storage facilities for  
liquid petroleum gas Ordinary 100.00 100.00 0.00

canowin hotels and spas (pvt) ltd hoteliering Ordinary 100.00 100.00 0.00

canwill holdings (pvt) ltd. investment promotion in relation  
to leisure sector Ordinary 72.97 72.97 27.03

sinolanka hotels & spa (pvt) ltd. hoteliering Ordinary 100.00 72.97 27.03

helanco hotels & spa (pvt) ltd. hoteliering Ordinary 100.00 72.97 27.03

management services rakshana (pvt) ltd. management services Ordinary 100.00 100.00 0.00

50.  non-ContRollinG inteRest 

The group has not identified any non controlling interest which is material to the group on qualitative and 
quantitative basis. 

aCquisition oF non-ContRollinG inteRest

in march 2014, the group increased its shareholding in canwill holdings (pvt) ltd. and its subsidiaries  
[sinolanka hotels & spa (pvt) ltd. and helanco hotels & spa (pvt) ltd.] from 58.33% to 72.97% [representing 
a increase in shares held to 350,000,000 of canwill holdings (pvt) ltd.].
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8.0
Supplementary Information 

AdditionAl informAtion 
thAt is supportive of the 

chApters found elsewhere 
in the report
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8.1.0 Statement of financial PoSition of the  
life inSurance

As at 31st december note 2014
 rs.  

2013
 rs.  

assets
financial investments A  91,456,550  73,643,020 

investment in subsidiaries B  1,457,914  1,457,914 

loans to life policyholders c  1,510,067  1,578,196 

premium receivable  270,208  327,754 

reinsurance receivable  29,080  39,978 

deferred tax Assets  86,630  56,469 

other Assets d  1,606,799  2,373,771 

property, plant & equipment e  42,172  55,969 

cash and cash equivalents  2,638,102  6,663,628 

total Assets  99,097,521  86,196,699 

equity and liabilities
Equity
revaluation reserve  27,877  40,892 

Available-for-sale reserve f  17,493,276  10,272,074 

revenue reserves G  4,434,340  4,570,968 

policyholder reserve fund h  (3,328,929)  (510,888)

 18,626,565  14,373,045 

Liabilities
insurance contract liabilities - life i  77,254,498  69,079,061 

reinsurance payable  –  18,467 

employee Benefits  319,660  221,490 

current tax liabilities  800,664  852,393 

other liabilities J  1,925,815  1,523,134 

financial liabilities  170,319  129,109 

total liabilities  80,470,956  71,823,654 

total equity and liabilities  99,097,521  86,196,699 
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8.2.0 noteS to the financial StatementS –  
life inSurance fund

2014 2013

note carrying 
Value

 rs. ’000 

fair
Value

 rs. ’000

carrying
value

rs. ’000 

fair 
value

 rs. ’000

a. FinanciaL invEstmEnts
held-to-maturity (htm) A.1 26,029,372 29,781,688 18,746,003 20,123,228

loans and receivables (l & r) A.2 21,697,982 21,695,721 20,626,183 20,622,023

Available-for-sale (Afs) A.3 38,606,810 38,606,810 28,886,521 28,886,521

fair-value-Through-profit-or-loss (fvtpl) A.4 5,122,386 5,122,386 5,384,313 5,384,313

91,456,550 95,206,605 73,643,020 75,016,084

a.1 HELd-to-maturit y (Htm)
treasury Bills 487,576 490,450 – –

treasury Bonds 25,541,796 29,291,238 18,746,003 20,123,228

26,029,372 29,781,688 18,746,003 20,123,228

a.2 Loans and rEcEivabLEs (L & r)
unlisted debentures A.2.1 1,067,143 1,064,882 1,590,689 1,586,528

fixed deposits 18,418,363 18,418,363 17,068,873 17,068,873

development Bonds 2,212,476 2,212,476 1,966,621 1,966,621

21,697,982 21,695,721 20,626,183 20,622,023

2014 2013

maturity
date

face
Value

rs. ’000

carrying
Value

rs. ’000

fair
Value

rs. ’000

maturity
date

face
value

rs. ’000

carrying
value

rs. ’000

fair
value

rs. ’000

a.2.1 unListEd  dEbEnturEs
commercial Bank of ceylon plc 15.05.2016 125,000 141,608 134,834 15.05.2016 125,000 141,608 131,784

people’s leasing & finance plc – – – – 26.04.2014 500,000 515,375 515,375

singer sri lanka plc 30.04.2015 250,000 254,040 254,040 30.04.2015 250,000 255,327 255,327

central finance plc 24.05.2015 500,000 521,138 521,138 24.05.2015 500,000 528,015 528,015

siyapatha finance plc 17.12.2015 50,000 50,336 54,848 17.12.2015 50,000 50,336 55,999

national development Bank plc 30.06.2016 100,000 100,021 100,021 30.06.2016 100,000 100,028 100,028

1,025,000 1,067,143 1,064,882 1,525,000 1,590,689 1,586,528
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2014 2013

note carrying 
Value

 rs. ’000 

fair
Value

 rs. ’000

carrying
value

rs. ’000 

fair 
value

 rs. ’000

a.3 avaiLabLE-For-saLE (aFs)
listed stocks A.3.1 21,721,843 21,721,843 14,758,515 14,758,515

unit trusts A.3.2 900,350 900,350 1,209,103 1,209,103

listed debentures A.3.3 11,671,181 11,671,181 7,116,244 7,116,244

treasury Bills – – 483,700 483,700

treasury Bonds 4,313,436 4,313,436 5,318,958 5,318,958

38,606,810 38,606,810 28,886,521 28,886,521

2014 2013

no. of 
Shares

carrying
Value

rs. ’000

fair
Value

rs. ’000

no. of 
shares

face
value

rs. ’000

carrying
value

rs. ’000

a.3.1 ListEd stocks
Bank, finance and insurance
commercial Bank of ceylon plc 40,851,867 6,985,669 6,985,669 40,219,594 4,870,593 4,870,593

dfcc Bank plc 26,509,832 5,805,653 5,805,653 26,509,832 3,433,023 3,433,023

seylan Bank plc 8,798,869 835,893 835,893 8,798,869 571,047 571,047

hatton national Bank plc 31,503,954 6,143,271 6,143,271 31,503,954 4,631,081 4,631,081

national development Bank plc 7,805,426 1,951,357 1,951,357 7,805,426 1,252,771 1,252,771

21,721,843 21,721,843 14,758,515 14,758,515

a.3.2 unit trusts
ceybank unit trust 17,000,000 549,100 549,100 33,035,291 852,641 852,641

ceylon income fund 25,000,000 351,250 351,250 27,004,714 356,462 356,462

900,350 900,350 1,209,103 1,209,103
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As at 31st december 2014 2013

maturity
date

face
Value

rs. ’000

carrying
Value

rs. ’000

fair
Value

rs. ’000

maturity
date

face
value

rs. ’000

carrying
value

rs. ’000

fair
value

rs. ’000

a.3.3  ListEd dEbEnturEs 
Banks, finance and insurance
Bank of ceylon 29.11.2017 500,000 507,014 507,014 29.11.2017 500,000 507,014 507,014

Bank of ceylon 24.10.2018 287,970 294,944 294,944 24.10.2018 287,970 294,944 294,944

Bank of ceylon 21.09.2019 500,000 510,768 510,768 – – – –

Bank of ceylon 24.10.2023 67,050 80,381 80,381 24.10.2023 67,050 68,768 68,768

hatton national Bank plc 12.06.2018 316,717 341,256 341,256 12.06.2018 316,717 341,256 341,256

hatton national Bank plc 14.12.2019 500,000 501,805 501,805 – – – –

hatton national Bank plc 31.03.2021 478,459 249,130 249,130 31.03.2021 478,459 224,437 224,437

hatton national Bank plc 30.08.2023 126,888 92,435 92,435 30.08.2023 126,888 90,506 90,506

hatton national Bank plc 31.03.2024 1,362,794 508,121 508,121 31.03.2024 1,362,794 456,742 456,742

commercial Bank of ceylon plc 18.12.2016 250,000 285,032 285,032 18.12.2016 250,000 285,032 285,032

national development Bank plc 19.12.2023 750,000 984,600 984,600 19.12.2023 750,000 753,713 753,713

seylan Bank plc 21.02.2018 449,520 473,905 473,905 21.02.2018 449,520 473,905 473,905

seylan Bank plc 22.12.2019 500,000 501,060 501,060 – – – –

sampath Bank plc 11.10.2017 36,600 45,201 45,201 11.10.2017 36,600 45,201 45,201

sampath Bank plc 04.12.2018 340,190 362,484 362,484 04.12.2018 340,190 343,583 343,583

sampath Bank plc 14.12.2019 500,000 501,886 501,886 – – – –

nations trust Bank plc 04.08.2016 200,000 209,041 209,041 04.08.2016 200,000 209,041 209,041

dfcc vardhana Bank plc 07.09.2016 74,074 74,090 74,090 07.09.2016 74,074 74,095 74,095

pan Asia Banking corporation plc 18.03.2017 200,000 205,647 205,647 18.03.2017 200,000 207,784 207,784

The housing development finance  
   corporation Bank of sri lanka 23.10.2018 100,000 122,470 122,470 23.10.2018 100,000 103,970 103,970

merchant Bank of sri lanka plc – – – – 15.11.2014 140,000 148,245 148,245

merchant Bank of sri lanka plc 11.12.2019 113,520 114,892 114,892 – – – –

people’s leasing & finance plc 23.09.2017 750,000 767,800 767,800 – – – –

people’s leasing & finance plc 26.03.2018 105,900 135,863 135,863 26.03.2018 105,900 123,960 123,960

people’s leasing & finance plc 23.09.2018 750,000 769,580 769,580 – – – –

lB finance plc 28.11.2018 220,670 236,800 236,800 28.11.2018 220,670 223,563 223,563

lanka oriX leasing company plc 30.06.2015 100,000 105,846 105,846 30.06.2015 100,000 105,846 105,846

senkadagala finance plc 10.12.2018 100,000 100,853 100,853 10.12.2018 100,000 100,863 100,863

citizens development Business  
   finance plc 19.12.2018 37,350 37,556 37,556 19.12.2018 37,350 37,556 37,556

softlogic finance plc* 29.08.2019 12,600 13,061 13,061 – – – –

* Guaranteed by Guarant co. ltd. which is ultimately owned by multilateral G10 governments.
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As at 31st december 2014 2013

maturity
date

face
Value

rs. ’000

carrying
Value

rs. ’000

fair
Value

rs. ’000

maturity
date

face
value

rs. ’000

carrying
value

rs. ’000

fair
value

rs. ’000

diversified holdings
hayleys plc 09.07.2016 80,800 83,702 83,702 09.07.2016 80,800 80,800 80,800

hemas holdings plc 29.04.2019 119,970 125,900 125,900 – – – –

richard pieris and company plc 16.05.2017 29,580 30,739 30,739 – – – –

heathcare

nawaloka hospitals plc 30.09.2021 150,000 155,425 155,425 30.09.2021 150,000 155,484 155,484

trading

Abans plc 20.12.2018 400,000 481,798 481,798 20.12.2018 400,000 401,907 401,907

Beverages, food and tobacco

The lion Brewery ceylon plc 17.06.2016 105,600 109,193 109,193 17.06.2016 105,600 109,193 109,193

The lion Brewery ceylon plc 17.06.2017 105,600 109,260 109,260 17.06.2017 105,600 109,260 109,260

The lion Brewery ceylon plc 17.06.2018 140,800 145,769 145,769 17.06.2018 140,800 145,769 145,769

The lion Brewery ceylon plc 08.12.2019 400,000 402,065 402,065 – – – –

land and Property

urban development Authority* 05.10.2015 871,480 893,808 893,808 05.10.2015 871,480 893,808 893,808

12,134,132 11,671,181 11,671,181 8,098,462 7,116,244 7,116,244

* treasury Guaranteed.

2014 2013

note carrying 
Value

 rs. ’000 

fair
Value

 rs. ’000

carrying
value

rs. ’000 

fair 
value

 rs. ’000

a.4 Fair-vaLuE-tHrougH  
   ProFit-or-Loss (FvtPL)
listed stocks A.4.1 5,122,386 5,122,386 5,384,313 5,384,313

5,122,386 5,122,386 5,384,313 5,384,313

fvtpl investments and Afs investments are valued at fair value. htm and l&r investments are valued at  
amortised cost.
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2014 2013

no. of 
Shares

carrying
Value

rs. ’000

fair
Value

rs. ’000

no. of 
shares

carrying
value

rs. ’000

fair
value

rs. ’000

a.4.1 ListEd stocks
Bank, finance and insurance

sampath Bank plc 287,487 67,559 67,559 387,487 66,609 66,609

seylan Bank plc (nv) – – – 359,000 11,057 11,057

pan Asia Banking corporation plc – – – 1,394,666 21,617 21,617

lB finance plc 1,842,900 305,921 305,921 1,842,900 188,160 188,160

nation lanka finance plc 979,500 4,800 4,800 979,500 6,954 6,954

 

investment trusts

renuka holdings plc 1,526,316 47,926 47,926 1,526,316 46,705 46,705

diversified holdings

hemas holdings plc – – – 5,160,700 175,464 175,464

John Keells holdings plc 611,176 152,794 152,794 611,176 137,515 137,515

vallibel one plc 65,900 1,582 1,582 65,900 1,081 1,081

colombo fort land & Building plc – – – 3,020,600 85,181 85,181

footwear and textiles

hayleys mGt Knitting mills plc – – – 78,800 875 875

hotel and travel

Aitken spence hotel holdings plc 5,518,727 435,979 435,979 7,268,727 543,701 543,701

Asian hotels & properties plc 10,055,900 688,829 688,829 10,055,900 653,634 653,634

John Keells hotels plc 71,622,800 1,231,912 1,231,912 72,747,800 909,348 909,348

Anilana hotels & properties ltd. 2,500,000 20,000 20,000 2,500,000 19,000 19,000

manufacturing

sierra cables plc – – – 800 1 1

lanka cement plc 509,700 3,415 3,415 509,700 3,364 3,364

Acl cables plc 558,557 42,618 42,618 2,100,200 136,513 136,513

tokyo cement company (lanka) plc – – – 2,013,412 57,382 57,382

tokyo cement company (lanka) plc  
   (nv) – – – 3,207,320 75,372 75,372

royal ceramics plc 1,353,186 158,323 158,323 2,183,279 187,762 187,762

lanka walltiles plc 807,600 79,064 79,064 807,600 43,287 43,287
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2014 2013

no. of 
Shares

carrying
Value

rs. ’000

fair
Value

rs. ’000

no. of 
shares

carrying
value

rs. ’000

fair
value

rs. ’000

trading

Brown & company plc 906,990 97,048 97,048 906,990 77,094 77,094

tess Agro plc 33,993,806 54,390 54,390 35,173,600 45,726 45,726

motors

c m holdings plc 392,076 50,578 50,578 571,428 48,000 48,000

diesel & motor engineering plc – – – 315,466 151,739 151,739

telecommunications

dialog Axiata plc – – – 12,572,823 113,155 113,155

sri lanka telecom plc 17,713,735 894,544 894,544 17,713,735 655,408 655,408

Plantations

talawakelle tea estates plc – – – 105,600 2,534 2,534

Power and energy

lanka ioc plc – – – 271,362 8,955 8,955

laugfs Gas plc 3,900 158 158 3,900 111 111

information technology

pc house plc 876,700 263 263 876,700 526 526

chemicals and Pharmaceuticals

cic holdings plc – – – 3,409,594 163,661 163,661

land and Property

overseas reality (ceylon) plc 3,472,300 91,321 91,321 3,472,300 64,238 64,238

construction and engineering

colombo dockyard plc 3,592,548 693,362 693,362 3,592,548 682,584 682,584

5,122,386 5,122,386 5,384,313 5,384,313
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2014
 rs. ’000

2013
 rs. ’000

b. invEstmEnts in subsidiariEs
1,457,914 1,457,914

2014 2013

note carrying 
Value

 rs. ’000 

fair
Value

 rs. ’000

carrying
value

rs. ’000 

fair 
value

 rs. ’000

at cost
listed subsidiaries B.1 1,457,914 3,172,673 1,457,914 2,676,943

1,457,914 3,172,673 1,457,914 2,676,943

2014 2013

no. of 
Share

 

carrying
Value 

rs. ’000

no. of 
share

carrying
value 

 rs. ’000

b.1 ListEd subsidiariEs
The lanka hospitals corporation plc 66,097,350 1,457,914 66,097,350 1,457,914

1,457,914 1,457,914

2014
 rs.  

2013
 rs.  

c.  Loans to LiFE PoLicyHoLdErs
policyholder loans 1,510,067 1,578,196

1,510,067 1,578,196

d.  otHEr assEts
inventories 10,743 10,573

other debtors and receivables 662,905 1,131,210

other loans 773,391 734,994

investment receivables – –

Amount due from General division – 275,611

prepaid Benefit on loans 159,759 221,383

1,606,799 2,373,771
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e.  ProPert y, Pl ant and equiPment

land 

rs. ’000

Building

rs. ’000

equipment

rs. ’000

furniture & 
fittings
rs. ’000

Generator 

rs. ’000

electrical 
fixtures
rs. ’000

others

rs. ’000

total

rs. ’000

cost

Balance as at 01.01.2014 36,153 20,859 218,077 50,361 8,681 9,376 87 343,595

Additions – – – – – – – –

revaluation (4,250) (10,590) – – – – – (14,840)

Balance as at 31.12.2014 31,903 10,269 218,077 50,361 8,681 9,376 87 328,755

depreciation

Balance as at 01.01.2014 – 1,043 218,077 50,361 8,681 9,376 87 287,625

depreciation charge for the period – 1,043 – – – – – 1,043

transferred to revaluation reserve (2,086) (2,086)

Balance as at 31.12.2014 – – 218,077 50,361 8,681 9,376 87 286,582

carrying amount

as at 31st december 2013 31,903 10,269 – – – – – 42,172

F.  avaiLabLE-For-saLE rEsErvE
life policyholders are entitled to rs. 8,692,622,741/- and shareholders are entitled for rs. 1,579,451,199/- respectively.

2014
 rs.  

2013
 rs.  

g.  rEvEnuE rEsErvE 
General reserve 42,101 42,101

reserve on Actuarial Gain/(loss) on retirement Benefit (58,424) –

surplus from life insurance (note G.1) 4,450,664 4,528,867

4,434,340 4,570,968

g.1  surPLus From LiFE insurancE
Balance as at 1st January 4,528,867 8,268,739

surplus Attributable to shareholders from life insurance 1,612,402 1,721,809

other comprehensive income for the Year – –

transferred to shareholders (1,690,605) (5,461,681)

Balance as at 31st december 4,450,664 4,528,867
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2014
 rs.  

2013
 rs.  

H.  PoLicyHoLdEr rEsErvE Fund
Balance as at 1st January (510,888) 806,271

change in fair value measurements Applicable to life contract liability (2,818,040) (1,317,160)

Balance as at 31st december (3,328,929) (510,888)

i.   insurancE contract LiabiLitiEs – LiFE 
life Assurance fund 66,511,608 60,084,899

movement of the fund 6,988,818 6,831,358

other comprehensive income for the Year – –

transferred from life policyholders reserve fund 2,818,040 1,317,160

transfers of surplus from long-term insurance Business (1,612,402) (1,721,809)

74,706,065 66,511,608

policyholder outstanding claims 2,548,432 2,567,453

77,254,498 69,079,061

j.   otHEr LiabiLitiEs
Agency commission payable 166,251 134,690

premium received in Advance 373,422 241,263

Amount due to General division 92,630 –

trade creditors and Accrued expenses 1,293,512 1,147,181

1,925,815 1,523,134
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8.3.1  Statement of income

slfrss/lKAss slAss

2014

rs. ’000

2013

rs. ’000

2012
restated
rs. ’000

2011
restated
rs. ’000

2010

rs. ’000

2009

rs. ’000

2008

rs. ’000

2007

rs. ’000

2006

rs. ’000

2005

rs. ’000

non-life
Gross written premium  12,544,828  12,953,151  12,803,592  11,477,600  9,266,637  8,764,542  9,140,844  8,845,352  6,643,634  6,621,006 

net earned premiums  9,820,149  9,504,974  9,487,217  7,828,645  6,034,185  6,592,541  6,478,099  5,262,586  4,031,808  4,280,599 

net claims incurred  (6,205,796)  (4,934,074)  (6,194,011)  (4,970,962)  (2,885,793)  (5,379,207)  (4,819,146)  (3,866,706)  (3,509,847)  (2,313,991)

operating and Administration expenses  (3,977,372)  (2,851,002)  (2,008,724)  (2,129,682)  (1,917,877)  (2,188,042) 2,022,975  (2,217,357) (1,443,369)  (1,467,795)

investment and other income  2,224,733  2,516,799  2,064,835  (245,498)  10,112,693  1,940,038  1,202,306  974,643  1,475,458  715,804 

profit before taxation  1,861,713  3,736,069  2,829,411  158,513  11,343,207  965,330  838,283  153,167  554,051  1,214,617 

taxation  (217,101)  (803,033)  (900,971)  (407,432)  (843,740)  (233,096)  (254,598)  83,336  5,652  (134,189)

profit after taxation  1,644,613  2,933,035  1,928,440  (248,919)  10,499,467  732,232  583,685  236,503  559,703  1,080,428 

long term
Gross written premium  8,121,159  8,397,718  7,369,032  6,743,073  6,009,859  4,819,860  4,497,919  4,477,632  3,923,374  3,550,511 

net written premium  7,984,758  8,300,082  7,281,225  6,593,457  5,945,561  4,769,590  4,381,490  4,356,180  3,848,363  3,438,723 

investment and other income 9,272,341  7,658,997  6,811,040  3,236,025  13,026,350  7,227,092  5,398,818  4,480,740  3,908,694  3,267,900 

claims incurred  (5,733,524)  (4,870,410)  (4,089,232)  (3,592,818)  (4,957,675)  (3,831,985)  (3,289,846)  (2,502,466)  (2,188,818)  (2,064,039)

commission expenses  (485,323)  (1,053,299)  (1,088,644)  (933,627)  (648,033)  (547,848)  (552,689)  (492,431) (395,926)  (346,135)

management expenses  (2,507,803) 2,307,020  (2,146,961)  (2,129,210)  (1,483,218)  (1,317,279)  (2,037,946)  (1,679,168) (1,294,991)  (1,033,132)

increase in life fund Before taxation  7,887,842 7,728,350 6,767,312 3,173,803  11,882,985  6,299,570  3,899,827  4,162,855  3,877,322  3,263,316 

taxation  (899,025)  (897,006)  (726,442)  (813,114)  (1,151,175)  (1,075,883)  (793,213)  (634,884) (556,641)  (312,587)

increase in life fund  6,988,817 6,831,344 6,040,870 2,360,689  10,731,810  5,223,687  3,106,614  3,527,971  3,320,681  2,950,729 

8.3.0 ten year Summary
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8.3.1  Statement of income

slfrss/lKAss slAss

2014

rs. ’000

2013

rs. ’000

2012
restated
rs. ’000

2011
restated
rs. ’000

2010

rs. ’000

2009

rs. ’000

2008

rs. ’000

2007

rs. ’000

2006

rs. ’000

2005

rs. ’000

non-life
Gross written premium  12,544,828  12,953,151  12,803,592  11,477,600  9,266,637  8,764,542  9,140,844  8,845,352  6,643,634  6,621,006 

net earned premiums  9,820,149  9,504,974  9,487,217  7,828,645  6,034,185  6,592,541  6,478,099  5,262,586  4,031,808  4,280,599 

net claims incurred  (6,205,796)  (4,934,074)  (6,194,011)  (4,970,962)  (2,885,793)  (5,379,207)  (4,819,146)  (3,866,706)  (3,509,847)  (2,313,991)

operating and Administration expenses  (3,977,372)  (2,851,002)  (2,008,724)  (2,129,682)  (1,917,877)  (2,188,042) 2,022,975  (2,217,357) (1,443,369)  (1,467,795)

investment and other income  2,224,733  2,516,799  2,064,835  (245,498)  10,112,693  1,940,038  1,202,306  974,643  1,475,458  715,804 

profit before taxation  1,861,713  3,736,069  2,829,411  158,513  11,343,207  965,330  838,283  153,167  554,051  1,214,617 

taxation  (217,101)  (803,033)  (900,971)  (407,432)  (843,740)  (233,096)  (254,598)  83,336  5,652  (134,189)

profit after taxation  1,644,613  2,933,035  1,928,440  (248,919)  10,499,467  732,232  583,685  236,503  559,703  1,080,428 

long term
Gross written premium  8,121,159  8,397,718  7,369,032  6,743,073  6,009,859  4,819,860  4,497,919  4,477,632  3,923,374  3,550,511 

net written premium  7,984,758  8,300,082  7,281,225  6,593,457  5,945,561  4,769,590  4,381,490  4,356,180  3,848,363  3,438,723 

investment and other income 9,272,341  7,658,997  6,811,040  3,236,025  13,026,350  7,227,092  5,398,818  4,480,740  3,908,694  3,267,900 

claims incurred  (5,733,524)  (4,870,410)  (4,089,232)  (3,592,818)  (4,957,675)  (3,831,985)  (3,289,846)  (2,502,466)  (2,188,818)  (2,064,039)

commission expenses  (485,323)  (1,053,299)  (1,088,644)  (933,627)  (648,033)  (547,848)  (552,689)  (492,431) (395,926)  (346,135)

management expenses  (2,507,803) 2,307,020  (2,146,961)  (2,129,210)  (1,483,218)  (1,317,279)  (2,037,946)  (1,679,168) (1,294,991)  (1,033,132)

increase in life fund Before taxation  7,887,842 7,728,350 6,767,312 3,173,803  11,882,985  6,299,570  3,899,827  4,162,855  3,877,322  3,263,316 

taxation  (899,025)  (897,006)  (726,442)  (813,114)  (1,151,175)  (1,075,883)  (793,213)  (634,884) (556,641)  (312,587)

increase in life fund  6,988,817 6,831,344 6,040,870 2,360,689  10,731,810  5,223,687  3,106,614  3,527,971  3,320,681  2,950,729 
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slfrss/lKAss slAss

2014

rs. ’000

2013

rs. ’000

2012
restated
rs. ’000

2011
restated
rs. ’000

2010

rs. ’000

2009

rs. ’000

2008

rs. ’000

2007

rs. ’000

2006

rs. ’000

2005

rs. ’000

total Business 
revenue             32,163,061 31,526,665  25,644,316  17,207,927  43,777,495  22,306,632  17,460,713  15,074,148  13,264,324  11,703,025 

Gross written premium  20,665,987  21,350,869  20,172,624  18,220,673  15,239,001  13,584,399  13,638,763  13,322,984  10,567,008  10,171,517 

net earned premiums  17,804,907  17,805,056  16,768,442  14,422,101  11,942,251  11,362,130  10,859,589  9,618,766  7,880,171  7,719,321 

Benefits, losses and expenses  (18,928,978)  (16,467,961)  (15,625,260)  (7,718,624)  (22,203,564)  (16,673,008)  (13,450,368)  (12,537,143) (10,683,110)  (8,867,951)

investment and other income  11,497,074  10,175,796  8,875,874  2,785,827  28,538,494  10,945,554  6,601,124  5,455,383  5,384,152  3,983,705 

operating and Administrative expenses (6,970,498) (6,211,321)  (4,155,798)  (4,054,218)  (3,185,346)  (2,776,014)  (2,248,664)  (1,748,956) (1,470,521)  (1,307,872)

profit Before taxation  4,373,139  6,354,869  5,863,255  5,435,086  15,130,395  2,851,431  1,631,497  788,051  1,110,692  1,527,203 

taxation  (1,116,126)  (1,700,039)  (1,627,413)  (1,220,547)  (1,860,560)  (1,322,893)  (1,047,811)  (551,548) (550,989)  (446,776)

profit After taxation  3,257,014  4,654,830  4,235,842  4,214,539  13,269,836  1,528,566  583,685  236,503  559,703  1,080,427 
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slfrss/lKAss slAss

2014

rs. ’000

2013

rs. ’000

2012
restated
rs. ’000

2011
restated
rs. ’000

2010

rs. ’000

2009

rs. ’000

2008

rs. ’000

2007

rs. ’000

2006

rs. ’000

2005

rs. ’000

total Business 
revenue             32,163,061 31,526,665  25,644,316  17,207,927  43,777,495  22,306,632  17,460,713  15,074,148  13,264,324  11,703,025 

Gross written premium  20,665,987  21,350,869  20,172,624  18,220,673  15,239,001  13,584,399  13,638,763  13,322,984  10,567,008  10,171,517 

net earned premiums  17,804,907  17,805,056  16,768,442  14,422,101  11,942,251  11,362,130  10,859,589  9,618,766  7,880,171  7,719,321 

Benefits, losses and expenses  (18,928,978)  (16,467,961)  (15,625,260)  (7,718,624)  (22,203,564)  (16,673,008)  (13,450,368)  (12,537,143) (10,683,110)  (8,867,951)

investment and other income  11,497,074  10,175,796  8,875,874  2,785,827  28,538,494  10,945,554  6,601,124  5,455,383  5,384,152  3,983,705 

operating and Administrative expenses (6,970,498) (6,211,321)  (4,155,798)  (4,054,218)  (3,185,346)  (2,776,014)  (2,248,664)  (1,748,956) (1,470,521)  (1,307,872)

profit Before taxation  4,373,139  6,354,869  5,863,255  5,435,086  15,130,395  2,851,431  1,631,497  788,051  1,110,692  1,527,203 

taxation  (1,116,126)  (1,700,039)  (1,627,413)  (1,220,547)  (1,860,560)  (1,322,893)  (1,047,811)  (551,548) (550,989)  (446,776)

profit After taxation  3,257,014  4,654,830  4,235,842  4,214,539  13,269,836  1,528,566  583,685  236,503  559,703  1,080,427 
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8.3.2  Statement of financial PoSition

slfrss/lKAss slAss

2014

rs. ’000

2013

rs. ’000

2012
restated
rs. ’000

2011
restated
rs. ’000

2010
restated
rs. ’000

2009

rs. ’000

2008

rs. ’000

2007

rs. ’000

2006

rs. ’000

2005

rs. ’000

assets
property, plant & equipment  37,143,633  32,337,013  27,909,258  16,531,061  15,955,573  6,926,428  4,748,020  3,785,584  3,826,497  3,118,738 

investments  116,624,657  94,771,272  88,784,965  93,335,443  98,061,820  56,626,575  43,191,685  40,303,650  32,919,361  21,532,711 

other Assets  41,314,624  45,113,975  36,136,924  21,494,742  25,282,852  11,545,918  16,818,869  14,008,393  15,813,698  21,905,509 

total Assets  195,082,914  172,222,260  152,831,147  131,361,246  139,300,245  75,098,921  64,758,574  58,097,627  52,559,556  46,556,958 

equity and liabilities
share capital  6,000,000  6,000,000  6,000,000  6,000,000  6,000,000  6,000,000  6,000,000  6,000,000  6,000,000  6,000,000 

capital  reserve  9,346,422  8,738,238  9,161,368  4,638,021  5,359,282  1,457,507  1,448,135  536,339  536,339 

General reserve  643,442  643,442  643,442  643,442  643,442  643,442  601,342  601,342  601,342  601,342 

Avaliable-for-sale reserve  26,525,252  15,364,711  12,521,041  13,190,776  25,704,419 – – – – –

revenue reserve  36,856,370  32,635,520  25,022,161  19,046,744  20,990,007  3,481,934  1,487,222  1,095,375  1,258,871  1,099,169 

non-controlling interest 7,246,077 7,054,574  1,647,284  1,522,687  2,041,104  911,246 – – – –

total capital and reserves  86,596,534  70,453,741  54,995,296  45,041,670  60,738,254  12,494,129  9,536,699  8,233,056  8,396,552  7,700,511 

liabilities
insurance provision – long term  77,254,496  69,079,061  62,526,048  58,494,522  52,573,602  43,956,012  39,470,887  35,654,300  31,947,127  28,496,288 

insurance provision – non-life  13,195,783  13,288,956  14,297,803  13,132,830  11,772,953  11,804,983  10,636,192  9,887,724  8,342,175  6,255,057 

other liabilities  18,036,101  19,400,502  21,012,000  14,692,223  14,215,436  6,843,796  5,114,796  4,322,547  35,820,829  3,912,201 

total liabilities  108,486,380  101,768,519  97,835,851  86,319,575  78,561,991  62,604,792  55,221,875  49,864,571  44,163,004  38,856,447 

total equity and liabilities  195,082,914  172,222,260  152,831,147  131,361,245  139,300,245  75,098,921  64,758,574  58,097,627  52,559,556  46,556,958 
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8.3.2  Statement of financial PoSition

slfrss/lKAss slAss

2014

rs. ’000

2013

rs. ’000

2012
restated
rs. ’000

2011
restated
rs. ’000

2010
restated
rs. ’000

2009

rs. ’000

2008

rs. ’000

2007

rs. ’000

2006

rs. ’000

2005

rs. ’000

assets
property, plant & equipment  37,143,633  32,337,013  27,909,258  16,531,061  15,955,573  6,926,428  4,748,020  3,785,584  3,826,497  3,118,738 

investments  116,624,657  94,771,272  88,784,965  93,335,443  98,061,820  56,626,575  43,191,685  40,303,650  32,919,361  21,532,711 

other Assets  41,314,624  45,113,975  36,136,924  21,494,742  25,282,852  11,545,918  16,818,869  14,008,393  15,813,698  21,905,509 

total Assets  195,082,914  172,222,260  152,831,147  131,361,246  139,300,245  75,098,921  64,758,574  58,097,627  52,559,556  46,556,958 

equity and liabilities
share capital  6,000,000  6,000,000  6,000,000  6,000,000  6,000,000  6,000,000  6,000,000  6,000,000  6,000,000  6,000,000 

capital  reserve  9,346,422  8,738,238  9,161,368  4,638,021  5,359,282  1,457,507  1,448,135  536,339  536,339 

General reserve  643,442  643,442  643,442  643,442  643,442  643,442  601,342  601,342  601,342  601,342 

Avaliable-for-sale reserve  26,525,252  15,364,711  12,521,041  13,190,776  25,704,419 – – – – –

revenue reserve  36,856,370  32,635,520  25,022,161  19,046,744  20,990,007  3,481,934  1,487,222  1,095,375  1,258,871  1,099,169 

non-controlling interest 7,246,077 7,054,574  1,647,284  1,522,687  2,041,104  911,246 – – – –

total capital and reserves  86,596,534  70,453,741  54,995,296  45,041,670  60,738,254  12,494,129  9,536,699  8,233,056  8,396,552  7,700,511 

liabilities
insurance provision – long term  77,254,496  69,079,061  62,526,048  58,494,522  52,573,602  43,956,012  39,470,887  35,654,300  31,947,127  28,496,288 

insurance provision – non-life  13,195,783  13,288,956  14,297,803  13,132,830  11,772,953  11,804,983  10,636,192  9,887,724  8,342,175  6,255,057 

other liabilities  18,036,101  19,400,502  21,012,000  14,692,223  14,215,436  6,843,796  5,114,796  4,322,547  35,820,829  3,912,201 

total liabilities  108,486,380  101,768,519  97,835,851  86,319,575  78,561,991  62,604,792  55,221,875  49,864,571  44,163,004  38,856,447 

total equity and liabilities  195,082,914  172,222,260  152,831,147  131,361,245  139,300,245  75,098,921  64,758,574  58,097,627  52,559,556  46,556,958 
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slfrss/lKAss slAss

2014

rs. ’000

2013

rs. ’000

2012
restated
rs. ’000

2011
restated
rs. ’000

2010
restated
rs. ’000

2009

rs. ’000

2008

rs. ’000

2007

rs. ’000

2006

rs. ’000

2005

rs. ’000

long term – Supplemental
assets
property, plant & equipment  42,172  55,969  57,012  46,553  53,343  63,305  107,748  134,488  140,960  151,205 

investments  92,914,463  73,643,020  73,029,822  72,799,868  74,540,011  42,219,092  30,815,851  28,201,706  21,325,082  18,113,080 

other Assets  5,640,884  12,553,679  9,497,112  4,850,532  11,865,314  6,216,560  11,054,551  9,079,332  11,993,334  11,876,465 

total Assets  98,597,519  86,196,699  82,583,945  77,696,953  86,458,668  48,498,957  41,978,150  37,415,526  33,459,376  30,140,750 

Liabilities
long-term insurance fund  75,368,621  69,079,806  62,526,048  58,494,521  52,573,602  43,956,013  39,470,892  35,654,300  31,947,127  28,496,288 

other liabilities  5,764,890  2,743,847  2,510,653  2,575,067  2,589,100  2,978,417  2,516,258  1,761,226  1,512,249  1,644,462 

Equity attributable to shareholders
capital reserve  27,877  40,892  40,892  16,106  16,106  9,372 – – – –

revenue reserve  17,436,131  14,332,153  17,506,352  16,611,259  31,279,861  1,555,156 – – – –

total liabilities  98,597,519  86,196,699  82,583,945  77,696,953  86,458,669  48,498,957  41,987,150  37,415,526  33,459,376  30,140,750 
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slfrss/lKAss slAss

2014

rs. ’000

2013

rs. ’000

2012
restated
rs. ’000

2011
restated
rs. ’000

2010
restated
rs. ’000

2009

rs. ’000

2008

rs. ’000

2007

rs. ’000

2006

rs. ’000

2005

rs. ’000

long term – Supplemental
assets
property, plant & equipment  42,172  55,969  57,012  46,553  53,343  63,305  107,748  134,488  140,960  151,205 

investments  92,914,463  73,643,020  73,029,822  72,799,868  74,540,011  42,219,092  30,815,851  28,201,706  21,325,082  18,113,080 

other Assets  5,640,884  12,553,679  9,497,112  4,850,532  11,865,314  6,216,560  11,054,551  9,079,332  11,993,334  11,876,465 

total Assets  98,597,519  86,196,699  82,583,945  77,696,953  86,458,668  48,498,957  41,978,150  37,415,526  33,459,376  30,140,750 

Liabilities
long-term insurance fund  75,368,621  69,079,806  62,526,048  58,494,521  52,573,602  43,956,013  39,470,892  35,654,300  31,947,127  28,496,288 

other liabilities  5,764,890  2,743,847  2,510,653  2,575,067  2,589,100  2,978,417  2,516,258  1,761,226  1,512,249  1,644,462 

Equity attributable to shareholders
capital reserve  27,877  40,892  40,892  16,106  16,106  9,372 – – – –

revenue reserve  17,436,131  14,332,153  17,506,352  16,611,259  31,279,861  1,555,156 – – – –

total liabilities  98,597,519  86,196,699  82,583,945  77,696,953  86,458,669  48,498,957  41,987,150  37,415,526  33,459,376  30,140,750 
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8.4.0 GloSSary

This Glossary was 
developed basically 
based on the definitions 
given in the statement of 
recommended practice 
for insurance contracts 
issued by The institute of 
chartered Accountants of 
sri lanka. 

actuary 
Actuary is a person who 
provides solutions to 
insurance-related problems 
using mathematics, 
statistics and financial 
theory. The actuary will 
study significant data such 
as mortality, sickness, 
injury and disability rates 
and use that information to 
assist those involved 
with insurance.

acquisition expenses 
All expenses mainly 
incurred in acquiring new 
business premiums and 
conservation of renewal 
business. Broad in scope,  
it includes cost of soliciting 
business, issuance of 
policies, collection of  
premiums, agents’ 
compensation, field 
supervision, advertising 
and any other expenses 
reasonably attributable 
to acquisition and 
conservation of  
written premiums. 

admissible assets 
Assets that may be included 
in determining an insurer’s 
statutory solvency. such 
assets are specified under 
the rules made by the 
insurance Board of  
sri lanka under the 
regulation of insurance 
industry Act no. 43  
of 2000. 

approved assets 
Assets that represent 
the technical reserves and 
the long-term insurance  
fund as per the 
determination made  
under the regulation of 
insurance industry Act  
no. 43 of 2000. 

Bancassurance 
A partnership between 
a bank and an insurance 
company whereby the 
insurance company uses 
the bank sales channel to 
sell its insurance products.

Beneficiary 
in life insurance business, 
the person named in the 
policy by the policyholder 
(insured) to whom the 
insurance money is paid at 
the death of the insured. 

claim 
The amount payable under  
a contract of insurance  
arising from the concurrence 
of an insured event. 

claims incurred 
A claim is incurred when 
the event giving rise to 
the claim occurs. claims 
incurred include paid 
claims and movements in 
outstanding claims. 

claims incurred but not 
reported 
claims arising out of events 
which have occurred by the 
reporting date, but have not 
reported to the insurer at 
that date.

claims outstanding –  
non-life insurance 
Business 
The amount provided 
to cover the estimated 
ultimate cost of settling 
claims arising out of events 
which have occurred by the 
reporting date including 
iBnr claims and claims 
handling expenses, less 
amounts already paid in 
respect of those claims. 

claims outstanding – 
life insurance Business 
The amount provided 
to cover the estimated 
ultimate cost of settling 
claims arising out of events 
which have been notified by 
the reporting date being the 
sums due to beneficiaries 
together with claims 
handling expenses, less 
amounts already paid in 
respect of those claims. 

co-insurance 
An arrangement whereby 
two or more insurance 
undertakings enter into 
a single contract with the 
insured to cover a risk in 
agreed proportions at a 
specified premium. 

commissions
A payment made to a 
broker or a sales agent 
in return for selling and 
servicing an insurer’s 
products. 

deferred acquisition 
costs – non-life 
insurance Business 
under the annual basis  
of accounting, acquisition 
costs relating to the 
unexpired period of risk 
of contracts in force at 
the reporting date which 
are carried forward from 
one accounting period to 
subsequent accounting 
periods. 

deferred acquisition 
costs – life insurance 
Business
Acquisition costs relating 
to contracts in force at 
the reporting date which 
are carried forward 
from one accounting 
period at subsequent 
accounting periods in the 
expectation that they will 
be recoverable out of future 
margins within insurance 
contracts after providing 
for contractual liabilities. 
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8.5.0 Branch officeS

1.  akkaraipattu
143, main street
Akkaraipattu - 2
tel: 067-2279627

2.  akuressa
40 2/1, matara road
tel: 041-2283590  
 041-5674482

3.  ambalangoda
299, wickramasuriya road
tel: 091-2258339 
 091-5678298

4.  ambalantota
156/8, tissa road
tel: 047-2223235  
 047-5670906

5.  ampara
01, inginiyagala road
tel: 063-2222073  
 063-5670307

6.  anamaduwa
70, puttalam road
tel: 032-2263033  
 032-5675227

7.  anuradhapura
248, maithripala 
senanayaka mawatha
tel: 025-2222167

8.  avissawella
77, ratnapura road
tel: 036-2222311  
 036-5672324

9.  Baddegama
60/1/1, Galle road
tel: 091-2292303  
 091-5624502

10.  Badulla
14, r.h. Gunawardena 
mawatha
tel: 055-2230972  
 055-2230972

11.  Balangoda
60/1/1, Barns ratwatte 
mawatha
tel: 045-2287670  
 045-5678445

12.  Bambalapitiya
316, Galle road,
tel: 011-5632790  
 011-5673296

13.  Bandaragama
72, Jayakody Building,
horana road
tel: 038-2293940

14.  Bandarawela
250/1/A,
Badulla road
tel: 057-2223526  
 057-5670703

15.  Batticaloa
30, pioneer road
tel: 065-2224470

16.  Battaramulla
119, pannipitiya road
tel: 011-2866357  
 011-5634629

17.  Beliatta
74, tangalle road
tel: 047-2243211  
 047-5670908

18.  Beruwala
167/1, Galle road
tel: 034-2276409  
 034-5674655

19.  Bibile
opposite r.s. office
tel: 055-5675673

20.  chankanai
45, ponnalai road
(main street)
tel: 021-2250462

21.  chavakachcheri
A/09 road
tel: 021-2270711

22.  chilaw
431/1, Kurunegala road
tel: 032-2222371 
 032-5671749

23.  city office
288, union place,
colombo 02
tel: 011-2357562  
 011-5677136

24.  dambulla
642, Anuradhapura road
tel: 066-2284616  
 066-5671624

25.  dehiattakandiya
256, mahaweli uyana
tel: 027-2250318

26.  dehiwala
121 1/1,
ramanayaka Auto mobile 
(pvt) ltd.  
121 1/1, Galle road
tel: 011-2713702  
 011-5744962

27.  deniyaya
122, rathna mahal,
main street
tel: 041-2273565  
 041-5674483

28.  dikwella
95, matara road
tel: 041-2255630  
 041-5674476

29.  digana
42, Gonawala road,
digana, rajawella
tel: 081-5630744,  
 081-2376814

30.  eheliyagoda
281, fancy mahal Building,
main street
tel: 036-2259014

31.  elpitiya
1st floor,
royal Building,
Ambalangoda road
tel: 091-2291365,  
 091-5673672

32.  embilipitiya
67, pallegama
tel: 047-2230389  
 047-5672205

33.  fort
96/1-6B, front street,
consistory Building,  
1st floor, colombo 11
tel: 011-5741820

34.  Galewela
59-A, Kurunegala road
tel: 066-2289285,  
 066-5671651

35.  Galgamuwa
121, Anuradhapura road,
tel: 037-2254141  
 037-5673406

36.  Galle
50 A, havelock road
tel: 091-2234531 
 091-2224029

37.  Gampaha
14, holy cross road
tel: 033-2222676 
 033-5675786

38.  Gampola
176/A, Kandy road
tel: 081-2351709  
 081-5675128

39.  Giriulla
90, negombo road
tel: 037-2288304  
 037-5673405

40.  hakmana
95, Kosgahawatte,
matara road 
tel: 041-5670600

41.  hatton
175/1/1, dambulla road
tel: 051-2222196  
 051-5670202
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42.  hambantota
59, main street
tel: 047-2222572

43.  hingurakgoda
59, 3rd cross street
tel: 027-2246345  
 027-5672038

44.  homagama
64, high level road
tel: 011-2893426  
 011-5634670

45.  horana
50/09/c,
Graceland circular road
tel: 034-2261351  
 034-5674512

46.  horowpothana
rest house Junction
tel: 025-2278600

47.  Ja-ela
205/1/1, negombo road
tel: 011-2233169  
 011-5639270

48.  Jaffna
571, hospital road
tel: 021-2222023

49.  Kadawatha
151/5, Kandy road
tel: 011-2921567

50.  Kaduruwela
399, main street
tel: 027-2222954  
 027-5672041

51.  Kaduwela
482/8, colombo road
tel: 011-2579976  
 011-5628269

52.  Kahawatta
46/1A, walauwatta road
tel: 045-2270160  
 045-5674248

53.  Kalawana
56, sampath Bank Building,
matugama road, manana
tel: 045-2255930

54.  Kalmunai
102/1, police station road
tel: 067-2229912 
 067-5670168

55.  Kalutara
55 1/1, paranagama 
Building, Galle road
tel: 034-2222474  
 034-5674535 
 034-5620770

56.  Kandana
54, negombo road
tel: 011-2228848  
 011-5649536

57.  Kandy – 1
25, hill street
tel: 081-2234954 
 081-2228172
 081-2234296 
 081-2224036

58.  Kandy – fBd
no. 6, wadugodapitiya road
tel: 081-5627274

59.  Kandy – 2
06, wadugodapitiya street
tel: 081-2224246

60.  Kantale
62/p, main street
tel: 026-2234043

61.  Katunayaka –ePZ
unit – no. 03, Boi plaza 
Building, epZ Katunayaka
tel: 011-2251394

62.  Kegalle
450 A, meepitiya
tel: 035-2222531

63.  Kekirawa
81, Thalawa road
tel: 025-2264573  
 025-5673430

64.  Kilinochchi
31, A-09 road, 
Karadippokka
tel: 021-2280031

65.  Kiribathgoda
101/1, Galaha Junction,
Kandy road
tel: 011-5554485  
 011-5635483

66.  Kirulapone
88, 1/1, 1st floor,
high level road
tel: 011-2514348  
 011-5649541

67.  Kochchikade
96, chilaw road
tel: 031-2274626  
 031-5677135

68.  Kotahena
4th floor, 178, Gold tower,
George r. de silva mawatha
tel: 011-5673345

69.  Kuliyapitiya
74/A, hettipola road
tel: 037-2281304  
 037-5673401

70.  Kurunegala
16/1, dambulla road
tel: 037-2222376  
 037-2227433

71.  Kurunegala city
63/1, rajapihilla road
tel: 037-2234176

72.  maharagama
128, opposite elhena road
tel: 011-2843563  
 011-5635465

73.  mahiyanganaya
14, samanala Building,
1st floor, Kandy road
tel: 055-2257179  
 055-5670344

74.  malabe
821/3c, new Kandy road
tel: 011-2762312  
 011-5651612

75.  mannar
station road
(opposite pakiya studio)
tel: 023-2223236

76.  marawila
83A, negombo road
tel: 032-2254297 
 032-5672090

77.  matale
134, dharmapala mawatha
tel: 066-2233989 
 066-5671653

78.  matara
5A, hakmana road
tel: 041-2227962  
 041-2222352

79.  matara – fBd
5A, hakmana road
tel: 041-2222227  
 041-5620528

80.  mathugama
79/1/1, Kalutara road
tel: 034-2247510 
 034-5674654

81.  mawanella
238 1/1, Kandy road
tel: 035-2249335,  
 035-5672981

82.  melsiripura
197/1, dambulla road, 
melsiripura
tel: 037-2250459

83.  minuwangoda
21/B, m.p. de Z. 
siriwardhana mawatha
tel: 011-2280870  
 011-5667822

84.  monaragala
114/1, wellawaya road
tel: 055-2276145,  
 055-5670525

85.  moratuwa
710, idama, Galle road
tel: 011-5554451  
 011-5644634

86.  mullaitivu
main street
tel: 021-2290089
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87.  narammala
159/A, supper city 
Building, u.B. wijekoon 
mawatha, Kurunegala road
tel: 037-2248920

88.  nawalapitiya
79, Kotmale road
tel: 054-2222019

89.  negombo
20, rajapaksha Broadway
tel: 031-2231374  
 031-2235235

90.  nelliadi
main street
(opposite people’s Bank)
tel: 021-2264686

91.  nikaweratiya
196, puttalam road
tel: 037-2260279  
 037-5673441

92.  nittambuwa
new super market complex
tel: 033-2289709  
 033-5671351

93.  nugegoda
sausiri Building, 4th floor,
high level road
tel: 011-2817739,  
 011-2826364  
 011-5635464

94.  nuwara eliya
60/1, park street
tel: 052-2222759  
 052-5670529

95.  Panadura
534, Galle road
tel: 038-2234736  
 038-5671547

96.  Pilimathalawa
211/c, colombo road
tel: 081-2575444  
 081-5630070

97.  Piliyandala
34, vidyala mawatha
tel: 011-2613976

98.  Pitakotte
463, Kotte road
tel: 011-2866755

99.  Puttalam
80, Kurunegala road
tel: 032-2265324,  
 032-5672749

100.  ratmalana
143/2/4, mount city,
Galle road
tel: 011-2715992  
 011-5635475

101.  ratnapura
258, main street
tel: 045- 2222433

102.  rikillagaskada
68, ragala road
tel: 081-2365279  
 081-5674793

103.  talgaswala
new town
tel: 091-5676789

104.  Thambuttegama
137, rajina Junction, 
Kurunegala road
tel: 025-2275088

105.  Thangalle
12, indipokunagoda road,
tel: 047-5676144

106.  tissamaharama
211B, Kachcheriyagama
tel: 047-2237152  
 047-5670905

107.  trincomalee
46, main street
tel: 026-2222434  
 026-5675025

108.  udugama
pasans new Building,
mavi dola, Bar Junction
tel: 091-2285097  
 091-5674987

109.  Vavuniya
119/1, Kandy road
tel: 024-2222380  
 024-5670021

110.  Veyangoda
166, negombo road
tel: 033-2288027 
 033-5676037

111.  Warakapola
459, main street
tel: 035-2267747  
 035-5671938

112.  Wariyapola
29/1, Adhikari mawatha
tel: 037-2267451  
 037-5673407

113.  Wattala
396, negombo road
tel: 011-5355531  
 011-5355532

114.  Weligama
352/2,
Galle - matara middle road
tel: 041-2250647  
 041-5673167

115.  Welimada
15 2/1, 2nd floor,
new shopping complex,
Badulla road,
tel: 057-2245174 
 057-5670702

116.  Wellawaya
145/1/1, hambantota road
tel: 055-2274874  
 055-5673345

117.  Wennappuwa
236/3/A, chilaw road
tel: 031-2253319,  
 031-5672447

cuStomer SerVice 
centreS – 15
1. divulapitiya
56, Kurunegala road
tel: 031-5674774

2.  Ganemulla
187/A/8, main street
tel: 033-5621208

3.  habaraduwa
10/1, matara road
tel: 091-2282605

4.  hikkaduwa
231, Galle road
tel: 091-2277124

5.  imaduwa
new shopping complex,
main street
tel: 091-5678781

6.  Kamburupitiya
154 A/1, matara road
tel: 041-5670291

7.  Karapitiya
hirimbura road
tel: 091-5620286  
 091-224719

8.  Kirindiwela
27/8/1, colombo road
tel: 033-5621192

9.  medirigiriya
main street
tel: 071-8600247

10.  middeniya
walasmulla road
tel: 047-5670437

11.  mirigama
opposite police station
tel: 033-2273441

12.  narahenpita
department of motor 
traffic, p.o. Box 533,
elvitigala mawatha
colombo 05

13.  Pugoda
40/1, Kospitiyana
tel: 033-5621223

14.  Thanipolgaha
97/1B, h.K. edmond 
mawatha
tel: 091-2227041

15.  urubokka
2nd floor, shopping 
complex, main street
tel: 041-5670420
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8.6.0 corPoratE inFormation

namE oF tHE comPany and 
rEgistErEd oFFicE

sri lanka insurance corporation ltd.
no. 21, vauxhall street, colombo 2.
tel: +94 11 2357457
fax: +94 11 2447742
web: www.srilankainsurance.com 

comPany rEgistration numbEr 

company was incorporated on 3rd february 1993 
under the companies Act no. 17 of 1982 bearing 
no. n(pBs/cGB)/159 and re-registered under the 
companies Act no. 07 of 2007 on 17th April 2008 
bearing no. pB 289.

board oF dirEctors

The following board members ceased to be 
effective w.e.f. 20th january 2015:

mr. h.K. upali dharmadasa
mr. p. Kudabalage
mr. h. isuru Balapatabendi 
mr. s.v.r. samarasinghe
mr. nayana d.p. dehigama
ms. K.m.A.n. daulagala
 
The following members were appointed w.e.f.  
20th january 2015:

prof. l.G. chandrasena
mr. h. imal s. fonseka
mr. p. Algama 

The following members were appointed w.e.f.  
9th February 2015:

mr. hemaka d.s. Amarasuriya  
mr. t.m.r. Bangsa Jayah  
mr. p.p.J. perera   

LEgaL Form

sri lanka insurance corporation ltd. was 
established under the provisions of insurance 
corporation Act no. 2 of 1961 as a state-owned 
corporation. in 1993, the corporation was 
converted to a fully Government-owned limited 
liability company of which the sole shareholder 
of 100% shares was the secretary to the treasury, 
under the conversion of public corporations or 
Government-owned Business undertakings into 
public companies Act no. 23 of 1987. under the 
privatisation programme of the Government, the 
company was privatised in 2003 and was under 
the private management for a brief period of six 
years. The corporation was re-registered under 
the companies Act no. 07 of 2007.  pursuant to 
the supreme court Judgment on 04th June 2009, 
annulling the privatisation, 99.97% shares are 
vested with the secretary to the treasury on behalf 
of the Government of sri lanka.

tax PayEr idEntiFication numbEr 
(tin)

294001590

vat rEgistration numbEr 

294001590-7000

comPany sEcrEtariEs

varners international (pvt) ltd.
level 14, west tower,
world trade center,
echelon square,
colombo 01.
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subsidiariEs
management services rakshana (pvt) ltd.
The lanka hospitals corporation plc
litro Gas lanka ltd.
litro Gas terminal lanka (pvt) ltd.
canwill holdings (pvt) ltd.
canowin hotels and spas (pvt) ltd. (formerly 
known as sri lanka insurance resorts and spas 
(pvt) ltd.)

sub-subsidiariEs 
lanka hospitals diagnostics (pvt) ltd. 
helanco hotels & spa (pvt) ltd.
sinolanka hotels & spa (pvt) ltd. 

auditors
KpmG (chartered Accountants)
32A, sir mohamed macan marker mawatha,
colombo 03.

bankErs

people’s Bank 
commercial Bank of ceylon plc 
nations trust Bank 
development finance corporation of ceylon  
   (dfcc Bank) 
hatton national Bank plc 
hongkong and shanghai Banking  
   corporation ltd. (hsBc) 

seylan Bank plc 
sampath Bank plc 
standard chartered Bank 
Bank of ceylon 
national savings Bank 
citi Bank 
deutsche Bank

in addition to above operational banks, slic has 
made investments in the following banks:
rural development Bank 
citizen development Bank plc
pan Asia Bank plc
national development Bank plc
housing development finance corporation Bank    
   of sri lanka 

actuary – LiFE 

messrs towers watson singapore pte ltd.
63, chulia street
#09-01 ocBc centre east
singapore 049514 

actuary – non-LiFE 

messrs nmG financial services consulting 
65, chulia street
#37-07/08 ocBc centre 
singapore 049513
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8.7.0  notice of annual General meetinG

notice is hereBY Given that the AnnuAl GenerAl meetinG of sri lAnKA 
insurAnce corporAtion ltd. will be held at the Auditorium of the company at its 
registered office at no. 21, vauxhall street, colombo 02 on tuesday, 30th June 2015 at 10.00 
a.m. for the following purposes:

1. to receive and consider the report of the directors and the financial statements for the 
year ended 31st december 2014 and the report of the Auditors thereon.

2. to declare a first and final dividend of rs. 3.34 per share (totalling a sum of  
rs. 2,003,142,288/-) for the year ended 31st december 2014, as recommended by the 
directors.

3. to elect mr. hemaka d.s. Amarasuriya, director who retires in terms of Article 98 
of the Articles of Association of the company and to consider and, if thought fit, to 
pass the following ordinary resolution pertaining to the appointment of mr. hemaka  
d.s. Amarasuriya, as a director of the company:

 That the age limit of seventy years stipulated in section 210 of the companies Act no. 07 
of 2007 shall not apply to mr. hemaka d.s. Amarasuriya, who at the date of this resolution, 
is 71 years of age (having reached 70 years of age on 19th november 2013), and that  
mr. hemaka d.s. Amarasuriya be and is hereby appointed as a director of sri lanka 
insurance corporation ltd., in terms of section 211 of the companies Act no. 07 of 2007. 

4. to elect mr. t.m.r. Bangsa Jayah, director who retires in terms of Article 98 of the Articles 
of Association of the company.

5. to elect mr. p.p.J. perera, director who retires in terms of Article 98 of the Articles of 
Association of the company.

6. to elect prof. l.G. chandrasena, director who retires in terms of Article 98 of the Articles 
of Association of the company.

7. to elect mr. h. imal s. fonseka, director who retires in terms of Article 98 of the Articles of 
Association of the company.
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8. to elect mr. p. Algama, director who retires in terms of Article 98 of the Articles of 
Association of the company.

9. to reappoint messrs KpmG, the retiring Auditors subject to the appointment of a new Audit 
partner of the said firm, in line with the code of Best practice on corporate Governance 
and to authorise the directors to determine their remuneration. 

10. to authorise the directors to determine donations for the year 2015 and upto the date of the 
next Annual General meeting.

11. Any other business of which due notice has been given. 

By order of the Board,

Varners international (Pvt) ltd.
level 14, west tower,
world trade center,
echelon square,
colombo 01.

1st June 2015 
colombo
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Form oF Proxy

i/we* ...............................................................................................................................................................................  

of .....................................................................................................................................................................................  

being a member/members* of sri lanka insurance corporation ltd. hereby appoint: ......................................

.......................................................................................................................................................................................... 

of .................................................................................................................................................. of failing him/her*

mr. hemaka d.s. Amarasuriya of colombo or failing him
mr. t.m.r. Bangsa Jayah of colombo or failing him
mr. p.p.J. perera of colombo or failing him
prof. l.G. chandrasena of colombo or failing him
mr. h. imal s. fonseka of colombo or failing him
mr. p. Algama of colombo 

As my/our* proxy to represent me/us* and to vote as indicated hereunder for me/us* and on my/our* behalf at the forty-
first Annual General meeting of the company to be held on 30th June 2015 and at every poll which may be taken in 
consequence of the aforesaid meeting and at any adjournment thereof.

rEsoLutions 
1. to receive and adopt the report of the directors and the financial statements for the year  

ended 31st december 2014 with the report of the Auditors thereon.
2. to declare a first and final dividend of rs. 3.34 per share (totalling a sum of  

rs. 2,003,142,288/-) for the year ended 31st december, 2014 as recommended by the  directors. 
3. to reappoint mr. hemaka d.s. Amarasuriya, director who retires in terms of Article 98 

of the Articles of Association and section 210 of the companies Act as a director of the 
company and to pass the ordinary resolution set out in the notice specifically declaring 
that the age limit  of 70 years shall not apply to him.

4. to elect  mr. t.m.r. Bangsa Jayah, director who retires in terms of Article 98 of the 
Articles of Association of the company.

5. to elect  mr. p.p.J. perera, director who retires in terms of Article 98 of the Articles of 
Association of the company.

6. to elect  prof. l.G. chandrasena, director who retires in terms of Article 98 of the Articles 
of Association of the company. 

7. to elect mr. h. imal s. fonseka, director who retires in terms of Article 98 of the Articles 
of Association of the company.  

8. to elect mr. p. Algama, director who retires in terms of Article 98 of the Articles of 
Association of the company.

9. to reappoint messrs KpmG, the retiring Auditors, subject to the appointment of a new 
Audit partner of the said firm, in line with the code of Best practice on corporate 
Governance, and to authorise the directors to determine their remuneration. 

10. to authorise the directors to determine donations for the year 2015 and upto the date of 
the next Annual General meeting.

signed this …………… day of …………………………………… 2015.

 
 …………………………..
 signature of shareholder/s 

*Please delete the inappropriate words. 
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NOTE:
1. A member entitled to attend and vote at the meeting is entitled to appoint a proxy to attend and vote instead of him.
2.  A proxy need not be a member of the Company.
3.  The completed Form of Proxy must be deposited at the Registered Office of the Company at the Company Secretariat,  

Sri Lanka Insurance Corporation Ltd., 8th Floor,  No. 21, Vauxhall Street, Colombo 02, not less than 48 hours before the 
time fixed for the meeting. 
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